651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

PUBLIC AGENCY
NCI A phone (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

Date: January 16, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting

1.

Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at.9:24 am at the Kimpton Sawyer Hotel, 500 J
Street, Sacramento, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in
attendance are shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the December 5, 2019, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by John Allard and seconded by Mark Chandler to approve the
Minutes of the December 5, 2019, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a
majority on a voice vote of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

No comments from the public addressed the Commission.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3.

General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

Thanked the NCPA L&R Team for their effort in putting together another successful
Strategic Issue Conference Program.

Gave an update on NCPA'’s Support and Shared Services Agreements and provided a copy
of the monthly status report.

Gave an update on the Geothermal facility switching project. The facility is still down as a
result of the Kincade fire. However, staff installed a temporary jumper with the goal to put in
the actual switch that will give staff the ability to roll to different transmission lines if need
during outages.

Provided an overview of the tree trimming challenges surrounding transmission lines.
Working with CMUA on this issue and plan to meet with IBEW to discuss further.



- Continue to pay close attend to Wildfire Insurance going forward as this continues to be a
growing concern.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Frith reported the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee heard reports from the General Manager and General Counsel,
and met in closed session. No reportable action was taken.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 12-20 on today’s agenda.
A quorum of the Committee was established and recommend Commission approval of all
items. A resolution was presented to Tikan Singh in recognition of his time serving as Chair
of the Committee.

6. Finance Committee

Chair Greg Scharff reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting. The next regular Committee meeting is scheduled on February 11.

7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting. The next regular Committee meeting is scheduled on February 6.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Chair Mark Chandler reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting. Chair Chandler did report that NCPA held its annual Strategic Issues Conference
at the Kimpton Sawyer Hotel in Sacramento January 14-15, and provided a brief overview
of the conference program. NCPA staff will hold a state legislative briefing on January 27 at
8 am at the Hyatt Regency in Sacramento prior to CMUA’s Capitol Day. The 2020 NCPA

Federal Policy Conference is scheduled for April 19-23 in Washington, D.C. The next
Committee meeting is scheduled on February 19 at NCPA - registration opens next month.

9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting
No Members announcement or reporting was mentioned.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to
determine if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the
Consent Calendar. No items were pulled from the Consent Calendar.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
January 16, 2020



Motion: A motion was made by Jerry Serventi and seconded by James Takehara to approve
the Consent Calendar consisting of Items 10-19. The motion carried by a majority of those
members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.

San Francisco BART, Lompoc, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

10. NCPA’s Financials for the Month Ended November 30, 2019 — approval by all
members.

11. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended November 30, 2019 — accept by all
members.

12. Resolution 20-02, Process Innovations, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting
Services Agreement for OSIsoft Plant Information (Pl) Software Support Services;
Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement with Process Innovations, Inc. for OSisoft Pl software support services, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$500,000 over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

13. Resolution 20-03, Premium Inspection Company — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for maintenance inspection services; Applicable to the
following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA
Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Premium
Inspection Company for maintenance inspection services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$500,000 over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

14. Resolution 20-04, Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement for developing, reviewing and updating training
and qualification manuals; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement with Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. for services related
to developing, reviewing and updating training and qualification manuals, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$1,000,000 over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
January 16, 2020



15. Resolution 20-05, Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging — First
Amendment to Five Year Multi Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to
the following Projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities
and NCPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging, with any non-
substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
increasing the not to exceed amount from $235,000 to $1,000,000, expanding the
Scope of Work to include heavy machinery usage and road easement maintenance, and
amending the Compensation Schedule to include heavy equipment rates, for continued
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and NCPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$1,000,000 over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

16. Resolution 20-06, Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc. - First
Amendment to Five Year Multi Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to
the following Projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities
and NCPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc., with any non-
substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
increasing the not to exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 and expanding the
Scope of Work to include road and easement maintenance, for continued use at any
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and NCPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$1,000,000 over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

17. Resolution 20-07, Tanner Logging, Inc. — Second Amendment to Five Year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following Projects: All
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities and NCPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into
a Second Amendment to the Multi Task General Services Agreement with Tanner
Logging, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $225,000 to
$1,000,000 and expanding the Scope of Work to include road and easement
maintenance, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and
NCPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$1,000,000 over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

18. Resolution 20-08, NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project; Applicable to
the following projects: NCPA Geothermal Facility — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project and delegating
authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements,
and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing
Policies and Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to
exceed amount of $893,817.

Fiscal Impact: The Plant 1 HVAC System Project will cost $893,817. This project was
deferred from FY19 budget to FY20 budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
January 16, 2020



conditions of any agreements executed for work related to this project will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.
Palo Alto, Redding, and Shasta Lake abstained.

19. Resolution 20-09, NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector
Replacement Project; Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Geothermal
Plant 2 Facility — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the NCPA Geothermal
Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project, and delegating authority to the
General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue
purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and
procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed
amount of $300,000.

Fiscal Impact. The NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement
Project was included as a part of NCPA’s Geothermal facility FY20 budget, approved in
the May 28, 2019 Commission meeting (Resolution 19-43). This project was originally
budgeted to cost $200,000. The forecasted project cost has increased, and staff is now
seeking an additional $100,000, for a total revised project cost not to exceed $300,000.
The additional requested funds can be absorbed within the FY20 budget, and no budget
augmentation is required.

Palo Alto, Redding, and Shasta Lake abstained.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

20. Resolution 20-10, Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and the City of San José — adopt resolution by all
members approving Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between NCPA and the
City of San José, pursuant to Resolution 20-10, and authorize the General Manager of
NCPA to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of NCPA,
including any non-substantive modifications to Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact. By extending the Services Agreement for one (1) additional year beyond the
Initial Term, NCPA will receive $655,452 as compensation for the services rendered to the
City of San José. NCPA’s administrative costs for development of Amendment No. 2 to the
Services Agreement will be allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget.

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer provided a presentation and discussed the
Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between NCPA and the City of San Jose.
The Commission discussed and asked questions regarding possible additional years and
the potential cost impacts.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Greg Scharff to adopt
resolution by all members approving Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between
NCPA and the City of San José, pursuant to Resolution 20-10, and authorize the General
Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Amendment No. 2 to the Services
Agreement approved by NCPA's General Counsel. The motion carried by a majority on a roll
call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Lompoc, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

21. Resolution 20-11, Approval of Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with Jane
E. Luckhardt, General Counsel — adopt resolution by all members approving the Third

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
January 16, 2020



Amendment to Employment Agreement between NCPA and Jane E. Luckhardt; authorize
the Chair of Commission to execute the Third Amendment to Employment Agreement; and
approve the General Counsel’s Performance Goals for 2020.

Fiscal Impact. Funds are available in the Executive Services — Legal Salaries and Benefits
account; there is no material change to the current fiscal year budget.

Item 21 was not discussed and tabled to the February Commission meeting.

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for Closed Session discussion.
CLOSED SESSION

22. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of
Redding, City of Roseville, and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal
Claims No. 14-817C.

23. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and
Electric Company, Debtors; United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California,
Case Nos. 19-30088 (Lead Case) and 19-30089 DM.

24. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION - Initiation of
litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) — One (1) case.

25. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - a)
Labor negotiations pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6: Agency representatives:
NCPA Executive Committee Members and Assistant General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks:
Unrepresented Public Employee: General Counsel; and b) Performance evaluation pursuant
to Government Code Section 54957: Unrepresented Public Employee: One Category:
General Counsel

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable
action taken on Closed Session items 22, 23 and 25.

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated reportable action was
taken on Closed Session item 24. The Commission approved the negotiated UBS AG Labor
States’ Attorneys General Settlement and authorized the General Manager to execute Election
to Participate and Release on behalf of the Agency.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
January 16, 2020



ADJOURNMENT

The January 16, 2020, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:20 am.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
January 16, 2020



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of
January 16, 2020
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

'NAME AFFILIATION
Ly, Socers Oty 5 Vdesal
([ Lant Al Uik
MM\ g\'\’\ Q/QI\ KO A FO <
Yett Fanll Alorr e des
N\w '/_Dmcavg’ /gr{&m’_c}lq
(DC\/'\ A%‘Q(Af\f V’J lé(’\
72”25 '//éféé & /A (éésfa f//éé
\/i dh; Chawla Alamedl &
'T;nj Z i Mo
Basil Weng Savde. Claxco
Je L %u\(—“na;w\gi Led,
Ph/ L, bLRERL RipLey
m | ké )6\(0@ 312
ALANY  KOo@EZ T2 | OANNTA. Lz N
%ggg ) Cwvngovy/ NP A—
Seaeolor elo Ao
/—’ W ENY % O~ ﬂm(ﬂé’fu
Mignelte. Hooling KO
T ey Cﬁuwui'f Hﬁ/-\w;ﬂufié,
Oowsid Haesle U eoldsby
ool Ledesmn N¢ph -
_Morky {aules NCPA
Jaue /,//rZ/MmZ?" NP4
Q\mﬁ._\ S, Plewoscd Neel



Northern California Power Agency

Commission Meeting

'

January 16, 2020

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1- ALAMEDA Nfoaz). gﬂﬂ—rcé—f
2 - BIGGS W
3 - GRIDLEY

4 - HEALDSBURG

5 - LODI vﬂ(z Z %WQ@/*
6 - LOMPOC
7 - PALO ALTO

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND

10 - REDDING

: A
9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC L%MW

11 - ROSEVILLE

Y

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

13 - SANTA CLARA

14 - SHASTA LAKE

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

16 - UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency

Commission Meeting -

January 16, 2020
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
((70"; = ?ﬂ-\u\ 5 (‘9 7S
Ratpe Santaua M CPa

\qui. Eymditnn

NCPA

DEAM = Bis AET

A fA-

Jeremo, {pgisort

ACPA

NP

(oo G
J J




AK; CPA CONSENT CALENDAR

/NURTHEHN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: January 16, 2020
Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # ID to# ,\q

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:
#

l W\ [oedl
ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS: W\ (/m’

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

lddede| de

Lodi

X

Lompoc

Palo Alto \X WA
Port of Oakland o]

Redding \ 3 )\ \Ql

Roseville <

Santa Clara

LTS X

Shasta Lake \SS \ \ c\

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

44

Plumas-Sierra

&

ATTEST:

Cary A. Padgett
Assistant Secretary to the Commission



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: Y\,QMW"‘ &3-*\0 - \&’Q/V\/l :B(ZO

ABSTAIN ABSENT

<
O
—
m

Alameda
BART X
Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner >(

Ukiah

HFERH B bR

Passed and adopted this 16 day of January 2020, by the above vote on roll call.

ATTEST:

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

N C PA phone  (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject:  January 27, 2020, NCPA Special Commission Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 8:04 am at the Hyatt Regency Sacramento, 1209 L Street,
Sacramento, California. Introductions were made. Chair Frith moved to recess the meeting at 8:08 am
due to a lace of a quorum of the Commission. At 8:15 am, Chair Frith called the meeting back into
session due to a quorum of the Commission was present. Those in attendance are shown on the
attached attendance list.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Frith asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the Commission
on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

DISCUSSION / ACTION

2. Resolution, 20-12, Lodi Energy Center Turbine Failure — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager to execute agreements and issue Purchase Orders to carry out
the work approved by the Lodi Energy Center Project (LEC) Project Participant Committee
(PPC) in an amount not-to-exceed $3,000,000 for disassembly/investigation into the cause of the
Lodi Energy Center forced outage on January 16, 2020, and to perform the associated work
needed on the combustion turbine to better understand the damage and evaluate the options to
repair and restore the unit to operation.

Fiscal Impact. The turbine failure was not anticipated in the budget. The
disassembly/investigation of the turbine costs total an estimated $3,000,000. A summary of the
disassembly costs are in the table below. Initially, NCPA is recommending using funds from
LEC’s Maintenance Reserve account to fund this initial work. NCPA is working with Siemens
Energy, Inc., through its Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement (LTMA) and will file a
warranty claim depending on the outcome of the investigation. The LTMA provides coverage for
$1,000,000 per event, $2,000,000 annual limits, which are available under the contract
limitations of the Agreement. Any funds reimbursed by the insurance company will be used to
replenish funds taken from the Maintenance Reserve account. Any shortfalls will need a budget
augmentation to replenish the Maintenance Reserve account. NCPA will keep the LEC PPC
advised as to the status.



General Manager Randy Howard briefed the Commission on Resolution 20-12 with a short description of the
turbine failure at the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), and NCPA's efforts to find the root cause of the failure and
NCPA’s notification to the insurance companies for LEC. Mr. Howard stated the funds needed for the initial
assessment would initially come from the Maintenance Reserve, and that the requested amount to spend $3
million is simply to assess the damage and create a plan for repair and to restart the LEC. At this time, NCPA
does not have an estimate of the costs or the time to repair and restart the LEC.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to adopt resolution by
all members authorizing the General Manager to execute agreements and issue Purchase Orders to
carry out the work approved by the Lodi Energy Center Project (LEC) Project Participant Committee
(PPC) in an amount not-to-exceed $3,000,000 for disassembly/investigation into the cause of the Lodi
Energy Center forced outage on January 16, 2020, and to perform the associated work needed on the
combustion turbine to better understand the damage and evaluate the options to repair and restore the
unit to operation. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.
Alameda, Port of Oakland, Redding and Roseville abstained. San Francisco BART, Healdsburg, Palo
Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

ADJOURNMENT

The January 27, 2020, Special Commission meeting was adjourned at 8:25 am.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

NCPA Special Commission Meeting Minutes 2
January 27, 2020



Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting
January 27, 2020
COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1- ALAMEDA feeey ‘ﬂmg/:é_
. 2-BIGGS K) /,Z @
\—an“Nv , =>
3 - GRIDLEY

4 - HEALDSBURG

6 - LOMPOC
7- PALO ALTO &\ m

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

10 - REDDING

Gint

11 - ROSEVILLE

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

=

13 - SANTA CLARA

14 - SHASTA LAKE

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

16 - UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting
January 27, 2020
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Mico JD@MS Alamed

Dear [ tnlei— Pot-g Ptcdangy
Ao Betio liio Vorovile

bho) e Ketenus

% Bees LA
“Roudn \Kowo e NCoR

Ko e Fr o 219 95

\/Eeig Lﬁo[éﬂw N ij

C{ S SIS Qm‘ ot Spnita Clarsm-
Shaean TadeR | C@é/ i NCPpy
T 4 e Cavele N LR
Emily Lemen NCPA
K@fw\ JacKSon NCPA

—_— \nmm/\m“ I _ N A—
%Nm@&dz\f\é\ N A




Northern California Power Agency
- ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic:

%
5

VOTE ABSTAIN AB

Alameda _\/ ;_

BART

Biggs

N

Gridley

D

Healdsburg

Lodi

¥

Lompoc

Palo Alto /

Plumas-Sierra ‘/

Port of Oakland

"

Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner ‘/
Ukiah _ _ ‘/___ _

Passed and adopted this 27" day of January 2020, by the above vote on roll call.

0. e, Lpdap) & JoKih_

ROGERFRITH <& ROBYN JACKSON

Commission Chair OFFICE ASSISTANT

fo




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.: O

Date: February 20, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

A PUBLIC AGENCY

phone (916) 781-3636
/ N C F A fax  (916)783-7693
N

ORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - Draft

Date: February 12, 2020
To: NCPA Facilities Committee
From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call — The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Brian
Schinstock at 9:05 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference and/or
on-line presentation were Alan Harbottle and Alex Smith (Alameda), Paul Eckert (Gridley),
Shiva Swaminathan (Palo Alto), Jared Carpenter (Port of Oakland), Nick Rossow (Redding) and
Steve Hance and Paulo Apolinario (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are listed on the
attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Biggs, Healdsburg,
Lompoc, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

OPEN SESSION

DICUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

2. Approve Minutes from the January 8, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Brian Schinstock recommending
approval of the January 8, 2020 Facilities Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll
call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland, and Redding. The motion passed.

3. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Industrial Door Company MTGSA -
Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Industrial Door Company
for commercial and industrial door maintenance services, with a not to exceed amount of
$500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA,
and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

This is a new agreement with a new vendor. Staff contacted Industrial Door Company because
they have worked near the Geysers area. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment of
funds. Execution of this enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified vendors



willing to work in the more remote location of NCPA’s Geothermal facility, which will result in
more competitive bidding when services are needed. NCPA has one other agreement in place
for similar services with Barton Overhead Door. Inc. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft
agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Industrial Door Company for commercial and industrial
door maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-
Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland, and Redding. The motion
passed.

4. NCPA Geothermal Facility — Vince Sigal Electric, Inc. MTGSA - Staff is seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Vince Sigal Electric, Inc. for specialized electrical services, including labor and
materials for miscellaneous maintenance purposes, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000,
for use at NCPA’'s Geothermal facility. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

**This item was pulled from the agenda.**

5. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Farwest Insulation Contracting
First Amendment to MTGSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation Contracting, increasing the not to exceed amount
from $500,000 to $3,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA entered into a five year Multi Task General Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation
Contracting effective December 6, 2019 for an amount not to exceed $500,000. The Lodi
Energy Center (LEC) is currently in a forced outage, and will need continued insulation support
services for the duration of the outage, which will quickly exhaust the amount that is currently
remaining on the agreement. This amendment will increase the not to exceed amount from
$500,000 to $3,500,000. It will remain an enabling agreement with no commitment of funds.
NCPA has one other enabling agreement in place for similar services with Bayside Insulation
and Construction. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft First Amendment with the original
agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation Contracting,
with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to $3,500,000, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-
Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland, and Redding. The motion
passed.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
February 5, 2020



6. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Maxim Crane Works, L.P. First
Amendment to MTGSA - Staff provided background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Maxim Crane Works, L.P., increasing the not to exceed amount from
$500,000 to $1,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA entered into a five year Multi Task General Services Agreement with Maxim Crane
Works, L.P. effective April 4, 2016 for an amount not to exceed $500,000. The Lodi Energy
Center is currently in a forced outage, and will need continued crane support services for the
duration of the outage. Staff estimates that this vendor’s work related to the current LEC outage
will exceed the amount remaining on the agreement. This amendment increases the not to
exceed amount from $500,000 to $1,500,000. It will remain an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. Other agreements in place for similar services are with American Crane
Rental, Inc., Hatton Crane & Rigging, OST Trucks & Cranes, Inc., Summit Crane Company of
Solano, Inc. and Titan Crane & Rigging, Inc. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft First
Amendment with the original agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place
this item on the consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Maxim Crane Works, L.P., with
any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to $1,500,000, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. A vote was
taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa
Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland, and Redding. The motion passed.

7. All Generation Services Facilities — Nalco Company, LLC MTGSA - Staff gave background
information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Nalco Company, LLC for specialty chemicals and
related services, with a not to exceed amount of $2,500,000, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

This is a renewal agreement with an existing vendor. NCPA had a previous agreement in place
which expired in November 2019, and have a good working relationship with this vendor. It is an
enabling agreement with no commitment of funds. NCPA recently requested competitive bids
for a project at the CT facilities. Nalco was one of the prospective bidders. Execution of this
enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and proven vendors for these types
of services. Other agreements in place for similar services are with CellMark USA, Inc. (Geo
only), Dow Chemical Company (Geo only), SUEZ WTS USA, Inc., and Univar USA, Inc. This
agreement will be for use at NCPA facilities only since it is for specialty chemicals and related
services. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is
recommended to place this item on the consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Brian Schinstock recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Nalco Company, LLC for specialty chemicals and
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto,

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
February 5, 2020



Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland, and Redding. The
motion passed.

8. Nexant Cost Allocation Model Billing Determinants — Staff reviewed the finalized calendar
year 2019 billing determinants that will be used in the FY2021 Nexant Cost Allocation Model.
The prescribed Nexant determinants are appropriate for use as allocators in the cost allocation
model. This review does not include offsetting Power Management services revenues. Staff was
also seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of the modification to exclude contract
deals from NCPA'’s deal capture system having ‘Submitted’ deal status for use as inputs into the
Nexant Model.

The proposed modification to the current Nexant Cost Allocation Model was reviewed by staff.
NCPA's Deal capture system accounts for contracts arranged with counter parties for the
purchase or sale of energy and capacity transactions. Typically, ‘Submitted’ deals represent an
inactive status until they are subsequently modified to ‘Finalized’ or ‘Verified’ status. The
‘Submitted’ status has more recently been used as a means to store information for deals not
associated with scheduling or settlements. This requested change ensures that Submitted deals
are not included as inputs into the Nexant model, as they do not reflect any incremental time or
effort performed by either NCPA staff or NCPA applications.

Motion: A motion was made by Shiva Swaminathan and seconded by Brian Schinstock
recommending Commission approval of the proposed modification to exclude contract deals
from NCPA's deal capture system having ‘Submitted’ deal status for use as inputs into the FY
2021 Nexant Cost Allocation Model. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley,
Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland, and
Redding. The motion passed.

9. NCPA Hydroelectric Facility — Hydro Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project — Staff provided
background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of the
Hydroelectric Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project, with a not to exceed amount of $3,000,000, and
approval of a budget augmentation for the FY20 Hydroelectric Budget in the amount of
$1,700,000, and use of up to $1,300,000 in Hydro Capital Development Reserve funds.

In September 2019, NCPA contracted with Power Engineers to prepare a Wildfire Risk Mitigation
Report and Recommendations. Part of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line crosses through a Cal
Fire Tier |l Fire Hazard Severity Zone. In consideration of the age of the insulators, the observed
failures, and changing design standards, Power Engineers recommended that the approximately
30 year old EPDM polymer-type insulators be replaced with new silicon polymer insulators with
corona rings, and other hardware modifications such as changing out some suspension clamps,
inspecting the conductors for fatigue or damaged stands, upgrading shield wire grounding
installations, and adding anchor shackles at the suspension insulator Y-clevis end in specific
tangent towers. In addition, Power Engineers recommended increasing the line-ground
clearance in one span, and fire hardening the McKays 17 kV overhead line. The NCPA
Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project will implement the Power Engineer recommendations
for the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line and McKays 17 kV line.

After discussion, Members expressed they would prefer to use the not to exceed amount of
$3,000,000 from the existing Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve collection funds for the
project rather than a budget augmentation for the FY20 Hydroelectric Budget.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval authorizing the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements,
and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4
February 5, 2020



10.

1.

procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed amount of
$3,000,000, and authorizing use of up to $3,000,000, in existing Hydroelectric Capital
Development Reserve collections to fund the project. The Hydroelectric Capital Development
Reserve will need to be replenished in future budget years. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
ABSTAIN = Redding. The motion passed.

NCPA Geothermal Facility — Geo Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project — Staff presented
background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of the
Geothermal Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project, with a not to exceed amount of $450,000, to be
funded from existing Geothermal bond fund account(s).

There have been three major wildfires over the last five years in areas surrounding the NCPA
Geothermal Facility. Fortunately, the facility has incurred minimal damage from these fires. An
assessment of NCPA facilities was performed by Power Engineers and recommendations were
provided based on best business practices. Therefore, the Wildfire Risk Mitigation Report and
Recommendations and lessons learned from the recent fires have resulted in Geothermal
Facility specific recommended mitigation measures for the project which consists of repairs and
lidar surveys to the 230 kV transmission towers and 21 kV power distribution line, purchase and
rental of vehicles for power line inspection and vegetation management, and improved fire
retardant signage, per Cal Fire, to assist local firefighting crews.

The Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project will require a one-time cost of $450,000. While this increase
was not included in the FY20 budget, staff recommend using a portion of excess bond Reserve
funds that was released when the final maturity of the 2009 Geothermal bonds was paid on July
1, 2019. The Reserve fund released was approximately $3.5 million which would have been
included as part of the FY 2020 annual settliements reconciliation. Therefore, no budget
augmentation is required. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of any
agreements executed for work related to this project will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
Commission approval authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Facility Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project
and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing
Policies and Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed
amount of $450,000. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Plumas-Sierra,
Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, and Redding. The motion
passed.

NID Services Agreement — Staff presented background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a Services Agreement with Nevada Irrigation
District (NID), pursuant to which NCPA will supply certain scheduling and dispatch services to
NID.

NID issued a Request for Information on April 9, 2019, seeking proposals for scheduling and
dispatch services for NID’s Deer Creek Powerhouse. In response to NID’s Request for
Information, NCPA submitted a Statement of Qualifications and proposal to supply scheduling
coordination, control center, and reliability standards compliance services for NID’s Deer Creek
Powerhouse. On September 3, 2019, NID formally selected NCPA's proposal. Staff, in
coordination with NID, has developed a Services Agreement under which NCPA will supply
scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services for NID’s Deer Creek
Powerhouse. NID has now requested additional services for the Combie South Powerhouse.
Services requested are the same services as requested for the Deer Creek Powerhouse. The

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 5
February 5, 2020



Combie South Powerhouse is a 1.5 MW Hydroelectric “run-of-river” production. It qualifies as
RPS and RA, with limited dispatch flexibility. The key provisions contained in the Services
Agreement included a defined scope of services, terms for compensation, and terms to limit
NCPA'’s liability.

Compensation for services rendered will be $34,000 per, with a 2% increase per year. The initial
term will be for two years from March 1, 2020 to February 28, 2022 with an automatic extension.
The agreement will be structured to be flexible, enabling adding capacity. Additional NID
hydroelectric projects produce 82.2 MW of capacity. Lompoc will purchase the Deer Creek
Powerhouse output. Purchase of the Combie South Powerhouse output is pending with another
NCPA Member.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Brian Schinstock recommending
Commission approval of the Services Agreement between NCPA and NID, pursuant to which
NCPA will supply scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services to
NID, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley,
Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The
motion passed.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

12. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — NCPA Plant Staff provided the Committee with
an informational update on current plant activities and conditions.

Hydro — December 2019 was a good month for precipitation, keeping the average percentages
up for the current water year. However, January 2020 did not have much precipitation, so
brought the percentages down to only 52% of normal by the end of the month. Hopefully the
precipitation will pick back up again in the future.

CTs — The January operations were busy for CT1 with 32 actual starts of four that were
forecasted. The FYTD is 209, with 30 of those starts in real time. CT2 had 0 starts with 0
forecasted. The FYTD is 36 for CT2. Alameda Unit 1 & 2 had nine mini forced outages due to
electrical and control issues. There was one planned outage for CT1 Lodi. Work was done on
the transformer heaters, valve position indication, CBIT, and some routine maintenance. The
Generator Circuit Breaker Project has been deferred due to the parts being late. Staff did not
want to extend the CT1 outage any longer than scheduled.

Geo — There were no safety incidents to report this past month. Vegetation management is
continuing at Geo. Both Plant 1 and Plant 2 were up and running by the end of January. The
Fulton and Lakeville transmission lines have been inter-tied with temporary jumper lines. These
were installed January 22, and will be removed February 28. Staff are working to install a
permanent switch. The Fulton transmission line will be down until February 29. The FY 2020 net
generation is 350.1 GWh, which is 19% below what was forecasted, due to the Kincade fire.
Insulation repairs were done in both plants and the steam field. The P-7 wing valve was also
repaired.

13. New Business Opportunities — Staff provided an update regarding new business opportunities.

Sonoma Clean Energy (SCE) issued a RFO on January 28, 2020. SCE is a well-established,
operational CCA that began services in May 2014. The peak load is 500 MW, equaling 2,500
GWHh. Services requested include scheduling coordinator services. Responses are due February
11, 2020. Staff will meet internally to discuss options.

A new CCA is forming in Butte County, Butte Choice Energy (BCE), which includes the City of
Chico, and the County of Butte. The estimated load will be 1,000 GWh per year. Operations are

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 6
February 5, 2020



scheduled to commence January 1, 2021. BCE issued a RFP on January 28, 2020. The scope of
services includes CAISO scheduling coordination, risk management, and power procurement.
Proposals are due February 13, 2020. Staff will meet internally to discuss options. A proposal will
likely be submitted with exceptions, such as posting collateral on behalf of BCE, and certain
financing and credit obligations.

14. Planning and Operations Update —

- NCPA actively working to develop and publish a “Rolling” Renewable RFP on behalf of
the Members — Staff is currently working to develop a RPS RFP similar to SCPPA’s rolling
Renewable RFP. NCPA will work to develop a process for presenting offers to Members
for consideration (possible dashboard), and present the draft to Members for comments,
and questions.

- BAMx Agreement Development — The cities of Palo Alto, and Santa Clara are part of the
BAMx Agreement with Flynn RCI, for transmission studies, which is expiring. A new
agreement is being developed. Please contact Tony Zimmer if interested in becoming a
participant of the BAMx Agreement.

- Western Base Resource Contract Negotiation Complete — Western has completed the
negotiations for the new Base Resource Contract. Next steps include review of the draft
contract. Please contact Tony Zimmer, or Vela Wann with any questions.

15. Next Meeting — A Special Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February
12, 2020 to review the FY 2021 budget. The next regular Facilities Committee meeting is
scheduled for March 4, 2020.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:12 pm.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 7
February 5, 2020



Northern California Power Agency
February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
(cune Golleo VL C\2A
Peumi  Scmattode Bosu =
Ec«»,‘\fx Bowers ok NC (A
Lo /OEE N PA
| TEEMmy LAnsSeA ANELA
Michael DeBortd. NcpA
K ey Sackin N LA
e Luchiprt NCPA
V) hite [ Ovrze PSREC

ToeX [ edos

NEPA

//kn’/ //41#"‘7

NLLA

Tenniz_ S sl

ez

7
lLagna Limpte—
7

N CPA-

N el B




Northern California Power Agency
February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI |/ g% A /}2
LOMPOC \ /

PALO ALTO

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC TVl

R R S - =

PORT OF OAKLAND

REDDING

ROSEVILLE

SANTA CLARA Basi | Wana

- M — —— - — — )

i
} | TID
i

UKIAH




W A PUBLIC A“E« v

NORTHERN CALIFURNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020

SUBJECT:

December 31, 2019 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

1O

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth <<~ 1) |, METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi

City of Lompoc

Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto

City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o O o o 0O 0O

o o o o o0 K

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o 0o o

SR: 114:20



December 31, 2019 Financial Report (Unaudited)
February 11, 2020

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported
herein, will be approved at the February 20, 2020 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The
following page is a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited December 2019 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

A %”)
M l
RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 114:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of December 2019

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,446,704
3,164,753
96,463
249,774
4,822,489
36,754,119

$ 46,534,302




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 50%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,637,834 § 9,639,096 $ 20,767,239 46%

Debt Service (Net) 2,775,572 16,653,431 33,306,862 50%
Annual Budget Cost 4,413,406 26,192,527 54,074,101 48%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,348,357 15,260,758 30,365,288 50%

Debt Service (Net) 412,144 2,472,862 4,945,723 50%
Annual Budget Cost 2,760,501 17,733,620 35,311,011 50%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 438,579 2,980,523 6,169,530 48%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 133,803 637,360 1,089,118 59% (a)

Other Plant Cost 180,645 1,206,406 2,552,870 47%

Debt Service (Net) 483,035 2,898,210 5,796,421 50%
Annual Budget Cost 797,483 4,741,976 9,438,409 50%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 4,679,964 18,761,187 39,513,147 47%

Other Plant Cost 2,139,370 10,130,862 27,392,586 37%

Debt Service (Net) 2,171,202 13,027,214 26,054,428 50%
Annual Budget Cost 8,990,536 41,919,263 92,960,161 45%
Member Resources - Energy 4,700,168 32,708,372 56,228,967 58% (b)
Member Resources - Natural Gas 463,828 2,244,494 3,540,898 63% ()
Western Resources 1,623,233 11,045,948 23,325,119 47%
Market Power Purchases 1,930,518 11,926,290 15,123,482 79% (d)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 56,133,716 304,531,586 256,029,593 119% (e)
Net GHG Obligations - 1,499,594 496,955 302% )

82,151,969 457,524,193 552,698,226 83%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 576,919 3,669,116 2,813,086 130% (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 6,735,638 57,620,963 110,581,940 52%. (h)
Ancillary Services 113,662 3,466,109 2,372,540 146% (i)
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (3,574,698) 12,639,764 1,321,289 957% 0)]
3,851,521 77,395,952 117,088,855 66%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 146,581 946,165 2,132,130 44%
Regulatory Representation 55,966 319,189 748,387 43%
Western Representation 59,129 293,932 745,117 39%
Customer Programs 26,760 114,849 423,678 27%
Judicial Action 30,826 130,298 625,000 21%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 509,716 2,989,902 6,082,417 49%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 193,606 1,210,061 2,934,143 41%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 30,686 174,089 414,479 42%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 69,016 456,671 953,716 48%
Gas Purchase Program 4,966 31,839 77,386 41%
Market Purchase Project 6,513 43,949 111,270 39%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 50%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Energy Risk Management (4,191) 63,085 211,744 30%
Settlements 62,499 385,977 979,916 39%
Integrated Systems Support 1,944 17,971 243,161 7%
Participant Pass Through Costs 198,493 764,388 1,560,447 49%
Support Services 57,058 668,127 - N/A
1,449,568 8,610,502 18,242,991 47%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 87,453,058 543,530,647 688,030,072 79%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 11,134,566 53,818,518 127,623,712 42%
Member Resource 1SO Energy Sales 3,184,332 15,881,607 28,156,411 54% (k)
Member Owned Generation 1SO Energy Sales 5,505,099 40,374,633 67,107,648 60% ()
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,660,953 9,875,384 15,623,339 63% 0]
Western Resource Energy Sales 1,045,343 13,001,017 18,304,471 71% (m)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 32,855,050 167,841,615 - N/A
Ancillary Services Sales 601,108 4,144,088 4,196,879 99% (n)
Transmission Sales - 45,990 110,376 42%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 73,422 42,944,090 19,227,470 223% (0)
56,059,873 347,926,942 281,350,306 124%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 31,393,185 § 195,603,705 § 406,679,766 48%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 138% of budgeted MWhs at 12/31/19. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Variance caused by greater than anticipated member contracts for Palo Alto and Port of Oakland.
(c) Variance caused by greater than anticipated natural gas for Lodi, Lompoc, Gridley, and Ukiah.

(d) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget including certain
NextEra and Exelon deals.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(f) Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for City of Lodi, BART, San Jose CE, East Bay CE,
and Ukiah.

(g) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(h) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(i) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(j) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(k) Increase due to unbudgeted revenue from energy contracts entered into by Palo Alto following the issuance of the FY20 budget.

() Variance due to unbudgeted revenue from market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget include
certain NextEra and Exelon deals.

(m) Increase due to greater than anticipated MWhs due to the good hydro year. MWhs are 122% of budget at 12/31/19.
(n) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation.

(o) Variance caused by unbudgeted revenue from customers and greater than anticipated member contract sales.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
Deferred Outflows - ARO
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

December 31,

2019 2018

(in thousands)
28,654 § 21,554
57,048 45,236
3,480 46
287 269
663 411
8,891 9,746
732 1,224
99,755 78,486
42,196 53,845
177,128 166,856
754 618
220,078 221,319
1,507,957 1,505,096

(1,019,576) (988,695)

488,381 516,401
182 182
488,563 516,583
220,889 229,553
651 165
265 265
1,030,201 1,046,371
28,388 37,138
17,055 19,200
62,048 62,204
107,491 118,542

1,137,692 § 1,164,913




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
December 31,
2019 2018
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 45,439 $ 15,281
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 10 10
Member advances 1,634 1,213
Operating reserves 18,618 23,718
Current portion of long-term debt 58,505 41,950
Accrued interest payable 7,744 8,049
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 131,950 90,221
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 66,126 76,002
Operating reserves and other deposits 135,803 133,890
Interest rate swap liability 15,747 13,326
Asset Retirement Obligations 65,892 63,713
Long-term debt, net 596,963 663,561
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 880,531 950,492
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,012,481 1,040,713
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 83,315 86,308
Pension and OPEB deferrals 5,802 3,195
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 89,117 89,503
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (41,891) (51,835)
Restricted 42,359 54,167
Unrestricted 35,626 32,365
TOTAL NET POSITION 36,094 34,697

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,137,692 $ 1,164,913




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Six Months Ended December 31,

2019 2018
(in thousands)
198,815 $ 208,748
119,958 148,989
318,773 357,737
112,812 153,928
43,089 55,546
102,788 90,381
15,508 15,470
12,939 11,443
9,973 10,526
297,109 337,294
21,664 20,443
(18,926) (21,017)
1,857 5,763
3,047 3,454
(14,022) (11,800)
(2,807) (1,580)
(7,117) (10,434)
(2,282) (3,371)
38,376 38,068
36,094 § 34,697




T69°LEL'L §  999'891 S0EL 8L9°SS - §  S88°Elv S § L0£'ST §  T68°LTE §  €O08'EEL
16¥'L01 $S0°LT 2 S * 9v8°1 - 6€1°1 PESHT L1679
8v0°79 - - - - 081 - 651 - 60L°19
$S0°LT SSOLL * : = - e - - -
88€°8 - - e 2 999°1 - 086 PESHT 80T°1
10Z°0£0°L [19°1S1 S0E°L 8L9'6S = 6£0°CIY 951°g 891%T 86€E0E 988°0L
$9T $9T - - = = - = 2 E

159 - 159 - - » - - - -
688°07C PILLS - ) ) 162°sT g £78°L OIS 1€l (69v'1)
£95°88Y 8LST %3 = - 1¥1°12€ ¥56'1 GLI'EL ovL'311 7€9°0€
81 - - : - 81 - = - -
18£°88Y 8L5T £€€ * - 656°02€ ¥56°L 6LI‘EL 9pL 811 7€9°0€
(9256101 (6L5"€E) (19¢) - [CIA] {ogt'c01) (TLLYE) #L9°1S) (Tov'oL) (99€°1¥S)
LS6LOS°L LST'9 v68 - 9ELL SvyvTy 97L'9€ £58'79 8p1'56€ 866°1LS
8L0°0ZC €078 - L¥10E = T0TE = ¥9¢€ 6YT'Ly €L8'LT
YSL €Lg - - - o - - 661 vl
8TI'LLL vI8'LS - 611°LT - orgoe = y9€ 00§°S€ 120°92
961°Ty 91Z'vT 2 820°¢ = 2691 - = 05s°11 0IL'1
$SL°66 1598 12€9 1€5°5C E S96 EE 70T°€ T8LT £68°S 0$8°€1
- (c10°18) 8y1'9 09175 - L8T1E 8T SEST 6LTY 79L°8
TEL o0s1 12 - - - £ - - 8LS
1688 - - - - €02 65¢€ 9T pLST 6057
£99 96¢ 1 991 E 3 - - . =

L8 8 - S0T - . * - - s

08p°'c 08Y'e - = - - . - -
8F0°LS 8Y0°LS - 3 - A > - - €
#59°8C $ 80v'8T 891 5 = $ SL $ 1 $ 1 $ - $ 1

vuﬁmn—EOU >u:mm< moom?ﬁm _._ommmw.:mc.m._u. wco ‘ON piicly] _fMuunm MUY 'ON wmm«___uw %4 0152&0&@}2 —ﬂEhu—_«OOmV
.55.0 LOQEOE i lamog :Q,mm_Ew:Eh «ﬁod .—.Q ﬁmu_n_no
vﬁﬂooﬂ{. ﬂuwﬁ:u:_& u_&«_:E

SEOMNOSTE NOISSTASNVIL @ ONILVIINED

6107 ‘T€ 13qWRQ

UOLRUIQWO]) Ui pojeuitul[y 4
SFOYNOSTYT 40 SMOTLLNO ATNITAAT ANV SLESSV TVIOL

SH0¥NOSTE 40 SMOTILNO AIIAIHA TVIOL
suone3IgQ WAWAIY 19SSy
S[RLIRJOP GHJQ PUT S[ELIJOP UOISUd]
1q9p Jo Surpuryas uo 1502 SSXT
SEDYNOSTE 40 SMOTALNO ATIIFAHA

$19SSV TVLOL

Aueduw1oo paleoO0SS® UL JUAUIISSAU]
51500 UONESISIAU puE A3AINS Areuiutasd
sjasse AiolenSay

SLASSY YHHLO

INV1d DTdLOETE TV.LOL
ssa1501d-Ug-)10M UOUONISUOD

uoneardap pare[nwInode $57]
201198 ur jueld ouI0d[g
INVTd OI4LOATd

SLESSV HLONILSHY TVIOL
9|qRAIIAI 1SIIR]
SIUAWIISAAUT
sjuefeambs yseo pue yse)
SLIASSV A9LOTdLSTd

SLASSY LNH9dND TYLOL
wsuregoid soyio pue AousSy woy ang
sasuadxa predaig
saddns pue Az01uaAu]
Q[qeAIZ0 1SIIAIU]

R el

sjuedmoned
J[GRAIDDR! SIUNOIY
SjuawISIAUY
sjuafeaInbd ysed pue ysed

SLASSY LNTHHND

S198SV

(paniwo s,000)
SNOLLVHOJY0D YAMOd QALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNTOV HAMOd VINJOIITVD NUTHLION

NOILLISOd LIN 40 INFIWILV.LS DNINIFNOD

NOILVINJOANI TVIONVNIA YHHLO



T69°LET'L $  999'891 SOE'L §  8L9CS $ <88'€ly § 9st'S LOETST $  T68'LIE $  £08°€el
¥60°9E £06°C £88°€ (zer's) ¥E9°1T (£08) 9% 8209 LLEOT
979°'s€ 6£6'€ £88°C (609°9) LT6'0T (08) €261 e SYT'6
65Ty ¥ - (€28°0) L8Y'61 - (L1 671°TT 9IL'E
(168°1%) - - - (08L°81) (s82°D) (TyT'61) (¥85°0)
L1168 8688 £€€ a e 9z1°T S8 L6S'E £66'7€
708°¢ 708°S - - = - g - -
S1E'es 950°C €€ - Sty'8e 9zI'T 14 L65°€ £€6'7E
187'210°1 §98°5ST 680°€ 011°59 908°€SE €€8°¢ 810V LITRIE £6v'88
1€5°088 YIS 81 9TT 9€1°€€ 88£°0ZE - LvFT 668067 1688
£96'965 - - - 6v0°61¢€ - 88T°C 1271°092 S0S°ST
768'59 - - - 08t z 651 d £55'59
LYL'S1 4 - . - = - LPL'SI -
£08°5€1 86£°C8 9T 9€1°eE 651°1 E . 1€0°S1 £€8°1
92199 9Z1'99 - - - - - -
0S6'1€1 eL £v8 YLETE 8I7°EC £€8°¢ 15712 89¢€°LT T09°S
YhLL - - = LST'T - 33 $98°s 231
S05°8S - - - 0v0‘Cl = 0St°0T STL'0T 062°S
819°81 - - TSt 6LE'E 8LS 08T (oL2)
(430 < (3] - - - - - 16L

o1 - - - - - . o1 -
6£Y'Sy $ IveL - $ PLEIE $ 086% $ IS 12 $ 8IS § 801

pauquio) AOUATY EERITNEN uoISSISueLy UOISSIWISURLY, 1)) Aseug uQ ON sanje] OLIIO3[20IPAH [BULIBYI03D)
Eeitle} JOQUIBIAL ¥ omod poT 10 [ended
pateroossy paseyoing srdunpy
SAUNOSTA NOISSTASNVUL 2 ONILYVIENTD
6107 ‘1€ 19quadaq

NOILISOd LAN ANV $334N0STA 40
SMOTINI QEYIAFA “SALLITIEVIT TV.LOL
NOLLISOd LAN TV.LOL
potoLIsaf}
paLIsay
sjosse [eided ul JUIUNSIAUL JON
NOILISOd L3N

SANANOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATIIHAFA TVIOL
S[euRJep gAJO PUE UOISUSg
spa1o Asojenday
SAYNOSTY 40 SMOTANI A EIHA

SALLITIEVIT TV.LOL

STILITEVIT INTIHN10-NON TY1O0L
jou '1g9p uual-Suoy
suoneSIqQ WWDINIIY 19S5y
Ayriqery dems a3el 15199U]
spisodap JOYI0 puE soAIesal SunesadQ
Aunqey g940 pue uoisudd 1PN
SALLITEVIT INTRINO-NON

SHILITIEVIT LNSYIND TVLOL

a]qeAed 153191l ParUY

190p uu21-8uoj Jo uorod WaLny

saatasar unerado

$30UBAPE JSQUISIA]

UONINISUOY JOf PaIoLlsal - 9jqeked suonullal pue SIUN0IOY

sasuadxa parusoe pue a|qeded sjunoIdy
SHILITIEVITINTRND

SHILITEVIT

(pentwo 5,000)
SNOLLVIOJd0D YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNAOV HAAM O VINIOAT'TYD NUAHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INHWALV.LS ONINITFNOD

NOLLVINHOINI TVIONVNIA ¥dHLO



¥60°9€ $  Ev6'E § £88°€ § (cev'e) § ve9'lT $ (£08) ¥9¥ S 8209 § LLEOL
9LEBE 865T €18% 8511 1082 (€sL°1) 522 789°€l ¥56°6
(Z82°7) Spe'l (0£6) (065°01) £E1'p1 056 |54 (r59') [x44
[ATYA (829) (v6v°€) 18) (ovL) 096 (8¢) (oor'z) <)
(L08'D) - - 119 - (o'l (rsz'D) (zz1'1)
(Zzo'vl) 601 55 SSS (%08%) 01 Wi [ (z8)
LYO'E 15T - - L1871 - 758 8Tl [N
LS8l 851 Is 393 vzs of Ly €8T 144
(9z6°31) - - - (sv1°L) - L59) (vis‘on) (019
$99°12 (5 €18 (gze'or) - 7LO'61 (0z) 6L8 €019 1881
601°L6C (s€6) wes 916 €1T 529¢ orI'e 6r1°E VLTI 9L6'LI
- - (zg) - 70T 88 € oSt (1sy)
€L6'6 (o11°1) £0v'E - L91°T L6S $SS 95L'1 119t
6£6'T1 o 9¢ - 606°1 €LYl 08b 956°t SHO'S
805°S1 181 8¢ - STEL zol LOT°L SOL'Y 0v0‘T
88L701 - T €59°101 805 L 4 oY e
680ty SL8'S 144 y81°€T [« 068 196°1 €178
TISTIL = - 610°011 916 LSt oL £vE'l LOE
€LL781E 679 SS8IT 885 €0T €1€°SS oTI'E 820 LLEOT LS8'61
856611 - €9€'T LTL09 $08°CE ¥89 789 79¢°T1 9¢€ Tl
S18°861 $ 679 $ ev'ol $ 98Tl - $ 60STT § T 9pe’e $ SI0'8 $ 188
pauiquo)y AQUQIT FERITNETY 1881 1L uc I 191U3)) ASIRUT AU "ON SarH[198] SUIOS[I0IPAH [BULdY103D)
PYIo TaqUIaKY 2 18M0g 1po] 10 [endedy
PaTRIDOSSY paseyIng sdnynpy

SADYNOSTY NOISSTASNV UL % ONILVIINED

6107 ‘T€ J2qUII( PIPUT SYIUOTAl XIS Y3 10]

UONBUIGUIOY) Uf PARUIUIY .

Papus potdd ‘NOILLISOd LAN
1eak jo Suluideg ‘NOILISOd LAN

NOILISOd LAN NI (3SVZ408@) ASVIAINI
SINVAIDILYVd OL SANN4TY

SINNOWY ZTaVIHAOIHTE TINLNT

SANNIATY (STSNAIXH) ONILYHId0 NON TV1OL
Leite)
WO 1SAIU]
asuadxs sa1ou]

SHNNTATE (SASNAIXH) ONILVEIIO NON

SHNNIATI ONLLYYELO0 LAN

SASNIIXE ONILVYAdO TV.LOL
wJou ‘saseyoind (safes) Aurdwooratuy
[eI2UST puE SANEHSIUIWPY
30UBUIUIEIA
uonewaidaq
UOISSIWSUBILL,
suoneiadQ
1omod paseyoing
SESNIIXT DNILVIEdO

SANNIATI ONILVYEO TV.LOL
Aued-piy1 BYO
sjuedioiued

STNNTATY ONILY A0

(panswo 5,000)
SNOLLVIOJHOD ¥AMOd AALVIOOSSY ANV
ADNADY YIMOd VINJOIITVI NHIHLAON

NOILISOd LAN NI SAONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAINTATE 40 INTWALVLS ONINIEFNOD

NOLLVIANMOANI TVIONVNIJ YdHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
December 31, 2019

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount
CURRENT $ 3,698,033
PAST DUE:

1-30 Merced Irrigation District December 2019 ARB 34,145 *
Pioneer Community Energy December 2019 ARB 34,883 *

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 3,767,061

* Denotes items paid/applied after December 31, 2019.

AR FY 2020Dec Rpt 2019



A PURLIC AGENGY

'

NC

PA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2020

SUBJECT:

Treasurer’'s Report for Month Ended December 31, 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth WETHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi O City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [J
San F’a""i;‘;:i':a%’r:n’:; O  CityofPaloAlto [J  Plumas-SierraREC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [] Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [J
City of Healdsburg [J  City of Santa Clara [ Other [J

SR: 115:20



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended December 31, 2019
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for
your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $11,992,535 of which approximately $27,887 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $6,803,656 to Debt Service and $5,160,992 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA’s investment portfolio totaled $292,628,668 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $294,253,980.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.234% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.265%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $178,098,000. December maturities totaled $49 million and monthly receipts totaled
$40 million. During the month $29 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 6 basis points (from 1.61%
to 1.55%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 2 basis points (from 1.59% to 1.57%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of December 31, 2019 are
in compliance with NCPA'’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

pectfully submltted

L[

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 115:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

Northern California Power Agency

December 31, 2019
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
1,872,967 $ 112,666,797 $ 114,539,764 37.60%
1,348,109 - 1,348,109 0.45%
1,939,916 3,165,109 5,105,025 1.68%
6,803,656 22,653,457 29,457,113 9.67%
27,887 154,143,305 154,171,192 50.61%
11,992,535 $ 292,628,668 $ 304,621,203 100.00%
$ 294,253,980




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
December 31, 2019
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR  (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR  (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 35746,307 $ 130,474 $ 24,759,814 $ (23,929,622) $ (13,003,496) $ (23,702,005) $ 1,472
Special Deposits 4,251,514 5 - (17,897,255) - 13,505,460 (140,276)
Construction - - 1,707,000 - - - 1,707,000
Debt Service 436,076 1,516 20,420,171  (12,570,188) (7,933,048) 4,839,839 5,194,366
Special & Reserve . 311,763 2,102,199 (1,655,074) (7,770,667) 5,356,706 (1,655,073)

$ 40,433,897 $ 443,758 $ 48,989,184 $ (56,052,139) $ (28,707,211) $ - $ 5,107,489

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Investment Activity Summary

December 31, 2019
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 13,003,496 $ (24,759,814) § 13,415 § - $ - $ (11,742,903)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - (1,707,000) 3,988 - - (1,703,012)
Debt Service 7,933,048 (20,420,171) 29,550 - - (12,457,573)
Special & Reserve 7,770,667 (2,102,199) 1,948 - - 5,670,416
$ 28,707,211 $ (48,989,184) $ 48,901 $ - $ - $ (20,233,072)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (48,901)

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

$ (20,281,973)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
December 31, 2019
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent

US Government Agencies $ 14,719 $ 2,464 $16,746 $ 6,684 $ 5475 $ 108,912 $ 2,000 $ 167,000 53.22%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - 1,000 - 1,000 65,540 - 67,540 22.89%
US Bank Trust Money Market 122 - - - - - - 122 0.04%
Commercial Paper 8,430 - - - - - - 8,430 2.87%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 51,287 - - - - - - 51,287 17.39%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 5,143 - - - - - - 5,143 1.75%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 2,143 - - - - - - 2,143 0.73%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 1,494 - 66 118 146 - 1,824 0.62%
Certificates of Deposit 10 - - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.51%
Total Dollars $ 81,854 $3,958 $17,746 $6,750 $6,593 $176,098 $2,000 $ 294,999 100.00%
Total Percents 27.74% 1.34% 6.02% 2.29% 2.23% 59.69% 0.68% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully

collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully
collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

December 31, 2019
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 2.234% 2.265%
OPERATING FUNDS: 2.215% 2.320%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.384% 2.483%
Capital Facilities 0.000% 0.000%
Hydroelectric 2.230% 2.298%
Lodi Energy Center 1.844% 1.685%
INTEREST RATES
2.75 -
[KEY INTEREST RATES
PRIOR
CURRENT YEAR 1.00
0.75
0.50
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.55% 2.40% 833
T-Bills (90da.) 1.55% 2.43% : ‘ ‘ i !
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.62% 2.28% - Aug Sep oct Nov. Dee
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.57% 2.59%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.55% 2.36% —
T-Notes (3yr.) 1.59% 2.55% ~—e— T-Bills (90 days) ~—a&FED FUNDS
e T-Bills (1 yr) ey T-NoOtes (3 yr) ‘




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



wd gz:1L 0202/2Z/L0
286'905 8892 SHazZyLLes 0/8'0LS v0L'Z 96L'L ST0ZLLYO  0/8'/08 BLOZ/LE/ILO  085C 000'00§ 208n au} "Hewep
ve8'/8y 11992 LMEZLELLE  00Z'605 80€E o8L'L €20Z/Lov0 ozlL'esy aL02/L2I60 0052 000'00S o08n JIAIBS [32Jed pajuNn
£28'a8t 00992 LMEZLELLE  00Z'60S 8yz'e 98L'L €20Z/L0/v0 szz'esy 810Z/5LIS0 0052 000'00S ooan JIAl8S [80ied pajun
v£0'G6Y 5592 SHE0/0V80 OLLZLS 980 691} £202/5L/IE0 08226 8L0Z/LTI0  0SL'T 000005 208N | kemeyjeH anysyieg
61°s6Y £199Z yOL3ZePT OLL'ELS v9zZ'e 0oLt €202/90/€0  G/8'68Y 8102/21/90  008'C 000'00§ 208N 9 teyded aseeq uyor
566'686 899z SUVOLEZOE  08Z'vZ0'L 890°¢ gSb'L €ZOZ/LOIEC  0SV'S86 8L0Z/E0/80  92LT 000'000'} 2048n }ei0d10D IIGON UoXX3
09€°Z6v 95592 GUEXB8E8Y GTO0LS yS5L'e WLl €20Z/5L/Z0  0LO'88Y 8L0Z/LTIE0  5Z9T 000'00$ 208n ‘dioQ ejoeI0
L1668 £0992 SNOL08EZ8  §56'60G yor'e L €T0Z/L0/Z0  S8S'VBY 8LOZ/GLIS0 08T 000'00S o08n dnoug) Auedoud uowg
82286 §¥992 §1319e268 Q9Y'0Z0'} Slee 904’} €20Z/LLIL0  09L7L6 8L0Z/E0/80  00LT 000'000't 208n wpeiD Jojoly ejofo L
y1'96¢ 17992 90vVO9Z8Z6 829'LiY geL'e 80"} TTOTYLITL  TSSYEE 8L0Z/E0/80  008'T 000007 208n U} BSIA
ovL'Ley §559¢ 98v¥9/99)  S00'/05 800°¢ 690') 220215077, 092'8Y 8LOTNTIO  SSET 000°'00S 208n "di0D uoIARYD
§95'Z6Y 7199¢ /YOMS9920 GLL'OLS 51 0S0°F Zeoe/euiL 055'88y 8L0Z/TL/I%0 009 000°00S 208n Ueuld epUOH UBdsUY
£6v'88Y 2199T YNEET0L60 §8Z'205 v20°€ £€0't TT0Z/0E/0L  08L'Z8Y 8L0Z/ZL/90  002T 000°00S 208N ‘00 Bureog
085721} §2592 LDOEE8/E0  828'98L'L 628 198 2Z0Z/LLISO  996'LZL') 8LOZ/LO/CO  00ET see'ezl’t 208N “ou| ajddy
129267 15592 z1asyyelLL GYE'S0S 262 258 T202/20/50  S00'/8% BLOZ/LTIED  0STT 000'005 008N "ou 0DIsded
Z91'96¥ L099Z 83VAGEZL8 0GLLLS SLE'e 128 ZZ02/L0IM0  GS8E'SeY 8L0Z/SLISO 056 000'005 208N epeluewy aL
686'786 LL992 $000918LF 0S0°LLO'L 2862 z6L Z20Z/S0/S0  OYL'9L6 8L0Z/0Z/60  0SZT 000'000°L 008N uosuyor g uosuyor
956'86 ££99T ZAQ8LLEYL 0SS'ELO'L 090°€ 9, Z202/90/20  011'S.6 8102/0Z/60  00ET 000'000't 208N Slqwes) g 49300id
£02'666 99T 8VEHA6.588 Ovp'ZL0'L 8L0°¢ 79 LZ02/7LIE0  08Y'666 8L0Z/LT/60  000'E 000'000'L 208N AuedwoD we
908'9/6 69992 SOEMG99Z0  0ZY'866 6vL'e 119 120Z/60/60  0TT'656 8L0Z/02Z/60  00L't 000'000°L 208an UgUi4 BPUOH UBduaUY
000'005'€ 58€9C VHAVOPELE §50'G8Y'S 0051 009 120Z/€2/80  000'00S'E oLozZ/EZ/LL  00S'h 000'005°€ 208N W UBOT] SWOH [esepas
926'509'C S9Y9T SUSHIEELE €85'809°C 0z9'} zL5 1202/92/20  ¥BL'LLO'T L10Z/82/80  OTLL 000'209'2 o08n Ypa1) uued jesepo
Ly8'EBY 11992 8XQL80LLL §TE'T05 858 615 1202/€0/90  OEl'/gY 8L0Z/ZLI90  0G6'L 000'00§ o08n U] 49Zlid
188'c86 04992 OMVYOYLBSY  OLP'666 616 05 1202/6L/50  096'896 81L02/02/60  00L'L 000'000'} 208N diog ey
£96'76Y 86592 §19920/87  0LZ'LOS orez 9sv LZ0Z/LO/M0  008'/8Y 8LOZ/LZIE0  000°C 000'005 208N "o joda@ swoH
vEL'705 189 6HIHEY/EO 0£9'G0S 960°C 65y L20Z/SHED  0L8'90S 6L0Z/LE/L0  006T 000005 208N LN TENY TYNOILYN
19v'L66 19992 £agxs/zLL  058'G00'L 696'C vey L202/82/20  020'T86 8102/02/60 002 000000t o08n U} swiejsAg 0981
S/9'v8L'T 56£92 08d8voele 218'8/.'T Ll vee LZ0Z/BLIL0  809'€8L'T 9L0Z/6L/L0  OOY'L 000'582'2 a08n Bg UB0T BWOH [eJ8pe-
9€£5'961 91992 2z1322vvT  001'205 150°€ £l L20Z/80/L0  S6L'Z6Y 8L0Z/L2/60  0SET 000°00§ 208N 2 [eudeD eseeq uyor
12166 1902 LV3ATVLIEE 0LE'L00'L 8v8z 6ve 02Z0Z/5L/ZL 085616 8102/02/60  006'L 000'000° 208N U] ‘Hewlepm
pl'aLl 80692 £9£828216  LOL'SLL 865°L sle 020Z/SHLL  tBL'BLL 6L0Z/LEI0L  0SL'L 000'8LL s08n Anseat 's'n
006°2.8'Y 98yoT 9MIEVOELE €SEVI6'Y [05) % 861 020Z/210120 £/€'066'% 2102/82/80 009'L 000'G26'% o08n g UeoT sWoH [eispad
911666 89992 SYE0SG69E  0LF'€00'L 186 Lel 020Z/LLISO  086°866 8L0Z/0Z/60  §.8T 000°000°L 208N sojweuAq [essusy
000'04 61£0€ 6LEOSSAS 000'0L 0500 9 0202/20/L0  000°0% 6L02/20/0L 0500 00001 asn Sueg SN
6v8'586'L 95002 9S00/SAS 6v8'Ge6'L 058°0 L 6v8'586'L 1102172180 0880 6v8'586'L asn ueg sn
196'728'L 05004 0S00/SAS 296'2/8'L 1000 L 196'228'L €L0Z/0S/90 1000 196'228'} asn Jueg sn
oLL'Lz #100Z VL00ZSAS 0L2'LZ 2000 ! oLL'LE €LOZILO/L0 2000 0121z 2008n oJlfed) Jo yuBg Uown
v05'y 0L00Z 0L00/SAS 05y or9Z ! 05y BlLOZ/ELOL  OV9T yos5'y dWD WBW JoSSY BILIONERD
04520572 00002 0000/SAS 0.8'20S'vZ ovye I 0./5'205'v2 €L0Z/1L0/L0 avvr'e 02520572 Eilat wisanu] fouaby feoo
009'7¥b'9 L0L0L LOLOLSAS 009'¥PY'9 058'L L 009'¥P'9 pLOZ/9Z/LL 0S8l 009'7¥1'9 asn V'N Mueg SN
onjep, buifuen # JuaunSaAL] diSND  anjepjiren PRIA Runzen 2jeq 20ud sjeq ajey enjep pajels ueIpojsSNY  39)SMIL Jonss]
Alnb3 oyskeq  Aunjew paseysing yoind isasayu
puog
Bunelado
6L02/LECL
APHTYUINSE YN0 W hade BN
podoy sJainseal] VdON:

| obed

Kouoby Jomogd eluiojijen uioyuoN

4



wd gz:1 0z0Z/2Z/10

162'209'2 £5992 SAWSOVELE ¥1LL'Z2L9T Lo7'¢ L9zl €20Z/5L/90  006'E09'T 8L0Z/LLIB0  0SLZ 000'009'2 oo8n N UeoT alIoH [Bi9pa
Svz'esy 1£992 900.08828 SYL'LLS 8ev'e izAN £20Z/L0/90  STL'Y8Y 8LOZWEIL0  0SLT 000'00S 208n dnougy Apedoid uowis
2ve'osy 16692 LOVO0LYSe  S0Z'806 80L'e 9Lz'L £202/L0/50  0SE'08Y 8L0Z/60/S0  0S22 000'005 oo8an U] 4N
Ly9'68 12992 IMEZLELLE 002605 L6Le 98L'L €Z0Z/LOP0  08L'vY 8L0Z/22/90  00ST 000005 oo4an dIAleS [ed1ed PojIUN
9.5'c6y 96592 8M80/9V80 0LL'ZLS s8L'e 691'L €202/5L/1S0  08Z'06Y 8L0Z/BO/S0  0SLT 000'00S o04n | kemeyieH suusieg
SL1'56% 66592 CHVOLEZOE OFL'ZLS §50'e SsL'L €20Z/L0/S0  0L9'Z6Y 8L0Z/60/S0  92LT 000'00S oo8an 1esodiod lIGolN uoxx3
5.9'167 yeegz LANSLTLL VT LS [ VAR ySLL £202/82/20  S59'.8Y 8L02/22/90  009C 000005 ooan "2ul swelsAS 0os1D
LZL'LYS 86592 24.dEET68  618'096 €0z'e SoL'L €Z0Z/OLLO  ©BT'9ES 8L02/60/50  529C 000'085 o0dn }paiQ Jojol Bloko L
12676y §2992 ZWVOYLeSy 007'ZLS 0/0°¢ 601 TT0TISLIZL  00E'TBY 8L02/Ce/90  00LT 000'005 oo8n dioD jul
§96'LbZ ze99z 90V09Z8Z6 89Z'LST 960°€ 820°L T20ZMLITL  SLB'OVT 8LOZ/HT/L0 008 000052 o08n "ouj esIp
180°06% £4592 Savaoory. $/S'S0S [=1R 886 22025160 SOL'EsY 8LOZWOIY0  0/ET 000°005 oo8an abe.o)s oland
789'067 71692 9089/0/EF GGL'0LS 816 288 T20Z/L0/90  0BT'V6Y 8LOZHOIP0  G29T 000°00§ oo8an "o jodeq SWoH
£2v'86Y 11592 8IVA9ETL8 051G ooLe 128 ZZ0Z/L0MO  00T'L6b. 8LOZ/EO/FO  0S6C 000'00§ oo0an spesjuaWy QL
£8Y'26Y 0£99Z 9DAd89rSZ  SZL'L0S 98l'c €62 T20Z/Y0/S0  0TS'.8Y 8L0ZWZ/L0  0S¥'T 000005 o08n JAuedwog Aeusiq Hem
9/2's6Y v159¢ LVEsLEYES  508°005 8642 §LL TC0Z/TLZ0  SBTTEY 8L0ZHOF0  SLET 000'008 oo8an "diod Yosooi
996'€6Y 0/59T 68Vd490790 085105 000°¢ 88y 120Z/20/S0  SOL'o8Y BLOZIEO0 0502 000'00$ 008N 00 UOJl2N AN J0 ueg
LyEorL'L vel9Z INMODSELE 2LL'BYLL z/9T £0g 0zoz/oe/oL  698'8TL'L 8Loz/oZIZL  0L9'L 000'051L°L 208n Bi [euonen jesepad
110'052 11292 GSNOLEELE Sbp'SGL 0/8C vse QZ0Z/LLIB0  SPO'0SL 8L0z/eL S8 000052 oo0an g UB0T BWoH [esepad
0L5'v8 £2002 €T00/SAS 0LS'Y8 2000 ! oLs'y8 £L02/L0/L0 2000 015'v8 oo4an oJlleD jojueg uolun
889'/¥9'L z200.2 TTOOLSAS 889'L¥9'L o' I 889'L¥9'L €L0ZILO/LO  9FPT 889'/19'L Ela] wysanuj fousby g0y
jJuno29y Bulduejeg vdos

ogg'zoL ocg'ZoL  § vy L ocg'zor  § vy 0sg'LoL  § sbelany pue [ejoL pung
0£8°204 S¥00L SYO0LSAS 0£8'/9L o' L 0£8'29L €L0ZLO/L0  OWPT 0£8°294 unsenu| koueby [ea0]
J00Y uondny 9HO ddiN

zec'shi'ss  § 9bL'990'98 $ 782 855 60L°v62's8  § (4 2£5'602'68  § abelany pue fejoL pun;
000°005'} 6889 PAZHVOELE SLE'9Lp'L 6661 ocL't ¥20Z/20/0L  000°00S'L 6L0Z/70/0L  000°T 000°00S°t ooan eg Uo7 3WOH [eJ1epes
000°000'} 1889 ZHO198268 0£6'166 £2eT LeL't ¥20Z/22/60  000°000'L 6L02/22/60  0SL'T 000°000'} oo8n Wpaid JojoiN Bjok0 L
000'00€'Z 88892 0ZMIILELE  €68'182'T 068°L LeL'L ¥20Z/,2/60  000'00£'C 6L02//2/60 068} 000'00£2 208n Wpa19 wie [esepe
000'000'¢ 9889Z /3INGTIYIE 0E5'986'C 0002 6ZL'L ¥202/57/60  000°000°C 6L0Z/G2/60 000 000°000°€ ooan [ean}nouby (eleped
000°00L'Y T/89C 95aMSY090  056'889'L 115T 8zL'} ¥Z0Z/T/60  000°00L'L 6L0Z/Z/60 0052 000'002'} ooan dio) eouewy 0 yueg
9/6'LLS 09292 8LIHSTI9Y 069'EES L9g'e z60'L yZ02/LOZ0  0SS'PLS 6L02/GLI20  GL8'E 000'00§ oogn uebloy dr
000'6L2 50692 OATNOPELE  LPO'BLT 0002 86€'L £202/05/0L  000'6LC 6L0Z/08/0L  000C 000'6L2 204N W UBOT] BWOH [esepad
S69'LLLY 02892 87aX68€89 ZCCviZy 0£9Z £5¢e'L €20Z/SLI0  TSY'90L'Y 6L0Z/LE/SO 00V 000'SYL'Y o08an “dio) soeIO
951196 21992 9DEBLEYES OYL°Z00°L zie S1E'l €202/80/80  0SE'/v6 8102/02/60 0002 000°000'L 208n “di0D YosollN
000°000°L 9v99z LANHLEE0E 0£8'¥¥0'L 668°E aoe’} £202/72/0  000'000'L 810Z/S0/80  0OV'E 000'000°} 208an Hueg sn
0r1'205 51992 LZv998/2y 045628 9ez'e 0ez'L €Z0TISL/S0  STL'E0S 8L0ZITLI0  GLEE 000°00S o08n Auedwo? AaysieH
678005 20992 ZOVHO0Y90  G15'%TS (a3 ELZ'L £202/82/¥0  G9T'L0S 8L0Z/S1/S0  00S€ 000005 008an 00 UOJIBN AN 40 ueg
onjep BulAue) # JusunsaAaul dISND  3njep xiep PISIA Aunyepy aRea dUd ajeq ajey anep pAerIS UBIPOISNYD | 92)SN1L lanss|

Amnb3 0} sheq Anzeny peseyaing aseyaind Isa4aju]
puog
Bupeledo
6102Z/1eTL

Z 9beg

Joday sJoinseail

KouoBy Jomod eiuiojijed uisypoN

SFEE 38 X ane Tl

VdON/



wd gz:L 0Z0Z/22/L0
L£1'90§ 95192 18v4STeLL  0ZE'625 61€'E £8y'L yZ0Z/ETILO  06Y°L0S 6L0Z/20/20  0S9°€ 000'005 208n YN Yueamo
800'505 8¢/92 BNILBOLLL 619'LTS 806'Z £6€'L €20Z/5L/160  0ST'90S 6LOZ/OE/LO  0OTE 000°005 204n ouj Jeziid
112'806 8592 SMIZYLLEE 082'GZG v98'Z (A £202/92/90  096°0LS 6102//0/20 0OV 000'00S oo04n U} ‘LeWBM
285'505 §5192 €HVPO/99L  0ES'02S 198 0Lz’ £20Z/YT/I90  SZO'L0S 6L0Z/L0/20  LBL'E 000'005 208N “d109 UoIrBYD
[raara:id L7192 L08EZ0L60 $/8'96Y 6167 192'L €20Z/SLI90  00S'L.Y BLOZIOE/L0  S/8°L 000°005 204n ‘00 Bureog
65L 1YL o292 SMEr9/09l  SEL'SIL 6€6'C (14 €20Z/9L/S0  0SL'8EL 6L0Z/0E/L0 995 000'05L o08an 100 uoIABYD
€88'a8Y £8592 INGZIELLE 002’605 svee 98LL €COT/LOMG  SEL'EsY 8L0Z/92/V0  005°T 000°00% o08n JIAIBS [B2JEd PIUN
1£2'z6Y 9592 8M80/9V80 0LL'ZLS VT’ 691t £20Z/GL/IE0  0Z6'88Y 8LOZ/9ZVO  0SLZ 000°005 208n | AemeuieH esusieg
TLr'TeY 18592 048450072  069'0LS szze 7Ly €T0Z/LTCO0  0SE'88y 8L0Z/9ZW0  002'T 000°005 o08n ou siexeld
91.'L6Y 6.69¢T GUEXBBERD GZO'0LS g6lL'e L'l £T0T/SHZO  0SE'L8Y 8L0Z/9TVO  §29T 000008 o08n ‘dioQ spoeI0
069'v6Y 5/892 23VH90¥90  S0S'ELS sze'e AN £20Z/6Z/L0  06L'L6Y 8L0Z/9Z/¥0  0S6°C 000°00% o08n 00 UOHRIN AN 40 dueg
LLL'ERL 18192 €INHLEE0S SOL'89L orle 8LL'L £ZOZ/EZ/LO  006'LYL 6L0Z/0E/L0 0S8 000°052 208n “¥'N "ueg Sn
82's6Y ¥859C 90VO92Z8Z6 SES'VLS [ 80" z20TLTL  009'T6Y 8L0Z/9T/V0  008°T 000°005 208n EVESY
L¥6'L6Y 6£.92 PMOJBIYST  09'20S 1£6T 5901 z20z/LOZL  0Ov'e8Y 6L0ZI0E/L0 0SET 000005 o08an /Ruedwo Aeusia Hem
181'005 08592 PXOBYYELL 0E6'SLS £80°€ 826 Z202/2LI20  OLE'00S 8102/92/V0  00b'E 000'00§ 004n "ouf oQlsded
Z0t'509'e 1979Z 69D6/EELE  ¥BL'OLY'E 09L'L 168 2202Z/01/90  095'7E9'E 1102/82/80  SZL'T 000625 o08an g UBOT] SWOH |e1apad
6£2'220'7 72592 LDOEEBLED 86L'EL0'Y 62€T L98 2202/LL/S0  BES'0Z0'Y 8L02/\0/Z0  00ET 57’520y o04an "au] aiddy
96'56% 2859¢ 83VA9ET/8 0SL'HLS seee 128 TC0ZNOMG 05826V 8L0Z/9ZIV0  0S6'T 000°00% ooan spenuawY AL
¥5C'S6E 8159 LvEBLEYeS Phb'say 26T €12 TTOTCLEQ  08Y'LEE 8L02/921¥0  SLET 000°00¢ Q08N "dioD Yososoln
0006216 GEEOT GHOO3sELE 86E'GLL'S 089'} 8Lg 1T02/20/90  000'6ZL'6 9L02/20/90 069} 000'6Z1'6 008N 11pal) ke [esepa4
000'00€"} 89€92 SMEEDBELE  ¥/.L'V6T'L 005°L €I 1202/82/S0  000'00€'L 9L0Z/08/80 005} 000'00€'t 208n i Jeuoen fesopa
000°294'S zeeaT GINEDOELE BZY'LEL'S §T9'L oLg 120T/S2/S0  000'Z9L'S oLozZ/STISO  §29L 000'29L'S 208N BI leuoneN [esopod
998'8LL'6 ¥5£9Z 08d8YOELE  220'869'6 Lyl y8e LZ0ZIBWL0  OPL'SLL'E 9L0Z/6LL0  0OV'L 000'022'8 208N g UBOT SWOH [2J5pa
000'¥82'y 95£92 LdWO3IEELE 8LLTICY £9Y°L v8e LZOZ/BLILO  SLL°08Z'Y 9102/0Z/L0  OvpL 000°582'y 208N Jpa1D) Ule [esopod
PrS'GEET 22692 IMAVALELE  L9GPEET 009'L Lze 0Z0ZILMEL  SBB'SEET 6L0Z/L4EL 681 000°0£€°Z o08n N UB0T BUIOH [elepad
0 15002 LG00LSAS © 0000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0  000'0 0 asn jueg sn
188'82 6100 6L00.SAS /88'8C 200°0 L 18882 £L0Z/L0/L0 2000 198'8 ooan ojljed Jo yueg uoln
vLy'8EL'S L2002 LLOOLSAS vit'8EL'S ov9T 3 vi7'8EL'S 8L0ZWLITL  OY9'T yI'8EL'S dWo WBW JessY BIUIOYED
zos'sy0's1 20004 0000LSAS 20£'8Y0'6L arr'z L z0e'8v0'6L SLOZILOILO  9vYT Z0€'gv0'sl 41 unsenuy Kousby [eoo
anlesoy BunesedQ |elsusn
Zsv'iee'sz 659'6LL'6  $ SL6Z Z6LL 9sy'6LL'8  § £59'C 861°296'8  § afieiony pue |ejoL pund
000°05Z°} €189 JANETTYLE 8BEWKTL 000 6cL') ¥TOZ/ST/E0  000'0SZ'L 6L02/52/60 0002 000'082'L 208n [eanynoLby [esepe
000005 1£89Z La9196268 59E'96Y oLr'Z 199'L ¥202/5T/L0  000°005 6L0Z/521L0  OW'2 000°00§ ooan 1pa13 Jololy eoka
000'08L'Z 66292 YOOLIOVELE GYL'GBL'Z 0042 185°L $T0Z/OEYD  000°08L°C 6L0C/0E/Y0  00LT 000'08L'Z 204n N UBO BLIOH [BJ13pa
000'000'Z 86192 ZH.SOVELE 098'200'C £68'7 255t vZ0Z/LO/PD  000'000°2 6L02/LO/V0  0S9T 000'000'2 20dn WA UeOT BWOH [esepad
000'000'2 16192 8rLSOVELE OVB'E00'T 09LT 285°L ¥Z0T/LO/F0  000°000°C 6L0Z/L0/Y0  Q9LT 000'000'Z o0dn JIN UBOT BUIOH |eJapad
0000052 66292 89ESOVELE GLV'E0ST 7k A 615°L ¥202/92/20  000'00§°C 6L02/82/20  §/87C 000°005°2 208N JIN UBOT SWoOH [eJepes
000000 9¢£./9¢ LHM4VOELE  08L'0Z0°T ooL'e I5t') €202/32/ZL  000°000'C 8L0z/82/cL  00LE 0000002 o08n eg UBoT BWOH fesepayd
S16'005C ¥599¢ 9ZNSOYELE SLP'OLST 6£0°¢ 5ee'l €202/92/80  0ST'L0OS'T 8L07/8T/80  0S0'E 000'00S'Z 008n YN UBOT BWOH [eI3pa4
909'26¥ 92992 €HALBOZLL G/8'6LS 0sLe L92'L £20T/GL/90 055981 8102/22/90  000°E 000'00S oo8n ou| Jezijd
anjep Buthues # Juaunsanuy dISND  an[eA e PIRIA Aumen ajeq aoud sjeq ajey anfeA pajers uelpojsng  2ajsniL Jonss|
AInb3z 0} sheg Ajunyepy paseysind aseyaing Jsasagut
puog
juno2ay Buloueleg vdos
6102/LE2)
TG e e e Tl hatais iR
uoday sJaunseas} VYVdON /

¢ abey

fouaby Jamod eluiojijen UIdYLON

4



wd gz:L

1202/22/1 1 Buuess Auapenb sjgejied
$202/S0/1 Uo 3|qe|[ed MNVESN
020Z/0</P U0 3jaeed  DWTHA

0202/20/01 Bunueis swndue sjgejed  gHA

1202/22/60 Builels swiAue s|qe|led  g044
1.202/.2/60 Buipels Ajjenuue-jwas s|qe|ed YLOAOL

0202/5¢/60 buiue;s Ajlenuue-iwes ajgejed DV
0202/G2/60 Buipels Ajjenuue-iwas sjqefed  OAV4
120z/ve/60 Buiess Ajenuue-lwses s|qefed ovg
0z0z/92/8 buntels Apsuenb sjgqeed DAV
€Z0Z/LL/LO U B1qefeD LM

1202/52/, Buiels Ajlenuue-was sjqejied Y1OAOL

1.202/Gz/. Buipels Ajlenuue-lwas sigelied Y1OAOL
£20Z/GL/L U0 dqelieD  TOHO
020z/0¢/¥ uo @|gejied  DNTHL
0202/0S/¥ uo @|qe|ied  JWTHL
020Z/L0/% uo 3|qe|led  DNTHL
0202/10/% uo 9jgeed  JNTHA
0z0z/0Z/Z uo 9|qelied  OgSH
020z/82/Z) uo o|qe|led  gTHL
020z/G1/9 uo d|qejled  DNTHA
£202/£2/9 U0 9|qe|led asn
Apspenb ajqejed  OWTHA
Auspenb ajqejed  WANA
awnAue sjqejed  go4d
swnue ojqe|ed  g1HA
swpnAue sjgeled  dTHd
Apspenb sjqejied  VINNA

0zZ0zZ/ZZIL0

WdIr ¢169C AUBUISIAU

90692 #uUSWISSAY|
G069 #USWISaAU|
6889¢ #USWISIAUY
88892 FAUSWISIAU|
£889¢ FAUSWISaAU|
98892 #UBUIISIAUY
£489¢ #AususaAy|
2/89¢ #uaWisaau|
}289¢ #UdWISaAU]
8¥89¢ FUSWISIAU|
L 7892# JUBWISaAU|
| €89¢7# JuSUISaAU|
0289Z# Juswisanuy
91.89¢3# JuswWisaAu]
66.92# JUSWISaAU|
86.9Z# JUSWISaAU|
L6L9Z# JUSWISaAU|
#G.L92# JUSUISaAY|
9€/9¢# JUSWISaAU|
£G99Z# Juswisanuy
9P99Z# JUSWSOAU|
G8EIZH# JUSWISIAU|
89€9C# JusIsanu|
9GE9C# JussaAU|
GGE9TH# JUBLISOAU|
PSEOTH# JUSWISIAY|
CEEOTH# JusUsaAU|

6LOZ/LEMZL 1O SE [ewnor 32248 Jlep 9U3 o) s391d Pig 10 SJUBWIAJR}S URIPOISNY /33)SNU] W) Saoud Uo paseq Si anfeA Jaxel Juaung
*pPOoyIBW JOBX3 UR 3sn SU3YJo [|e ‘poyjew 3ewixosdde ue asn Ajunjew o} SLUOW 9 URYY SSI| YIM SPUDBWISIAUL
sadfj ||e usamjaq uospedwod 10} Siseq € apiacdd 0} Jeak Aep o¢ e UO paseq UMoys st AJunjely 0} PIBIA Juajeainb3 puog,.
8v6°c6v'961 $ '€26°6.9°L61 $ 0zeZ 659 8v0'652'96) $ sieeT 089°LI8'961 $ 'SIVLOL ONVHD
vez'6zo'ze $ 8££'99Z'28 $ 251°T 899 €59°21028 § BEL'C sLLze0ze  $ abesony pue Jejo) puny
000'00S't 21692 BYINOBZLEY G9L'veb'L 98€C 6L ve0z/ieiE 000'006'} 8lLoz/LenL 00€2 000°005'L o0an ueBloy dr
000'000°L 06892 Y4ZHVOELE 062Z'¥86 666°}L SIS y20ereoioL 000'000°} 6LOZHO/I0L 0002 000'000'L 204N Bg UeoT sWoH [e1epsd
000'000'¢ 12892 yoMaeIyLle 099°'196'C ooLe 669°L ¥202/92/80 000'000°¢ 610¢/92/80 aoL'e 000°000'€ 204an leJnynouby [esepad
000'052 1¥892 109196268 8YS' VYL ol 199'L ¥20z/se/L0 000'0S2 8102/62/20 olve 000'0S2 208n }paiD Jojol ejoko |
000'00S 91892 YOOLOVELE 08L'LOS 00L¢ 186t ¥20Z/0E/70 000'00S 6102/0E/v0 0042 000'00$ o0an N Ueo SWoH felapay
000°002°} ¥5.9T ZOONSEYOy 009'969'L €05'e LLg ¥20T/02/c0 000'002'L 6102/02/20 000'e 000'002'L 208n ONI VSN 08SH
896'L9¥ 90692 SAHHBSLLE €502V £60'C 96¥'L ¥202/50/20 T98'79p 6102/LE/0L Gle¢ Q00'0pY o08n V'N Hueg sn
68€°CLS 15192 81rHSZ99Y (069'€ES SESe z6¥'L ¥202/L0/20  0Z1L'GLS 6102/20/20 G/8'¢ 00000 208n ueBlop dr
anjep Bujhue) #juawjsanul dISND  enjep3axel PIRIA Kunzepn 2jeq EETE] ?jeq ajey anjep pajes uelpoISNY / 333sN.L Janss|
Alnb3 oysheq  Apmep paseyssnd d jsasapu}
spuog
aAlasay BuneiadQ [eiouan)
6L0Z/LERRE

p obeg

Moday sJainseat)

Kouaby Jomod eiulojijen uiayroN




wd 62:L 0202/22/L0
000'052 £LE0E V8INLELOPSZ G98'85T ZsLe 6.6 2202/90/60  000'0S2 8L0Z/90/60  0SL'E 000°0S2 008N Jueg Jenoosiq
000'052 0LE0E vEJVOEQL6E 812'8ST 150°¢ €6 2Z0T/LE/BO  000'0ST 8L0Z/LE/B0  0SO'E 000'0S2 o08n ueg ULON 18319
000'05¢ L1€08 VO1LE9L6V6 0/8'85C ysi'e zL6 T202/08/80  000'0ST 8L0Z/OS/80  OSL'E 000'052 oo8n ueg obied siiepm
1£9'008 66197 LDOEEBLED Y55 LL8 62T 198 ZTOZILLIGO  LL1'098 2102/62/LL  00E2 112'198 ooan "ou} siddy
vybeyL £6592 0AJHEGEBY  620'65L coL'e 80L 1202/60/2L  0S¥'SEL 8L0Z/GLED  0S§C 000'052 oo8n VN 3ueg ONd
000°052 ZLEOE VZDIOL00Z0 £HE'SST z00€ 209 L20Z/0€/80  000°0SZ 8L0Z/0£/80  000'€ 000'052 oo8n ueg Aty
0000002 69£9Z EMEEOOELE  096'L66'L 005'L €15 120Z/82/56  000°000'Z oL0Z/0e/80  00S'} 000'000'Z o08n BIN feuoyeN [esepo
96626V 12292 SNILOET68 OV L0S 9lee 89y L20Z/ELIY0  00E'96Y 8LOZIOE/L 0562 000'00S 208N pa1D Jojoly Ejoko L
60.'96Y 9229¢ LOOMGO9Z0 585705 GoT'e 80% L20Z/ZLIZ0  00G'E6Y 8LOZ/OE/LL  089Z 000'005 oo8n UBUIY BPUOH Uedually
8eL'/S €00 ¥E00LSAS 8E.°LS 2000 3 8e4'LS £10Z/L0//0 2000 882'4G : oo08an oji[ed Jo sueg uoun
606'809 22001 LZ00/SAS 606'809 'z L 606809 €LOZILO/IL0  OvVT 606'809 El\al unsanuy fousby (g0
anlas9y BuluolssiwwosaQg 099
ooo'00s‘L  § szz'00s'E  $ %1% 12:14 oog‘00s‘L  $ 0oL’z 000008t § abesany pue [ejol pung
000'005'} £589Z PSLOVOELE GTZ'008'L 0oL’ 78y 1202/62/70  000'00S'L BLOZ/OE/IL0  00LT 000'00S'L ooan eg Ueo sWoH [esepad
0 $100Z GLOOLSAS O 2000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/0 2000 0 oo8n ojifeD Jo jueg uown
0AI9SIY JeIdadg jewlayjoen
ve‘col’t  § 000v9LL  $ 058t 1 sez'LsiE  $ rie’L 000991t $ aBeJaAy pue [ejo pung
986'06C 85892 0ON96EELE  000'LET S6L'L v 0202/20/L0  S9L'68T 6102/92/80  09L'L 000°1L62 1gsn A UBoT BWOH leJepad
¥86'26C £€89 0DYOBEELE  000'E6T #002 1 0Z02Z/Z0/IL0  TEY'06T 610T/52/L0  096'L 000'€62 1asn WA Ueo SWoH [eJepad
186'68C 96892 VIOUVYBEELE  000'06T 1891 L 0Z02/20NL0  L¥L'68T 6L02/62/0L  0E9'L 000°062 18sn eg UeoT SWOH |esepa4
$86'68C 1189¢ VOUPBEELE  000'06C L¥6L L 0202/20/L0  1L8¥'88T 6L0Z/5T/60  S06°L Q00°062 asn ©ef Uo7 SUWOH fesapad
92IAI9G 1030 V910Z 099
vie'ser $ 000005  $ 1S8°L 3 580°26%  $ SieL 000°00S $ abesoAy pue fejol pung
¥66'€ZL 15892 09YO6EELE  000'VTL G621 L 0z0zZ/20/L0  8LT'eTl BLOT/OT/80  09L'L 000'vZL 14asn A UBOT BWIOH [esepad
£66'92L 2£892 0DUOBEELE  000°2ZL $00Z L Q202/20/L0  188'SZL 6L02/G2/L0  096°L 000°224 148N WA UeoT aWoH [esapad
y66'€2L G689C V9OMP8EELE  000'VTL 159'L L 0Z0Z/20/L0  GE9'ECL 6L02/62/0L  0€9') 000'vZ1 18sn eg Ueo SWOH [elopad
£66'F2L 9/89C VOOUPBEELE  000'SZL Lp6'L 3 020Z/20/L0  SYE'vTL 6L0T/ST/60  ¥06'L 000'G2L 1asn eg Ueo’] SWoH [esspad
BOIAIRS 1q2(Q VT 10T 09D
€s0'l0L  § 86520L $ 966°L 802 LeL'ses $ ore’L 00060  § abesaay pue [ejoL pung
£50°'L0L 05892 OXZVBEELE 865'20L 966°L 802 020Z/L2IL0  LEL'SE9 610T/0E/L0  Ov6'L 000°60Z asn g UBOT BWOH jeiopad
anjep bulAue) # JUdUIISaAU] diISND  onjep 1ajlepy PISIA Ayanyepy ajeq ?old ajeq ey anfeA pajels ueipojsny / a9ysni} Janssg
Alnb3z o0} sheg Apanyepy poseyaind aseyaind 1saJdajul
spuog
pung uoyonysuo)d Z10Z 039
6102/1E21

| ebed

Moday sJoinsealt

Aouaby Jomod ejuiojijed UIDYLON

Al el Y s L e IR,

VdON



y2g'.89'97  $

‘9128892 §

0202/21/50 Buipeys Apspenb ajqefied

0202/20/01 Bunejs swiiue ajqe|ied
0202/20/01 Buiuess sumAue siqe|led
0z0zZ/5z/60 bunuels Ajjenuue-jwas ajqejen
020Z/6g/1.0 buies Auspenb sjge|ed
1.202/G¢/L Buinels Ajjenuue-jwss sjqejed
0202/0€/¥ uo ajge|ed

0202/1.0/% uo 3|q

020¢/10/¥ Uo 3|q

120z/£2/2 Buipies swidue sjqejed

Apspenb sigejied

wd 6zZ:1 0Z0Z/ZZ/L0

OWTHL 01692# juswisanu]
g1Hd L069# JUSWISIAY|
gTHd 1689¢# JusWisaau|
g71H4 0689Z:# JuUSWISaAU|
OV /8923 jusWisaAu|
g7H4 £5892# JudunsaAu|

VLOAQOL ¢892# JUslIsanu|

OWTH4 6189¢# JusWiSSAU

OINTHL 8189Z# Juswisaau]

OWTHA 2189Z# JusWisaAu|
8044 ¥¥99Z# JUBWISSAU|
VIAIND 69€92# JUBWISaAU|
VN €€E0T# JUsWisaAU|

SLOZ/LE/ZL 3O SB [eUAnOr J924)S [|BM 3U} Wy SaoLid pig 10 SJUSLSIEIS URIPOJSNY /29)sNu L woiy saaud Uo paseq i an[eA JaXe Jualnd

*POYISWE JORXS UR BSN SIAY30 Jle ‘poyiaw ajewixoidde ue asn Ajanjew o} SYIUOW g UBY} SSI] UNM SJUBUISIAUL
*sodA} jle usamiag uosuedwos 1oy siseq e aplaold o} Jeak Aep go¢ e uo paseq umoys si Ajunjely 0} PRIA JusleAInb3 puog,

£8YT T60L 6052v9'9C  $ y8€T 868'2€2'9  $ :STV.LOL ANVND

09e°'z8s’t  § ZsL'sis's  $ v29°L 86 966°185°L $ 2oL 000'ees’t  § abeiaAy pue Jejoy pung
000'2LS'L €€€9C SINEDOELE 622'60G'L $29'L (o] L202/5TIS0  000°2LS'L 9L02/52/50  §T9'L 000°215°L Lasn B [eUOHEN [e49pa
09€'59 19892 1a196/2L6 €L£'G9 065'L azz 0Z0Z/ELIB0  966'F9 6L02/92/80  1SS'L 000'99 asn Ainseail ‘s
JUNOJ2Y YSA VZ1L0T 09D

zelL‘ovz'iz  § loL'stviz $ [2-¥4 vezl 01T $ 05T 858182t $ abeiaAy pue |ejoL pung
£rp'666'L y¥992 y1Nr3EELE 00V'0FO'T feiei Ao 0£0'C GZ0T/ETIL0  00E'666'L 8LOT/LZIL0  0GV'E 000'000°C o08n IpaID uued [esepad
000'¥09'L 0169¢ LONNOVELE £22'G6S'L 24X 100 ¥Z0Z/ZLILL  000'v09'L 6LOZ/ZLILL  000T 000'709°L 208N WA U0 SUIOH [esapad
000°0%6 1069C 9GOHVOELE  €0L'0P6 yzL'e €94 ¥20Z/62/0L  000'0Y6 6LOZ/OEI0L  STL'T 000'0v6 oo8an g UB0T SWOH [esapad
000'000'L 1689C v4/HVYOELE 0SZ'v86 666°L 9eL'L ¥202/20/0L  000°000°L 6L0Z/v0/0L 0002 000000t o08n eg UeoT awoH [eJspad
000'05 72892 LANETZYLE €£9'OVL 000 6zL'} $202/52/60  000°0S2 6102/52/60  000'T 000°0SL o08n lesnynouby |eispad
000°00S Zv89T LADL9EZ68  GOE'06Y ow'e 299'L $202/52/0 000005 6L0T/STLO0  OLP'T 000°00§ o08n Hpau3 Jojop elofo L
000'096'L 61892 yOOLOVELE 9Z9'V96'L 00LT 185°L ¥ZOT/OEYO  000'096'L 6LOT/0E/YO  00LT 000°096'L oo8an WA UBO BWOH [BJopad
000'000'2 81892 ZHLSOPELE  098'200°C £58'C 2851 ¥2oz/LO/F0  000°000'C 6L0Z/LO/M0  0S9CT 000'000'2 o08an VW UBOT BUIOH |sepa-
000°000'L 21892 8r/SOYELE 026100 09.°C 265t ¥ZOZ/LO/FO  000'000'L 6L0Z/LOM0  09LT 000'000°L 204N N UBOT SWOH [elepad
000'052 7LE0E VYESDZLELL  066'C9C Loe'e Sre'L £202/£0/60  000°0SC 8L0Z/L0/60  OQOE'E 000'052 o08n VN Nueqno
000'052 60€0€ vedD18/26¢ €0L'29C c0z'e L88'L £202/0€/80  000°0SC 81L0Z/0S/80  00T'E 000052 o08n VSN Muegleus
18626V 87592 9HVHZEBYY GBI VLS ort'e zeL'L £202/90/20  0Z8'98Y 8L0Z/GLIE0  000°€ 000°005 oo8an OT1HPBID WEI
890'vPL 8v59Z /3YH90V90 8SZ'0LL 622°¢ ¥ZL'L €202/62/L0  0L9'OVL 8L0T/SLIE0  0S6'T 000'05. o08n 00 UoBIN AN JO fueg
8T5'evL 06592 8.1y3TeYre 86€£'89L voL'e T €Z0Z/LTNO  8YL'6EL 8L0Z/SL/IE0 008 000'052 008N O ende e1eeQ uyor
6€2'9€L 15592 PMOJBIrSZ  06L'L9L ¥00'¢ S90°L 2202/L0/2L  085'8TL 8LOT/GL/IE0  0SET 000'062 Q08n /Auedwog Aeus|a Jem
anjep Builuien # JUBLUISAALY diSND  @njep jaxJepy PIoIA Azuanyepy ajeq Jud ajeq ayey anjep pajes uetpo3snd  avdjsnit lanssj

Ainb3 oysheq  Awnjew p . i 1sa.03u)
«puog
BAI9SaY Bujuoissiwwossq 099
610Z/1ErZ)

¢ obed

uodoy sainseal]
Kouaby Jamod elulojijen UisyuUoN

B R e« TS

VdON -



vr6'0SL'L

09892

000'ESL'L

wd ge: ozozreziLo

09M96EELE S6L°L L 0Z0zZRONO  LpL'epl'L 6L02/9Z/80  6SL't 000°LGL'L 14sn 1N ueoT BWoH [esepad
2£6'S5L"L 5€897 00M98EELE  000'05L'L ¥00Z L 020Z/20/L0  L98'stL'L 610Z/52/L0  096°L 000'95L°} 18sn WA UBOT BWOH [esepad
8¥6'LyL'L 8689C VOOMYBEELE 000'8YL'L 159°L L 0Z0Z/Z0/L0  LT'WYL'L 6L0Z/62/0L  OE9'L 000'87L°} 18sn g UB0T SWOH [eJepa4
6e6'6YL'L 61892 VOOUPBEELE  000'0SL'L L6l 3 0Z0Z/20/L0  S/6'EYL'L 610Z/52/60  $06'L 000'051 '} 188N BE UBOT SWOH Jesopad
991A198 1990 V810Z 01pAH

ezL'90z's  § 000'202°s  § oL6’L L sv'oll's  $ Li8°) 000°202's  § abesaAy pue fejo) pund
196'66. 69892 0DYO6EELE  000'96L S6L'L L 0Z0Z/e0/L0 086'06.2 6102/92/80  09L'L 000962 14sn I UEO] BWIOH feseped
9r8'028'Z y£892 0OM96EELE 000128 #00'C 1 020T/ZON0  2L2'98L'T 610Z/ST/0  096°L 000'128'C 18sn I UE0T SWOH |esepad
796'€6.L 1689¢C VOOMYSEELE 0006 1691 ! 0Z0Z/ZO/L0  €99'16L 6102/62/0L  0£9'L 00062 18asn g UEBOT AWOH |esapa
856'G6. 8/89¢C YOOHPEEELE  000'06.L Ly6L L QZ0T/ZO/L0  0€8'LBL 6102/52/60  v06'L 000'96L 18sn Bf UB0"] SWOH [elapa4
92IAI9G }q9Q 0IpAH

9509Y'T  § osbLov'e  § 0z5'z 144 sev'vor'e  $ sz 000'P9¥'T  $ abeJany pue fejo) pund
950'Yor'2 19292 €4VMIACELE 0SY'L9Y'Z 615 A 0202/2LIZ0  €6Y'Yor'T 6L02Z/ZLIZ0  OVYSC 000'vor'Z asn Hpa1D uLe |eleped
safjijioed feniu] oipAH

PEVELLL  § pe8'80E‘ZL  § 12972 ves 9.2'960°LL  § 88v'c lev'o0z’sb  $ abeJaAy pue [ejol pund
0000002 [4Z114 OYUAVOELE O¥Z'L00T 00L'€ 687'L ¥20z/62/L0  000'000'C 6L02/62/L0  00L'E 000°000'2 208N g UE0T] SWOH [eropad
000'sLg’L 0/892 ZODIACELE  000'ELS') 06LC rLp'L €20Z/SLILL  000'ELS'L 610Z/€2/80  06LC 000°€LS'L o08n WpaID UL |eropad
000'005't 1092 SYAIVOELE GLLPLS'L 0sze 18€'L £202/6L/0L  000'005°L 8L0Z/6L/0L  0ST'E 000°00S'} 208N g UBOT] SWOH [BiopaZ
Y56'VES 25992 00309LP6L  LOV'SSS S86Z 9Lzt €202/LO/S0  099'825 8102/60/80  00LC 000'0S§ 208N 00 aAljowed-ajeblod
9/2'68% 0299C LMEZLELLE  00Z'605 z8L'e 98L’L £202/L0/Y0  006'v8Y 8L0Z/EL/90  005°C 000'00$ ooan MBS [924Bd PEIUN
€6v'26V rp59z PMEEZOL60 08Z'0LS 1L16C S5LL £202/LO/S0  0L0°96Y 8LOZ/PLIE0 0082 000°00§ oo4an ‘09 Buieog
8£8'26Y S¥59C GHEX68E89 G29'0LS LzLe LLL £202/5L/20  SLL'88% 8LOZILI0  §292 000005 oo08n ‘diog epel0
162'26Y 61992 G1310£768 0£T'0LS S1Z°e 9oLt €20Z/LLLO  00L'68Y 8LOZ/ELI90  00LT 000'005 o08n 1pa1) Jojoly ejofay
295'96% 19592 90VD9Z826 SES'YLS 150°¢ 870"t zToTvLIZL  OLb'veY 8L0Z/rLIE0 008 000°00S 208N "2 eSIA
000'00€"} L1692 OAdNOVELE 226'662°L 006t 8v0'L TTOZMLILL  000'00E‘} 6LOZ/PLILL  006'L 000'00€"} 208N JIN UEOT SWOH [eJepad
osb'Ley or59z Sava0oYy. S/5'50§ 150°€ 886 2202/61/60  0LL'G8Y 8LOZMLIED  0.£7T 000°00S 208n abe10ls alland
6L6'L¥G 16992 LOHHBSLLE 1295 4:1% > 08 Z20Z/SLIED  L09'9VS 8L0Z/0L/80  000°E 000'08S 008n 3ueg sn
B65€ V6 12992 LOVOLEZOE  0SY'S0S or6'Z SBL 2202/90/€0  0GE'06Y 8L0Z/EL/90  L6ET 000'00§ 208N jelodiod [IGo Loxx3
Ler'esy 81992 SOVNOEEL0 012'906 rLEE 123 220Z/SVL0 OZv'ssy 8L02/EL/90 5292 000005 o08n nuL g Bupjueg youeig
02€'266'L 80692 SBrHISELE 9E/'966') 909'L 862 0Z0Z/9z/0L  €5L'166'L 6L0Z/90/LL  0SL°L 000'G66'L o08n UpaID uued [elepa4
100'02 L£00L LE00LSAS 10002 z00°0 L 100’02 €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 100'02 o08n ojjed Jo yueg uown
ov'zLL'E 82004 8Z00LSAS 09V'2lL'e ovr'z L 09r'zLL'e €L0Z/LOML0 o 09v'zLL's 4Iv1 wyseAu| Lousby (20
anjep buiAued # JuUBW)SaAU| dISND  anjep joxiep PIGIA Aunjep ajeq aold 9jeq arey anjena pajels ue|pojsny / a9ysnal Janssj

Amnbg 0} sheq Aunjepy paseyaind aseyaing 3saJau|
Jpuog
0IpAH ansasay “Ao(Q |eyden
6L0zZ/LErRL

} obed

uodoy sJainseal]

Koueby Jamod elulojijen uIdyuoN




(1444 T4 TR Y

0202/v 1120 Buiels Auepenb sigejled  QWTHL | 1L69Z# UsW)saAy;
020Z/£0/60 J2ye awnAue pue uo s|qe|ed
swphue s|qe|led

‘06v1€5°6E  $

9044 G/89Z# JUSWISaAU]
g044 0/89Z# Juswisanu|

0202/62/10 Buinels Ajjsuenb ajqejied
0202/61/01 mun a|qe|ed

wd ge:y 0Z0Z/2Z/L0

gTHd $S89T# JuSWISaAU|

Auspenb ejqeled  g1H4 Zp29Z# Juawlsany|

g1Hd - 1 0L9¢# JusUIsaAu|

Auspenb o|qelled  VIAND BSE9Z# Juawisany|

6LOT/LE/TL 3O SE [eUINO( J931S JIeM U3 Wody sadud pig Jo s) 22

1p0)SNY j33)sNni] WoJj saoud Uo paseq st Snjep ey Jusaund

‘poyiaw joeXa Uk ash SJ9UJ0 jle ‘poyjaw ajewnxosdde ue asn K)unjew o0} SYIUOW g UeY} SS3| YIIM SJUBLISIAUL
*sadA3 Jle usamiaq uosLiedwios Joy siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep Go¢ € uo paseq umoys si AJunjejy 0} PSIA JuajeAinbl puog,

862 9Ly vze'eLl'ee  $ 0€CC lov'ese’se  § :STVLOL ANYYO
PIOLYY  $ 900'slV'y  § 74 %4 8LL gss'olv'y  § 1zeT 000'8LY'Y § abeJaay pue jejol pung
000'05 1 51892 9gHMIEELE  LEG'BYL 0s8°L z6L 220Z/€0/EC 00001 6L0Z/E0/60  0S8'L 000°0St asn ¥palD wie [esepa
8£9'/26'c 75852 Z9avILElE 0.5'886'S 088Z 2 TTOTIELLO  TET'9TE'E zL0Z/B0/Z0  SLET 000'826'C gsn YN Ue0T SWoH [erepe
000'v6 65€9Z L6SEO9ELE  86L'EH 0gs’L .6 1202/82/20  000'v6 9L02/82/,0  0£S'L 000'v6 asn BIW JeuoneN fesepe
166'SvL 6£59Z 9Xe8z8Zl6  186'opl 152°T Ly 1202/54/20  Z66'Stk g10z/L2/Z0  0STT 000'9vL asn Ainsesit "'
6€0'001 vyzaT 67g33cele  9TL'00L 089'L oLz 0Z0Z/70/80  6Z€'00L 5102/82/80  0SLL 000'00L asn WpaIQ Wie [e1epad
1 VySQ z10Z 04PAH
000'008‘t $ §2T°008°L  § 1oLz vy 000005 § 0oLz 000008t  $ abeloAy pue jejol pung
000'005'} 5897 VSLOVOELE §22'00S'L 00LT (14 1202/62/70  000'00S'L 6L0Z/0E//0  QOL'Z 000'005°L 208N g UBOT BWOH |eJepay
[ 91002 9L00LSAS 0 Z00°0 L 0 £L0Z/LO/L0 20070 0 208N oji[eD 4o yueg Uon
0 €000 0000/SAS 0 11£°0 ! 0 £L0Z/L0/L0  LLE0 0 41 wissAu] Aoueby g0
aAlasay je10ads oupAH
zzg‘ieL § sie'0zL.  $ 1821 298 vzi'ez. $ 1981 0001z § abesaAy pue Jejo) puny
168'689 Zev9T EVEBOVELE  LY0'689 08L'L 985 LZ0Z/60/80  L6E'LE9 1102/92/v0  §.8'L 000'689 asn I UBOT BUWIOH [eJBpaS
5z6'le 89892 yO196/2L6 ¥E6°LE 12071 0s 020z/0z/20 €'l 6L02/92/80  069'L 000'2¢ asn Ainseei s
JUN02dY 3jeqdY VZ10Z 04pAH
9gg'zve's  $ 000'svz's  $ 0s8’L 1 ezL'vzT'e  § yi8L ogo‘evz’s  § abelony pue [ejoL pund
096°0L8 19892 QOMO6EELE  000'LL8 S6.°L L 0202/20/L0  $88'S08 6L02/92/80 09/} 000'418 1asn N UBOT BWOH [esepad
956'€L8 9£89¢C 0OY9BEELE  000'%18 v00'T L 0T0T/EO/L0 G98'908 6L0T/5Z/0 696} 000'7L8 18sn I UBOT BWOH [BJopaS
£96°208 66892 VYOOuPBEELE  000'808 189} L 0202/20/L0  T29's08 BLOZ/6Z/OL  OE9'L 000°808 1asn BE UBOT SWOH [BIBpad
156'608 08892 VOOUPEEELE 000°0L8 L6l L 0Z02/20/L0  LSL'608 6L02/52/60  S06'L 000048 Lasn g UB0T BWOH [elepad
99IAISS 1090 V610Z 0IPAH
892°v09'r  § 000'509°v  $ 058’4 I voz'gLsy  § 450" 000509 § abetaAy pue [ejot pund
anep bujhues # JUSLL}SAU] dISND  anjep 1axep PIRIA Ajunjep 3eq asud aeq ajey anjep paje}s uelpojsn) / aa3sni | Janssj
Mnb3 oysheq  Amnew paseysing yaind 1sasaul
«puog
291A198 193Q V810Z 04pAH
6L02/1E%)
ArhaUE R 3T T «.-&u;.m»a\
yoday sJainseai] VdON

Z abed

Kouaby Jamod eluloyljed UiayuoN



wd gpig

0Z0Z/22/10

As9Yy sqng sgvd 10102 L#Ss| 031

96£°250'6  $ LLO'P90'6  $ (WA €99 £98's80'6  $ 998°L 9.2'v20's  $ ebesony pue Jejot pung
198'VEL'Y €979 6906LEELE  ZET'LYL'Y 09t 168 TCOZIOL/90  90E'89L'Y L102/82/80  STL'T 000°001'Y asn ef UBOT SWOH (eJapa4
099'8pL ¥Sr9T 603vaLELE £68'SPL 6691 685 LZ0Z/ZLI80  8¥9'SvL 21028210 sTLL 000051 asn I Ueo'] aluoH fesepad
000°09€'y 1££92 2Z893EELE  968'SSEY 6591 oLg L202/52/S0  000'09€'% 9L0Z/30/90  099'L 000'09¢'Y asn IpaID uued felepa
£65'2eE ¥¥892 €0196/TL6 VL2'ZEE 8y0'z 4 020Z/€2/L0  €£9'62€ 6L02/52/.0  000T 000'cee asn Ainsess] s
9/Z'18 50062 S006.SAS 8.7'L8 0090 L 9/T'18 €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 9/Z'le asn jsnuLueg sn
Pung ¥sSa 010z L# anssj 9031

sol'zes ¢ siL'zes  $ z85°L z51L pLL'Z8S $ 0sS'L 000985  § abesany pue fejo) pung
591285 12692 V 6dXPBEELE  G11'28S z85'L 41 0Z0Z/L0/90  PL1L'Z8S . 6L0Z/0S/ZL  0SS'L 000985 1asn eg Ue0T SWOH |eJepad
pung sa v.10Z i#enss| 937

zos‘alo's  § Tyz'olo’s Z85°L 28t we'ale's 055°4 Lgogo’s § SbeJoAy pue fejo puny
LeL'oLo'e 0z692 V 6dXV8EELE  L/8'GLO'E 285°) z5l 0Z0Z/L0/90  0/8'GLO‘E 6L0z/08/ZL  0SS°} 000'9£0'€ 18asn e UBOT BUWOH jelapad
91> ZL06L ZLOBLSAS LIS 009°0 L (915 €102/L0/0 0090 LLe asn isniLjueg sn
pund sa 90102 Z# onss| 037

L06'8sL sc8'geL  $ 185"t 251 8e8'8eL ¢ BbG'L voL'sve  § abelaAy pue [ejoL pung
L€1'8€2 61692 V 6dXV8EELE  20'8EL z85°L z5 0202/L0/90  v.0'8€L 6L0ZI0S/ZL  6VS'L 000°evL Lasn €] UEOT OWOH [Riopa4
¥oL Y0062 Y00BLSAS 9L 0090 L voL €L0Z/LO/L0 0090 ¥9L asn Isnu jueg sn
pundg sg g0102 L# onss| 9371

6c9'265'c ¢ (A1 z85°L zs1L lze'les's  § 0551 9ce’lze'e  § abeseay pue fejo) pung
£0£'£6S'E 81692 V 6dXPBEELE  £66'965'C z85°L zsl 0Z0Z/L0/90  L66'96S'E 6L0Z/0E/ZL 0SS 000'129'e Lasn £ UBOT SWOH [eJepeS
oce £0062 €006/SAS 9g€ 0090 L 9€e €L0Z/L0/0 0090 9eg asn Isnu yueg SN
pund ga voioz L#enss| 031

£0L'SL $ £0L°52 $ bz L €015 $ oy coL'ss ¢ abetaAy pue [ejoy pund
£0L'GL 9r00. 9r00.SAS £0L'GL oy L £0L'GL €L02IL0/L0  OPP'T £0L'SL wiseauf Aousby (2207
anjep buifue) # JUdWI3SIALY dISND  °njep Jaxtel PISIA Runje 3jeq aold aeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsny J dasnit Jonss|

. AInb3 03 sheq Anep p ng yosind JEEYE T
Jpucg
POV uoidny 9HO 231
6L02/LEITL

| abed

A0 mal G RS Y Dl i

uodoy sgainseal)
Aouaby Jamogd eluiojjen uidyLoN

VdON



wd gpig 0z0zee/Le

0202/1.2/L0 1oy dwnAue pue uo ajqe(jed
0202/91/% 1o)e swiAue pue uo ajqejied
2202/22/ 19ye swiiAue pue uo ajqejied
swihue ajqefied

9044 $6892# JusW}SaAu|
OWTHA €689¢# JusuISaau]
gSN 2Z892# JUSWISaAY|
9044 LEEOz# Juswisanu]

BLOZ/LE/ZL 3O SE [BWINO[ J23A)S [|RM BY) WOy S3dLd pig JO SJUSWAJES UBIPOISNY 29)SNJ L Wi0J) Saaud Uo Paseq S| anjeA e Jusund

*poyjaw joexa Ue asn SJaU30 fje ‘poyjaw jewixoidde ue asn Ajunjeus 0} SYUOW 9 UBY} SS3] )M SJUBUWISIAUL
*sadA} |le usamiag uosuedwod 10} siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep go¢ © uo paseq umoys st Ajunjely 0} PjRIA Juajeainbl puog,

8€6'£20Z¢ $ "95£°920'2  $ §89°L 9.¢ yso'LElZe  $ preL 0£0°'LE0'ZE  $ :$TVLOL ONVYD

sie'ssr’ll  $ LZ9'sLv'LL  § 1z 98¢ oL6zey'LL § vZlL sec'iev'lL  § aBesany pue [ejoL pund
000'052'L £6897 18rNOVELE  SZTYYTL 000°T 8¢l €20Z/94/0L  000°05T'L 6L0Z/9LI0L 0002 000°0SZ'L 208N WA UBO] SWOH feJepad
9v9'266 fa#: 14 LOdHLEE06 L '909 95tz £/8 ZT0TIETISO 062865 6LOZILEISE  0S9T 000'565 208N VN Sueg Sn
000°000°} ¥689T ySTHICELE  08Y'666 0z6'L 1y zz02/LEv0 000°000°L 6L0Z/LT/0L  0Z6'L 000'000'% 208n WpauD uued |esapay
62Y'66% 26892 €AMIECELE  0T9'66Y 06G°L oL L20Z/5LV0  SEE'BEY 6L0T/SL0L  005°L 000008 008N Wpeu une [e1epad
000000 Lpeoz ZrNEDYELE  090'YBE'T 00€’} 181 0Z0Z/OE/90  000°000°€ 9L0Z/0E/90 00t 000'000°€ 208N BIA [euoneN [esapad
1¥8'7L9'e oryoT 0Dravoele 669°€L9'e 08s5°L 951 020Z/S0/90  CSE'ELO'E 1L0Z/0S/90  OVS'L 000°5L9'E oo8an g U0 BWOH [eJapa
168'95 17002 LYOOLSAS 168'05 2000 1 168'95 £L0Z/8LIL0 2000 168'95 o08an ojife Jo yueg uoln
96v'vay'L 19004 LY00LSAS 96V'vov'L e L 96Y'voyL SLOZILOILO  9vPT 96779V’ L wiseAu] fousBy [eaoT
OAlOSOY IN 2 O 031

sLz'szl't  $ zo'ezLL  § 90T 44 esL6LL’L  § 866°L 86505l § abesany pue jejol puny
029’221t 989z £0196/Z16 620°8TL°L 8v0'Z z 020Z/ETL0  G8S'LLL'L 6L02/5T/L0 6661 000'6Z4°L asn finseai} SN
865°} £106. £L0BLSAS 865} 0090 L 865'L €L0Z/L0/0 0090 865'L gsn JsnuL jueg Sn
SEVE ¥SA 9010¢ ¢# onss| 0371

6698 $ oiv'ovsT  $ £55°L €9l siv'eer'z  $ 65T°C 68L'zeeT  $ abeiaay pue jejo] puny
09g'syL Sv89T 9NZPBEELE S99'8YL 086'L S0z 0Z0Z/E/L0  080'LYL 6L02/52/L0 0267 000'054 o08n g UBOT BWOH [213pad
051°z9L'T SS9z 8¢30/EELE  918'09L'T ors’L £ol 0Z0ZZLI90  9¥L'SST'T LL02/82/L0  SLEE 000'sYL'C asn 8 UBOT SWOH jRIopad
6818 90062 9006.SAS _68L°2€ 009°0 L 681'/€ €102/L0/20 _ 009'0 68L'/¢ asn IsnuL jued SN
anjep Buikuen # JUdWiISaAU| dISND  onjep joxtely PIRIA Aunyepn ajeq 20Ud ajeq ajey anjep pajes uetpojsny f 99jsniL Janssj

Amnb3 oysheq  Awnjep paseyding jond sasaju|
puog
AS9Y sqng Sgvd 90102 L#sSt 031
6L0Z/1ETL

Z abed

P gd e W keteialit

‘VdON

uoday sJainseal}
Aouaby Jamod elulojijed UISYHUON



£ F A puBuig ATENGY

"SINIC

PA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020

SUBJECT:

January 31, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\o>-

FROM:

Division:

Department;

- \
Sondra Ainsworthe~=>____U.METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi
City of Lompoc

Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto

City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o o
o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

O

O

o o 0O

SR: 119:20



January 31, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported
herein, will be approved at the February 20, 2020 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The
following page is a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman'’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited January 31, 2020 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfuilly submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 119:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements
(Unaudited)

For the Month of January 2020

Operations:
Geothermal $ 1,301,331
Hydroelectric 6,042,368
CT#1 Combustion Turbines 267,974
CT#2 STIG 395,741
Lodi Energy Center 8,572,609
NCPA Operating 31,015,172

Total $ 47,595,195




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020 58%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,460,089 § 10,999,184 $ 20,767,239 53%

Debt Service (Net) 2,775,572 19,429,003 33,306,862 58%
Annual Budget Cost 4,235,661 30,428,187 54,074,101 56%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,509,358 17,770,117 30,365,288 59%

Debt Service (Net) 412,144 2,885,005 4,945,723 58%
Annual Budget Cost 2,921,502 20,655,122 35,311,011 58%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 421,939 3,402,462 6,169,530 55%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 61,879 699,240 1,089,118 64% (a)

Other Plant Cost 203,705 1,410,109 2,552,870 55%

Debt Service (Net) 483,035 3,381,246 5,796,421 58%
Annual Budget Cost 748,619 5,490,595 9,438,409 58%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 1,495,664 20,256,851 39,513,147 51%

Other Plant Cost 4,016,188 13,840,927 27,392,586 51%

Debt Service (Net) 2,171,202 15,198,416 26,054,428 58%
Annual Budget Cost 7,683,054 49,296,194 92,960,161 53%
Member Resources - Energy 4,356,249 37,064,621 56,228,967 66% (b)
Member Resources - Natural Gas 458,079 2,702,573 3,540,898 76% (c)
Western Resources 565,376 11,611,324 23,325,119 50%
Market Power Purchases 2,416,673 14,342,962 15,123,482 95% (d)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 59,685,195 364,216,780 256,029,593 142%  (e)
Net GHG Obligations - 1,499,594 496,955 302% 0]

83,492,347 540,710,414 552,698,226 98%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 561,593 4,230,709 2,813,086 150%  (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 6,185,046 63,806,009 110,581,940 58%
Ancillary Services 750,340 4,216,449 2,372,540 178%  (h)
Other 1ISO Charges/(Credits) 702,623 13,342,387 1,321,289 1010% (i)
8,199,602 85,595,554 117,088,855 73%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 177,977 1,124,142 2,132,130 53%
Regulatory Representation 53,241 372,430 748,387 50%
Western Representation 41,120 335,051 745,117 45%
Customer Programs 13,140 127,989 423,678 30%
Judicial Action 139,452 269,750 625,000 43%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 466,723 3,456,625 6,082,417 57%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 198,105 1,408,166 2,934,143 48%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 32,912 207,000 414,479 50%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 70,271 526,943 953,716 55%
Gas Purchase Program 5,048 36,887 77,386 48%
Market Purchase Project 5,693 49,641 111,270 45%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020 58%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Energy Risk Management 13,631 76,626 211,744 36%
Settlements 59,547 445,524 979,916 45%
Integrated Systems Support 9,243 27,214 243,161 11%
Participant Pass Through Costs 10,145 774,533 1,660,447 50%
Support Services 214,945 883,072 - N/A
1,511,093 10,121,593 18,242,991 55%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 93,203,042 636,427,561 688,030,072 92%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 5,589,598 59,408,116 127,623,712 47%
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 2,235,261 18,116,868 29,156,411 62% (1))
Member Owned Generation 1ISO Energy Sales 2,685,671 42,960,305 67,107,648 64% (k)
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,636,973 11,612,357 15,623,339 74% (k)
Western Resource Energy Sales 343,420 13,344,437 18,304,471 ©  73% (0]
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 35,289,976 203,131,592 - N/A
Ancillary Services Sales 338,224 4,482,312 4,196,879 107%  (m)
Transmission Sales 18,396 64,386 110,376 58%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 10,428,268 53,372,358 19,227,470 278%  (n)
58,465,787 406,392,731 281,350,306 144%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 34,737,255 $ 230,034,830 $ 406,679,766 57%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 131% of budgeted MWhs at 1/31/20. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Variance caused by greater than anticipated member contracts for Palo Alto and Port of Oakland.
(c) Variance caused by greater than anticipated natural gas for Lodi, Lompoc, Gridley, Biggs, Healdsburg, and Ukiah.

(d) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget including certain
NextEra and Exelon deals.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(f) Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for City of Lodi, BART, San Jose CE, East Bay CE,
and Ukiah.

(9) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(h) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(i) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(j) Increase due to unbudgeted revenue from energy contracts entered intc by Palo Alto following the issuance of the FY20 budget.

(k) Variance due to unbudgeted revenue from market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget include
certain NextEra and Exelon deals.

() Increase due to greater than anticipated MWhs due to the good hydro year. MWhs are 113% of budget at 1/31/20.
(m) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation.

(n) Variance caused by unbudgeted revenue from customers and greater than anticipated member contract sales.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
Deferred Outflows - ARO
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

January 31,

2019 2018

(in thousands)

24,559 § 25,564
59,938 50,245
3,211 14
488 292

555 332
8,891 9,746
3,801 2,483
101,443 88,676
36,116 42,152
181,907 177,349
557 404
218,580 219,905
1,508,061 1,505,259
(1,022,154) (991,260)
485,907 513,999
182 182
486,089 514,181
220,363 229,221
655 183

265 265
1,027,395 1,052,431
27,531 36,348
17,055 19,200
62,039 62,204
106,625 117,752

1,134,020 $ 1,170,183




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
January 31,
2019 2018
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 43,747 $ 18,791
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 10 10
Member advances 1,643 1,229
Operating reserves 18,968 23,290
Current portion of long-term debt 57,810 41,275
Accrued interest payable 4,885 4,658
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 127,063 89,253
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 66,126 76,002
Operating reserves and other deposits 137,047 129,344
Interest rate swap liability 15,747 13,326
Asset Retirement Obligations 66,014 63,713
Long-term debt, net 596,718 663,354
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 881,652 945,739
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,008,715 1,034,992
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 82,822 85,781
Pension and OPEB deferrals 5,802 3,195
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 88,624 88,976
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (44,432) (54,170)
Restricted 42,663 60,382
Unrestricted 38,450 40,003
TOTAL NET POSITION 36,681 46,215

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,134,020 § 1,170,183




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Seven Months Ended January 31,

2019 2018
(in thousands)
234225 § 263,944
137,809 164,977
372,034 428,921
137,537 181,059
49,090 64,927
114,326 105,697
18,086 18,035
15,547 12,883
12,431 11,937
347,017 394,538
25,017 34,383
(21,892) (24,150)
2,367 6,188
3,684 4,580
(15,841) (13,382)
(3,332) (1,912)
(7,539) (10,942)
(1,695) 8,147
38,376 38,068
36,681 $ 46,215




0TOVEL'T §  £9£'591 § LET8 169°09 - AT YET'S SSP'ST 070'%Z¢ FAE $
$79°901 SSO'LL - # 6181 ¢ [ SELET 98879

6£0°T9 - - - 181 2 651 E 66919

$S0°LY SSO'LI g ¥ - - . - - -

1£6°LT - - - - 8€9°1 2 L6 SELET L81°1

S6£°LTOL 80€'8Y[ LET8 16909 - 685°60% pET'S STEYT $87°00€ 9TLOL

4 $9T - - - - - 3 z -

559 - $$9 = . % - - - -

£9€'02C €ILLS - - - T6€°ST - €18L 901°TEl (199°1)

680°98% 75T oz¢g - - 7T6'61€ LE6'T ¥66T1 096°'L11 86€0€

[4:1% - - - - 81 = = - =

L06'S8Y [43%4 9z¢ = OvL61E LE6T v66'71 096°L11 86£°0C
(pS1'zzO) (809°¢) (895) - (oLL) (SoLpO1) (68LF€) (368°16) (L81°LLT) (0L THS)
190'80§°1 091°9 768 9EL'L N 2a744 9TL'9¢ T58%9 LP1S6E 101°zLs
085812 byLT8 - vL1°0E - L9TYE - 8Ly [E€°EY 985°LT

LSS 782 = - - 09 = - ort S0l

LO6°181 £18°LS 2 XANKS - 785°1€ = LLY SPERE L95°9T

911°9¢ 6¥9'vT - 150°¢ s §T9'T = 1 918y vi6

< 101 [ 9sT'L L150€ - 800°0€ L6TE 0r0°'E 888°L £0Fp1

- (859°¢8) 8€L9 TL10gE - €00°LT 1€8°C 0L O v8L'8

108°¢ 126 12 - - 89 901 €L $06 601°L

1688 - - - €02 65€ Wz PLS I 608"y

348 9 1 80T - - - - z -

28y 1s¢€ = LEL - - - - = =

re'e e'e - - . = - - - -

8€6°6S $€6'65 n 2 s - - - -

655YT § ST6ET $  £Is - - $ 8ll 1 1 - $ 1 $

pauiquo)y ADUITY SAOIAIRS Eo_mm_EmﬁhH A ON peiliciy] zm.ﬁ:m— U 'ON muﬁ:_umm o_uwuu—wokv.ﬁm ?Eo—ﬁouo
B_y0 Jaquisy ' Jomodg :cmmm_..Em:E.ﬁ mvc.._ 1D _Emnau
pojeIR0SSY paseyang 3&::2

STOUNOSTE NOISSTASNY AL % ONILVIEANIO

0707 ‘1€ A1enuep

UOUBUIGUIOD) U PajRUIUI] 4

SHDMNOSTE A0 SMOTALNO AFIFITA ANV SLISSY TY.LOL

SHOMNOSHY 40 SMOTLLNO ATHIHAHA TV.LOL

suoneSIqO UAWRINGY 19SSy

S[eL19J9p HJO PUe S[eL12)ap UoIsus g
1gop JO SuIpunyal uo 1505 SSIOXY
SEMNOSTY 40 SMOTALNO ATIdAHA

SLASSY TV1O0L

Auedwoo pajeIdOSSe Ui JUIWISIAU]
$1500 uonednsaaul pue AoaIns AteuruiaI

sjasse Asoje[noy
SLESSVY YHHLO

INVId ONdLOITd TV.IOL
ssa1goid-ui-y1om uonoINIISUO)

uoneadop pate[nwnode s3]

9914108 Ul Juejd DLIDA[Y
LNV D109 T

SLESSY QALONLST TV.IOL

3[qeAI3031 JSa13IU]

SJUALUISIAUT

sjua[eainba yseo pue yse)
SLASSY QALOTILSHY

SLASSY LNTIIND TVLOL
ssuresSoud Jayio pue Aouady woy sng

sasuadxa predaig
saijddns pue Aiojuasuj
3[qBATRIA JSAIAIUF

BL_YRO

swuedroreg
9]qRAIAD3I SUNOOOY
SIUSWIISIAUL
sjua[eAInba yses pue yse)

S1ASSY INTHIND

SLASSY

(pan1wo ,000)

SNOLLVIOJYOD dIMOd AILVIDOSSY ANV
AINTIV YAMOJ VINIOATTVD NHHHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INFNILVLS ONINIFINOD

NOLLVINHOANI TVIONVNIA YIHLO



0ZOPELL $  €9€°91 LETS § 16909 $ 80V Tiv § veTs SSP'ST 0Z0ZE TI9EEL
189°9¢ yTy'e [ ks (L0€°6) T6€°1T (90L) [332 L66'S $68°01
0$H'8¢ 0TH'E w6h'ty (¥8°9) 1€9°0 (90L) 81T $60°S vv8'6
£99'Ty ¥ - (€287 8P$0T - @ £88°1T (3443
(zev'vy) - - - L8L61) (zst'1) (186°02) @L1o)
¥79'88 1788 LT€ - 80€'8€ 601°T 318 185°¢ 0¥9'7E
708°S 708'S - = : = : - -
77878 6€0°C LT€ - 80€'8€ 601T 818 185°€ 0v9°ve
SIL'800°L 860°€ST 8Ib'E 86669 80L'ISE 1€8°¢ £P1vT (2743t L1088
759°188 998°8p1 995°C 90Z°cE [A43 = 9EFT 166'06C 951°€8
RIL'96§ S - 050°61¢€ - LLT'T 988657 Y
¥10'99 - - 08t ) 6$1 - $L9°S9
LYL'ST - - - - z J LbL'ST -
LYOLEL 0vL'Z8 995T 90T°€L 1021 - - 86€°G1 9461
9z1'99 92199 - ‘ - = . - -
£90°221 TETY 758 T6L9E LLTTE 1€8°C LOLTT ISY'€C 126
3::37 = - - [44%4 - 059 L88°1 9z
018°LS - > ov0Tl - 05107 STL'0T S65°Y
89681 = - 95€s1 yee'e L09 05z (695)
£69° - 758 - - - : * 6L

o1 : - - - - - ol b
LYL'EY § TE€TY - $ T6L'9E $ 6551 § L0S - 6LS 8L

Vh:EEOU ,.rono.r_< wﬂom?—om UOISsT 11, 11 jeilicig] .»._.Cunm QY ‘ON mumﬁzomn— ombuwﬁmcu?»m —ncto—_uouo
peltls] JaquIBI 7 1oMog ipog 10 fended
_uoum_uomm< vuw&:uhsn.— u_n_.:—‘—z
SADYNOSTY NOISSINSNVYL ® ONILVYANTO
0707 ‘1€ A1gnuer

NOILISOd LN ANV SEDUNOSTY 10
SMOTANI ATEHAAQA STLLITIEVIT TY.LOL
NOILISOd L3N TVIOL
PaIOLISAIUN)
paruIsay
s1asse [ended Ul JudIISIAUT JON
NOILISOd LaN

SFYNOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATTIFAFA TV.LOL
S[e1RJOp gHJQ Pue Uoisus g
supa1 Arojenday
SHUNOSTE 40 SMOTINI AXEIHIAA

SHILITIEVIT TVLOL

SHILITIEVIT LNSTINO-NON TV.LOL
12U “}qop wat-Suoy
suoneSiqQ WY 19SSy
Aupqer) dems a1el1 153J9U]
spsodop a0 pue saasasar SunesadQ
Aupqe G940 pue uotsuad 1N
SALLITIEVIT INTTANI-NON

SHILITEVIT LNTYND TV.IOL

a[qeAed 1sa193u1 parooy
1q9p wuay-3uof Jo uoruod Juann)
saarasai Suneredy
SOOUBADE IOQUISIA
UOMDILIISUOD 10] PAIoLIIsal - [qeded SUOKUIIRI PUE SIUNOITY
sasuadxe panuode pue djqeded sluNoooy
SALLITIEVIT INTEND

SHILI'TIEVIT

(pan1wo s,000)
SNOILVIOJI0D HAMOd AILVIDOSSV ANV
ADNADV YAMOd VINHOJIITVD NUAHLION

NOILISOd LAN 4O INTWHLVLS DONINIFINOD

NOILVINMOANI 'TVIONVNIA YdHLO



UORUIQUIY) Ut PIRUILI

189°9€ § vTr'e s T6v'y $ (Log’s) s - $ T6E1C s (o0L) $ o $ L66S $ 6801 $ papua pouad ‘NOLLISOd LEN
9LE'8E 865C €18 811 = 10S°L (estD 73 789°¢1 ¥56'6 Jeaf Jo SumuiBag ‘NOLLISOd LEN
(569'1) 978 (12¢) (s9t'01) = 168'€1 L¥0'1 1L (589°L) 176 NOLLISOd L3N NI (3SVAYIEQ) ASYTIONI
(6€5°L) (69L) (80L°€) (588) = spL) 096 (8¢) too1'e) (ysT) SINVdIDILYVd OL SONNATY
(zego) - - - = TiL - (zLo't) (859°1) r1£D SINNOWY T1EVEIAODTY HANLNT
(1$8°ST) €5 LS £69 - (LEv'S) [ S8 (ev6'11) (€9) SANNIATY (SHSNIIX ) ONILVYTIO NON TVLIOL
¥89°€ 95T - = - 10£T = 000°T 8zl M 290
L9E'T L6T LS €69 2 665 fal 15 LSE 66T 300U J52INUY
(26812) : - ¥ - (Lee's) - (990) (8zv'z1) (19¢) asuadxa }s3193uf
SANNAATY (SHSNIIXH) ONILYVEZdO NON
L10'ST oL 0EEE (eLzo1) - 19€°61 €L 968 9108 TLST SANNAATE ONILVIEIO LEN
LIOLYE (1s€) 665701 61L6YT - or'Ty 685°€ $69°€ 61591 058°0C SASNAIXT ONILY¥EdO TVIOL
- - [1X3) - 37T 96 6¥ il (o15) +10u ‘saseyound (sofes) Auedwoosaiu]
LEpTL (195) ¥00 a - 209'T 199 80L 950°C 196'C [e40URF pUB QANRNSIUIPY
LyS'ST = w - - 6L5T SIL'T 6€S L6V (A% QOUBUAUIRIA!
980°81 012 $9 = - pes's 611 1671 06b'S LLET uoyeaidaQ
9TEVIL - 3 008211 - 0z8 (14 91 332 87T UOISSTWSURL],
0606t 5 7T5°9 £0L'T 2 £8£9C 08 0€0°1 8SET yLT'6 suonesdQ
LES'LEL - - 91T ¥El 3 95Tl st 19 5051 143 Jomod paseyoing
SASNEIXT DNILYIEIO
YEOTLE 169 626 €1 IWr6EC - €9L19 8S9°E 065 SESVT TTET SANNIATI ONILYIHIO TVIOL
608°LEL - 6TL'1 $90°TL = zoL'se £08 L89 689°€1 SEI'EL Aured-piyl QO
STTPET § 169 $ oozl §  78€°91 $ - $ 190'9T § $$8C $  £06°€ $  9v8°01 § L8TOI $ swedpnred
SANNIATE ONILY 4O
ﬁuEDEOU >u=om< mS_Eom UoIsst L ISST il REiliCly) .au‘ﬁ:m— oco ON muﬁ___umnm u_huo_uo‘_—”;: —ﬂEkue_uoou
Eeitle} Toquia % 18MOg 1poy 10 [ende)
patRID0SSY paseyoing ardnny

SHOYNOSTI NOISSHASNVYL ¥ ONLLVIINTD
0Z07 ‘1€ AlEnueg papuy SYIUOIA UIAIG Y} J0g

(paniwo s,000)
SNOILVIOJI0D AMOd AALVIDOOSSY ANV
ADNADV HAMOd VINJOAITVD NYIHLION

NOILISOd LAN NI SAONVHD ANV SASNAIXH ‘SAONTATY 40 INTFIWILVLS ONINITNOD

NOILLVIANYOANI TVIONVNIL YHTHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
January 31, 2020

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 3,698,962
PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 3,698,962

AR FY 2020Jan Rpt 2020



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended January 31, 2020

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

1%

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth _g;_,L ,Q..METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
e F’a"ci;‘;:iﬁa%’r:;:ii 0 Cityof PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other [

SR: 120:20



(

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended January 31, 2020
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for
your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $4,727,336 of which approximately $75,251 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $4,492 to Debt Service and $4,647,593 to Operations and
other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA’s investment portfolio totaled $297,501,381 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $299,832,363.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.105% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.134%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $156,221,000. January maturities totaled $53 million and monthly receipts totaled

$45 million. During the month $57 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills increased 1 basis point (from 1.55% to
1.56%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 7 basis points (from 1.57% to 1.50%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of January 31, 2020 are in
compliance with NCPA's investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Gl

I%N DY 8. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 120:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

JANUARY 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS S

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value,.

Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

January 31, 2020
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
1,660,156 $ 111,801,662 113,361,818 37.51%
1,347,790 - 1,347,790 0.45%
1,739,647 3,366,739 5,106,386 1.69%
4,492 29,225,839 29,230,331 9.67%
75,251 153,107,141 153,182,392 50.68%
4,727,336 _$ 297,501,381 302,228,717 100.00%
299,832,363

NOTE B - The total portfolio book value includes Boeing Aerospace Company (Boeing) bonds totaling $1,469,186 with
maturity dates in 2022 and 2023. Moody's Investors Service (Moody's) downgraded their credit rating of Boeing to A3
from A2 (rating at time of purchase) on 12/18/19 with a negative outlook and then from A3 to Baal with a negative
outlook on 1/30/2020. S&P Global Ratings downgraded their credit rating of Boeing from A (rating at time of
purchase) to A- with a negative outlook on 12/18/19. Fitch downgraded their credit rating of Boeing from A (rating at
time of purchase) to A- on 1/17/2020. NCPA sold the bonds for a total gain of $32,359 on 2/6/20.



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
January 31, 2020
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 44,627,336 $ 299,465 $ 26,061,826 $ (25,265,123) $ (25,183,276) $ (20,853,039) $  (312,811)
Special Deposits 11,683 5 - (16,763,109) - 16,751,102 (319)
Construction - - - - (200,269) - (200,269)
Debt Service - 2,567 14,719,124 (5,818,205)  (21,262,005) 5,559,355 (6,799,164)
Special & Reserve - 467,320 11,725,623 - (10,688,161) (1,457,418) 47,364
$ 44,639,019 $ 769,357 $ 52,506,573 $ (47,846,437) $ (57,333,711) §$ - $ (7,265,199)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Investment Activity Summary

January 31, 2020
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 25,183,276 $ (26,061,826) $ 13,415 §$ - $ - $ (865,135)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction 200,269 - 1,361 - - 201,630
Debt Service 21,262,005 (14,719,124) 29,502 - - 6,572,383
Special & Reserve 10,688,161 (11,725,623) 1,298 - - (1,036,164)
$ 57,333,711 $ (52,506,573) $ 45,576 $ - $ - $ 4,872,714
Less Non- Cash Activity
Dise/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (45,576)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ 4,827,138

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

January 31, 2020
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 2.105% 2.134%
OPERATING FUNDS: 2.120% 2.226%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.286% 2.384%
Capital Facilities 1.527% 1.560%
Hydroelectric 1.892% 1.960%
Lodi Energy Center 1.745% 1.598%
INTEREST RATES
2.25 1
e 7%3\
1.75 +—4v
KEY INTEREST RATES 150 |y B —
PRIOR 152 5 ) 5
CURRENT YEAR 075 I
050 40— -
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.55% 2.40% °~§5 NS B DG T
T-Bills (90da.) 1.56% 2.40% 0.00 ===
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.62% 2.33% Aug  Sep Oct Nov. o Dec Jan
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.50% 2.59%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.55% 2.34% ——— — -
T-Notes (3yr.) 1.38% 2.56% ——4— T-Bills (90 days) ==~ FED FUNDS
‘ =i T-Bills (1 yr) w3 T-Notes (3 yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
January 31,2020
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ - $ 2,464 $43,765 $ 3,274 $ 20,690 $ 87,535 $ 2,000 $ 159,728 53.29%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - 1,000 - 1,500 65,040 - 67,540 22.53%
US Bank Trust Money Market 41 - - - - - - 41 0.01%
Commercial Paper 16,475 - - - - - - 16,475 5.51%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 40,160 - - - - - - 40,160 13.40%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 5,151 - - - - - - 5,151 1.73%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 3,956 - - - - - - 3,956 1.32%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 32 755 66 4,174 146 - 5173 1.73%
Certificates of Deposit - 10 - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.50%
Total Dollars $ 65,783 $2,506 $45,520 $3,340 $26,364 $154,221  $2,000 $ 299,734 100.00%
Total Percents 21.94% 0.84% 15.19% 1.11% 8.80% 51.45% 0.67% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



wd zy:p 0Z02/50/20
$08'905 8y89¢ €HACYLIEs S65'7LS y0L'Z s9L'L €20Z/LLIP0  018°'L0S 6LOZILEI0  0SS'Z 000005 o04an "0} "HEWIBM
¥61'asy 11992 IMEZLELLE GLO'ELS 80e'e =T £20Z/L0/70  OTL'Esy 8L0Z/L2/60 00§ 000°'00§ o08an JBg [901Bd PAYUN
oLL'e8Y 00992 LMBZLELLE  SLO'ELS svze SsL'L €20Z/L0/P0  GTT'E8Y 8L0Z/GL/S0  00ST 000°00S oo&an QAIBS j80JEd PBIUN
£91°G6Y 5592 8480/9¥80 050'ZLS 980'S I £20Z/SLIE0  08T'Z6Y BLOZNZIE0 0612 000°'00§ o04an | AemeyeH auysyieg
sle'eep £1992 POLITYT S¥8'LLS yoT'e 6Ch'Y €20T/90/E0  G.8'68Y 8L0Z/ZL/90  008'T 000'00§ o08n 0 [ended eieeq Uyor
00Z'066 8¥99C €UVOLECOE 0S0'LED'L 890°€ reL'L €COC/LO/E0  0GY'586 8L0Z/€0/80  92LT 000'000°L 008N jesodi10) ligopy uoxx3
¥96'26% 96592 GuEX68€89 086'7LS ySL'e oLL'} €20Z/5L/Z0  0L0'ssy 8L0Z/LZIE0 529 000'005 208N ‘diog epeso
¥81'06Y £0992 SNDL088Z8  GT6'PLS pov'e 960'L €T0Z/LO/ZO  G8S'V8Y 8LOT/GHSO  0SLT 000°005 208N dnou9 Ausdoid uowig
852'€86 §v90Z 613196268 0SY'Z€0°L siee S0'L €20Z/LLIG  09L'6 8L0Z/€0/80  00LT 000'000'L oo8n #pa1Q) J0jol BI0AD L
8ly'g6e 1%992 90vD92826  8O0L'ELY gel'e 1¥0'L zeozvLiTL  2S§'vBE 8L0Z/c0/80 008 000°00% oo8an "o BSIA
268167 65592 98VF9/99) 06€'60S 800°¢ 8€0°t 2e0Z/50/2L 08458V 8L0Z/LTIE0  §SET 000005 208N "dloD UoIARYD
18L'26Y 1992 IVOMG99Z0 0Y9'ZLS l51°¢ 6101 Z20Z/9L/LL  0S5'88Y 8L0Z/ZLI90  009°C 000'005 oo8n Ueuld BpUOH UedLiewy
L£8'88Y [4X°°T4 YNEEZOL60 090'€0S v.0°€ z00'L 220Z/08/0%  08L'Z8Y 8L0Z/ZL/90 00T 000'00S 008N ‘00 Buteog
109'z2L'L 62592 LDOEEBLED 8LEIYL'L 62T 0e8 Z20ZLLISO  996'LTL'L 8L0Z/L0/Z0  00ET lg8'52)L'L oo8an “ou} ojddy
¥89'26Y 16592 zLaspYELL GSE'80S ¥26'C 128 2202/20/50  S00°.8Y 8L0Z/LZ/IE0  0STT 000'00§ 008N “au] oQisdad
¥0e'96Y 10992 83IVA9EZL8 SEETLS slee 06 2202/L0/P0  GBE'E6V 8L0Z/SLISO  0S6Z 000°00§ 208n spejusWY QL
595'686 12092 Q009182 06Z'SL0°L 786 192 2202/S0/£0  OVL'9L6 8L0Z/0Z/60  0S2C 000'000'% o04n uosuyor g uosuyor
55586 £/997 ZAQBLLZPL 09L'SLO'L 0s0°€ 9€L 7T07/90/20  0LL'SL8 8L02/0Z/60  00ET 000'000'L 208n sjqweD B JoR0Id
112666 §/992 8VEA6/588 009'020'L 8L0'E 165 LZ0Z/vLI60  0BY'666 8102/L2/60  000€ 000'000'L 208n Auedwog we
156226 69997 SOEMS9920  0€8°000'} [2%3 985 1202/60/60  0ZZ'656 8L02/0Z/60  00L'% 000°000°L 208N Bl BPUOH UBduswy
000005 G8E9T YPHAVOPELE OFE'/6P'S 005°} 695 LZ0Z/EZ/80  000'00S'E 9L0Z/€2/LL  005'L 000°005°¢ 208N 1N UB0T] BUoH [esepad
21£'509'T S9v9Z G¥SHIEELE /89'GLO°T 0z9'L R4 120219220 ¥8L'LLO'T 1102/82/80  0ZLL 000'209'2 o0dan 1Ppa1Q Wied jeiopad
80276 21992 8XAL80LLL G9B'Z0S 858°Z 88y 1202/0/90  Ogl'8y 8L0Z/ZLI90 056} 000°00§ 008n oul Jazlid
258786 04992 OMVOPL8Sy  008°L00°L 616 ely L202/61/S0  096'896 8L0Z/02/60  00L') 000'000't oo8an dioD e
662'G6Y 85592 $189.0/€y  S99'20S 8T 5744 120Z/L0/¥0  008'8Y 8L0Z/LT/E0 0002 Q00005 o08n "ouj jodaq BWoH
10¥'705 1¥892 643HEY/EQ GLL'L0S 9607 807 LZ0Z/SLIE0  0LE'90S 6L0Z/LE/L0  006T 000005 oo8an LN VHNY TYNOILYN
510266 19992 £Q8YG.2LL  00L'600'L 6962 £6€ 1202/82/20 020286 8L02/02/60  00T'Z 000'000'} 208N “0u] swieysAs 0as1)
L0L'¥8L 65€92 08dBVOELE 6L2'SLL'T LWL £5¢€ 1Z02/6L/L0  B09'€8L'T 9L0Z/BLIL0  0OV'L 000'68L2 ooan e€ UBOT BWOH [e1apa4
618'96% 9,992 Zzl3zevve  G6L'S0S l50°€ Zve 1202/80/L0  SBL'TeY 8L0Z/LZ/60  0SET 000°005 008N 2 [eyded a199(q uyor
5€0'266 /992 IVITFLLEE  O¥6'200°L 8v8'g gle 020Z/54/2L 085626 8L02/02/60  006'L 000'000'L 208n EUREIVY
6€1'811 8069C £0£8Z87L6 G/L'8LL 8651 882 0Z0Z/SLILL  p8L'Bll 6LOZ/LEOL  OSL'L 000'8LL 208n Ainseasl 'S’
957216 99v9z OMLEVOELE PPZ'9/6'Y o'l 191 0COZILLLO  €/€'086'% £102/82/80  009'L 000'6L6'% 008n eg U0 8WoH [esapad
128'666 89997 SVE0SS69€  00L'€00'L 1£6'T 0oL 0Z0Z/41/ISO  086'866 8L02/02/60  S.8T 000'000°L 008N solweuAq |eseuss)
00004 0zeoe QTEOESAS 000°QL 050°0 99 0Z0¢/L0/70  Q00'OL 0Z0Z/20/L0 0500 000°0L asn Aueg SN
Lze'stl'e 95002 9500/SAS LZe'svl's 0580 L Lze'srl'e 1102/42/80 0580 Lze'syl'e asn Aueg SN
951'095'L 0500/ 0S00LSAS 9G1'095'L 1000 L 951095} €10Z/0£/90 1000 951°095'} asn ueg sn
¥81'051 1002 7LOBLSAS ¥8L°0SL 2000 L 81051 €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 ¥8L°05L 208n oflleD Jo yjueg uoun
ols'y 0200 0L00/SAS 0LS'¥Y ooz 3 oLs'y 8L0Z/6L/OL  OV9'T 015y dD WBW jessy eluio[ed
0L0'LPOYL 00004 0000.SAS 0LO'LYOPL 9z ! 0LO'LbO'YL ELOZILO/LO  9¥TT 0LO'LYO'YL 4Iv1 usauj Aoueby [e00
009'62€'8 L0L0L LOLOZSAS 009'62¢€'8 058} L 009'GZE'8 yL0Z/9T/LL  058'L 009's2E'8 asn N biueg sn
anjep bulkleny # JUBWIISIAU] diSND  anjep yoxiepn PIBIA Ayanyepy ajeq ERTT ajeq ajey anjep pajels UeipoISNY / 99)SNIL Jonssi
AInb3 03 skeg Kunyep paseyoing aseyoungd Jsasayu|
«puog
Bupesado
0202/LE/L0

| obed

poday sJaunseai}

Kouaby 1oMod BIUIOYi[eD UIBYLION

S Y W LSS LHAT

/




wd zp:L 0202/50/20

805687 1€99C 000208828 08L'9LS 8Er'e oz €TOTILO/P0  STL'¥8Y 8L02WTL0  0SLT 000°00S 008N dnoug Auedoud uowis
oLL'28v 16592 LOV90LYS9  086'605 80L'E S8L'L €20Z/L0/SO  0SE'08Y 8L0Z/60/S0  0STT 000°00S 208an aup N
906'68Y 12992 IMETLELLE  GLO'ELS Lel'e SGL'L £20C/LO/F0  08L'v8Y 8L02/22/90  005°C 000005 o08an 2InBS [804Ed PaUN
£pL'E6r 96592 84€0/9¥80 0S0°LLS g8Le 8EL'L €202/G1/20  0BZ'06Y 8L0Z/60/S0  0SLT 000°00§ oo08an | RemeuieH aiysyiog
20e's6y 66592 €HVOLEZOE STS'GLS §50°€ vZL'L €Z0Z/LO/E0  0/9'Z6Y 8L0Z/60/S0  92LC 000°00§ oo08n jesodioD [Iqoyy uoxx3
v68'L6Y ¥2992 LIANSLZLL  S8ZPLS olle €zL'L €202/82/20  S59'/8% 8102/22/90  009C 000°00S o08an “ou| swaysg 081D
S9E'LYS 86592 24/dEET68  18T'L9S €02°¢ ¥20'L €20Z/0L/L0  Y6T'9ES 8L02/60/50  $Z9T 000°05S 008N upa1Q Jojo ejofo )
#90'56Y 62992 ZNYOPL8SY G09'9LS 0/0°€ 8r0'L zToT/SHEL  QOE'ZeY 8L0Z/CT/I00  00LT 000°00S . oo8n dioD et
720'8ve 2€992 90V09Z8Z6 £61'85T 960'¢ 190'L Ze0TMLTL  Sl6'ove 8L0T/vZILO  008'C 000052 oo8an "ou] esIA
26E'06Y €/59C Savaoory. 66'205 Lote 156 ZTOTIGHIBO  SOL'Esy 8L0T/PO/P0  0LET 000005 oo8n obesols dlignd
96.'96% T.59T 99H9/0/8r SE0'TLS 816 158 Z202/L0/90  06Z'V6Y 8LOTWOFO  GZ9T 000°00S oo8n "ou] jodsQ SwoH
L8v'86y 1.692 8IVAIETI8 GEL'TLS ooL'e 062 TTOZILOMO  00Z'L6Y 8L0Z/EGIK0  0SB'T 000005 208N apesjuawy dL
L2226Y 0€99Z 90Ad89YSZT 061 '60S 98L’e 2oL TTOTIVO/IE0  0TS'L8Y 8L0ZWTILO  0SY'T 000'00S 208N Auedwa) Aeusid yem
Zv6'S6Y v.592 LYEB8LEYES  0SE'805 86L7 (473 T202/TVIZ0  S6Z'TEY 8LOZWOO  GLET 000'00S oo08an *dioD YosoIN
Zre'vey 04592 66v490v90 S09'20S 000'€ -4 L20Z/£0/50 50198y 8LOZ/EOMO 0502 000005 oo8n 00 UOJIOIN AN 40 Jjueg
SLE'LYL'L veL92 LINHODSELE  6E8'BYL'L zL9T [4x4 020Z/08/0L  69€'8TL'L 8L0z/0Z/CL  0E9'L 000'05L°L 208N By [euoeN [eiepad
SL0°0GL L1292 GSNOLEELE 8EL'GS. 0/8¢ £22 0zZ0Z/LLIB0  S¥O'0SL 8LOT/ILTIVL  S18T 000’052 oo08n e UBOT QWIOH [Iopad
vreel £200L £T00LSAS PrZ'el Z00'0 L rre'el €1L02/L0/L0 2000 rre'el 208n ojifed 4o ueg uolun
66Z'LYL'L 22004 TZOOLSAS 66Z'LYLL vz 3 662'LL'L €LOZILOML0  9VTT 662'LYL'L Ellal wysaAul Aousby (€907
Juno29y Buloueleg vdosS

059zl $ 0s9zls  § Wwe'Z 2 0592l $ weeT os9’zls  § obeiany pue jejo) pund
059215 G002 SPOOLSAS 0S9'CTLS oreT 3 059'2Ls €L0ZN0/IL0  ov2T 059°TLS wysanuj foueby 2007
J02y uonany 9HO ddiN

l1g'eg8'c8  § oLL'zzLvs $ eLLT 118 0697698 $ 896'L 2LL'goL've  $ obesony pue jejo) pundi
000°000°} £269C SBdNOVELE  06Z'200'L 0ze'L £08'L GZ0Z/80/L0  000'000'} 0Z0T/80/L0  0Z6'L 000°000°L oo8an JA UBO] BWOH [21apad
000°005°L 68892 p4/HYOELE  000°00S'L 666'L S0L'v ¥20T/Z0/0L 000005’} 6L0Z/70/0L 0002 000'005'L oo08n g UBOT AUOH [elepad
000°000°4 18892 THO19eT68 008'000'L ford4 004"} ¥20Z/L2/60  000'000°L 6L0Z//T/60  0SL'Z 000'000°L o08n WpeL) Jojol ejofo L
000'00€'C 8889Z 0ZNNIEELE €9P'90E'T 068'L 004} ¥202/L2/60  000°00£'Z 6L02/22/60 068’} 000'00€'C o08n UpalID uled [esepes
000°000'€ 98892 JINEZZYLE 0E8'Y00'E 0002 869'L ¥202/52/60  000'00Q°E 6L0Z/GZ/60  000°T 000'000'¢ o08an |einynouby |eiepad
000°002't z/892 95AM8Y090 ZLP'E0L°L 148T 169'} $202/ve/60  000°00L°L 6L0Z/72/60  00ST 000'00L'L 008n diaD eollewy Jo yueg
Le2'LLG 09292 8LMrHGZO9Y 05Z'8ES L95°¢ Lor'L y20ZINO/Z0  055'%LS 6LOZ/GLIZO0  G/8°€ 000'005 208N ueBlow dr
000'612 S0692 OAINDVELE YEL'BLT 000 L9€°L €20ZIOE/0L  000'6LZ 6102/08/0L  000C 000'6L2 oo0dan A B0 BUWOH [elepad
sPrZLL'Y 0z89¢ 81EX68€89 bY.6vC'y 09 zze'L €20Z/5L/160  ZSY'90L'Y 6L0Z/LE/S0 00v'Z 000'SYL'Y ooan "dioQ ejoelO
650'296 22992 9DE8LEYES 0.6'GLOL [7A% ¥8Z'L €202/80/80  0SE'Lb6 8102/02/60 00072 000'000'L o08n *d109) YososaIn
000'000°L 9v99¢ LANHLEE0S 08L'/G0'L 66 692'L €202IvZ/I/0  000000'L 8L0zZ/E0/80  QOV'E 000°000°L o08n Jueg sn
180'205 51992 LZv998/2r 0.L'62S 9ET'e 66L'L €20Z/5LIS0 GZL'E0S 8L0Z/ZLI90  GLEE 000'00S ooan Auedwo) AeysieH
828'005 20992 TOVHO0Y90  STL'8ZS EVY'E 28l €202/82/¥0  S9T'L0S 8L0Z/5L/ISO  00SE 000'00§ Q08n 09 UOI[3IN AN J0 djueg
anjep bulluen # JusunsaAly dISND  2njeA jaxdely PIRIA Aumep ayeq ¥dud ajeq ajey anjep peajels uelpoisny / @9)sna) J9nssj

Anbz 0} sheg fungen paseyoing eseyaind pEEYEY
“puog
Buesado
0202Z/1e/10

Z obed

uodey sainseal]

Kouaby lamod elulojijed WIdyuoN

ST a8 el ks

VdON



wd zpL 0Z0Z/50/20
S68'70S 8£.92 6NILBOLLL S§SL'[2S 806C cze’L €202/5LI60 02905 6L0T/0E/L0 00T 000°005 o08n ouj Jeziyd
£06°805 85292 GM3TYLLEE G96'6CG v98'z Lwz'L €202/92/90  096°'0LS 6L02/,0/20  00v'E 000°005 o0€n U} "HeW(eA
8¥1'505 §5/9¢2 €HVP9/99L G/9'€ZS 1982 6£2'L £202/72/90  SZ0°L0S 6L02/£0/20  LBL'E 000°005 o08an “dioQ uoseyd
159'28Y LrL92 L08€20460 SLE'86Y 6162 0gz'L €202/5L/90  00S'LLY 6L0Z/0e/l0  §L8'L 000'00S 008n ‘00 Buieog
218'\0L 0v292 SMEY9/99L  626°0LL 6£6°C 00Z'L €20T/9L/1S0  0G1'8€L 8L0Z/0E/L0  995°C 000'052 oo8an "diod uosAsyD
891 '68Y £859C IMEZLELLE  GLO'ELS Shze SSL'L €20T/L0P0  SEL'EsY 8L0T/9T/VO  00ST 000'005 o08an I8 180Jed PauN
0Z6°¢6Y 9,592 84H0/680 0S0'LLS eV 8EL'L €20Z/SL/IE0  0Z6'88Y 8L0Z/9Z/W0  0SLT Q00'00§ o08n | RemeuieH elysieg
r1L9'Z6Y 18592 0494500, 082'€LS seze gLL't €20Z/LTIZ0  0GE'88Y 8L0T/9T/¥0  00LT 000°005 o08an ouj Jlexeld
966°L67 62592 GHEX68E89  086'VLS S6L'e oLL'L €202/51/20  0S€'l8Y 8LOZ/OTVO  STIT 000°00S 008N *diod 8joeIO
£E8'V6Y 52592 £3VHO0Y90 0%1'8LS gzee £60°L £202/62/L0  0B.L'L6Y 8L0T/9TIY0  0S6'C 000'00$ oo8n 00 UJIBIN AN Jo Jueg
Ly6'Ey. 1€292 €INHLEE06 SL8'S/L orL'e 180'L €20Z/€2/L0  QD6'LYL BLOZ/OE/LO  0S8'C 000052 oo8n VN Siued sn
LLy's6r 78592 90v09Z8Z6 S8E'OLS 4% Ly0'L TToTvLITL  009'26Y 8L0Z/92/Y0 008 000'00$ a08n "2U] BSIA
L1126 6€.92 PMOdB9YSZ  586'605 1£62 ¥eo't zeozvorel  oov'esy 6L0Z/0E/LO  0SET 000°00§ ooan /Auedwo) Aeusiq Hem
181'00§ 08692 PXOBYYELL 00L'LLS £80°€ 168 T202/.L/1L0  0LE'00S 8L0T/92/Y0  0OL'E 000°005 208N ‘ouj oDisdad
S9EY09'E 19v9T B9UBLEELE  L20'8E9'E 09LL 098 2202/0L/190  095'VE9'E LL02/82/180  S2LT 000'526°¢ oo0dan eg Ueo] 8WOH [BJeped
Ge8'220'Y ¥259C LOOEERLED  LOL'0BO'Y 6282 0e8 2202/LLISO  8ES'0Z0'Y 8102/L0/20 00T 257'520'y o08n “ou| ojddy
il o6y 78592 83VAEZ.8 GEETLS geee 062 2COTILOMO  0S6'TEY 8LOZ/9ZV0  0$67C 000°00S 008n spesusWyY AL
Lyr's6e 8592 LVE8L6YES 089'00% Ti8T [4 7 TZOT/TLTo  08Y'L6E 8L0Z/9Z/V0  GLET 000'00% o0gn *dioD yosooly
000'621'6 GEE9T GHOO3cELE  1LBO'BCL'E 069'L 187 1202/20/90  000'6ZL'6 9L0Z/Z0/90  069'L 000'62L'6 oo8n Jpa1) uued jeiepady
000°00€'} 89£92 EMEEDOELE  €1L'86T'L 005°L [4:14 1202/82/50  000'00E'} 9L0Z/0€/80  00S'L 000'00€'L o08n B [euoneN fesepad
000'Z9L'S 2€€9C GINEDYELE  8ZE'ESL'S ST9'L 6% LZ02/G2/50  000'Z9L'S 9L0Z/52/50  SZ9'L 000'29L'S 208N B [euoneN [esepe
956'8LL'6 ¥5€92 08d8VOELE 188'8.9'6 L £5€ 1202/6LL0  OVL'GLL'E 9L0T/6L/L0  00V'L 000'02.'6 oo08an eg UE0T SWOH |eJapa4
6.0'782'Y 95£92 LAWOIEELE 0£8'8LZY £op'} £5€ L20Z/6L1L0  §1L'08Z'% 9L0Z/0ZILO  ObY'L 000'582'% 008n UpaID ULe |elapad
810'GEE'T 22692 IMIVIALELE +99'9EET 009} 062 020Z/LLLL  GB8'SEET sLoZ/LLIZL 681 000'0E€'C 208n JA UBOT BUIOH [eapad
0 1500L LS00LSAS O 0000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
L98'2rL 6100 6L00LSAS L98'2hlL 2000 3 l98'2rL €L02/L0/0 2000 19821 008n ojijeD Jo yueg uotun
TETOYL'S 12002 LLOOLSAS TET'OVL'S o9 3 €T LS 8L0ZMvLiZL  0v9T zeT'OrL's dWo wh 1essY eluIofEeD
£69°09¢'61 20004 0000LSAS £69'09¢€'6L ovTT L £69°09¢€'6L €L02ZL0/L0  9vee £69'09¢'6L El\al unseAul Aouaby (2007
aAJasay BunjesedQ |elsuan)
£98'228'8C § 168'992'62  $ 906°Z Z9LL 108°108'8 § 99T cv5'v86'8Z  § abeseny pue [ejol pung
000'052'} €892 23NEzTrLe  €10°25TL 0002 869'L ¥202/52/60  000'05Z'L 6L0Z/52/60  000'C 000'052'% Q08N JeninoLBy eleps 4
000°00S €892 19196268 S15'00S oLz 9c9°L ¥Z0e/ST/20  000'00S 8L02/SZIL0  OLY'T 000'00S 008N upa1d Jojoly ejoko)
000°08L'2 66,92 POOLOPELE ZLL'S8L'T 00LT 0s5'L ¥ZOZ/OELO  000'08L'Z 6L0Z/0S/0  00L'T 000°08L°Z o08an WA UBOT BUWIOH [esapad
000'000'2 86/9C ZHLSOVELE 0P0'€00'2 £58'C 125’ y2ozZ/LO/KO  000°000'C 6L0Z/LO/O 089 000°000C o08an MW\ UeoT SWOH [elapad
000'000'2 16492 8rLSOFELE 004'€00'2 09.2 126°L ¥20Z/L0/¥0  000°000'C 6L0Z/LO/0  09L°T 000'000'2 208n WA Ueo elioH [esspad
000'005'2 66292 8OESOVELE  §2E'20S°T S/8T 88yl ¥202/82/20  000'00S'Z 6L02/82/20  §.8C 000'005' oodn J UBOT] BWOH [BJapad
0000002 9€192 LEM4VOELE 096620 ooL'e 9zv'L €202Z/82/ZL 0000002 8102/82/2L  00L'E 000'000'2 008N e UBoT StioH [eapady
¥68'005'Z $5992 9ZNSOVELE GTL'8LS'T 6£0'C YOE'L €202/82/80  0S2'10S°T 8102/82/80 0s0'e 0000052 o0an WA uB0] sWoy feispad
¥99°26Y 92992 €HAL80LLL §88°CCS o5L'e 0gz'L €20T/5L/90  0G5'96Y 8L02/2Z/90  000'€ 000005 oo8n ou| Jezid
¥2.'200C £599C BAWSOVELE ZLE'ELO'T L9v'E 0ez'L €202T/5L/90  006'€09'C 8L0Z/LL/I80  0SLT 000'009'2 008N W\ UeoT] BWOH [elspa4
anjep Buifued # JUssaAU| dISND  anjep Joyiep PIBIA Aunyepy ayeq asud ajeq ajey anjep pajels ueipo3isny J 3djsnil a2nss|
>_”ww 0} sheq Ayunjepy peseyaing aseyaing ysasau|
* jJUNno22Yy Buisuejeg vdos
0z0zZ/Le/L0

¢ abed

uoday sJainseal|

Aouaby 1amod ejuiojijed uioyuoN




€0Z'20L'561 $

'691'92r L6L

$

97T

1202/8/1 Buipels Ajenuue aiqejien
120z//2/1 L Bumiess Aepenb sigejen
¥202/S0/L uo 8|qe|ed

0202Z/0¢/ uo s|qe(ied

0202/20/01 Bumels swniue ajqejed
120¢/22/60 Buiels swnhue sjqe|led
1202//2/60 Builels Ajlenuue-iwss a|qe||ed
els A lenuue-jwss a|ge|ledn
0Z0¢/52/60 Buinels Alenuue-iwss a|qejied
1202/v2/60 Buiness Alenuue-twes e|qe|ed
020z/92/8 buieys Apepenb sjqeljedn
€20Z/L L/L0 uo 9|qe|ien

wd ZpiL

OWTHA

Ndl

ANVESN
OWIH4
g1H4
9044
V10AOL
ONV4d
OWvd
ovd
ONV4
LM

1202/52/L Buntels Alenuue-iwaes sjqejled Y1OAOL
1202/52/2 Bunses Ajrenuue-iwss ojqelied YIOAOL

€20¢/SL/L uo a|qe|jed
0202/0¢/v uo alqejied
020¢/0¢/v Uo siqejied
0202/10/% uo 8jqejied
020¢/L0/v uo aiqejed
0202/0¢/c uo a|qe|ied
020¢/8¢/cL Uo s|ge|ied
020¢/S /9 uo 8lqejied
£€202/€2/9 uo a|qejed
Auapenb siqejjen
Auspenb s|qejen
swiAue ajqejied
awnAue sjqejied
awnAue sige|ied
Auspnenb ejgejed

1280
OWTHA
OWTH4
OWHA
OWTH4

0dSH

g1H3
OWTHd
asn
OWTHA
VYANA
8044
g7H4
g71H4

VIANA

0202/50/20

£¢69¢ #uawisaau|
2169¢ #usISaAu|
9069¢ #usulSaAY|
G069C #UBWISBAU|
6889¢ #uswWisaau|
8889¢ #uaWIsaAu|
1889¢ #uswissAul
9889¢ #iUsWISaAY|
€189¢ #luswisaau|
2/89¢ HuUsUNSaAU|
1 289¢ #ususaay|
87789¢ HuUSWISSAU|
| Y89CH# JUSWISSAU|
L £89T# JussaAu|
0289¢# JusiisaAu|
91 89C# JUSWISaAU]
66/9C# JUsWISaAu]
86/9¢# Juswisanu|
16/9¢# Juswisanu}
VG LOC# JUSWISSAU]
9€/9Z# JusWiSanu|
£G997# JUSUISaAU|
9799C# JUSWISIAL|
GB8EQZTH JusUISaAU|
89E9Z# JUBWISBAU|
9GE9CH# JUsISaAU|
GGEITH# JuBWISaAU|
PGEIZH JUBWISBAU]
ZEE9TH JuUBWSBAU|

0Z0Z/LS/LO 1O SB [euwinof J334S [Je\ 3y} Wouj Saoud piq 10 SJUSLWRJRIS URIPOISNY /29)SNU L WOy saoud uo paseq si anjeA JMJe JUaLND

*pPOYIBL JOBXS Uk 9SNh S1ayjo |[e ‘poyjaw ajewixosdde ue asn Ajunjeur 03 SYJUOW g UBY) SSI Y3IM SIUSWIISIAU|
*sadf} jje usamiaq uosuedwos 4oy siseq e apiaocad o} Jeak Aep G9¢ e uo paseq umoys si AJlnjely 0} PIALA Juafeainb3 puog,

sv9 £z6'ssb's6l  § ozL'z §55°L20'96L § :$TVLOL ANVHD
sec'eop'ze ¢ 809'6L6'28 $ £0LT £vs z8l'isv'zs  $ 060'Z ypzoovzs  $ abeiany pue [ejoL pund
000005} z1892 6YNO8ZLEY  0TL'90S'L 98eT 192°) veoz/ie/lL  000°00S L 6L0Z/L2/LL  00ET 000'008"} o08n uebiopy dr
000'000'} 06892 y4ZHVOELE  000°000'} 666'L S0L'L ¥202/20/0L  000°000't 6L0Z/¥0/0L  000T 000°000'L oo4an BE UBOT BUWOH [BJOpad
000000 12892 yOMEEZyLE 020'L00'C 0oL 899'L ¥202/92/80  000°000°€ 6L02/92/80  00LT 000°000'€ o04an [einynouby eseped
000°062 17892 19196268 £12°05L oLz 9£9'L ¥202/5210  000°05L 6L02/52/L0  0LbT 000°05L 008N Wpald JojolN ejokoL
000005 91892 YOOLIOPELE  OLE'LOS 0022 056'} ¥20zZ/08/Y0  000°00S 6L0ZI0E/Y0  00LZ 000005 208N N U0 BWoH [elepad
000'00L°1 6492 Z09NSEray  Z0L'002°L £05°e o8yl ¥202/02/20  000'00L'L 6L02/02/20  000°€ 000'002°} 208N ONI VSN 29SH
Les'Loy 90692 SAHHBSLLE €66'29F €602 sor'l yTOT/SOZ0  T98'Z9Y 6LOZ/LE/OL  GIEE 000'0FF 208N W'N Sjueg sn
9EL'ZLS 18292 8LMHSZI9Y 05Z'SES SE5E Lop'L yT0z/OR0  0TL'SLS 6102/20/20  §/8°€ 000005 o08n ueblon dr
$00'90S 95.92 LSV4G2ELL  0ZG'¥ES 6LEE 4] ¥20Z/€2/10  06Y'L0S 6102/20/20 0s9'e 000°00 204N VN Yueqnio
anpep Bujlue) # JUaUNSAAU| dISND  3njep 1ien PI3IA Aunyey aeq asud ajeq sy anjep pajels ue|po)sny j 93)sniL 1anssj|
AInb3 oy sheq Kunjepn p N joand JsaIay|
puog
anlasay BuneiadQ [eioudn
0202/1L¢/10

p obed

Hoday sJainseal]

Koueby 1emod eiuiojifed uiayuoN

Lty B e ke inla T

VdON



wd gpt 020Z/50/Z0

Ly0'a6Y 8v592 9HVHZEBYY 089'8LS orL'e LOL'L £202/90/20  0Z8'96Y 8L0Z/SLIE0  000°€ 000°00S 008n OT1WpRID Wal
62z'ryL 61592 23VHI0P90  §TT'LLL 1243 €60'L €20Z/62/L0  0L9'OVL 8L0Z/SL/ED  0S6'C 000'052 oo8an 00 UOIIBIAl AN J0 dueg
€0L°€L 05592 81yITTVYT GVT'SLL voL'e 160'L £20Z/22L0  8vL'6EL 8L0Z/SL/EC  008T 000052 008N 0O [eyded a199Q uyor
8LLL€L 15592 PMOSOVST  926'V9L ¥00°'€ ye0'L ZT0z/L0/ZL 085822 8L0Z/SLIE0  0SET 000°052 008N /Auedwia) Asusiq Jem
000'05Z £1€0¢ VBNLELOVSZ 00L'6SC sLe 86 2202/90/60  000'05C 8L0Z/90/60  0SL'E 000'052 oo8an jueg 1or00s1q
000°052 oLe0e VE4VOEOLEE  SOF'8ST 150€ (45 TT0Z/LE/R0  000'0ST 8L0Z/LE/G0  0S0'E 000'05Z 208N Ueg YUON jesIn
000'05¢ LLE0E YO1LEQ/6VE 880'65Z vsie Lv6 720Z/0€/80  000°0ST 810Z/0£/80  0SL'E 000052 o08an >ueg ob.ed slispm
159'098 66792 LOOLE8/E0  ZY0'GL8 62€°C 08 TZ0ZILLISO  [L1'098 2L02/62ILL  00ET 11z'ie8 o08n “ou| 3jddy
89L°ZVL £6592 OATHEGEBY  £92°29L coL'e 119 L202/60/2L  0SF'GEL 8L0Z/SLIED  0SST 000'05Z 208n VN ueg ONd
000°05Z z1e08 V20920020 S¥L'SST 200 945 L20Z/0£/80  000'0SC 810Z/0£/80  000°E€ 000°052 o04n ueg Ay
000'000'2 69€9C EMEEDOELE  020'866'L 00§°L 28y 1202/82/50  000'000'2 9L02/0€/80  00S'} 000'000'C o08n By [euoieN fetepad
9Z1 ‘86 12192 GN3L9ET68  G6Y'80S 9/z€ i34 L20Z/ELVO 008’96y 8102/0g/LL 056 000'00S 208n Wpa1D) JO0N BjokO L
GG6'96Y 92.92 LOOMG9920 085705 [SlerA 128 120z/ZLiz0 005'seY 810Z/08/LL  089T 000'005 208n UBUIS EPUOH UBdLiBWY
£€8°2L ¥£00L YE00LSAS £€8'2L 200°0 L ££8°'2. £L0Z/ILO/LO 2000 £€8'22 008N oJljeD 4o jueg uoln
692°€1L8 12004 [TO0LSAS 692'€L8 ovze L 69Z°€L8 €L0ZIL0IL0  9¥TT 692'c1L8 41 wisanuj fouaby 18207
aAlasoy Buluoissiwwossg 099

iwi'esr's  $ sLo'se¥’L ¢ vzyr'L 29¢ z89'66¥'L  $ 06e’L 000'b25‘L  § abelaay pue [ejo) puni
RN 0¥69Z LONG6.ZLE GL9'66F'L ¥yl z9e 1202/82/L0  289'66%°L 0ZoZ/LENG  OBE'L 000°'125'L 208N Aunseait ‘s
0 5100 SLO0LSAS 0 2000 ! 0 €L0Z/L0/Z0 2000 0 208N ojifed o yueg uolln
OAI9SIY [eIDadg Jeultayloen

£00°288'L $ 159'088'L  $ 8c5°L 151 z1z's88'L  $ 905°L 000'668°L  § abelany pue [ejos pund
0zl '682 62692 VSAAPBEELE  601'682 [¥i-y) K18 020T/L0/0  L0'68C 0Z02/8Z/L0 651 000°L62 18sn Eg UBOT BWOH Jesopad
£88'/66'} 82692 VGAAVSEELE 8PG'L66°L zes'l =18 0Z0Z/LO/L0  LPL'9BS'L 0Z0Z/90/L0  00S°% 000°808'} 18sn g UBOT SWOH [e1epa-
9DIAISS 1937 V910Z 09D

6Lyl $ ssL'vZl  $ zi8°1 151 [91% 74 ] ovs'L ooo'szl  § abeJoAy pue [ejol puni
£6172L 12692 VSAAPBEELE 88L'VCL 1251 151 0202/L0/20  LLL'VTL 0Z0Z/82/L0  O¥S'L 000°'GZL lasn S UEO] SWOH [218p3 4.
BIINIDS 1990 VZ10Z 09

vzr'zoe $ zZo'voe  $ 168'L 8.l oor'sés  $ or8’L 00016 § sbeiany pue [ejol pund
185°00Z 92692 VECVPBEELE  ZTY'002 5L [£:18 0Z0Z/LEIL0 692002 020Z/90/L0 B8Pl 000'202 Lasn g UB07 8WOH [e1epad
1£2'20L 05892 OXZPSEELE  065'€0L 966°L 124 0202/22/0  LEL'GE9 6L0Z/0E/0  OV6'L 00060 asn g UR0T] BWOH [eJapa4
anjep BuiAuen # JuaujsaAul dISND  enjeA 1axel PIRIA Runen B4 20ld 2jeq ajey anfeA pajels uelpojsng / ajsniL Jonss|

anb3 o} sheq Kyanjepy paseydind asetaind Jsasau|
«puog
pung uoonisuod Z10Z 039
020Z/Le/10

| obed

Hoday sJainseal)
Kouaby 1omod eluiojijen uisyLoN

e aaE Y P bt

VdON'



leLesvie $

'662°€EL'LT  $

020Z/52/60 Buiels Ajlenuue-iwas ajqe|ied

wd gp:L 020Z/50/20

Ajuo LZ0z/ge/L uo 8jqe|ed
0202/21/S0 Buiess Apspenb sigejled
0202/20/0} Buiyels swAue s|gejed
0202/20/01 Buipels swphue s|qejied

OWIHAL L ¥69¢# JustisaAuj
OWTHAH 01692# JUsUiSSAUl
g7Hd 1 689¢# JUBUWISAAU]
97Hd4 0689¢# 1UsWsSaAU]
OWYd 7/89C# JUBLISBAU]

1.202/52// Bulpess A|lenuue-iwas o|qejled YLOAOL Z¥89g# Jusuisaaul

020¢/0¢€/v Uo s|qejied

0202/10/1 uo ajqejied

020¢/10/v Uo sigejied

120z/¢e/2 Bueys swnhue siqejied
Auapenb s|gejjed

Aliepenb sigeljen

ONTHL 6189¢# Jusulisanul
OWTHL 8189Z# JUBWISOAU]
OWTHL 2189¢# Jusuisaau]
9044 yy99z# JusuSaAU]
VIANS 69£9¢# JUsWISaA|
VIANS €EE9Zi# JUdUWISaAU]

0Z0Z/LE/LO 4O Se [ewnof JoaAiS [lep 3Y3 wouy saoud piq Jo sjuswiale)s uklpoisny jes)sniy woly s3oud uo paseq s| anfep e JuaLInd

"poyjall J9BXa Uk 3Sh SI3Yjo [{e ‘poyjaw ajewixosdde ue asn Ajunjews o} SYUCW 9 UBY} SSB M SJUSUISIAU]
'sadA} je usam)aq uosiedwos 1o siseq e apiaold o) seak Aep gog B U0 paseq umols st Ajunjely 0} PIAIA Juajealnb3l puog,

y8ee 9zol asyeiv'iz § 982¢C cic'ees’iz $ STVLOL ANVHO
svrzest  § 126'628'L  $ veo'L L9y 966°185°L $ [44°4 00085t $ sbesony pue Jejo) pund
000°ZLS'L £EL9T SINEDOELE  LSP'PLS'L erach 6Lv 1202/52/50 000°£15°L 9102/52/50 gzo’L 000°LLS'L lasn By feuoyeN [eseped
8vr's9 /9892 131964216 0L¥'S9 065°L V6l 0zoz/eL/sa 966'v9 6102/92/80 1es’L 000'99 asn Ainseal} 'S'n
JUnoldY ASA VZ10Z 099
zi9'st'lz  $ 906'8€L1Z  $ 2097 LezL §66'5ZV°1Z  $ 68¥°C sie'ssyiz  $ abesany pue [ejo) puny
151’666 992 LNFICELE 099'8V0°C gsv'e 666'L §202/e2/L0 00€'666'1 8L02/LTIL0 ost'e 000'000'2 o0an HpaI) Wlie [esopad
000'709°'L 01692 LONNOVELE  90L'709'L 14454 vl yeozreLLL 000'709°} slocrelivi 000°C 000'709'L o0gan N UE0T SWOH [eJsps4
000°000°} 1689¢ v42ZHYOELE  000°000°) 666°L S0L'L ¥2oereonL 000°000°L 6102/v0/0L 000’2 000°000°L 208n eg UB0T sWoH |elepad
000052 ¥.89C L3NEZeYLE 80T'LSL 0002 869'L ¥202/52/60 000'052 6102/52/60 000C 000052 20dn leninouby [elepad
000'005 <y89C 1aoloczee  §15'005 oLr'e 99’ ¥eoz/gel Lo 000°005 8102/52/10 ov'e 000'005 o08n Wpaig Jojoi ejofo)
000'096'L 61892 POOLOVELE GEL'S96'L 00LC 058°L ¥20z/0e/v0 000'096'L 61L02/0€/v0 00L2 000°096'L J08an N UeoT SUoH jelapad
000'000'2 81892 ZH.SOYELE OVO'E00C £58'C 12s°L LA Avigy] 000'000'C 6L02/10/v0 059'C 000'000°C o08an 1N UeoT] aWoH [eispad
000'000°L 11892 8r/SOveELe  058°L00°L 092 125 ¥¢oc/Lamo 000'000°4 610271070 09LC 000°000°L o0an 1N UBCT BWOH [elepad
000°052 vieoe YYESDZIELL €6Z'E9T Loee rie'L €202/L0/60 000°0SZ 8L02/20/60 ooe'e 000052 o08n VN HUeqRID
000052 60€08 ved018426Z SEV'CIT £0T'e 90E'} €202/0£/80 000'052 81.02/0€/80 ooze 000052 J08an YSN uegisug
89¥'5€6 L769C LQ9NOVELE  9EI'GEB SE9'L €T’ €202/82/.0 89v'5E6 0zoz/Lerno 0sg'L 000's€6 J08n JN UeOT 8WOH |eJapad
anfep Buihued #jusunsaAy| dISND  aNjep ey PIRIA Kunge 3jeq aaud aeq aey anjeA pajels ueiposny / aagsniy Janssj
AInbg 0} shkeq Apaney paseyoind aseysing Jsasau)
«puog
aAlesdy Bujuoissimwosaqg 0on
0z02Z/1€/10

Z abed

Hoday sJainseal]
Aouaby lomod eiuiojije UIsypoN

ERH Kbt B 18 T il S

VdON



wd gpii 020zZ/s0/20

991198 3480 V610Z 01PAH

avgols's  $ cle'sls's  § 6£5'L X8 £6v0is'9  § 10871 0008558 § abessay pue [ejol punz
655l L ££69C VGAAVBEELE  TLS'PPL'L LIS [2-]} 0Z0Z/LO/LO  ET9E'wYL'L 0Z0zZ/8Z/L0  OV¥S'L 000'Z6L'L Lasn g UBo alWoH [esopay
186128 TE69C VSAAVBEELE LOB'0LE'S TeS'L 151 0ZOZ/VO/LO  LEL'99E'S 0Z0Z/90/L0 005t 000'00V'S 18sn g UEo WOH |eiepad
©91A198 109Q V810Z OIPAH

ooe'slo's ¢ 95z'9L9's  $ 8e5'L 15k z06'L19's  § 906°'L 000°cs9’s  § abelany pue [ejoL punj
8yr'see'y LE69C VSAAVBEELE 9EP'PE8'y TeS'L 218 0zZ0Z/L0/20  /8L'0Z8'Y 020zZ/90/L0 005k 000'958'F lasn ©g UB0T SWoH [eJepad
26816 0£692 VGAAVBEELE  0Z8'L6L L/S') 151 020Z/L0/L0  GLL'VEL 0z0z/8ZI0  BES'L 000262 Lasn ©ef U0 SWOH fesspad
991A19S }qa( OJpAH

sLo'vev'c  § siL'vov'c  $ 0z5'2 L sev'vov'e  § o¥s'z 000'P9¥'C  $ abeloay pue [ejo) puny
SL0'vor'e 19292 €AVMIEELE SLLPOV'T 615 L 0202/24/20  £6V'VIr'T 6L02/ZL20  O¥S'Z 000'v9v'Z asn JpaI] ue [eseped

Lev'oer'st  $ 06L'ov9'sl  § 9822 28L ehs'oee’sl § 9EL'T ove'rissl  § 9bEIaAY puE [Ej0L puny
000°'L56°L 52692 arynNoveLe 09L'165°L 000 sze't GZTOZ/OE/L0  000°LSS'L 020Z/08/L0  000°C 000°L8S'L 008N W UeoT BWwioH |esepay
000°005°L 10292 SHAIVOELE 00S'9LS'L 0sZ'e 9ge'L €202/6L/01  000'00S'L 8L0Z/6L/0L  0ST'E 000008t 208n eg U207 SlWoH |eJapad
0£€'56S 26992 00309L¥6L 262195 §86'2 g8L'L €20Z/L0/SO 099826 8102/60/80 0012 000055 oo08n 0J anyowed-aiebiod
8£0°06Y 02992 IMEZLELLE §L0°ELS z8Le S6L'L €202/L0/V0  006'V8Y 8LOZ/EL/90  00S°C 000°00S 208n LS [20Jed pajun
65526V #5592 PMEEZOLB0 GBETLS 1162 [cAN €ZOZ/LO/CO  0L0°96Y 8LOZ/PL/E0 008 000005 008N "0 Buteog
620'¢6Y S¥59T GHEX68£89 086 7LG e oLL'L €202/5L/20  GlLL'88y 8LOZIVLIED  529T 000005 208N “dio] efoes0
686267 61992 G13106268 SCZ'OLS SLze S0'L €20Z/LL/L0 00168V 8L0Z/ELIG0  00LC 000005 o08n ¥pai) Jojoly eloko L
659'96Y 1¥S9T 90V09Z826 $8E'OLS L50°€ 1¥0'L TTOLPLIZL  OLY'VEY 8LOZWLIED 0082 000005 o08n "ou] esiA
Q00'00€"} 11692 OAdNOVELE  160°00E"L 006°L 210'L TToTFLILL  000'00E‘L 6L0ZLILL  006°) 000'00€'L oo8n W UeoT BWOH |esepad
€116y ors9zT Savaoory. $66°'L0S LS0E 156 Z20Z/SLIB0  QLL'S8Y 8LOZIFLIED  0.€T 000'005 o08n ebeJois algnd
866'LYS 16992 LOHHBSLLE  Z9€'595 z8Le €LL TT0Z/SLED  L09'9VS 8L02/0L/80  000°€ 000'05$ oo8n ueg sn
SL5'vey 12992 LIYOLEZOE 0LE'BOS ov6'T voL 220Z/90/€0  0SE'06Y 8LOZ/EL/90  LBET 000'005 o08n JesodioQ Igoy Uoxx3
069'¢6Y 8199 SOVNOEELO SOF'80S PLEE [ Z20ZISLIL0  OZH'esy 8LOZ/EL/90 29T 000°005 208N it g Bupiueg youeig
128'666 2692 LONYBLZLE EV.'666 vey'L z9€e L202/82/L0  882'666 0Z0Z/LEN0  0BE'L 000'%L0°L o08n finseail 's'n
¥80'£66'L 60692 GBrHITELE  2€2'866°L 909t 892 020Z/9z/0L  £GL'/66'L 6L0Z/90/LL  OSL'L 000'566'L o08n JpaID wied esepay
185'LL0°L L€00L LE0OLSAS £85'L10°) 2000 L 18G°LLO°L €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 185'LLO°L o04an ofileD 40 jueg uolun
£5E'EV0'Z 82002 8Z00LSAS €58'€r0'Z [ L €GE'EV0'T €L0Z/LO/L0  9veT £6E'eY0' Elial wisaAu Aoueby 8007
anjep buiAued #JuBuySaAY] dISND  an[eA jaxae PIBIA Apunjey ajeq 2dud ojeq ajey anjep pajels uelpoIsSnY / a9)snaL Janss|

Amnbz oyskeq  Aumen paseyaing 12und ¥ |
«puog

| abed

0202/1L€/10
yoday sJainsealy]
Aouaby lamod eiulogien UIBYUON

0ipAH aA19say "Aaq [ende)

MALERINGA

vd_

B0 Lt s 2N

K 4




8’66y $

Apspuenb sigejen
0202/71/20 Buieys Apyepenb siqejied
020Z/€0/60 18ye swiAue pue uo ajqe|ie)

020¢/61/01 [un aigejed
Autapenb sjqejien

wd gpL 0Z0Z/50/20

OWTHA §269¢ Auaunsaau|
OWTHL | 169¢# JusWisaAuj
8044 G/89C# JuswIsaAu|
gTHd L0L9¢# juswisanu|
VYIND 6GE9C# JuaWisaAu|

020Z/LE/L0 30 SE [eusnof 192418 [IeA) 2Y) Wod) s9oud piq 10 SJUSWAJE]IS Ue|po)sSho /o3)shu ) wiol) s9aud Uo paseq S| anjeA Jep JuaLIng

‘poyow JoeXa Ue Ish SI9UJO [je ‘poyjow djewxoidde Ue asn AJlnjettt 0} SURIOW 9 UBYJ SS3] YIIM SIUaLISIAU|
sadf} |je usamjaq uosuedwos 10§ siseq e aplaoid 03 Jeak Aep gog e uo paseq umoys si Ajunjepy o} pJalA Jusjealnb3 puog,

N 44N 096°L 544 BLEPYE LY § 26871 0v6°s09'Ly  $ :$IV.LOL ANVYD

9Ly § £20'v6YYy  $ vZe'T 189 sss'oLv'y  $ Lzee ooo'sLy'y  § oBeiaAy pue |ejo) puni
000051 51892 goHM3ECLE  290°05) 0S8’} 173 T20Z/S0/E0  000'0SL 6L0Z/E0/60 0581 000'05L asn HpaiD uue |e1epa2
£69'/26'¢ 25852 zaavaLELE 112200} 08eZ [ 220ZIELILD  ZET'9Z6'E ZL0Z/60/20  SIET 000'826'€ asn 1IN B0 BWOH [eJepad
00076 65€92 26S£09ELE  LLOYE 0gs'L £vG L20Z/82/10  000'v6 oL0z/8z/L0  0ESL 00076 asn Bi [euolieN jeiopad
166'S L 6£592 9X£8Z8TLE Ehi'LbL 1522 08¢ L202/5LZ0  266'SYL 8L02/,2/20  0SZT 0009V} asn finsesi} 'sN
¥£0'004 vveee 62533e€LE  0ZTL'00L 089'L a8l 0Z0Z/¥0/80  62€°00L SL0z/82/80  OSLL 000'00L asn pa1) wie [eiepad
vaSa z102 041pAH

Lwl'e6r't  $ sio'ser’l  $ vy’ z9¢ z89'66v'L  $ 06€’L 000°L2s’E  § abeioAy pue |ejo) pung
LpL'66Y'L 2v69C LONY6LZLE SLO'66Y'L vzl zoe L20Z/82/L0 78966V} 0z02/LENO  OBEL 000'125'L 208n Aunseal) s
0 91002 9L00LSAS 0 2000 L 0 €102/10/0 2000 0 o08n ojijeD Jo jueg uolun
0 £000L 0000SAS 0O 1/£70 L 0 €L02/10/L0  LLEO 0 4Iv1 wysanu| Aoueby |eao
oAI9S9Y |e1dadsg 0UpAH

weeizL § z66'0zL,  $ 1821 3 vei'sz,  § 1981 e00'izL  $ abeIany pue JejoL pund
058'689 ez EVEBOVELE ©L0'68Y 062°L 655 120Z/60/80  1BE'L69 11028200 G871 000689 asn N UBOT] BWOH [e13pad
Li6'Le 89892 vO196/2Z16 8.6°LE Ly 6l 0Z0Z/0Z/Z0  eELlE 6102/92/80  069'L 000'2¢ asn Anseal) ‘s
JunNod9Y 81eqay VZ10Z 0I1pAH

ove'szLy § 80's2Ly 6£5°L 1Sk 6zslzL’y  § L05°L 000'9SLY  $ abesaAy pue [ejoL pund
192'508 S€69 VGAAVBEELE  62L'G08 125°L X1 0Z0Z/LO/L0  €29'G08 0z0Z/8ZL0 OFSTh 000°418 Lasn eg Ue0T SWoH eJapa
6.L'026'c ¥£69C YSAAPSEELE  8SE'6LE'E TE5'L 151 0Z0Z/L0/20  906'GLE'E 0Z0Z/30/L0 00§ 000'66'€ 1asn B UBOT SWOH [eJapad
anfep bujhuey # Juawysanuj diSND  enjep el PISIA Kumep B 99ud ?jeq - ajey anjep pajels ueipojsny [ 22)sniy Janss|

Anbz oysheq  Angep paseyoing asey2Ing Jsauapu
«puog

Z abed

0202/L€/10

uoday sJainseal]

Kouaby Jamod eiuiojijed wdYHON

90JAI9S 1490 V610Z 04PAH

Y73 Gd Y e ot

VdO




wd gL 0Z0Z/50/20

0Z0Z/LE/LO  JO SE [BLINOS J92.4)S [|BA 2U3 WoJj S3oud pIq JO SjuaLaje)s UBIpoIsnY /39)sniL Wol) saoyd Uo pased si anjeA Jodely Juaun)

"poYoW JOBX3 LR 3SN SIAYI0 (|8 ‘poyjew ajewxoldde Ue asn AJunjeul 0} SYJUOW g UBYY SSI| YJIM SJUBWISIAU]
*sodA) e usamjaq uosuedwos 10 siseq e apirod o} Jeak Aep Go¢ e UO paseq umoys si Ajunjely o3 pjaiA Juajeainbs puog,

ie'szz $ ‘les'szz 099} €8l 8e6'scz  § 25} (47912 STVLOL ONVHD
ue'szz % 196'szz $ 095°L 8L 8e6's2z  § 125'L sl s abesany pue [ejo) puny
sez'see 9692 VOOVYEEELE  60Z'5ET £95°L 8L 020z/£0/80  981'52T 020Z/82/L0  08S'L 000'422 lasn B U207 BUIOH [B18Pa4
2sL LL06L LL0BLSAS  26L 009°0 L 5L 0Z0ZVZL0 0090 25L Lasn IsnuL sjued sn
anjep buluen # JuUausaAu] diSND  onjep ey [ETN Aunjep ajeq 22ud ajeq ey anjep pajels uejpojsn) j 93snal Janss|
Anb3 oyskeq  Aungen paseyoing udand ¥
spuog
9Ag 1990 V6102 sen|oed ded
0202/1€/10

| obed

KouoBy Jomod eluojijed WIdyLoN

poday saainsesl)

QABY 580087 Sals HE Ladraa 1T

VSN



wd 1z:z 0202/50/20

pund ¥sq 0102 L# anssj| 037

Lzv'ess $ sEv'ses  § 2851 12 05'789 ¢ 0551 000‘288  § sbeiony pue [ejoL pund
vLp'00b 6£692 VBdXVBEELE  9.1'001 085t LzL 0202/L0/90  95v'00L 0Z0zZ/82/L0  0SS'L 000'10L 18sn eg UBOT BWOH [eJepad
1v6'285 1269C V 6dXVBEELE  656°T8G z85°L 148 0Z0ZL0/80 L1285 6L07/0S/ZL 0SS} 000985 1asn g UB0 3WOH [eJapa
pung sa v.i0z L#dnss| 931

sce'zog'e  § Liy'zos’e  $ 285°) k43 188261 $ 05671 Lyz'zes's  § abesoAy pue [ejor pung
506'182 85692 V6dXpeeele 126'18L 086’1 1zl 020Z/L0/90 042181 0202/82/L0  0§G°L 000'98. lasn eg U0 BWOH feJepad
£81°020°¢ 02692 V 6dXPBEELE  £VZ°0Z0'E z85°L 1zt 0Z0ZAG/90  0/8'SLO‘E 6L0Z/08/ZL  0SSL 000'920'€ lasn eg UB0T 2WOH [elapa
we Z106. ZLOBLSAS I¥Z 0090 L we £L0Z/L0/L0 0090 we asn IsnuL siued sn
pund s@ 9010z Z# onss] 931

8Ll $ 8Ll $ 009°0 i il $ 0090 8Ll $ abeiaAy pue |ejoL pund
8Ll 11064 LLOBLSAS 8il 009°0 ! 8Ll €L0Z/LO/L0 009G 8Li asn JsnuL yueg SN
pund sad V01L0¢Z Z# d@nss| 031

s0L'eLr'L  § ogL'eLr’l  $ 085} 12k sze'Lr’lt  $ 6v5'L 1808y’ $ abeJany pue [ejoL puny
ogl'ses 1697 V6dXPBEELE  GZL'EEL 085l 12l 0Z0Z/L0/90  PEO'EEL 0Z02Z/92/L0  BYSL 000'282 18sn eg Ueo SWoH [eJepe
621'682 61692 v 6dXPBEELE  bhL'BEL 7861 1zl 0Z0Z/L0/90  PL0'8EL 610Z/0S/ZL  BYS'L 000'st2 Lasn eg UE0 BWOH [eiaped
118 %0062 P006.SAS Zi8 009°0 ! 118 £L0Z/L0/L0 0090 118 asn IsniLdjues sn
pund sa €010¢ L# dnss} 931

668691y § 786’69l § 785°L 1zl 959'vol’y  $ 055°L DYRTIE 2 abeloAy pue JejoL pund
0€0'296 98692 VBAXVBEELE V029G 08g'L 1zi 0Z0Z/L0/90  ZE6'99S 0202Z/82/L0  0SS'L 000'025 lasn eg U0 aWoH [eJapad
9£1'209'C 81692 ¥ BdXVBEELE  L02'209'C z85°') 1zl 0Z0Z/LO/90  LB6'98S'E 610Z/0S/Cl 0654 000'129' 1asn eg UB0T] BWoH [eJsapad
€es £006. €006/SAS €€/ 0090 L el €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 £6L gsn IsnuL ues sn
pund sg voLoz L#dnss] 931

L66'2LL  $ 166°2LL  $ Tz I 166°2LL  $ vz 66'2LL  $ abesany pue [ejo) pung
166'2L1 9v00. OV00LSAS 166'LLL oz | 166'LLL €LOZILOMO  9¥TT 166211 wisauj Aousby (2007
anjep bujiie) # Jusunsaau| dISND  anjeA joxden PISIA Aunjep ajeq Ud ajeq ajey anjep pajels ueipoISNY / 33)SNUL Janss|

Anbz o) sAeq Aamewy K and yound Jsas9yu|
»puog
192y uonony SHO 231
020Z/LE/1L0

| obed

uoday sJainseal]

Louaby Jomod eluiojijen uisyuonN

BT AR S L N

VASN 7



wd 12:7 0Z0Z/50/20

Aluo Lzoz/8e/L uo s|qelieD  DINTHA G¥69Z# JusLisaAy|
020Z/91/ Joe swinAue pue uo sigeljed  DWTHL £689¢# JUsWISaAU}
220g/ce/y 19)e swihue pue uo ajqejied dSN ZZ89¢#H JusUSaAU|

_swnlue sigelleD  gDdd JEEITH JUSWISIAU|

0Z0Z/LE/LO  JO SE [euwinof 12348 [eAA 343 WoJ) sasud pig 40 SJULLAJR]S URIPOISNY /29)SNUL WoL) S3dUd U paseq S anjeA JMHEe jualind

*poYjawl Joexa tie ash SI3YJ0 |[e ‘poy) yewixoidde ue ash Ajunjew o3 syy 9 UBY) SS3} YIM SJUSUWSIAU]
*sadA} e usamjag uosuedwod Jo} siseq e aplaoad 03 Jeak Aep 9¢ & Uo paseq umoys si AjJuUnjep 0} pJalA Juajeainby puog,

51'9LT've  $ 'pogvzeve § 865°L Lee yez'ieeve  $ SPL'L ezL'e6Zve  $ :STVLOL ANVHD
psLiler'L $ 88Y'905°LL  § obsL 682 vegoerlL  § £G'L 8296041 $ abesany pue jejo) pund
000'052'L £689C L8rNOvELE  €LP'0SZL 000C £5€'L €202/9L/0L  000'0SZ°L 6L0Z/9LI0L 0002 000'0$2'L oo8n N UBQT] BWIOH |esepad
755265 72892 VOdHLEE06 S¥.'809 9GP’ T8 2T0Z/ETISO  06T'86S 610Z/1€/50 059'C 000'G65 o08n V'N jueg sn
99r'667 7689C £8MMICELE  SP2'008 085°L 554 L202/GHY0  SEC'sBY 6LOT/SLIOL  00G'L 000°00S oo08an WpeIQ uLe [eepad
000°000°€ LYE9Z ZrNEOYELE  00V'966'C 00€°L osl 0Z0Z/0£/90  000°000°€ 9L0Z/0E/80  00E'L 000°000'¢ 208N By jeuoneN [eJspad
LL8'Y19'E orrozT 0Dravoele 8¢6'%L9'e 085l -4 0Z0Z/50/90  2SB'ELO'E LLOT/OE/B0  OWSL 000'6L9°€ 008N g U207 SWOH [B13pa4
082'600'} 17002 LPO0LSAS 082'500'Y 2000 3 082'500°L €L02/8L/1/0 2000 082'500'L oo8an ofifeD) 4o dueg uolun
116'625"V 1¥00. LVO0LSAS. 2/6'6Z5'L WT'T ! 116'625°L €L0Z/L0/L0  ovTe 116'625'L useau) Aousby [eoo
OAIOS?Y N ? O 031
Lis'osL’L $ szs'oct'lt  $ veS’L i) vs'oelt ¢ 6LS5°L clig'sel’l  § abeJany pue jejot pung
061°08¢ S¥69Z 2Q9NOrELE  852'08E Ge9°L €L2'L €202/82/L0  061'08€ 0Z0ZNEND  0S9'F 000°08€ 18sn WA UBOT BWOH [eJepad
rig'erL ¥r69T VAMO6B.ZLE  86E'BYL v8p'L o8l 0T0T/0E/L0  ¥8Y'6YL 0Z0Z/LEND  £5¥) 000°G5L 18sn Ainseail 's'n
€l8 €106 €L06LSAS €/8 0090 L €28 €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 €18 asn IsruL ueg sn

S8va ¥sq a010c ¢# anss| 931

voL'vbeT  § zeo'veT  § £55°L el Lev'eer's § 662°E Lz7eeT § abesany pue jejoL pund

809’871 5v892 9NzZveeEle S/8'svh 086'L i 0Z0TWZ/LO  080'Lbh BLOZISTILO  0T6'} 000'054 208N e Ueo7 SWoH [eJepas
556'851'2 55792 8E0/EELE  955'85L'T ovs'L zel 0T0Z7TLI90  9vL'SSTT LL0Z/8TIL0  SLEE 000's7L'Z asn eg U0 SWOH [e1epe
L0Z'2€ 90062 G006/SAS  L0Z'LE 009°0 L 10228 ELOZ/L0/L0 0090 102'28 gsn IsruL yued SN

Asey sqns sgvd g010¢ L#sst 031

982’0506 $ 9c1'960'6  § 1oL’ 8¥9 £92'680'6 § 958°L 98r'0s0'6  § abelaAy pue JejoL pung
L19°eeLy £9Y92 6906.€ELE  €82'TLLY 09’ 098 2Z0ZIOLI90  90E'88L'Y 1102/32/80  §TL'T 000001y asn eg UeoT aWoH jesspad
ogL'syl 514" 603vaicle pee'evl 669'L 855 L20z/ZLi80  8va'opl 1102/82/10 STl Qoo'ogl asn WA UBOT] SWOH [esepa
000'09€'y 1£€9¢ /Z8D3EELE  YYO'09E'Y 659'L 6.y L20T/ST/S0 00Q'09EY 9102/80/90 099} 000'09€'y asn Wpa1Q uLe [eiopa4
£68'Cly £v69T V6DVSSEELE 696°CLY L8871 6v¢ LZ0Z/SLL0  €TB'ELY 0Z0Z/8Z/L0  00§'L 000°02Y 1gsn g UBOT SWOH [elepad
98y S006/ G006/SAS 98F 0090 L 98y €102/L0/20 0090 98y asn ST djues sn
anjep Bulkuen # JUdLUSaAU] dISND  °nfep el PISIA Kunjew aeq ?3ud ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsny j av)snit Janssi
mnbg oysheq  funen paseysing yand isese|
puog
pundy ysa 0L0T L# onss| 931
020z/1€/10
B e T e ol -
poday sJainseal) YdDON

fouaby 1aMod eluIoeD UIBYLION
Z ofied



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NC

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2020

SUBJECT:

Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

-

14

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth << ) _«_METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members [X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San Franci;c;giga_lyr:;:ﬁ O City of Palo Alto [J Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other

o o o o o oo

SR: 117:20



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of the following:
e Scrap metal (Lodi Energy Center)

e 1VT 100 Terminal (Hydroelectric)

e 356K CSU/DSU (Hydroelectric)

e 12007 Chevy Silverado 3500 with crane (Geothermal)

e 12005 Ford F350 Supercab with crane (Geothermal)
BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being
obsolete and having no value to the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

AR

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Declaration of Surplus
Receipt of disposal

SR: 117:20



HITTOYINOO-HHAASYVIIL OL TVNIDOIIO

(S) Ava0s (d) 400d (AOVNVIN TVHANED) |

/
TDVAIAYV ‘O) AO0D (@) INTTTIOXT ‘NOLLIANOD x» \ [ 111 dLvda \ ‘dIId0dUd OL
W / NOILVZIHOHLV
TANSVHEN 40 LINN = /1~ IADVNVIN"NID LSSV) ]

AAOD A AHAOHIAV
ANTVA IVEIS LAN ON - TVSOdSIa X . §a}: (0]
TIVS ILVARID ~— AIVS JI'19Nd 1[0310g2( P¥ 7oAy eSSIPIA A9 AA¥VITdd
SERLFQ Y™ > W
[esodsiq :NOILISOdSI@ QIANTIWNOOTA
lerowr desds rTVSOdSIA/SSTOXA 404 NOLLVIIALLSAr
6
'8
L
9
i
b
€
T
TLO/OTT S el dedg | 10T 1 ‘1
NOLLVDO1 # 393foag TVIOL LINN (SNIA % SND'T *s:# PPOIN
ALIS 10 #3931 / # Y20 «»=ANOD spqeaddy v Swipnypuy) /N | ALO
 #8313doad VADN ANTVA ALLVINLLSH NOILANIDSAA
61/81/01  :a3eQ@ SSADXA 40 NOLLVIVIDAd

AINIDV JIMOd VINIMOCAI'IVO NYIHLION
VdDONL/
DT -\ -1 Y
Qo s OO



y

4
'V gf

A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

&f*

Date: / / 4/ tozo
[

This notice confirms that the Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items listed
below:

- Scrap Metal

To the following:

Vendor Name: V&E Hauling / Vincente Gonzales

Address/Phone #: 524 E. met, Lodi (209) 915-0214
Signature: /ZM :
TN N

~

Northern California Power Agency

Employee Name: Melissa Philpot

Signature: sz%@ //LW_

Myes Received for this?
YES (/D207 (50% of total, rounded)
NO



kK K KK KK K K K K KR X R K K K X
* % x CASH DISBURSEMENT: RECEIPT * x x
K Kk % K ok k Kk K ¥ ¥ K K K K Xk k¥

N

Receipt # 025089

ot Date: 01/08/20 11:02am

Stockton, CA
South Aurora St
ton, CA 959206 -

ased From: 118148
alez, Vicente

E Harold

. CA 95240

t# ship Dt Commodity

Price UM Frt Ext Total Amt

2 115,0000 NT. 0.00
Weights; 92009 8120t

" 155.0000 NT  0.00
Weights: . 7680g 6780t

7X 01/08/20 Unprepared
'ﬁVe,#:/TK‘v838488]

IH 01/08/20 #1 HHS ¥
g Seé#: Tk 8JB4881

ier -118148 Totals (Pounds): 168809 14900t

. AMOUNT PAID TO SUPPLIER (ATH):

er Signature _ Ll
9 i (Tamara Boling)

mer Signature

~

W)

o

Weighmaster Sigdature;)’///// =
. & A

(Jose [

r Signature _/_

ights are reported in Pounds urleSs otherwise indicated)
presents a weight that wasmanually entered)

N WETGHMASTER  CERTIF ICATE

0 CERTIFY that the following described commodity

ghed, measured, or counted by a weighmaster. whose

re-is on this certificate, who is a recognized

ty of accuracy, as prescribed by Chapter 7 = -~ - .
cing with Section 12700) of Division 5 of tha California
s.and Professions Code, administersd by the Division of
gent Standards of the California Department of Food and
ure. ~

SALE: T warrant that I am the owner (or owner's

itative) of the material described hereon and have the right

same, that it contains no Hazardous Materials as defined

federal -or state law and that for payment hereby received, I

1 convey title to Sims Metal, e
WMLESS AGREEMENT: -Seller will indemnify and hold -buyer

5 from damages, demands and liabilities, including reasonable
r's fees, resulting from the breach of any warranty hereunder

rer’ agrees to he responsible for damage to vehicle during
g ‘ i
INDABLE MORE THAN S0 DAYS FROM DATE ABOVE

Customer Capy-

| Receipt Date: 01/07/20

WS - Stockton, CA -
1000 South Aurora St
 Stockton, CA 95206

Purchased From: 118148
- Gonzalez, Vicente:

525 E Harold - k
Lodi, CA 95240

| Ticket# Ship Dt "Commodity -

XK K K KKK K KK K K K % Xk K K K
* . x CASH DISBURSEMENT RECEIPT % # x
Kok ok ok oKk ok Rk K K% *:*.* ¥ ok %

M

kKK

X
R
P

il

Receipt # 025072

1:43pﬁ

_ Price UM Frt Ext Total Ant

| TICvVON 01é07[20‘#T‘HMS

¥ -155.0000 NT  0.00 . 161.20

Veh#:"TK 884881 - Weishts: - 95009 7420t . 2080n
TICYTD 01/07/20 #1 HMS * . 155,0000NT 0.0  103.85
. Vehb:TK "8Js4ge Weights: 83209 6980t - 1340n
' TICYTD'OTAO?/ZO Light Iron - 70.0000NT  0.00  7.00
~ Veh#: TK 8Jadsgl - Weights: ~ 6980g ~ 6780t ~ 200n
Supplier 118148 Totals (Pounds): © 248009 21180t 36200
TOTAL AMOUNT PAID. TO SUPPLIER (ATM): $272.05
Cashier Signature SRR
) (Tamara:Bollng) N
1
| Customer Signature, i .
1 Deputy Weighmaster SIgnatue smes— — = ~ ks
- ; réJiis,g.
Custoﬁer signature’ L (AT == —— @)
g{All.wéiéhfS grg‘reﬁérted»iﬁ Puhﬂdﬁdg%kass-otherﬂise;iﬂdicatEd)

("n".Represents a weight
| THIS IS T0 CERTIFY that

*'si%nature ig on this certificate, w
au

-that was manually entered)

WEIGHMASTER CERTIFICATE

the “following described comnodity

i was weighed, measured, or counted by a welghmaster. whose
|

o 15 a recognized .

harity of accuracy, as prescribed by Chapter 7~~~
W.(ﬁommenc%ng with Section 12700). of Division § of the California
| " Business and Professions Code, administered by the Division of

Agriculture.
i IBILL OF SALE: T warrant

Measurement Standards of the Qaljforhia Department of Eood and;

that I am the owner (ﬁf owner's

* representative) of the material described hereon and have th@ right
:;EopsellusgméYethat it containé no Hazardous Materials as defined = -

i by any federal or state

" HOLD_HARMLESS AGREEMENT:

" harmless from damages,

" and driver agrees to he

demands and liabilities,
tattorney's fees, resulting from the breach of any warren

law and that for payment hereby received, I -

" gell and convey title to-Sims Metal.

Seller will indemnify and hold buyer

j anludln% reasonable
: y hereunder

responsible for dawage to vehicle during

tunloading., = . ey .y
NOT REFUNDABLE MORE THAN 40 DAYS FROM DATE ABOVE

FiiévCopy



ALLAE R
Ticket # TICYQV
rurchase TickeT JAN'T @ 2020

hed At: Sims Metal
South Aurora St
kton, Ca. 95206

) 948-4000
TRK Control #-1D: 1D 52962
et # TICYQV Date: 01/07/20
cle ID: 8J84881. ship Date: 01/07/20
cle Tag Na: 8J84881. State: CA
cle No: TK 8J84881
hased From: 118148
zalez, Vicent v v
EIEENT%dSANTANA GONZALEZ  License/ID No: N7545685 (CA)
ai
i, CA 95240
ar: Stockton Inside Buye
— Pounds ~=-==--——-
Shpmnt Materlal Gross Tare Net
TIcYQy Mlxed Load To Be gorted 8800L0 . 8320b 480
Adj Reason: Nonmetallics:
50la . 33a 468

TICYQY -ICW 75-84, #1
als

ross Wght Date/Time 01/07/20 12
are Wght Date/Time 01/07/20 13:

gty ==

468
237 “ GROSS TONS
14 0.2089

~ial Summary Pd Wt (1b) . Price $/Unit Extended Price §
1 Load-To Be Sorte 480 0.0000/Ektended amo 0.00
75-84, K1 468 1.7400/Pounds :814.32
al: $ 814.32

ty Weighmaster Signature 4

amer Signature _zf;?yw
[ 4

weights are reported in Pounds unless otherwise indicated)
Represents a weight that was manually entered)

WETGHMASTER CERTIFICATE
IS TO CERTIFY that the following described commodity
seighed, measured, or counted bﬁ a weighmastar, whose
ature 15 on this certificate, who is a recogn1zed
writy of accuracy, as prescribed by Ch apter 7
tencing WLL” Section 12700) of Division 5 of the California
835 and Professions Code, administersd by the Division of
JF??EHt Standards of the California Department of Food and
sulture

OF SALE: T warrant that I am the owner {or owner's . -
isentative) of the material described herson and have the right

311 same, that it coritains no Hazardous Materials as defined

1wy federal or state law and that for payment hereby received, I
and convey title to Sims Metal,

HARMLESS AGREEMENT: Seller will 1ndemn1fy and hold buyer

less from damages, demands and liabilities, including reasanable
ney's fees, resultlng.from the breach of any warranty hereunder

1r1ver agrees to be responsible for damage to vehicle during.

adin
{EFUNDABLE MORE THAN 90 DAYS FROM DATE ABOVE

Customer Copy

k3 BILL OF SALE:

"lattorney s fess, resulting from the breach of any warran

VO
Ticket # ZAYOTO
[ PURCHASE TICKET

' Weighed At: SIMS Metal
1000 South Aurora st.
* Stockton, California
“(209)  948-4000

RCH048

Ll TS

| Ticket # ZAYOTO

‘Vehicle Tag No: 884681 State: CA
‘Purchased Frum 118148
Gonzalez, VYice

c/o VICENTE SANTANA GONZALEZ License/[D No: N7545685 (CA)

<525 E Harold -
_ Lodi, CA 95240
IS s s eem POUAGS s
| Itm Matérial Gross. Tare Net CAdj Pd Wt
1. Small motors 555.0b 313.0b 242,00 0.0 242.0
2. ICH 35-44 42 313.0b 304.0b 9.0 0.0 9.0
| 3. 18/8 Solids 2.0b 273.0b 2.0 0.0 230
Totals - V1640 8900 274.0 0.0 2140
~ Mdterlal Summary Pd wmb‘a - Price $/Unit Ext‘enqed Price $
Small motors. 242.0 - 0.1900/Pounds - 45.98
ICH 35-44 42 9.0 . 0.6200/Pounds - 5.58
18/8 Solids =23,0 ,0.3100/Pounds 7.13‘
Total: L $  58.69

Deputy Weighmaster Slgnature
(Jose

I Customer Signature ,;;:/
(=

(All weights are reported In Pbbddb unless otherwise indicated)
“n" Represents a weight that Was . manually -entered)

1 ( LR
WE IGHMASTER FERTIFIPA]E

THIS -IS TO CERTIFY that the follow1ng described uommadlty
{was weighed, measurad, or counted ﬁ a weighmaster, whose
' signature is on this certificate, who is a recognized
|lauthor1ty of accuracy, as prescrlbed by Chapter 7 .

(commencing with Sectionm 12700) of Division 5 of the ualifarnia
' Business and Professions Code, administered by the Division of
HMeasurement Standards of the Lal1forn1a'Depar{mént of Food and

Agrlculture L

I warrant that I am the owner (or cwner's
4 repregantative) of the material described hereon -and have the. rlght
'to ‘sell :same, that it contains no Hazardous Materials as defined
by any federal or state law and that for payment hereny reCBIVed
vsell and convey title to Sims Metal.
-HOLD HARMLESS:AGREEMENT: Seller will Lndemnxfy and hald buyer
Pharmless from dameges, demands and liabilities, lﬂu]ddiﬁ¥ rpasonable
Y

hereunder
and drlaer agress to be responsible for damage to vehicle during

.NDT REFUNDABLE MORE THAN 90 DAYS FROM DATE ABOVE
CUSTOMER COPY




I

Ticket # TIDEAE

PURCHASE TICKET

Weighed At: Sims Metal
1008 South Aurora St

Stockton, Ca, 95206 AN 13 2020

(209) 948-4000

. TRK Control #-1D: 1D 53005
Ticket # TIDEAE . Date: 01/08/20
Vehicle 'ID: 8J84881. - Ship Date: 01/08/20

e

Vehicle Tag No: 8J84881. State: CA
Vehicle No: TK 8J84881

Purchaged From: 118148

Gonzalez, Vicente ‘ .
c/o VICENTE SANTANA GONZALEZ License/ID No: N7545685 (CA)
525 E Harold

Lodi, CA 95240

Trader: Stockton Inside Buye

. G Pounds ——-——--—~
Itm Shpmnt Material Gross Tare Net
1. TIDEAE Mixed Load-To Be Sorted : 8120m 7680m 440

Adj Reason: Nonmetallics
2. TIDEAE ICW 75-84, #1 1225a 7188a 437
Totals 437

Gross Wght Date/Time 01/08/20 10:37 GROSS . TONS
Tare Wght Date/Time 01/08/20 10:54 0.1951

Material Summary Pd Wt (1b)  Price $/Unit Extended Price $

Mixed Load-To Be Sorte 440 0.0000/Extended amo 0.00
ICW 75-84, #1 437 1.7400/Pounds 760,38
Totalf $ 760.38

(Al]l weights are reported in Puunds unless otherwise indicated)
("m" Represents a weight that was manually entéred)

: WEIGHMASTER CERTIFICATE )
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the following described commodity
was weighed, measured, or counted by a weighmaster. whose
signature is on this certificate, who is & recognized
authority of accuracy, as prescribed by Chapter 7
(commencing with Section 12700) of Division 5 of the California
Business and Professions Code, administered by the Division of
Heagur?gent Standards of the California Department of Food and
griculture.

BILL OF SALE: I warrant that T am the owner (or owner's ,
representative) of the material described hereon and have the right
to sell same, that it contains no Hazardous Materials as defined

by any federal or state law and that for payment hereby received, I
sell and convey title to Sims Metal,

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT: Seller will indemnify and hold buyer
harmless from damages, demands and liabilities, includin% reasonable
attorney's fees, resulting from the breach of any warranty hereunder
and driver agrees to be responsible fur damage to vehicle during

unloading. ,
NOT REFUNDABLE MORE THAN 90 DAYS FROM DATE ABOVE

Customer Copy



I INFWHOVLLY

HATIOUINOD-MAUNSVIUL OL TVYNIOIIO

(S) dVHOS "(d) 400d TVI ADVHIAV (D) A00D ) INATTIOXA ‘NOLLIANOD =«
"I19s 1ou op Aayy 31 Buiddesos uay; ‘ajes aiqnd Buiks puswiwodey

_ ‘NOLLVDIALLSNI NOLLISOdSIa
INAMHSVAL-ANTVAON A ANTVA ATIADTU/AVAOS “IVSOdSIa

NOILDNY ™~ SAIdadivas A~ :#1vsorand
ATVS (1eatid) GALVILODAN
‘NOLLISOdSId _ddaNFWWODTY

(IIDVNVIN TVHINTD),

k J V—y ‘daiadodd oL
w NOLLVZIMOH.LNY

(JIDVNVIN NI "LS§V

o ‘440D ‘Af QIAQUAV
"DUO
g

57575 %s;; 51]51/5 \wwxeg%cs aaavdIud

Ny \_\T\M"m,ﬁ_ﬁ

"119s Jou op Aauy ji deios uay) sjes olgnd eIA swayl ayy

l1os 0} BuiAn puawiwoosy -anfea jeioual awos aney (s Aew ‘JoAemoy ‘J8loid 0IPAH YJON 8U) U papaau 1abuoj ou si pue papesbdn uasq sey juswdinba siy |

CTVSO4SIA/SNTAANS W04 NOLLVIIALLSNI

'8

‘L

‘9

59

b

€

sAydinpy OIpAH yoeo v NSA/NSO M9s n € Z

sAydinpy 0JpAH yoee 3 feulwsal 0oL LA n 3 1
NOLLYDO1 TVLOL LINN (SNIA ® SNDT ‘S# PPOIN

A.LIS # wafouy a0 *»=(ANOD Aqeaniddy jiy Suipnpouy) =W/ | ALO
Kaadoag vaON ANTVA QALVINILSH NOILLJRIDSAA

INTINAINOT »® STVIRIALVIN ‘SATTddNS

6102 ‘Gl Aey  E(Q

blot-oz-71
=G

SNIAANS 4O NOILVIVIDAd

AINIOV YIMOJ VINBOJITVI NUIHIHON

_. VdON




477 Bret Harte Drive
Murphys, CA 95247

N C PA phone  {209) 728-1387

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (209) 728-1391

web www.ncpa.com

Disposal of Surplus Property

Date:l%/ { 202

This notice confirms that Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items
below:

e VT 100 Terminal
e 56K CSU/DSU

To the following: /

Red Holl ek Jrgj@%
Delivery Acknowledgment:

Delivere%Bj;%ZZ;;” 4#

Printed Name: /)l&ve‘/\ ﬂ—}f’ 'S l\
Date: l/ ?/ 202-©




I INHIWHOV.LLV

| (EDVNVIN TVIINED)

./
(S) AVIDS (d) YOO0d (V) ADVIIAY (9) 00D (@) INTTTIIXH :NOLLIANOD »x Q7 \ al \ | aLvd \ j\rc.\ :q3ID0¥d OL
M \OERNEOEQ

TANSVAN 40 LINN = IA/0» QAADVNVIN)

Haod uv...:@“ 2, A4 dIA0YddV
(snfeA UT-9peil) 000 +$ HN'TVA dVHDS LEN ON TVSOdSId 92: (0] \ \ \

HATVS ALVARId ATVS OI'TdNd ~——w h\& ~ A AT vdadd
‘NOILLISOdSId TIANTNINODTA
Q 4

§

“SSTOAUT/ATAAT[OP [eul} 0} por[dde oq [[IA YDA “Sn[eA tI-0pel) 000 v$ PAIaJJ0 PAYIe] PI0] ‘UONIpPe U P[eyiie pio] WoL sYony MU () Inoy dseqomd 0} 0D
rIVSOdSIA/SSEDXT YOd NOLLVOIALLSAL

98€°GTI 23BN SOTLSOASYAIEIMAAT ‘NIA

04D 000°T$ dv sueI) YA qeassdng 05ed PIoS S00T vid I z
0ZL°8T1 :98ea[A $890ETALYNYEALADT NIA
0dgo 000°€$ dv ouBID UMM 00SE OPBISATIS AA0YD L00T | VA I I
NOLLVDO'1 13fo0aq 10 TVLOL LINN (SNIA 2 SND'T ‘S [PPOA #
HALIS weagorq HOATVA xxANOD afqedddy v Surpnpouy) SI/0 | ALO | N
VdON JALVINLLST NOLLATHOSAd
SSADXA A0 NOLLVIVTIOAd

ADNIDV YIMOd VINIOATTVO NHTHLAON

610T ‘L1 10quIaos(] :91e(




A& BUALIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Review and Approve Amendments to NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines

Policy 200-100

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Monty Hanks AN METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [X Cityof Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [J
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [J  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 118:20




Review and Approve Amendments to NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines — Policy 200-100
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Commission approve Resolution 20-23. The resolution includes
changes to the NCPA Investment Policy No. 200-100 as follows: 1) updates to the Permitted
Investments attachment; and 2) updated note on Credit Ratings Comparison.

BACKGROUND:

The purpose of the Investment Policy is to establish cash management and investment
guidelines for the Treasurer-Controller, who is responsible for the stewardship of NCPA’s
investment program. Each transaction and the entire portfolio must comply with the California
Government Code Sections 53600 and 53635 et seq., or the respective Bond Indentures
pertaining to the Agency’s outstanding debt, and the Investment Policy. The Investment Policy
conforms to the customary standards of prudent investment management and any changes to
the policy must be approved by the Commission.

The main objective with these proposed changes is creating an Investment Policy that closely
matches the State code which will allow the Treasurer-Controller to create a balanced portfolio
managing a modest amount of default risk through diversification, duration and adequate
liguidity while respecting the goals and constraints dictated by the policy.

The Investment Policy being submitted for approval includes some recommended changes —
both substantive and non-substantive — with the goal of meeting our current needs.

A brief summary of the changes are as follows:

Substantive changes:
Staff is proposing to increase the maximum limit that the Agency can invest in the California

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) to $75 million. This change corresponds with the State of
California’s increase to LAIF’s deposit limit for regular accounts from $65 million to $75 million
effective January 1, 2020.

Staff is also proposing the addition of a limit in the percentage of the portfolio that the Agency
can invest in issuers of medium-term corporate notes. The proposed limit is no more than 5%
per issuer. This change formalizes current Agency practice and mitigates concentration risk in a
single issuer and contributes to portfolio diversification.

Staff is proposing an increase in the allowable maximum percentage of portfolio investments in
municipal bonds from 10% to 20%. Staff is also proposing a limit of no more than 5% of
municipal bonds per issuer. These changes will give the Agency additional investment flexibility
while maintaining the preservation of the portfolio principal and mitigating credit and
concentration risk.

Non-substantive changes:

There are proposed clarifications in the minimum credit rating requirements on Attachment 3
from an A rating to Category A or its equivalent. Additionally, staff proposes the addition of a
note to that attachment that indicates that a Category A rating includes any rating modifiers
such as “+"/“-" or numbers to include equivalent ratings from Nationally Recognized Statistical
Rating Organization (NRSRO). This change clarifies the minimum rating requirement for

SR: 118:20



Review and Approve Amendments to NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines — Policy 200-100
February 11, 2020
Page 3

several investment types and is in keeping with the Government Code changes that were
effective beginning in 2016. Staff also proposes a corresponding clarification on Attachment 5
to state “The Agency shall not invest in any security rated less than rating category A or its
equivalent.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff believes with the proposed amendments to the Investment Policy, there is the
potential of adding approximately $200,000 additional interest income and member
savings through a reduction of current liquidity (determining what is adequate and
matched with current cash flow requirements) and implementing a diversified portfolio of
investments.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on February 11" and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

h 5 N

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Resolution 20-23
- NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines — redline
- NCPA'’s Investment Policy and Guidelines — clean

SR: 118:20



RESOLUTION 20-23

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVE REVISIONS TO THE NCPA INVESMENT POLICY AND GUIDELINES
(Policy 200-100)

(reference Staff Report #118:20)

WHEREAS, Chapter 4 of the California Government Code, section 53600 et, seq., deals with the
financial affairs of local government agencies, including cities; and

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency Joint Powers Agreement specifies the laws
regulating general law cities as being the law that applies to the Agency; and

WHEREAS, Government Code section 53607 provides that “the authority of the legislative body to
invest or reinvest funds of a local agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased may be delegated
for a period of one year by the legislative body to the treasurer of the local agency, who shall thereafter
assume full responsibility for those transactions until the authority is revoked or expires, and shall make a
report of those transactions to the legislative body. Subject to review, the legislative body may renew the
delegation of authority pursuant to this section each year; and

WHEREAS, staff has performed a review of policies related to the investment of NCPA funds and
recommends increasing the limit that the Agency can invest in the California Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) to $75 million, the addition of a 5% limit of the portfolio per medium-term corporate notes issuer, an
increase in the allowable maximum percentage of the investment portfolio from 10% to 20% for municipal
bonds, the addition of a 5% limit of the portfolio per municipal bond issuer, and the.clarification of minimum
credit rating requirement to Category A that includes any rating modifiers such as “+’/*-” or numbers to include
equivalent ratings from Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSRO); and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has conducted a review of the changes to the Investment Policy
and Guidelines (200-100) at their meeting on February 11, 2020 and recommended the policy revisions to
increase the Agency's investable limit in (LAIF) to $75 million, the addition of a 5% investment limit per
medium-term corporate notes issuer, an increase in the allowable maximum percentage for municipal bonds
to 20%; the addition of a 5% investment limit per municipal bond issuer, and the clarification of minimum
credit rating requirement to include any rating modifiers such as “+"/“-” or numbers to include equivalent
ratings from NRSROs; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency adopts policy revisions to increase the Agency’s investable limit in (LAIF) to $75 million, the addition
of a 5% investment limit per medium-term corporate notes issuer, an increase in the allowable maximum
percentage for municipal bonds to 20%; the addition of a 5% investment limit per municipal bond issuer, and
the clarification of minimum credit rating requirement to include any rating modifiers such as “+"/“-" or
numbers to include equivalent ratings from NRSROs.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following
vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution - 20-23 -2-



No. 200-100

Qﬁl POLICIES & Effective: 9-1993
/ PROCEDURES 0wner: : -
';;nmsnu CALIF& Pnﬁﬁmm MANUAL ACCtg. & Finance lzjgioa:;d 0.28'
APPROVED:
Investment Policy and
SUBJECT: Guidelinesy
RANDY S. HOWARD, GENERAL MANAGER
TABLE OF CONTENTS

PONCY 550 d5i - e i b ime e e e w e 2 weenmsssanmenmeensenssnsannmenesenssssssnsnnnsnansoneefodh oo doh efie i ofienn s oo dif een 1
PUIPOSE @NA SCOPE..... .ottt e et e e et e e e e e e e eaaareeeas 1
RETEIENCE. ...ttt e e e e e 1
RESPONSIDIILY ...ttt a e e e 1
Prudence, Indemnification and BthiCS ..........oooee i 2
General ODJECHIVES ...........eiiiiii e e 2
Portfolio Risk Management ........ ...t 3
Authorized Investment SECUMLIES ..........oooivr i 4
Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers ............oouviiieiiieii e 6
DElEGALION ... s 6
INEEINAI CONIIOL. ... e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e erenrannns 6
Safekeeping and Collateralization ..., 7
Reporting REQUIrEMENTS ..o e 7
Investment Operations GUIAEIINES ................c.ooiiiiiiiiieie e 7

Attachments:

N

Glossary of Investment Terms
Investment Fund Objectives
Table of Authorized Investments

Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments

Credit Rating Comparison




No. 200-100 Page 1 of 7

Owner: Effective: 9-1993
Acctg. & Finance Updated 82-201207

Investment Policy and
Guidelines

4 NDRTNERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

POLICY

It is the policy of the Agency to secure, protect and manage the funds of Agency and invest
surplus funds in a manner which will:

. comply with applicable California state laws and bond indenture provisions;

« ensure safety of the principal,

. provide an appropriate level of liquidity so that money is available when reasonably expected
to be required for payment of obligations; and,

. attain a market yield with no undue risks taken to maximize income at the expense of safety,
liquidity, or investment quality.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the management of cash and
investments of the Agency. The policy pertains to all financial assets of the Agency and any
other funds under the control of the Treasurer-Controller and concerns the deposit, investment,
maintenance, and safekeeping of all such assets.

Proceeds of debt issuance and other indentured funds shall be invested in accordance with the
Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy; however, such monies are to
be invested in accordance with permitted investment provisions of their specific bond
indentures. See attachment 4.

This Policy does not apply to any pension moneys or deferred compensation funds.

REFERENCE

« California Government Code Section 53600 et seq.

« Joint Powers Agreement, Article Il, Section 4.5 (as amended)

« NCPA Resolution No. 12-72, Authorized Officers for Transactions with the State of California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

« NCPA Resolution No. 83-103, Establishing the position of Treasurer-Controller

RESPONSIBILITY

The Treasurer-Controller is responsible for establishing proper safeguards, controls, and
procedures to maintain Agency funds in a lawful, rational, and prudent manner. The Treasurer-
Controller is responsible for the development of the overall investment policy as well as for the
development and ongoing administration of the various portfolio strategies, tactics, performance
monitoring and monthly reporting to the Commission.

The Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for overseeing the
development and implementation of investment policy review and approval of the portfolio
investment strategies, and policy compliance.



| No. 200-100 | Page 2 of 7

‘ Investment Policy and | .
p.T g Owner: Effective: 9-1993
/SNCPA Guidslines Acctg. & Finance | Updated 28-202047

" NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PRUDENCE, PERSONAL RESPONSIBLITY, AND ETHICS

Prudence: Management of Agency’s investments is governed by the Prudent Investor Standard
as set forth in California Government Code Section 53600.3:

“...all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make investment
decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to this chapter
are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public
funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of
the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments
as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.”

Personal Responsibility. The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons responsible for
managing Agency funds, acting in accordance with the Investment Policy and exercising due
diligence, will be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or
market price changes, provided appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

Ethics: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons involved in the investment
process (1) will refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution
of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment
decisions and (2) shall not accept honoraria, gifts or gratuities from any advisor, broker, dealer,
banker, or other person with whom the Agency conducts business, which has an aggregate
value in excess of $50.00 in any 12-month period.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES

The overriding objectives of the investment program are to preserve principal, provide sufficient
liquidity, and achieve a reasonable rate of return. The specific objectives for the program are
ranked in order of importance:

1. Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of
capital.

2. Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.

3. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio will be designed with the objective of
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles taking into
account the investment risk constraints for safety and liquidity needs.



No. 200-100 Page 3 of 7

V4 Investment Policy and .
ad L Owner: Effective: 9-1993
/INCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance | Updated 28-202047

"NORTHERN CALIFORNLA POWER AGENCY

PORTFOLIO RISK MANAGEMENT

Factors that can lead to an unexpected financial loss can be broadly grouped into the following
categories; credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.

Mitigating credit risk in the portfolio: Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose
some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its
debt. Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting the following strategies:

1. Diversify the investment portfolio to mitigate losses due to failure of individual issues or
issuers;

2. Limit the amount of the total portfolio that may be invested in securities of a particular
type and any single issuer. Authorized investment limitations under this policy are shown
in Attachment 3; and,

3. If securities owned by the Agency are downgraded by at least one Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) to a level below the quality required by this
Investment Policy, it will be the Agency’s policy to review and document the credit
situation and make a determination as to whether to sell or retain such securities in the
portfolio.

a. The Treasurer-Controller will use discretion in determining whether to sell or hold
the security based on its maturity, the economic outlook for the issuer, and other
relevant factors.

b. If a decision is made to retain a downgraded security in the portfolio, its presence
in the portfolio will be monitored and reported monthly to the governing board.

Mitigating market risk in the portfolio: Market risk, also referred to as interest rate risk, is the risk
that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in interest rates. The Agency recognizes
that, over time, longer-term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns. On the other
hand, longer-term portfolios have higher volatility when marked-to-market. The Agency will
mitigate interest rate risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by
making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow
purposes. The Agency, therefore, shall adopt the following strategies to control and mitigate its
exposure to market risk:
1. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements;
2. The maximum time from investment to maturity of individual securities in the portfolio will
be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.

Mitigating liquidity risk in the portfolio: Liquidity risk is the inability to convert a security to cash
on a given date prior to maturity. It refers to the inability to sell a security for its cost and
therefore it may have to be sold at a loss. The Agency shall employ the following strategies to
control and mitigate its exposure to liquidity risk:
1. To the extent possible, match investment maturities with anticipated cash demands.
2. Since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, maintain portfolios largely of
securities with active secondary or resale markets.
3. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.



No. 200-100 Page 4 of 7

Owner: Effective: 9-1993
Acctg. & Finance Updated 28-202047

AJ Investment Policy and
. 1;NC PA Guidelines

‘ / NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
1

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT SECURITIES

All investments will be made in accordance with Sections 53600 et seq. of the Government
Code of the State of California and as described within this Investment Policy. Authorized
investments under this policy are shown in Attachment 3.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish a list of approved brokers, dealers, banks and direct
issuers of commercial paper to provide investment services to the Agency. The Agency shall
conduct security transactions only with approved institutions and firms.

To be eligible for approval all broker/dealer firms must qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform
Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
and must be licensed to do business in the State of California and institutions shall have one or
more of the following attributes:

« be recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank;
« be aregional broker/dealer headquartered in the State of California; or

« be a national or state chartered bank which is a member of the FDIC; or

« be adirect issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency.

Deposits will be made only in qualified public depositories within the state of California as
established by State law. Deposits will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or, to the extent the amount exceeds the insured maximum, will be collateralized in
accordance with State law.

A pool of qualified financial institutions and dealers will be maintained by the Treasurer-
Controller using criteria based upon capitalization, credit worthiness, experience, reference
checks and services offered. Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to
engage in transactions with the Agency will be at the sole discretion of the Agency.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING

Authority to manage Agency's investment program is derived from the California Government
Code Sections 53600 ef seq. Management responsibility for the investment program is
delegated to the Treasurer-Controller by Agency Commission Resolution No. 83-103. Pursuant
to Government Code section 53607 such delegation may be granted for a period of one-year
and must be renewed annually. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer-
Controller or his/her designee.

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls, designed to:
ensure adherence to this investment policy, the prevention and detection of errors and fraud, the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.



No. 200-100 Page 5 of 7
Investment Policy and .
Owner: Effective: 9-1993
/‘r(uc PA

Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 28-202017

/ NGRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

The Agency maintains its records on the basis of Plant/Program account groups, each of which
may include one or more investment funds. All investment transactions shall be recorded in the
various funds of the Agency in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as
promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board.

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the
Agency shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities will be held in
the name of the Agency by a third party custodian designated by the Treasurer-Controller and
evidenced by trade confirmations and safekeeping holdings report.

Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and
repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for
all funds, a minimum collateralization level measured at specified times is required.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Monthly Reports: A monthly report will be provided to the Commission by the Treasurer-
Controller. The report shall state compliance of the investment portfolio to the investment policy
and a statement that the Agency has adequate cash flow and investment maturities to meet
next month’s cash requirements and such other information as may be required by State law.

The report will disclose, at a minimum, the following information:

1. An asset listing showing par value, cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts and market value of each security, type of investment, issuer, and
interest rate;

2. The Treasurer-Controller’s report shall also provide:

a. an analysis of investment maturities;
b. a summary of cash and investment activity; and,
c. an analysis of interest rates/yields with a comparison to benchmark interest rates.

Annually: The Treasurer-Controller shall annually submit to the Commission a statement of
Investment Policy and any recommended changes to the policy.

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS GUIDELINES

The following general operating guidelines shall be used in performing all investment functions:

« Allinvestments will be made in the name of the Northern California Power Agency.

« Allinvestments will be made in compliance with the NCPA Investment Fund Objectives
(Attachment 2) and the NCPA Table of Authorized Investments (Attachment 3) unless
otherwise required by bond indenture.

« Investments or collateral for all outside trusteed accounts must be delivered to the trustee.

« Investments or collateral for all accounts held by NCPA will be delivered to and held in the
safekeeping of an authorized financial institution.

« Allinvestment transactions will be recorded in the accounts of the Agency in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as promulgated by the Government
Accounting Standards Board.




No. 200-100 Page 6 of 7
Investment Policy and .
Owner: Effective: 9-1993
/"c PA

Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 28-202047

/ MORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

« All accrued interest on purchased securities will be charged to the appropriate interest
income account.

« Funds deposited in banks or savings and loan associations must be held under a written
contract between the Agency and the institution, which requires collateralization as
prescribed by law and/or this investment policy.

« Whenever practical Agency cash is to be consolidated and invested on a pooled concept
basis. Interest earnings are allocated monthly according to monthly weighted average
balance for each fund.

« Unless otherwise restricted, all holdings will be of sufficient size and held in issues which are
actively traded to facilitate transactions at a minimum cost and accurate market valuation.

. Passive management portfolio strategies are preferred for all operating projects or other
Agency programs, unless otherwise prohibited or restricted.

« When practicable, competitive bidding will be utilized for all investment and reinvestment
activities not involving escrowed or other funds covered by a separate contract or
agreement.

Prohibited investment vehicles and practices:

1. Notwithstanding that any such investment is permitted under State Law, any
investment not specifically described herein is prohibited, including, but not limited to
derivatives, futures and options.

2. In accordance with California Government Code Section 53601.6, investment in
inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited.

3. Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity
is prohibited.

4. Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating, whether on the future direction
of interest rates or otherwise, is prohibited.

5. Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited.

6. The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of
borrowing or leverage is prohibited.

7. The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Glossary

Attachment 2 - Investment Fund Objectives

Attachment 3 - Table of Authorized Investments

Attachment 4 - Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments
Attachment 5 — Credit Rating Comparison




No. 200-100

Page 7 of 7

Investment Policy and Owner:

CPA Guidslings Acctg. & Finance

/ NORTEERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Effective: 9-1993
Updated 28-202047 |

VERSION HISTORY

No. Explanation Date | Author
Revisions to permitted investments; update note SA
7 | on Credit Ratings Comparison attachment to
reflect minimum rating category of A.
Minor language clean-up; updates to the 8/17 | MH
6 | Permitted Investments; and changes to the
Investment Fund Objectives
Revised a resolution reference 11/16 | SA
Updated maximum investment permitted by
5 |LaF
Added Authorized Financial Institution
4 | Annual review, no changes 11/15 | SA
3 | Annual review, no changes 11/14 | KWW
Combined prior policies 200-97 and 200-98;
updated to include more information on
2 | allowable investments, delegations, authorized 1113 | KWW
| financial institutions, and operations practices,
Includes expanded attachments and glossary.
1 | Updated 9/95 | DBL
0 | Original Policy 9/93 | DBL




GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS

Agencies - Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government sponsored
enterprise (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are:

. FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the agricultural
industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds.

« FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market.
FHLB issues discount notes and bonds.

« FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and
liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called “Freddie Mac” issues discount notes,
bonds and mortgage pass-through securities.

« FNMA. Like FHLB and Freddie Mac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known as
“Fannie Mae,” issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass- through securities.

Certain GSE obligations are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. An

example is:

« GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as “Ginnie Mae,” issues
mortgage pass-through securities.

Callable - A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its

maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline since an

issuer issues securities, it will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of
interest. Callable securities have reinvestment risk as the investor may receive its principal back
when interest rates are lower than when the investment was initially made.

Certificate of Deposit (CD) - A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.

Large denomination CDs may be marketable.

Collateral - Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or

repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of

public monies.

Commercial paper - Short-term unsecured debt of corporations.

Coupon - The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond.

Current yield - The annual income from an investment divided by the current market value.

Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the investor’s

cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security is held to

maturity.

Dealer - A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying

securities for his own position

Delivery vs. payment (DVP) - A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security

must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser’s agent.

Demand Deposit — Sometimes referred to as a sight or on call deposit, can be withdrawn at

any time (on demand) without notice or penalty; e.g., deposits into checking or savings

accounts.

Derivative - Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to

uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or any

security which represents a component of another security which has been separated from
other components (“Stripped” coupons and principal). A derivative is also defined as a financial

Attachment 1



instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the value of another instrument,
interest rate or index.

Discount - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker’s acceptances, are
known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par, and return the par value to the
investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have fixed coupons, trade
at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate for securities of that
maturity and/or quality.

Diversification - Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive
exposure to any one source of risk.

Duration - The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a bond to changes in
interest rates. (See modified duration).

Federal funds rate - The rate of interest charged by banks for short-term loans to other banks.
The Federal Reserve Bank through open-market operations establishes it.

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) - A self-regulatory organization for
brokerage firms doing business in the United States. FINRA operates under the supervision of
the SEC. The organization’s objectives are to protect investors and ensure market integrity.
Liquidity - refers to the requirement that some portion of cash assets be invested in securities
readily convertible into cash without loss of capital.

Make whole call - A type of call provision on a bond allowing the issuer to pay off remaining
debt early. The issuer has to make a lump sum payment derived from a formula based on the
net present value (NPV) of future coupon payments that will not be paid because of the call.
Investors will be compensated, or "made whole."

Market value - The price at which a security can be traded.

Mark to market - The process of posting current market values for securities in a portfolio.
Maturity - The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable.
Money market - The market in which short term debt instruments (Tbills, discount notes,
commercial paper and banker’s acceptances) are issued and traded.

Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NSRSO) - Is a credit rating agency
(CRA) that issues credit ratings that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
permits other financial firms to use for certain regulatory purposes. The largest NSROs are
Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch.

Portfolio Re-Optimization - Refers to the process wherein investment broker(s) re-evaluate a
given dedicated investment portfolio using sophisticated computer programs based on the
updated program or project estimated cash flows. This is usually done to increase or protect the
portfolio's overall rate of return as a result of changing liability amounts or dates, changing
market or credit risk condition, or a change in investment policy restrictions, etc.

Portfolio Strategy — Determining investment practices to best achieve the investors’ primary
goals. Strategies may be either passive or active. Passive strategies include: buy and hold,
which includes the laddering of maturities; and bullet structure, which is designed to invest to a
particular date or portfolio horizon; and benchmarking, which is done to mirror a particular
segment of the market. Active strategies employ additional risk to take advantage of conditions
in the fixed income markets that change as economic and financial conditions change.
Premium - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is above par.

Attachment 1



Primary Dealer - a firm that buys government securities directly from a government, with the
intention of reselling them to others, thus acting as a market maker of government securities.
The government may regulate the behavior and numbers of its primary dealers and impose
conditions of entry.
Repurchase agreement (RP, Repo) - Short term purchases of securities with a simultaneous
agreement to sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller’s point of view, the same
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement.
Risk - refers to the degree of probability of incurring a monetary loss as a result of investing in a
particular security. Three general kinds of investment risks are:

« Credit Risk - risk that an issuer of a security cannot meet its obligations.

« Market Risk - risk from fluctuations in the market prices for individual securities over a

period of time.

« Liquidity Risk- risk of an inability to sell a security at its fair market value.
Safety - refers to the varying degrees and types of risks associated with different types of
investment securities and individual issues. Safety is a matter of degree, not an absolute.
Safekeeping - A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank (as
custodian) in the customer’s name.
Total rate of return - A measure of a portfolio’s performance over time. It is the internal rate of
return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it includes
interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio.
U.S. Treasury obligations - Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk, and are the
benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The Treasury issues
both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds.
Treasury bills - All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as
discounted instruments, and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues three- and
six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues “cash management” bills as needed
to smooth out cash flows.
Treasury notes - All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called
Treasury notes, and pay interest semi-annually.
Treasury bonds - All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually.
Uniform Net Capital Rule - An SEC rule that requires broker-dealers to maintain sufficient
liquidity to protect securities customers, counterparties, and creditors. Broker-dealers must
maintain net capital (net worth adjusted by certain deductions for illiquid assets and reserves
against possible market losses on securities positions) such that the liabilities incurred by the
broker-dealer (aggregate indebtedness) do not exceed certain specified levels.
Volatility - The rate at which security prices change with changes in general economic
conditions or the general level of interest rates.
Yield to Maturity - The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost.

Attachment 1



INVESTMENT FUND OBJECTIVES

Primary Maximum
Investment Term of
Fund Type Objective Investment '
Bond Financed Project Funds: >
Construction Fund (Geo) C 1 year
Construction Revolving Acct (LEC) A 90 days
Debt Service Fund C 1 year

Debt Service Reserve B,D 15 years

Reserve Fund B,C,D 5 years
Rebate Fund C 5 years
O&M Reserve (LEC) A B D 5 years
Revenue Fund A B C 1 year

Additional Operating Funds:

Operating Account A C 5 years
General Operating Reserve A B, C 5 years
SCPA Balancing Account A B 5 years
Capital Development Account (Hydro) A C 5 years
Decommissioning Account (Geo) C,D 10 years

Notes:
A. Provide liquidity
B. Provide reserves against uncertain liabilities
C. Match prescribed cash flow
D. Maximize long-term return on investment

1 Investments shall mature not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide monies
when reasonably expected to be needed for payments to be made from such fund.

2 Proceeds of debt issuance and other funds held under a bond indenture shall be invested in
accordance with the Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy;
however, such moneys are to be invested in accordance with permitted investment
provisions of their specific bond indentures.

Attachment 2



TABLE OF PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Type of Maximum % of Rating Maximum
Investment Portfolio Requirement Maturity Other Restrictions
US Treasury o
Securities 100% na
Federal 100% n/a
Agencies
Local Agency UE;? mrﬁ?: (';gt;m
Investment LAIF, currently n/a n/a n/a
Fund (LAIF) $765,000,000
Medium-term By a NRSRO;
Corporate 30% Category A or its 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
Notes equivalent or better”
California Asset
M?,“rzgf;“nf"t 100% nia n/a na
(CAMP)
Time Deposits By a NRSRO; Long-
(Non- o term of Category A o .
negotiable 20% or short-term of A-1 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
CDs) or better
By a NRSRO; Long-
. term of Category A o .
Negotiable CDs 30% or short-term of A1 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
or better
By a NRSRO; Long-
Bankers 0 term of Category A 5 .
Acceptances 40% or shortterm of A-1 180 days No more than 5% per issuer
or better
By a NRSRO; Long-
Commercial o term of Category A Assets >$500MM
Paper 40% or short-term of A-1 270 days No more than 5% per issuer
or better
By a NRSRO;
Highest ranking or Must be registered with SEC;
M°”§zn'\é':rket 20% highest Assets > $500MM:;
letter/numerical No more than 5% per fund
rating
Repurchase o Collateral of at least 102% of
Agreements 100% Iiyeas market value required
By a NRSRO; 0
Category A or its iSSNl::e:nore than 5% per
Municipal equivalent or better ‘fl uy s'esuled as-o
;gféza 210% Fighostranling-ar prRcipal-and-interestby-an
bizhoot eEcrow-consieting-of cash-of
fottorhumerisel diract-obligations-of-the-US
rating goverament

Includes any rating modifiers such as “+”/“-” or numbers to include equivalent ratings from NRSRO

Attachment 3



Attachment 5



TABLE OF BOND INDENTURE PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Any other form of investment.

Project Geo/Hydro ?2 Cap Facilities/LEC 3
' Debt Debt '
Debt Service Debt Service
Service | Reserve All | Service | Reserve | All
Securities ' Acct. Acct. Other | Acct. Acct. Other
| |
' Direct obligations of the United Stated of America. X X X X X x|
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of 2 LS X X X X
America. |
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are not !
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X X
America. |
New Housing Authority bonds or notes of public agencies or |
municipalities secured by a pledge of annual contributions to be X X X X
paid by the United States or agency thereof. ‘
Direct and general obligations of the State of California or X X
political subdivision rated A or higher.
General obligation of any state rated A2 or higher. X
Time deposits, FDIC insured or collateralized. X X
Repurchase agreements, insured or collateralized. X X L
Money Market Funds rated AAAm G or AAAM or better. X
Commercial Paper rated P-1 or At+. X |
UD dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds or X
bankers' acceptances with ratings of A-1, A-1+ or P-1. |
Prefunded municipal obligations rated highest rating category X '
by S&P or Moody's, based on an irrevocable escrow. 7
Investment Agreements & GICS, supported by opinion of X X X |
counsel. ‘
California LAIF. x|
Shares in a California common law frust which invests
exclusively in investment permitted under CA Code section X
56635. |
X

" Investment types are detailed in each project bond Indenture of Trust. Generally, investment securities
include those listed above, if and to the extent the same are legal for investment of Agency funds. The
securities, as listed above, are summarized and may have additional limitations as to specific issuers,

ratings, term of investment, or other requirements.

2The Geothermal Project bond indenture dated November 1, 1983 and the Hydroelectric Project bond
indenture dated March 1, 1985 have the same definition for investment securities.

® The Capital Facilities Project bond indenture dated January 1, 2010 and the Lodi Energy Center Issues

One and Two, dated June 1, 2010 have the same definition for investment securities.

Attachment 4



CREDIT RATINGS COMPARISON

| Standard E
Description Moody’s | & Poors Fitch |
Long- | Short- | Long- Short- | Long- | Short- |
term term term term term term
Prime:
Extremely Strong Aaa AAA AAA
High Grade:
Very Strong Aa1 AA+ A-1+ AA+ F1+
Aa2 P-1 AA AA
Aa3 AA- AA-
Upper Medium
Grade:
Strong A1l A+ A1 | A+ F1
A2 A A
A3 A- | A-
Lower Medium
Grade: P-2 A-2 | F2
Adequate Baa1 BBB+ BBB+ |
Baa2 P-3 BBB A-3 BBB | F3
Baa3 BBB- BBB- |
Non-investment |
Grade speculative: ;
Vulnerable Ba1 BB+ BB+ '
Not [ |
Ba2 Prime BB B . BB B
Ba2 BB- | BB- |

Credit ratings are opinions about credit risk published by a rating agency. They express
opinions about the ability and willingness of an issuer, such as a corporation, state or city
government, to meet its financial obligations in accordance with the terms of those obligations.
Credit ratings are also opinions about the credit quality of an issue, such as a bond or other debt
obligation, and the relative likelihood that it may default.

The Agency shall not invest in any security rated less than rating category single-A or its
equivalent. .

Attachment 5



-/ POLICIES & No. 200-100
PROCEDURES Owner: Effective: 9-1993
mNCPA MANUAL Acctg. & Finance Updated 02-2020
APPROVED:
Investment Policy and
SUBJECT: Guidelinesy
RANDY S. HOWARD, GENERAL MANAGER

TABLE OF CONTENTS
o o T PP TOUPPPPPTOPSTPPRN 1
PUIPOSE @NA SCOPE ... e e n e 1
R =] =1 (=1 0 (o= T PP 1
RESPONSIDIIILY .....vveieieeeee et e e e 1
Prudence, Indemnification and EthiCS..........cocooiiiiiiii e 2
General ODbJECHIVES .......oooiiiiii e 2
Portfolio Risk Management....... ..o 3
Authorized INVESTMENTt SECUIIIES ...coonniiiee et e e e 4
Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers.......ooovvirii e 6
Delegation ... ..o 6
RN = e T I 0] 014 (o) HERT TR OO URORTTR 6
Safekeeping and Collateralization ...............ocovviiiiiiiiiii s 7
Reporting REQUIFEMENES .......oiiiiiiieie e 7
Investment Operations GUIAEIINES..........coooiiiiiiiiiieec e 7

Attachments:

abhLN=

Glossary of Investment Terms
Investment Fund Objectives
Table of Authorized Investments

Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments

Credit Rating Comparison




s No. 200-100 Page 1 of 7

4 Investment Policy and .
L Owner: Effective: 9-1993
NCPA LS Acctg. & Finance | Updated 2-20120

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA FOWER AGENCY

POLICY

It is the policy of the Agency to secure, protect and manage the funds of Agency and invest
surplus funds in a manner which will:

« comply with applicable California state laws and bond indenture provisions;

« ensure safety of the principal;

. provide an appropriate level of liquidity so that money is available when reasonably expected
to be required for payment of obligations; and,

. attain a market yield with no undue risks taken to maximize income at the expense of safety,
liquidity, or investment quality.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the management of cash and
investments of the Agency. The policy pertains to all financial assets of the Agency and any
other funds under the control of the Treasurer-Controller and concerns the deposit, investment,
maintenance, and safekeeping of all such assets.

Proceeds of debt issuance and other indentured funds shall be invested in accordance with the
Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy; however, such monies are to
be invested in accordance with permitted investment provisions of their specific bond
indentures. See attachment 4.

This Policy does not apply to any pension moneys or deferred compensation funds.

REFERENCE

. California Government Code Section 53600 et seq.

» Joint Powers Agreement, Article I, Section 4.5 (as amended)

« NCPA Resolution No. 12-72, Authorized Officers for Transactions with the State of California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

« NCPA Resolution No. 83-103, Establishing the position of Treasurer-Controller

RESPONSIBILITY

The Treasurer-Controller is responsible for establishing proper safeguards, controls, and
procedures to maintain Agency funds in a lawful, rational, and prudent manner. The Treasurer-
Controller is responsible for the development of the overall investment policy as well as for the
development and ongoing administration of the various portfolio strategies, tactics, performance
monitoring and monthly reporting to the Commission.

The Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for overseeing the
development and implementation of investment policy review and approval of the portfolio
investment strategies, and policy compliance.



No. 200-100 Page 2 of 7

nd s Owner: Effective: 9-1993
NCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 2-2020

" NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Investment Policy and

PRUDENCE, PERSONAL RESPONSIBLITY, AND ETHICS

Prudence: Management of Agency’s investments is governed by the Prudent Investor Standard
as set forth in California Government Code Section 53600.3:

“...all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make investment
decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to this chapter
are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. \When
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public
funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of
the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments
as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.”

Personal Responsibility.: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons responsible for
managing Agency funds, acting in accordance with the Investment Policy and exercising due
diligence, will be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or
market price changes, provided appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

Ethics: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons involved in the investment
process (1) will refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution
of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment
decisions and (2) shall not accept honoraria, gifts or gratuities from any advisor, broker, dealer,
banker, or other person with whom the Agency conducts business, which has an aggregate
value in excess of $50.00 in any 12-month period.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES

The overriding objectives of the investment program are to preserve principal, provide sufficient
liquidity, and achieve a reasonable rate of return. The specific objectives for the program are
ranked in order of importance:

1. Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of
capital.

2. Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.

3. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio will be designed with the objective of
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles taking into
account the investment risk constraints for safety and liquidity needs.



No. 200-100 Page 3 of 7

F ¥y o Owner: Effective: 9-1993
TNCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 2-2020

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Investment Policy and

PORTFOLIO RISK MANAGEMENT

Factors that can lead to an unexpected financial loss can be broadly grouped into the following
categories; credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.

Mitigating credit risk in the portfolio: Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose
some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its
debt. Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting the following strategies:

1. Diversify the investment portfolio to mitigate losses due to failure of individual issues or
issuers;

2. Limit the amount of the total portfolio that may be invested in securities of a particular
type and any single issuer. Authorized investment limitations under this policy are shown
in Attachment 3; and,

3. If securities owned by the Agency are downgraded by at least one Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) to a level below the quality required by this
Investment Policy, it will be the Agency’s policy to review and document the credit
situation and make a determination as to whether to sell or retain such securities in the
portfolio.

a. The Treasurer-Controller will use discretion in determining whether to sell or hold
the security based on its maturity, the economic outlook for the issuer, and other
relevant factors.

b. If a decision is made to retain a downgraded security in the portfolio, its presence
in the portfolio will be monitored and reported monthly to the governing board.

Mitigating market risk in the portfolio: Market risk, also referred to as interest rate risk, is the risk
that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in interest rates. The Agency recognizes
that, over time, longer-term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns. On the other
hand, longer-term portfolios have higher volatility when marked-to-market. The Agency will
mitigate interest rate risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by
making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow
purposes. The Agency, therefore, shall adopt the following strategies to control and mitigate its
exposure to market risk:
1. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements;
2. The maximum time from investment to maturity of individual securities in the portfolio will
be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.

Mitigating liquidity risk in the portfolio: Liquidity risk is the inability to convert a security to cash
on a given date prior to maturity. It refers to the inability to sell a security for its cost and
therefore it may have to be sold at a loss. The Agency shall employ the following strategies to
control and mitigate its exposure to liquidity risk:
1. To the extent possible, match investment maturities with anticipated cash demands.
2. Since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, maintain portfolios largely of
securities with active secondary or resale markets.
3. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.



No. 200-100 Page 4 of 7

\ / Investment Policy and .
L Owner: Effective: 9-1993
“TNCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 2-2020

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT SECURITIES

All investments will be made in accordance with Sections 53600 et seq. of the Government
Code of the State of California and as described within this Investment Policy. Authorized
investments under this policy are shown in Attachment 3.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish a list of approved brokers, dealers, banks and direct
issuers of commercial paper to provide investment services to the Agency. The Agency shall
conduct security transactions only with approved institutions and firms.

To be eligible for approval all broker/dealer firms must qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform
Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
and must be licensed to do business in the State of California and institutions shall have one or
more of the following attributes:

« be recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank;
« be aregional broker/dealer headquartered in the State of California; or

« be a national or state chartered bank which is a member of the FDIC; or

» be adirect issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency.

Deposits will be made only in qualified public depositories within the state of California as
established by State law. Deposits will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or, to the extent the amount exceeds the insured maximum, will be collateralized in
accordance with State law.

A pool of qualified financial institutions and dealers will be maintained by the Treasurer-
Controller using criteria based upon capitalization, credit worthiness, experience, reference
checks and services offered. Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to
engage in transactions with the Agency will be at the sole discretion of the Agency.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING

Authority to manage Agency's investment program is derived from the California Government
Code Sections 53600 ef seq. Management responsibility for the investment program is
delegated to the Treasurer-Controller by Agency Commission Resolution No. 83-103. Pursuant
to Government Code section 53607 such delegation may be granted for a period of one-year
and must be renewed annually. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer-
Controller or his/her designee.

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls, designed to:
ensure adherence to this investment policy, the prevention and detection of errors and fraud, the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.



No. 200-100 Page 5 of 7

' Investment Policy and .
; A Owner: Effective: 9-1993
TNICPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 2-2020

”NURTHEHN CALIFORNIA PDWER AGENCY

The Agency maintains its records on the basis of Plant/Program account groups, each of which
may include one or more investment funds. All investment transactions shall be recorded in the
various funds of the Agency in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as
promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board.

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the
Agency shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities will be held in
the name of the Agency by a third party custodian designated by the Treasurer-Controller and
evidenced by trade confirmations and safekeeping holdings report.

Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and
repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for
all funds, a minimum collateralization level measured at specified times is required.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Monthly Reports: A monthly report will be provided to the Commission by the Treasurer-
Controller. The report shall state compliance of the investment portfolio to the investment policy
and a statement that the Agency has adequate cash flow and investment maturities to meet
next month’s cash requirements and such other information as may be required by State law.

The report will disclose, at a minimum, the following information:

1. An asset listing showing par value, cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts and market value of each security, type of investment, issuer, and
interest rate;

2. The Treasurer-Controller's report shall also provide:

a. an analysis of investment maturities;
b. a summary of cash and investment activity; and,
c. an analysis of interest rates/yields with a comparison to benchmark interest rates.

Annually: The Treasurer-Controller shall annually submit to the Commission a statement of
Investment Policy and any recommended changes to the policy.

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS GUIDELINES

The following general operating guidelines shall be used in performing all investment functions:

« Allinvestments will be made in the name of the Northern California Power Agency.

« Allinvestments will be made in compliance with the NCPA Investment Fund Objectives
(Attachment 2) and the NCPA Table of Authorized Investments (Attachment 3) unless
otherwise required by bond indenture.

. Investments or collateral for all outside trusteed accounts must be delivered to the trustee.

« Investments or collateral for all accounts held by NCPA will be delivered to and held in the
safekeeping of an authorized financial institution.

« All investment transactions will be recorded in the accounts of the Agency in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as promulgated by the Government
Accounting Standards Board.




No. 200-100 Page 6 of 7

Investment Policy and .
. A Owner: Effective: 9-1993
/"NCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance Updated 2-2020

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

« All accrued interest on purchased securities will be charged to the appropriate interest
income account.

« Funds deposited in banks or savings and loan associations must be held under a written
contract between the Agency and the institution, which requires collateralization as
prescribed by law and/or this investment policy.

« Whenever practical Agency cash is to be consolidated and invested on a pooled concept
basis. Interest earnings are allocated monthly according to monthly weighted average
balance for each fund.

« Unless otherwise restricted, all holdings will be of sufficient size and held in issues which are
actively traded to facilitate transactions at a minimum cost and accurate market valuation.

. Passive management portfolio strategies are preferred for all operating projects or other
Agency programs, unless otherwise prohibited or restricted.

« When practicable, competitive bidding will be utilized for all investment and reinvestment
activities not involving escrowed or other funds covered by a separate contract or
agreement.

Prohibited investment vehicles and practices:

1. Notwithstanding that any such investment is permitted under State Law, any
investment not specifically described herein is prohibited, including, but not limited to
derivatives, futures and options.

2. In accordance with California Government Code Section 53601.6, investment in
inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited.

3. Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity
is prohibited.

4. Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating, whether on the future direction

of interest rates or otherwise, is prohibited.

Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited.

The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of
borrowing or leverage is prohibited.

7. The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited.

oo

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Glossary

Attachment 2 - Investment Fund Objectives

Attachment 3 - Table of Authorized Investments

Attachment 4 - Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments
Attachment 5 — Credit Rating Comparison




No. 200-100

Page 7 of 7

Investment Policy and Owner:

NCPA Guidelines Acctg. & Finance

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Effective: 9-1993
Updated 2-2020

VERSION HISTORY

No. Explanation Date | Author

Revisions to permitted investments; update note SA

7 | on Credit Ratings Comparison attachment to
reflect minimum rating category of A.
Minor language clean-up; updates to the 8/17 | MH

6 | Permitted Investments; and changes to the
Investment Fund Objectives
Revised a resolution reference 11/16 | SA
Updated maximum investment permitted by

S | LAF
Added Authorized Financial Institution

4 | Annual review, no changes 11/15 | SA

3 | Annual review, no changes 11/14 | KWW
Combined prior policies 200-97 and 200-98;
updated to include more information on

2 | allowable investments, delegations, authorized | 11/13 | KWW
financial institutions, and operations practices,
Includes expanded attachments and glossary.

1 | Updated 9/95 | DBL

0 | Original Policy 9/93 | DBL




GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS

Agencies - Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government sponsored
enterprise (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are:

« FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the agricultural
industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds.

+ FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market.
FHLB issues discount notes and bonds.

» FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and
liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called “Freddie Mac” issues discount notes,
bonds and mortgage pass-through securities.

. FNMA. Like FHLB and Freddie Mac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known as
“Fannie Mae,” issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass- through securities.

Certain GSE obligations are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. An

example is:

« GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as “Ginnie Mae,” issues
mortgage pass-through securities.

Callable - A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its

maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline since an

issuer issues securities, it will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of
interest. Callable securities have reinvestment risk as the investor may receive its principal back
when interest rates are lower than when the investment was initially made.

Certificate of Deposit (CD) - A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.

Large denomination CDs may be marketable.

Collateral - Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or

repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of

public monies.

Commercial paper - Short-term unsecured debt of corporations.

Coupon - The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond.

Current yield - The annual income from an investment divided by the current market value.

Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the investor's

cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security is held to

maturity.

Dealer - A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying

securities for his own position

Delivery vs. payment (DVP) - A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security

must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser’s agent.

Demand Deposit — Sometimes referred to as a sight or on call deposit, can be withdrawn at

any time (on demand) without notice or penalty; e.g., deposits into checking or savings

accounts.

Derivative - Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to

uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or any

security which represents a component of another security which has been separated from
other components (“Stripped” coupons and principal). A derivative is also defined as a financial

Attachment 1



instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the value of another instrument,
interest rate or index.

Discount - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker’s acceptances, are
known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par, and return the par value to the
investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have fixed coupons, trade
at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate for securities of that
maturity and/or quality.

Diversification - Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive
exposure to any one source of risk.

Duration - The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a bond to changes in
interest rates. (See modified duration).

Federal funds rate - The rate of interest charged by banks for short-term loans to other banks.
The Federal Reserve Bank through open-market operations establishes it.

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) - A self-regulatory organization for
brokerage firms doing business in the United States. FINRA operates under the supervision of
the SEC. The organization’s objectives are to protect investors and ensure market integrity.
Liquidity - refers to the requirement that some portion of cash assets be invested in securities
readily convertible into cash without loss of capital.

Make whole call - A type of call provision on a bond allowing the issuer to pay off remaining
debt early. The issuer has to make a lump sum payment derived from a formula based on the
net present value (NPV) of future coupon payments that will not be paid because of the call.
Investors will be compensated, or "made whole."

Market value - The price at which a security can be traded.

Mark to market - The process of posting current market values for securities in a portfolio.
Maturity - The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable.
Money market - The market in which short term debt instruments (Tbills, discount notes,
commercial paper and banker’'s acceptances) are issued and traded.

Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NSRSO) - Is a credit rating agency
(CRA) that issues credit ratings that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
permits other financial firms to use for certain regulatory purposes. The largest NSROs are
Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch.

Portfolio Re-Optimization - Refers to the process wherein investment broker(s) re-evaluate a
given dedicated investment portfolio using sophisticated computer programs based on the
updated program or project estimated cash flows. This is usually done to increase or protect the
portfolio's overall rate of return as a result of changing liability amounts or dates, changing
market or credit risk condition, or a change in investment policy restrictions, etc.

Portfolio Strategy — Determining investment practices to best achieve the investors’ primary
goals. Strategies may be either passive or active. Passive strategies include: buy and hold,
which includes the laddering of maturities; and bullet structure, which is designed to investto a
particular date or portfolio horizon; and benchmarking, which is done to mirror a particular
segment of the market. Active strategies employ additional risk to take advantage of conditions
in the fixed income markets that change as economic and financial conditions change.
Premium - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the
cost is above par.

Attachment 1



Primary Dealer - a firm that buys government securities directly from a government, with the
intention of reselling them to others, thus acting as a market maker of government securities.
The government may regulate the behavior and numbers of its primary dealers and impose
conditions of entry.
Repurchase agreement (RP, Repo) - Short term purchases of securities with a simultaneous
agreement to sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller’s point of view, the same
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement.
Risk - refers to the degree of probability of incurring a monetary loss as a result of investing in a
particular security. Three general kinds of investment risks are:

« Credit Risk - risk that an issuer of a security cannot meet its obligations.

« Market Risk - risk from fluctuations in the market prices for individual securities over a

period of time.

« Liquidity Risk- risk of an inability to sell a security at its fair market value.
Safety - refers to the varying degrees and types of risks associated with different types of
investment securities and individual issues. Safety is a matter of degree, not an absolute.
Safekeeping - A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank (as
custodian) in the customer’'s name.
Total rate of return - A measure of a portfolio’s performance over time. It is the internal rate of
return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it includes
interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio.
U.S. Treasury obligations - Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk, and are the
benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The Treasury issues
both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds.
Treasury bills - All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as
discounted instruments, and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues three- and
six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues “cash management” bills as needed
to smooth out cash flows.
Treasury notes - All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called
Treasury notes, and pay interest semi-annually.
Treasury bonds - All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually.
Uniform Net Capital Rule - An SEC rule that requires broker-dealers to maintain sufficient
liquidity to protect securities customers, counterparties, and creditors. Broker-dealers must
maintain net capital (net worth adjusted by certain deductions for illiquid assets and reserves
against possible market losses on securities positions) such that the liabilities incurred by the
broker-dealer (aggregate indebtedness) do not exceed certain specified levels.
Volatility - The rate at which security prices change with changes in general economic
conditions or the general level of interest rates.
Yield to Maturity - The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost.

Attachment 1



Notes:

INVESTMENT FUND OBJECTIVES

Primary Maximum
Investment Term of
Fund Type Objective Investment '

Bond Financed Project Funds: ?
Construction Fund (Geo) C 1 year
Construction Revolving Acct (LEC) A 90 days
Debt Service Fund C 1 year
Debt Service Reserve B,D 15 years
Reserve Fund B,C,D 5 years
Rebate Fund C 5 years
O&M Reserve (LEC) A B D 5 years
Revenue Fund A B, C 1 year
Additional Operating Funds:
Operating Account A C 5 years
General Operating Reserve A B C 5 years
SCPA Balancing Account A B 5 years
Capital Development Account (Hydro) A C 5 years
Decommissioning Account (Geo) C,D 10 years

A. Provide liquidity

B. Provide reserves against uncertain liabilities
C. Match prescribed cash flow

D. Maximize long-term return on investment

! Investments shall mature not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide monies
when reasonably expected to be needed for payments to be made from such fund.

2 Proceeds of debt issuance and other funds held under a bond indenture shall be invested in
accordance with the Agency’s general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy;
however, such moneys are to be invested in accordance with permitted investment

provisions of their specific bond indentures.

Attachment 2




TABLE OF PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Type of Maximum % of Rating Maximum
Investment Portfolio Requirement Maturity Other Restrictions
US Treasury o
Securities 160% na
Federal o
Agencies 100% n/a
Up to maximum
Local Agency .
Investment pemiliscby n/a n/a n/a
Fund (LAIF) LAIF, currently
$75,000,000
Medium-term By a NRSRO;
Corporate 30% Category A or its 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
Notes equivalent or better*
California Asset
Management 100% n/a n/a n/a
Program
(CAMP)
Time Deposits By a NRSRO; Long-
(Non- o term of Category A o .
negotiable 20% or short-term of A-1 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
CDs) or better
By a NRSRO; Long-
: o term of Category A o .
Negotiable CDs 30% or short-term of A-1 5 years No more than 5% per issuer
or better
By a NRSRO; Long-
Bankers o term of Category A o .
Acceptances 40% or short-term of A-1 180 days No more than 5% per issuer
or better
C g N?CS)Ro; Long— Assets >$500MM
ommercial o term of Category ssets >
Paper 40% or short-term of A-1 270 days No more than 5% per issuer
or better
By a NRSRO;
Highest ranking or Must be registered with SEC;
Monggnl\clil:rket 20% highest Assets > $500MM;
letter/numerical No more than 5% per fund
rating
Repurchase o Collateral of at least 102% of
Agreements 100% 1year market value required
- By a NRSRO;
M;g;c(;zal 20% Category A or its No more than 5% per issuer

equivalent or better

Includes any rating modifiers such as “+”/“-” or numbers to include equivalent ratings from NRSRO

Attachment 3




TABLE OF BOND INDENTURE PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Project Geo/Hydro 2 Cap Facilities/LEC ®
Debt Debt
Debt Service Debt Service
Service | Reserve All Service | Reserve | All
Securities ' Acct. Acct. Other | Acct. Acct. Other
Direct obligations of the United Stated of America. X X X X X X
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X X
America.
Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are not
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X X
America.
New Housing Authority bonds or notes of public agencies or
municipalities secured by a pledge of annual contributions to be X X X X
paid by the United States or agency thereof.
Direct and general obligations of the State of California or X X
political subdivision rated A or higher.
General obligation of any state rated A2 or higher. X
Time deposits, FDIC insured or collateralized. X X
Repurchase agreements, insured or collateralized. X X
Money Market Funds rated AAAm G or AAAM or better. X
Commercial Paper rated P-1 or A1+. X
UD dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds or X
bankers' acceptances with ratings of A-1, A-1+ or P-1.
Prefunded municipal obligations rated highest rating category X
by S&P or Moody's, based on an irrevocable escrow.
Investment Agreements & GICS, supported by opinion of X X X
counsel.
California LAIF. X
Shares in a California common law trust which invests
exclusively in investment permitted under CA Code section X
56635.
X

Any other form of investment.

" Investment types are detailed in each project bond Indenture of Trust. Generally, investment securities
include those listed above, if and to the extent the same are legal for investment of Agency funds. The
securities, as listed above, are summarized and may have additional limitations as to specific issuers,
ratings, term of investment, or other requirements.

2The Geothermal Project bond indenture dated November 1, 1983 and the Hydroelectric Project bond
indenture dated March 1, 1985 have the same definition for investment securities.

% The Capital Facilities Project bond indenture dated January 1, 2010 and the Lodi Energy Center Issues
One and Two, dated June 1, 2010 have the same definition for investment securities.

Attachment 4




CREDIT RATINGS COMPARISON

Standard
Description Moody’s & Poors Fitch
Long- Short- Long- Short- Long- Short-
term term term term term term
Prime:
Extremely Strong Aaa AAA AAA
High Grade:
Very Strong Aa1 AA+ A-1+ AA+ F1+
Aa2 P-1 AA AA
Aa3 AA- AA-
Upper Medium
Grade:
Strong A1 A+ A-1 A+ F1
A2 A A
A3 A- A-
Lower Medium
Grade: P-2 A-2 F2
Adequate Baa1 BBB+ BBB+
Baa2 P-3 BBB A-3 BBB F3
Baa3 BBB- BBB-
Non-investment
Grade speculative:
Vulnerable Ba1 BB+ BB+
Not
Ba2 Prime BB B BB B
Ba2 BB- BB-

Credit ratings are opinions about credit risk published by a rating agency. They express
opinions about the ability and willingness of an issuer, such as a corporation, state or city
government, to meet its financial obligations in accordance with the terms of those obligations.
Credit ratings are also opinions about the credit quality of an issue, such as a bond or other debt
obligation, and the relative likelihood that it may default.

The Agency shall not invest in any security rated less than rating category A or its equivalent. .

Attachment 5



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

A

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2020

SUBJECT:

Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

1o

2NN
FROM: Monty Hanks@ METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant Genera
Manager/CFO NA
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power T[] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [J
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit O City of Palo Alto [J Plumas-Sierra REC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [J Other [
If other, please specify

SR: 116:20



Debt and interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2019
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Commission accept the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for
the period ending December 31, 2019.

BACKGROUND:

In accordance with the Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy, Section 20, Monitoring and
Reporting Requirements, approved by the Commission in May 2017, the Finance team will
provide a written report regarding the status of all fixed and variable rate debt and the Agency’s
interest rate swaps on a semi-annual basis to the Finance Committee and to the Commission.

The report, for the period ending December 31, 2019, is attached for your information and
acceptance. Listed below is a summary of the report.

Fixed Rate Debt

While no new fixed rate debt was issued, staff refunded the 2010 Capital Facilities Series A
bonds with the 2019 Capital Facilities Series A bonds. Final numbers for the project participants
include the following:

NPV Savings: $2.4 million through final maturity

Percentage savings: 9.55%

Average annual savings: $635k

Reduced final year of maturity from August 2025 to August 2024

Variable Rate Debt

The Agency had a total of $83.64 million of outstanding variable rate debt. The Agency’s
variable rate debt is structured with a Letter of Credit with Bank of America. On average, the
reset rates continue to trade better than the Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (SIFMA) for the Series A bonds. The reset rates and index comparisons are
included in the attached report.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of December 31, 2019, NCPA had $83.64 million of outstanding swaps, all related to the
Hydroelectric Project bonds, which act as a hedge against the variable rate debt. The total
market value of the interest rate swaps was a net liability of $16.8 million (negative). This
amount declined from the June 30, 2018 net liability of $15.8 million (negative) due to a drop in
interest rates. No new swaps or defaults have occurred in the last six months. The interest rate
swaps make up approximately 31% of the outstanding Hydroelectric Project debt portfolio.
Additional details of the swap agreements are provided in the attached report.

Counterparties

The counterparty for both interest rate swaps is Citibank, N.A. The credit ratings for Citibank,
N.A., are A+/A1/A+ by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch, respective. There have been no changes
since the last report.

Rating Changes
There have been no changes since the last report.

SR: 116:20



Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2019
February 11, 2020
Page 3

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total projected savings over the life of the interest rate swaps was $13.9 million at the
inception of these agreements. Total projected savings through December 31, 2019 was
$6.9 million with actual results at $11.9 million. The difference between expected savings
and actual savings is due to “basis risk”, or the difference between what NCPA pays on
the variable rate bonds and the index rate used in the swap transaction. Total basis risk
to date is positive, resulting in additional savings over those expected of $5 million. Staff
continues to monitor the potential for refinancing these bonds and terminating the swaps,
however, the large mark-to-market payment due to Citibank, N.A. of over $16.8 million
(net) is making a potential refund not a feasible option at this time.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on February 11, 2020 and was
recommended for Commission acceptance.

Respectfully submitted,

, (2 gl
gANDY . HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments:
- Debt and Interest Rate Management Report as of 12-31-2019

SR: 116:20



6T0C ‘TE 19qWiad3Q Jo sy
110doy Judwddeue|A 2ley 1sa2493uU| pue 1gad

AIN3IV HIMOd VINHO41TVI NHIHLHON

VdON

AON3IDV J118Nd V



M3IAIBAQ sdemg aley 15a4a1u|
M3IAIDAQ 103 21eY 3|qeliep

MB3IAJIDAQ 193(Q 91eY paxi4
J91ua) Aduaug 1poT -
saly[1oed |ende) -
103[0.d 214329|904pAH -
109l04d |eWIRYL0D) -
Jo9lo4d Ag malAIanQ 199Q

SIY3IY3SIH As))

S]UauU09 JO d|gel



€ 6T0C ‘I€ 12quiadaq Jo sv Jioday Juawabpupy aipy 134U} '8 1gad
Aduaby samod piuiofiip) uiaylion

'VAON 40 3|joid ysu enjeA Jieq z2 GSVO 8y Joa)a1 useoq ,
‘6102 ‘L€ JoquieoaQ Uo uoj|jiw g 91$ 0 anjeA anneBsu e 0} 610Z ‘gz dunr
uo uoljiw g'G|$ o anjea aanebau e woly pabueyo sdems Buipuelsino ayy uo LN 9YL

‘pajel Ajybiy surewal Auedisjunod sy} pue palinbal usaq
sey Auedisjunod ayj Aq Bunsod |eiaje||oo ou ‘swes ay} paulewal sbunes Apedisjuno)

'Pa1IN220
aAeY 1q9p d)el a|qelieA Jo ajel paxl) ‘sjuswaalbe dems anoge oy} Japun s)neep ON .

‘awes ay} paulewsal syoaloid |je uo sbuney
‘Hodal )se| ay] aduis palindoo sjuswaaibe
dems Buipue)sino 1o jgap ajel ajqelieA 1o paxiy Aue 0} sabueyo |elejew aaebau oON .

'$20¢ ¥snbny 0} GZoz isnbny woly Ajinjew

JO JeaA |eul} ay) aleulwl|@ 0} a|qe sem Buipunjal ayj ‘uolippe u| ‘spuoq papunjs.l

0 %GG 6 10 uol|jiw 'Z$ Jo sbuines AN e pazijeas sjuedidiped josfoid sy “spuoq
V Saleg salljioe jeuden 0L0Z 8y} Jo Buipunjal ay} pajojdwod yejs ‘Jaquiadaqg U] .

6T0¢ 1aquwiadaq — 6T0Z AInr

SIHOIMTHOIH A



12310dd A9 M3IIAYIANO 1930



S 6107 ‘TE 12quiadaq fo sp 110day Juawaboupyy 210y 152423u] 9 1Gad
Aouaby 1amod biuiofiip) uiayLIoN

¥eoeiLiL - %091 000°0€S'9L$ 000°0£G'21$ Sjey-paxi4 Jdwex3xe]l V S8u8S 90T

ceoeiiL 110¢iiL %68¢'C 000°0/5°c$ 000'0L6'T13 Sjey-pexi4 Jdwex3xel v saues Zi0Z

6LOC/ /L - %0006 0$ 000°019'GeS Sjey-poxid dwex3-xe] ¥ Ssues 600C
led

Aunjep jeuy ajeg ey  sbuey uodno) azig anssj adAj uodno) smejg xej sauag

Buipueysing

$HOORNQ aiqels “+VIvILY T{Jrsiy) sBugey
199Q Pelold [puusyioas Buipueising jo Alewwing

N Gri9G SrI9G yenjn
& GOEE9 00000 aiL
=3 T AMOS  GoBERY G06E ¥ eig) Bjues
g 0€881 0g8g 2 BYjIAGSOY

01020 5180 eL9IS-Sewn|d

Wwwzs 00000 08519 o}y ofed

0L89°¢ 0189'¢ sodwon

WS ooszol 008Z 01 1po]

wnys — OVL9€ 0¥/9°€ fingsplesH

09£€0 0S6€0 Aejpus

WWSS  gszz0 0/220 sb6ig

wwog 50889l GZ8g 9l epawely

VSOUIS 9102V SOU9S ZL0Z = mww_w._uuuﬂwm WW.MHMMN oquisp

ad1aiag Jgaq J0efold [euLayjoes

safiejuaniad uonedioie Joalold jeuLIsjoss

M3INIRAQ 199 193l0ud |[ewiayloan



610C ‘TE 12qWasadg \0 Sp 140day Juawaboupyy 310y 153431Uf % 1933

3 Adouaby Jomod DIUIOfIIDD UI3YIION
€20z flqelieD-uoN  %000°6%000¥% 0000LE'SES 000'05C'6€$ gjey-pexi4 Jdwexgxel  y SoudS 6107
6L0T/LIL a[qe|feD-uoN %0SET 0$ 000°0¥€'1$ ajey-poxi4 s|gexe] g seues 8L0T
yZoziLiL a|qe|eD-uoN %000°S 000°066'65% 000°G/8'89% ajey-pexi4 Jdwiexg-xe} v seues g0z
veoziLiL SJoUM-BNeI %0CEY  0000C)'2$ 000°0Z1'2$ ajey-paxiy s|qexe] g Seuss Z10Z
2E0TiLIL ceaehiL %000°S 000'G99'9/$ 000'699'0/$ ajey-pexi4 Jdwexg-xe| v sSsues ZI0g
zE0T L jueund ={%618€) 1A 000°0¥9'ce% 000°091'G8% gjey-e|qeues Jdwexg-xe| v seues 800z

‘ , Jed ; ‘
Auniep jeuly aleg ey  sbuey ucdno) Buppuesing 9218 onssi adAj uodnod snjejs xej salag

SHCORNQ 2AqRIS “VVI-ILeY :(4/sM) sBuney
3[0.1d 9L1}9930.pAH BUIPUEISING jo Alewiung -

N

S 0
e%\o/«a

o
NSV VI N VI I VI
envzo &zo O&zo &%.a, Aw.a, »vzo &v@ Aw.nw szo ,:a Aw,z avz

. W 0%
- 0691 BLISIG-SEUN|d
098G BIE[D BlUeS
W 02s 0007 9flirasoy

0c6ce Olfv Ofed

W 0eS B0ET 20dwo]

02€°01 1po]

WAOFS 099’} Bingspjeey

0801 Aojpug

Wi 0SS 0010 sbbig

B0001 BpelUBly

V SOURS 6LOZ W SOLISS L0Zm € SUSS ZIOZ ™ W SAISS ZLOZw v SOUIS 800Te (2) aseys Juswepyuy Joquiapy

a21A198 1q2( 109l01d 2UID91e0IpAH sabrjuaciad uonedioiped joafoid ouioala0ipAH

MIIAIDAQ 103 103l0.d 211309|204pAH



610Z ‘TE 13qWaaq Jo sp 110day Juawaboupyy a1y 1S3431Uf 9 137
A2U3BY 12MO(d DIUIOSIID) UI3YLION

07 0 0
%5 B9

3 mn
00'G80°'Z81%
pexi4
{(-wyi+vizev)
%060 ¥20Z '1Z sunp VN <wwwwm
‘BIUOUNY 10 Mueg
(ozisziLo

jo se) Andx3 901 i3piaoid 501 sauss
jesay

adA) 1920 elold 21poaja0ipAH jo umopyealg

Aewwng Ajipinbi 10efoig ou3oae0ipAH

(+vi+vicey) %¥G0 v/ SOUBS
MOAMON  000°0V9'e8$ 000'09L'58%  (€25Ti2'91%) TEML  YOFTILL  FOTILE + 304l %0618°C 8002
"W N Suequig -asn 10 %¥S
Aypedigquno) [euonoN [euoRoN 6i/ierRijosy)  aeq 8jeq aeq SaARORY o :
sfed YdON  saueg
yueg juaun) reniv anfep LW Rumep eAgoeys  epeip YdON

fApwwing demg josfoid syosjaoipiH

M3INIDAQ 1G9 103l0.d 214103|204pAH



6107 ‘'TE 12qWalaq fo sp 110day uawWabbupyy 210y 152433U] ® 19330
Aouaby 1amod piuiofijp) uiayLionN

yZOz/LIg - %000'G 000°0s¥'02% 000°0S¥'02% ajey-poxi4 ydwexgxe| v seuss L0z
Jed
Aunjew reuig ajeq e aBuey uodnon Buip 8zi§ anss] adAj uodnoy smels X8| sollag

syoopnQ Aaels “ ALY H{J/s/n) sBuney
1920 senioe 4 jeyde) Buipuejsing jo Alewing

— W O$
W LS
WIN 2§
WIN €§
WIN +§
mneg  059€ o
00 Jodwon
mwwes  0G6E L.
0061 Epewely
v S31135 6107 m (%) aseys Juswepnuly Joquueiy

ad1AIag 1GaQ SanIdeS jejides sabrejuaoslad uonedidiued saniioe jejiden

MIINJIBAQ 193Q Saill|1oed |eyide)



6T0Z ‘TE 12quia3a( fo sp 110day Juawaboupy 210y 153491uUf 9 1Gad
Aduaby Jomod piuiofiin) uidylioN
Apisqns gy'g Jo ssoib ajei jsaleju) ‘spuog eouswy pling ajqexel ()

GEOZ/A9 SIOUMSNBIN . %B/9G%0E9Y 000'GZZ0LLS  000'SZCOLLS ajeypoxi4{ sgvdejqexel g ssues Loz
SHOORNQ 8iqelS * /WVV/ZeY J(4S/M) sBuney | ¥MayD—g dnoto aumuapuy)
ST0Z9 - %0/2T 000°0£0'8E% 000'026'85% ajey-paxi4 Jdwexg-xe]  yssues /i0g
ov0Z/L9 sjoypm-e L %bLEL 000'GCo'941$  000°GZ9'9/1% ojey-pexi4  sgvgeigqexel g seuss gL0g
020z, 0TOZ/LIG %000'G 000°0LC'9% 000°0EE'8S ajey-pexi4 Jduexg-xe] ¥ Seuss pLOT
SYOORNQ 21qeIs VYLV -(4/s/m) sBugey | y dnoi aumuapuy
Aunep feuty  jjeD eN abuey uodnod wﬂ.ﬂw:saao ozIg anss] adA] uodno) smels el seuag

192 19juay ABiaug 1po Buipuejsing jo Arewwing

O R R R e e i i oregtL 00099 1vas
TS FSTFE TP P ¥Zaly 6199 VduMd
WAHOS  yg0p7) 16810 BLSIS-SewN|d
- eviiol amn
W 5% oLoge 16811 yenin
8851 ov 00G2°6¢ BIB|D BlUBS
L6Vo'E 1560°¢C sodwo
s S TALA 00056 po
8r¥6C LA gt GingspiesH
WSS zizge €¥96'L Aojpug
z08v0 62920 s66ig
(woponpey W 0ZS 9E66'¥ 1981C esnzy
%2 9 Joj pajsnipe) Apisans gvd 40 19N RS 1ga0 g dnolD AMuapuy| i 000 €€ UMao
, (uoonpa: (%) aseys 3s0D (%) aseys JoquIBI

%¢ 9 10} paisnipe) ADISaNS gvd 10 19N 93RS 1690 v dnoto aimuspulm ydnoio puj  juswapiug

921A49g JqaQ Jejua) ABsaug ipo]

sabejuasiag uonedioipied 537

MIINIDAQ 192Q J91ua) ASJau] 1poT]



ot

6T0Z ‘T€ 12qWianaq fo so 110day Juawaboupyy 210y 153433Uf 9 1gad
Aouaby 1amod piuIofiin) uiaylion

1odaJ 1se| aouls a3ueyd oN —
ssulley e
t20¢ 1snSny 01 GZ0Z 1SN8ny wou) Ajlunjew Jo JeaA |eul) paonpay e

JeaA 1ad y)gg9$ "xoudde :sBuines |enuue 93eUaAY e
%GS'6 -Spuoq papunjal Jo SSUIABS 95e1UDIUDd e
Ajlunjew jeul) ysnoayy uoljjiw ¢S :sSuines AdN e
:3UIMmO||04 ay1 apn)dul syuedidilied 1aload ay3 4oy
sJaquinu |eul4 ‘Spuoq VY Sal4as sall|ioe4 jexde) 0T0Z aY1
pPapunial }Je1s ‘panssi Sem 1gap a1eJd Paxij Mau ou I|IYM —

199 21eY paxid e

MIINYINO 1930 31V a3xXid



T

6102 ‘TE 1aquia23( Jo so 10day 1uawWabpup Yy 310y 153433U[ 9 1G3d

"BOlIaWY JO Yueg YMm Japiaoad

D07 2y} se pade|dai sem |ealjuolp Jo yueq 6L/¥Z/9 dAROAYT |

-VV/+V/Zev
¥202/12/9
dq o°g¢
edliawy JO yueg

(3au) jenuuy-1wag

(3au) jenuuy-1wog

(%¥s +i0qi7 Ajyguows Jo
[%PS uo paseq) ajes Buneojld

SOAII3Y VdON

%618'¢ @ paxig

sBuney ypai

ajeq uonesidxg

994 |enuuy

, 48p1roid 31pai) jo 1ana/AIpinbin

Auediajunon

VdON
'S a) Juswied

Auedisjunog o] jwol4

sAed VdON sjuswihed

dnoubnin :Aued-193unon demg
Ajypuop juowed
Apream pasud

000°091°68$ junowy

1990 8jey d|qeuHeA

V8002 04pAH

Aouaby 1amod pIuI0fijn) uiaylion

M3INYINO 1830 31VY FT19VIHVA



[4*

mv/

N N
Ao?

6107 ‘TE 12quwiazaq Jo sp 110day Juawabpuby aipy 15a4a3uf 9 1930
Aouabyy 4omod pIuiofiip) Uiaylion

VNS s S]EY 19S8Y YQ(00T e

@0

Q
o &

N O Q
@ Q @
O ,,,o/./
Q&

/01
NN

N QN
N0
¥ ¢ @

4.1
S 3
© ©

¢
N

o

NN O & O O
& S & S g O
N
o

S
N I\ N

o o

MIIAIBAQ 1g3(Q d)ey 3|qelieA YdON

MB3INIBNQ 1g2(Q 91y d|qeliep

0c0

0’0

090

080

00l

(VA

o'l

09’}

08l



Variable Rate Debt Overview

NCPA Variable Rate Debt Performance Versus Indices

6T/T€/TT
6T/1€/0T
61/T€/80
61/0€/90
6T/0/10
61/82/20
81/T€/TT
8T/T€/0T
81/1€/80
8T/0€/90
8T/0€/¥0
81/82/20
Lr/1e/ct
LT/1€/0T
LT/T€/80
LT/0€/90
LT/0E/Y0
L1/82/20
9T/1€/TT
91/1€/01
91/1€/80
9T/0€/90
91/0€/t0
91/62/20
ST/1€/21
ST/1€/0T
ST/1€/80
ST/0€/90
ST/0€/%0
ST/82/20
v1/0€/CT
¥1/0€/0T

¥1/0€/80

2008A Reset Rate == -+ <SIFMA
13

Debt & Interest Rate Management Report as of December 31, 2019

Northern California Power Agency



vl 6102 ‘T€ 12quiadaq Jo sp 1ioday
uawaboupyy 210y 153421Uf % 1gag  Auaby 4amod DIUIOfI|0D UIdYIION

sdulaes [endY § 3 V 800ZT—  s3ules pauueld § 3 VY 8007—

FEE LSS
000°000°$
000°000v$
000°000°9$
000°0008$
000000°01$
000000°2T$
000°000°T$

000°0009TS
uoljiw 6'TTS :@1ep 03 SBUIAES [enjoy

uoljjiw 6°9$ :33ep 0} sBuines padafoid e10L
uoljjiW 6'ETS :SPUOQ JO 41| JA0 sBuines pardafoid |e1o)

6102 ‘T€ J2qwadag
aje( 0} duewiopadd sdems 103foad 211323]904pAH
Aduady Jamod ejuioyije) uidYyuoN

M3INYINO SdVMS J1VYH 1SIHILNI



6107 ‘TE 43quiadaQ Jo sp 10day Juawabpupyy 210y 153431U] '8 1Gad

QT
Aouaby 1amod DIuIOfiinD) UidY1ION

) MO A MmN o .

(e16'222'919%) +w [+ ] IV “W'N JUeqmo 000091 'G8% 000091 'c8%
yaid
610Z/iereL | 4%S / sApooN  Apedisjunod jeuonoN Juang  '2UOBON
anjeA WL sbuney yueg feniuj
Auediayunon
%S0 + o ; sou 1000¥CL LP00C de

ceoe/LiL 800212/ Y00CIPCILE HOSIT-aSN 10 %FS %0618°C V800¢ sales VdON MS

%ed Aoﬁw e aje(q aped UE]] Aed juai spuog awe adAL
fumep jed jed Opeil  SIAIDITY JUSHD d Judijd pajeInossy N uonoesuely

aAIda3
081196 §ig Xed

00197296 Gl¢ -euoud

0711 siosiapy demg Widd

MBIINIDAQ sdemg dley 1S9491U|



91

6102 ‘TE 1aquia23Q Jo s 140day 1uaWabDUDYN 310Y 1S2431Ul '8 1G]

A2UaBy 43MOd DIUIOJIIDD UIBYLION

(s12'2628) (g0s'zov'es) (e82'iss'te)  (6c9'ove$) (0g6'vve'cs) (co9'cees)  (oov'eig'ty)  (19Z'zres) (zov'es¥'L9) (rz0'v65'v1L$)
“Bupms dq og
%¥0T %20°L2 %00°ClL %69’} %TETT %0E'2 %LE 0L %997} %01 - anjep
yenin BiE|D BJUBS  OJ[IASSOY  BLID|S-Sewn|d oY oped soduion 1po Bingspjeay epawely Wi uo
1oeduw 3oL
(091'zres) (loz's0z'9%) (60.°2L0'C$)  (oGh'eszs) (PLZ'vr8'cd) (692'c8es)  (ole'eel'te)  (szv'sLed) (162'1L9'19) (e26'222'919)
%Y0'Z %20°Le %00'Z1 %69°L %Z6'ZT %0E°2 %LE0L %994 %01 mﬁw_ﬁw’a '
yenin BIR[D BJUES  QIA9SOY  BLI9|S-SEWN|d oNy ofed sodwon 1po1 Bingspjeay epawely .
000091 '68$
foe %GO+ . 1000%Z1 L ¥00Z P
000091686  Z£02/L/L Y00Z/¥TIL1 SOSI-GSN 10 %S %0618°S V800 Sauas Vo demg e s
0T siosiApy demg Wdd
jeuononN spuog adAyL
waunn e Rumew  sjeg spesl  SIAIBIIY D Ked yuand pejeIoossY auweN uopdesuel]

MBIIAIBNQ Sdems aley 1S9.491U|



6107 ‘T€ 412qwanaq Jo so 1ioday Juawaboupyy 310y 153433u] 8 13

LT
Aduaby Jamod piuiofiip) uiaylion

P
@ E % % Ny N % (@ © % @a & @, o % &

(00000052}
{000'000°02)
{0o0‘000’sT)
{000000°01)

(000000}

anjeA Jled 1IN dems v800¢

MBIIAIBAQ Sdemg aley 1S2493U|



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 11, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Robert Caracristi (e

Manager of Information
Services and Power
Settlements

Division: Administrative Services

Department: Power Settlements

METHOD OF SELECTION:

N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

|

X

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

X

X

City of Biggs

X

City of Gridley

X

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

X

X

X

O

X

X

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X X 0O

X

o O

SR: 121:20




Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2021
February 11, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 20-22 adopting the updates and modifications to
the Nexant Model as proposed by staff in order to allocate budgeted costs to members for
Fiscal Year 2021.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Commission accepted and approved the Nexant Power Management Allocation
Study Phase lla Report (‘Final Report’) on January 28, 2010 as part of Resolution 10-16. This
study, supervised by the Facilities Committee, determined the methodology for allocating
various program costs related to Power Management, Settlements, Risk Management and
information system activities using a Nexant Cost Allocation Spreadsheet Model (otherwise
commonly referred to as the “Nexant Model”), which changes or modifications to is governed by
the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement, costs attributed to
Power Management and Administrative Services for the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Budget are
allocated to members in accordance with the Nexant Model. This model has been in place at
NCPA for the past ten budget cycles and is updated each year as part of the annual budget
process. The Nexant Model methodology was developed in part to allocate various budgeted
costs that use, among other things, defined allocation parameter percentages and determinants
intended to correspond to the amount of time and effort required by NCPA staff to provide
applicable services. Determinants prescribed by the Nexant studies for use in the Nexant Model
include metered demand, resource energy schedules related to each day ahead, hour ahead
and real time market, as well as contract deals that represent agreements for the purchase and
sale of various products including long-term and short-term energy, resource adequacy
capacity, and renewable energy credit transactions.

As NCPA'’s business model, computer application systems and members’ needs have evolved
over time, staff have identified the need to adapt or refine various determinants used as inputs
into the Nexant Model. To ensure that inputs into the Nexant Model represent accurate
measures of time and effort performed by staff for use as allocators, staff proposes to exclude
certain contract deal information from its deal capture system as described in the table below.

Table 1: Proposed adjustments to determinants used in Nexant Cost Allocation Model

Proposed Change Reason for Change

Include only deals that have | NCPA's deal capture system accounts for contracts arranged
deal status of ‘Finalized’ or with counter parties for the purchase or sale of energy and
‘Verified’ deals in NCPA'’s capacity transactions.

Deal Manager system, |
thereby excluding any
‘Submitted’ deals from input
into the Nexant model.

Deals logged into NCPA's deal capture system with a
‘Submitted’ deal type status represent an inactive state until
they are subsequently reviewed and updated to reflect
‘Finalized’ or ‘Verified’ deal status, at which point they are
queued into NCPA'’s scheduling coordination operations for
scheduling and/or settlement processing.

SR: 121:20



Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2021
February 11, 2020
Page 3

NCPA staff, however, have more recently expanded the use of
the ‘Submitted’ deal record status as a means to record certain
contract deal information not intended for processing through
NCPA'’s scheduling coordination operations.

This proposed change ensures that Submitted deals are not
included as inputs into the Nexant Model, as they do not reflect
any incremental time or effort performed by NCPA staff.

This proposed change to the model is necessary to align the allocation of certain budgeted
costs for services consistent with cost causation principles. Further, the scope of this proposed
change to the Nexant Model is intended to be a prospective change only and effective for Fiscal
Year 2021, as well as any future year to the extent that the current Nexant Model is used.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The recommended adjustments will result in a change to all applicable members’ allocated
share of Power Management costs by varying amounts. Table 2 of Appendix A provides
indicative changes in allocated Nexant Power Management costs to members based on current
Fiscal Year 2020 budget after applying updated Calendar Year 2019 determinants to the model
in addition to the modifications described in Table 1 as presented at the February 5, 2020
Facilities Committee meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee meeting on February 5, 2020
and recommended for Commission approval.

espectfully submitted,

5 |

ANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Resolution 20-22

SR: 121:20




Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2021
February 11, 2020
Page 4

Appendix A

Table 2: The table below represents indicative, allocated Nexant Power Management Costs to
members and participants for FY 2021 based on the final version of updated calendar year 2019
data and using current Fiscal Year 2020 budgeted costs for comparison purposes, as presented
at the February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee meeting. These results incorporate the proposed
change in Table 1 of the staff report. Note: a positive / (negative) value represents an indicative

increase / decrease to a member’s cost.

Member Name FY 2020 Total FY 2021 Total increase
Power Mgmt Power Mgmt (Decrease)
Alameda $978,797 $1,000,966 $22,169
BART $820,186 $921,479 $101,293
Biggs $62,850 $80,742 $17,892
Gridley $98,754 $112,937 $14,183
Healdsburg $192,707 $198,508 $5,802
Lodi $1,200,028 $1,076,893 ($123,135)
Lompoc $322,785 $376,694 $52.910
Palo Alto $1,761,063 $1,770,938 $9.875
Plumas Sierra $355,986 $321,657 ($34,329)
Port of Oakland $491,850 $523,990 $32,140
Roseville $494,392 $492,260 ($2,132)
Santa Clara $3,158,952 $3,134,670 ($24,282)
Turlock Irrigation District $140,689 $128,580 ($12,100)
Ukiah $325,093 $291,925 ($33,169)
$10,404,131 $10,431,239 $27,107
Direct to Programs - LEC $1,364,510 | $1,337,403 | ($27,107)
Power Mgmt Budget $11,768,642 $11,768,642 ($0)

SR: 121:20




RESOLUTION 20-22

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADOPTING THE MODIFIED NEXANT COST ALLOCATION MODEL INPUT DETERMINANTS
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021

(reference Staff Report #121:20)

WHEREAS, the NCPA Commission accepted and approved the Nexant Power Management Allocation
Study Phase lla Report (‘Final Report’) on January 28, 2010 to establish cost allocation of Power Management
and certain Administrative Services related activities among the members; and

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed calendar year 2019 data for input into the Nexant Cost Allocation Model
for Fiscal Year 2021, and recommends adjustments be performed to certain bill determinants to more accurately
reflect their use as allocators as described in Staff Report #121:20 for inputs into the Nexant Power Management
Cost Allocation Model in order to allocate certain budgeted costs to members for Fiscal Year 2021; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the modified Nexant Cost Allocation Model input determinants as described in Staff Report #121:20 as
inputs into the Nexant Power Management Cost Allocation Model in order to allocate budgeted costs to members
for Fiscal Year 2021.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020, by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORN!A POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Industrial Door Company — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for
Commercial and Industrial Door Services; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma 7-;( METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [J] City of Lompoc [J City of Ukiah [
San F'a““i;‘:;i'g?’rg::; 0 City of Palo Alto [1  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []

City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 123:20



Industrial Door Company — 5 Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-14 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Industrial Door Company for commercial and
industrial door maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members.

BACKGROUND:

Commercial and industrial door services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of NCPA facilities, and those of our Members and SCPPA. Industrial Door
Company is a new vendor for NCPA. NCPA’s Geothermal staff contacted Industrial Door
Company because they have worked near the Geysers area. After having met with this vendor,
staff recommends that NCPA enter into an enabling agreement with Industrial Door Company so
established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on
future projects. Execution of this enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified
vendors willing to work in the more remote location of NCPA’s Geothermal facility, which will
result in more competitive bidding when services are needed. NCPA has an enabling agreement
in place for similar door services with Barton Overhead Door, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the overall best value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on February 10, 2020, and was approved.

SR: 123:20



Industrial Door Company — 5 Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Industrial Door Company

SR: 123:20



RESOLUTION 20-14

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH INDUSTRIAL
DOOR COMPANY

(reference Staff Report #123:20)

WHEREAS, commercial and industrial door services are periodically required at the facilities owned
and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, the Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Industrial Door Company is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Industrial Door
company to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Industrial Door Company, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for commercial and industrial door services, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
INDUSTRIAL DOOR COMPANY

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Industrial Door Company, a
corporation with its office located at 10235 Systems Parkway, Suite B, Sacramento, CA 95827

(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of

2020("“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000) for the Work, which shall include
all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency
expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 21



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General. Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 21



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Section 5.

Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

GS-VEN-2020-009

Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 21



5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 21



Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

6.4  Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 21



Section 7.

of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 21



Section 8.

Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency’s written request therefor. Contractor’s failure to
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 ef seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 21



Section 9.

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 21



Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the-
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Section 10. PROJECT SITE.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 21



101

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

1.1

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 21



11.2

11.3

Section 12.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 21



12.56

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. Inthe event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 21



whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Chris Voyvodich

Industrial Door Company

10235 Systems Parkway, Suite B
Sacramento, CA 95827

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 21



13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009

Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 15 of 21



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY INDUSTRIAL DOOR COMPANY

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager JERRY S. FIELDS, CEO & President
Attest;

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 16 of 21



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Industrial Door Company (“Contractor”) shall provide commercial and industrial door
maintenance services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any

facilities owned or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 17 of 21



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Standard Service Rate:

Scheduled work during normal business hours only

1% hour: $285.00 (one man)

Additional hours: $210.00

If a second man is required, add $210.00 per hour

Travel beyond 30 minutes will incur additional charges, which are determined by location
Does Not Include Parts

Emergency Service Rates:

Services required outside normal business hours
1% hour: $425.00 (one man)

Additional hours: $350.00

If a second man is required, add $350.00 per hour
(3 hour minimum charge)

Does Not Include Parts

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA facility locations, NCPA Member locations, or
SCPPA Member locations will be quoted at the time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 18 of 21



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 19 of 21



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

. (Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER. 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI. CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 20 of 21



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

9)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-009
Northern California Power Agency and Industrial Door Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 21 of 21



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NGRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Farwest Insulation Contracting — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California Power
Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesmaf% METHOD OF SELECTION:
?

Assistant General Manager N/A
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [J
San F’a““i;‘;:i'zaTV Area City of PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 124:20



Farwest insulation Contracting — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-15 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into
a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation
Contracting, with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to
$3,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by
SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Insulation related services are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and by SCPPA
Members.

NCPA entered into a five year Multi Task General Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation
Contracting effective December 6, 2019 for an amount not to exceed $500,000. The Lodi Energy
Center is currently in a forced outage and will need continued insulation support services for the
duration of the outage, which will quickly exhaust the amount that is currently remaining on the
agreement. This amendment will increase the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to
$3,500,000. This agreement is still available for use at any facility owned and/or operated by the
Agency, its Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members. NCPA currently has an agreement in place
for similar services with Bayside Insulation & Construction.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $3,500,000 over the existing
five year term through December 6, 2024, to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services
are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be
issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed
at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 124:20



Farwest Insulation Contracting — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on February 10, 2020, and was approved.

spectfully submitted,

N

General Manager

Attachments (3):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Farwest Insulation

Contracting
e First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Farwest

Insulation Contracting

SR: 124:20



RESOLUTION 20-15

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH FARWEST INSULATION CONTRACTING

(reference Staff Report #124:20)

WHEREAS, insulation related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA
Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Farwest Insulation Contracting is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Farwest
Insulation Contracting on December 6, 2019 for a not to exceed amount of $500,000; and

WHEREAS, NCPA'’s Lodi Energy Center is currently in a forced outage and requires insulation related
services for the duration of the outage, which will result in the current agreement running out of funds; and

WHEREAS, NCPA now seeks to increase the not to exceed amount to $3,500,000 to ensure sufficient
funds are available for the current needs at LEC as well as the remainder of the contract term; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation Contracting, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to $3,500,000, for continued use
at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



HORTHEAN CAUFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
FARWEST INSULATION CONTRACTING

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Farwest insulation Contracting, a
corporation with its office located at 1220 S. Sherman Street, Anaheim, CA 92805
(‘Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of _ : , 2014
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section1. ¥ SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11  Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnei.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
Cailifornia Public Power Authority (“SCPPA") or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a

Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2018



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 22



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

4.1

4.2

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

4,23

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agresment between GS-VEN-2016-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 22



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable.

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.
4.5 All Policies Reguirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 22



Section 5.

5.1

5.2

5!3
Section 6.
6.1

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which wouid
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowiedge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 22



Contractor shali indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsibie for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute

Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at

the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/8/2019

Page 6 of 22



Section 7.
71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUI NTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northemn California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/8/2019

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.
8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency's written request therefor. Contractor's failure to
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

N AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of

the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;
8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,

and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 22



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency wouid
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.
Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data,

maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agresment requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential iInformation and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Recelving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 22



9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3,
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of lal In ation. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’'s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern Callfornia Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/8/2019

Page 10 of 22



Section 10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

1.1

PROJECT SITE.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agenay; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, ruies and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-118
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 22



11.2

113

Section 12.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

12.1

12.2

123

12.4

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. ltis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-116
Northemn California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 22



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. in the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 22



whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shali inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 ef seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financiai
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Farwest Insulation Contracting
Attention: Rory McDonnell
672 Enterprise Court
Livermore, CA 94550

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Rosevilie, CA 95678

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 22



13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resoiution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.111 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor’s Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase QOrder
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 15 of 22



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficlaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FARWEST INSULATION CONTRACTING

Date 4 '1'/ b / 19 Date_/ 40 em B 52‘4 0t
Doty & 14y AW

RANDY 5. HOWARD, ' ERIC B. SARMENTO,

General Manager Vice President

Attest:

cretafy“o he Commission

Approved as to Form:

v,

/ 4 ; . >
W s Y Ty
G0y f ol s A

~Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northem California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 16 of 22



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK
Farwest Insulation Contracting ("Contractor") shall provide insulation related services as

requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or
operated by Agency, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or

SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

e Insulation
e Electrical Tracing

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northemn California Power Agency and Farwest insulation Contracting.

Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as foliows:

Labor Rates:

Zone 1 includes the following California counties: Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San
Benito, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano and Sonoma Counties.

Classification Straight Time Overtime Double Time
General Foreman $155.66 $219.15 $282.64
Foreman $152.37 $214.21 $276.06
Mechanic $145.79 $204.34 $262.89
Apprentice 5th $132.16 $184.85 $237.54
Apprentice 4th $120.46 $167.30 $214.14
Apprentice 3rd $102.88 $140.94 $178.99
Apprentice 2nd $80.68 $111.36 $142.03
Apprentice 1st $57.92 $81.33 $104.75

Zone 2 includes the following California counties: Alpine, Amador, Buite, Calaveras, Colusa,
Del Norte, El Dorado, Fresno, Glenn, Humboldt, Kings, Lake, Lassen, Madera, Mariposa,
Mendocino, Merced, Modoc, Mono, Monterey, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, San
Joaquin, Santa Cruz, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Tulare,
Tuolumne, Yolo and Yuba Counties.

Classification Straight Time Overtime Double Time
Generai Foreman $127.85 $177.43 $227.02
Foreman $124.56 $172.50 $220.43
Mechanic $117.98 $162.62 $207.27
Apprentice 5th $107.13 $147.30 $187.48
Apprentice 4th $98.21 $133.93 $160.64
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-116
g:crée;?gl%ad:fgmia Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.

Page 18 of 22



Apprentice 3rd $84.81 $113.83 $142.85
Apprentice 2nd $66.09 $89.46 $112.84
Apprentice 1st $46.79 $64.65 $82.50

Wages Valid through July 31, 2020

Travel Expenses

County Rate | Zone County Rate | Zone
Alameda $11.00 | 1 Placer (west of Highway 49) | $11.00 | 2
Alpine $85.00 | 2 Placer (east of Highway 48) | $31.00 | 2
Amador $21.00| 2 Plumas $85.00 | 2
Butte $85.00 | 2 Sacramento $11.00| 2
Calaveras $31.00| 2 San Benito $85.00 | 1
Colusa $31.00, 2 San Francisco $16.00 | 1
Contra Costa $11.00 1 San Joaquin $21.00 | 2
Del Norte $85.00 | 2 San Mateo $16.00 | 1
El Dorado (west of 49) | $11.00 | 2 Santa Clara $21.00 | 1
El Dorado (east of 49) | $31.00 | 2 Santa Cruz $36.00 | 2
Fresno $11.00 | 2 Shasta $85.00 | 2
Glenn $85.00 | 2 Sierra $85.00 | 2
Humboldt $85.00 2 Siskiyou $85.00 2
Kings $41.00 2 Solano $11.00 | 1
Lake $85.00 2 Sonoma $21.00 | 1
Lassen $85.00 2 Stanislaus $16.00 | 2
Madera $21.00 ] 2 Sutter $31.00| 2
Marin $11.00 | 1 Tehama $85.00 | 2
Mariposa $31.00| 2 Trinity $85.00 2
Mendocino $85.00 | 2 Tulare $41.00| 2
Merced $21.00 | 2 Tuolumne $31.00 | 2
Modoc $85.00 | 2 Yolo $11.00| 2
Mono $85.00 2 Yuba $31.00 2
Monterey $85.00 | 2

Napa $21.00| 1

Nevada $21.00| 2

Material Rates:
Actual invoice cost plus 10%

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested. .

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-118
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

Eric B. Sarmento

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

Farwest Insulation Contracting

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as reguired by the rnia Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project. I 4 ,
2/

(Signature of officer or agent)

ot :
Dated this /- dayof [NoVEM &R 20] 9

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 20 of 22



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 21 of 22



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: //"IZ-’I'% Name of Employer Fakw gt Incu, gT© Cmﬁﬂ-@o erin

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement’ solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

JZ’ %7 ﬁ(#;g Mﬁ-’ﬂ? (/f:?
thorized O
R
AnNBKEIM CA ?'5"%‘39 =
(Address)  /

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest insulation Contracting.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 22 of 22



A PUBLIS AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND FARWEST INSULATION
CONTRACTING

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by
and between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Farwest Insulation Contracting
(“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2020.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated
effective December 6, 2019, (the “Agreement”) for Contractor to provide insulation related services
as requested by the Agency at any facilities owned or operated by the Agency, its Members,
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $500,000.00 to
a ‘NOT TO EXCEED amount of $3,500,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2, all changes to the Agreement must be in
writing and signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2—Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED THREE MILLION
FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($3,500,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all
fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential
Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as
specifically set forth herein.

Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FARWEST INSULATION CONTRACTING

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager ERIC B. SARMENTO, Vice President

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting
Template 6-8-18

Page 10of 2



Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-116
Northern California Power Agency and Farwest Insulation Contracting

Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 2



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/" NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Maxim Crane Works, L.P. — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and
SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma?/ METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [1 City of Ukiah [
San F’a“ci;‘;gi'za%’r:;:iat 0 City of Palo Alto [0  Plumas-SierraREC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland []

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [

City of Healdsburg [J  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 125:20



Maxim Crane Works, L.P. — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-16 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into
a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Maxim Crane
Works, L.P., with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to
$1,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by
SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Crane related services are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and by SCPPA
Members.

NCPA entered into a five year Multi Task General Services Agreement with Maxim Crane Works,
L.P. effective April 4, 2016 for an amount not to exceed $500,000. The Lodi Energy Center is
currently in a forced outage and will need continued crane support services for the duration of
the outage. Staff estimates that this vendor’'s work related to the current LEC outage will exceed
the amount remaining on the agreement. This amendment will increase the not to exceed
amount from $500,000 to $1,500,000. This agreement is still available for use at any facility
owned and/or operated by the Agency, its Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members. NCPA
currently has agreements in place for similar services with American Crane Rental, Inc., Hatton
Crane & Rigging, OST Trucks & Cranes, Inc., Summit Crane Company of Solano, Inc. and Titan
Crane & Rigging, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed amount to $1,500,000 over the
exisiting five year term through April 4, 2021. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed
at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 125:20



Maxim Crane Works, L.P. — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on February 10, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

w*\% "1

General Manager

Attachments (3):
e Resolution
o Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.
o First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Maxim
Crane Works, L.P.

SR: 125:20



RESOLUTION 20-16

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH MAXIM CRANE WORKS, L.P.

(reference Staff Report #125:20)

WHEREAS, crane related services are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of
facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Maxim Crane Works, L.P. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Maxim Crane
Works, L.P. on April 4, 2016 for a not to exceed amount of $500,000; and

WHEREAS, NCPA'’s Lodi Energy Center is currently in a forced outage and requires crane related
services for the duration of the outage, which will result in the current agreement running out of funds; and

WHEREAS, NCPA now seeks to increase the not to exceed amount to $1,500,000 to ensure sufficient
funds are available for the current needs at LEC, as well as the remainder of the contract term; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Maxim Crane Works, L.P., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to $1,500,000, for continued use
at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLST AqIRCT

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTLTASK
. GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
MAXIM CRANE WORKS, L.P.

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (“Agency") and Maxim Crane Works, L.P., a limited partnership, with its office located at 7512
Pacific Avenue, Pleasant Grove, CA 95668 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”)

as of H;”;—H , 2016 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject fo the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11 Termof A_cgeel;nent. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practiioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work, Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein. -

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

14  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this
Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or
SCPPA members.

1.5  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order,
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the
date of the Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. f Contractor agrees to perform

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between ' GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2581400.1



Section 2.

the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not respond within
the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to perform the Requested
Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees fo pay Contractor an amount NOT TO

EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

23

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;
Work performed;
" The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;
At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to Agency's
reasonable satisfaction;
= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employese, agent, and subcontractor of
Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 25678

Attn: Accounts Payable

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the
requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Contract Administrator.

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 2 of 23



25  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work fo submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Se_ctibn 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

41  Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as 1ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.22 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

4,23 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between (8-VEN-2016-019
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Meaxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16 )

2591400,1 Page 3 of 23



43
44

4.5

4.6

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally left blank.

Pollution Insurance. If Contractor's Work invoives its fransporting hazardous materials,
then Contractor shall obtain and maintain Contractors' Pollution Liability Insurance of not
less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) for any one occurrence and not less than four
million dollars ($4,000,000) aggregate. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not
exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such insurance shall
be on “an occurrence” basis.

“Hazardous Materials’ means any toxic or hazardous substance, hazardous material,
dangerous or hazardous waste, dangerous good, radioactive material, petroleum or
petroleum-derived products or by-products, or any other chemical, substance, material or
emission, that is regulated, listed, or controlled pursuant to any national, state, or local law,
statute, ordinance, directive, regulation, or other legal requirement of the United States.

All Policies Requirements.

451 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2 and in
Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the Agency as an additional insured and
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to this
Agreement.

452 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

453 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

the Contractor.

4,54 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement,
Agency shall the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of insurance
and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be
performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Nerthemn California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 4 of 23



4.7

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Confractor, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are and remain covered by
the policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure
that all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Confractor
acknowledges and agress to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Confractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims fo, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between (GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 5 of 23



to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitiement to any confribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee confributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor’s failure fo secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits o its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2  Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an -
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement fo Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to

Mulii-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Revd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 6 of 23



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.
74
7.2

7.3

14

7.5

7.6

ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous Materials
Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Confractor shall, at the same time it

executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only fo certain types of construction,
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar

documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.
Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Confractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and wil maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the

- locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate

of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 7 of 23



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Confractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of
California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard therefo.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required fo submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with appiicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 ef seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Confractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.,

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liabifity between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-01 9'
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2581400.1

Page 8 of 23



8.4

Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 |mmediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant fo this Agreement,

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or -

8.44 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor under this
Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under this Agreement.

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement- between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

Page 9 0f 23



9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

943

9.4.4

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information®, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or frade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential Information to the
other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other
representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection
with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response fo a valid order of a court, govemment or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northemn California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 10 of 23



Section 10.

writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

103

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with the operations of the Agency; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor
is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project
site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to have been
abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by Agency or, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be
solely as an accommodation and neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which
Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability
therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any
equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on
the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new
and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency and, if applicable, the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-018
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001 .

Page 11 of 23



entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, for the
performance of Work.

Section 11. WARRANTY.

114  Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Confractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and
other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

11.2  Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor's failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

11.3  Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

Section 12.  HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
enforce safe work practices, and implement an accidentfincident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all site programs
established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4.

121  Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

12.2  Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety fraining and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 12 of 23



12.3

12.4

12.5

126

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the-
Contractor performing the Work. Confractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency fo Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries fo the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit o the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

Work Provided Pursuant to Section 1.4. If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency
Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this
section) pursuant to Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as
the Agency under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northemn California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 13 0f 23



13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitied. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this

Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of location, would place
Contractor in a "conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq.

" Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this

Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representative. Al
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Maxim Crane Works, L.P.
Attention: Aaron Carrion
7512 Pacific Avenue
Pleasant Grove, CA 95668

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.
Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1

Page 14 of 23



Any written nofice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

138 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. Al
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

1311 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive levél
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, fo
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute. ‘

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P. -

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 15 of 23



1312

13.13

13.14

13.15

m

]

13.114 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any

alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative remedy prior to
either Party initiating legal action. This altemative dispute resolution
process is not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time
periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900

ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Contractor's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Contractor's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Constrdction of Agreement. Each party herefo has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No-Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member. If requested by Agency, such
Member will sign the “Acknowledgement of Agreement”, attached hereto as Exhibit F and
incorporated herein, prior to the Contractor performing Work under the Purchase Order.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between - GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 16 of 23



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY MAXIM CRANE WORKS, L.P.
Date 4/4'{“’ Date 3\‘H‘\L
RANDY S. HOWARD MARK SWANEY/Pr
General Manager West Region

Attest:

Approved as fo Form:

~Assistant General Codnsel

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-018
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1 Page 17 of 23



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Maxim Crane Works, L.P. (“Contractor”) shall provide crane services as requested by the Northern
California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any Facilities owned or operated by NCPA, its Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

Services fo include, but not be limited to the following:

Engineering and Project Management for crane rental projects
Crane and lift training

Engineered crane lifts

Crane rentals and crane rental services

Rigging services

Transportation services -

Heavy lifts/Heavy transportation services

On-site evaluations

Operated and Maintained Crane Rental

Base Crane Rental

Mulii-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 18 of 23



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of

expenses is as follows:

Operated & Maintained Equipment BRough Terrain Cranes "8 hour min
Hydraulic Truck cranes Capacity Hourly Rate  Overtime Doubletime
Capacity Hourly Rate  Overtime Doublstima 80 Ton RT $ 16500 & 205.00 | $ 245.00
40 Ton 5 18500 | 22500 (8§ 265.00 | |50 Ton RT § 180008 22000 % 260.00
50 Ton $ 19500 [$§ 23500 |§ 275.00 | [65Ton AT $ 19000( S 23000 | 8 270.00
60 Ton $ 20500 |$ 24500 | $ 285.00 | |75 Ton RT $ 19500($ 23500( $ 275.00
70 Ton $ 22500 |% 26500 % 305.00 | |80 Ton AT § 205008 24500 | $ 285.00
75 Ton $ 235.00 | $ 27500 | § 315.00 | |90 Ton RT $ 22500|8% 26500 | $ 305.00
90 Ton $ 25500 |$ 29500 8% 335.00 | (100 TonRT $ 245008 285.00 | § 325.00
90 Ton" $ 345.00 | $ 42500 | § 505.00 | |130 TonRT $ 28500| $ 32500 | & 365.00
120 Ton* $ 370.00 | $ 450.00 | § 530.00
175 Ton® $ 30500 |$ 47500 |$ 555.00 | Rough Yerrain Cranes Bare rental
185 Ton" $ 40500 |$  48500{$% 565.00 | Capacity Weekiy Rale  Monthy rate
210 Ton® $ 435.00 | $ 51500 | § 595.00 | |30 Ton RT $ 147000|& 4,400.00
235 Ten* $ 445.00 [ $ 52500 | § 605.00 | |50 Ton RT $ 230000|8 680000
275 Ton* $ 465.00 | $ 54500 | & 625.00 | (65 Ton RT $ 275000|3% 8,200.00
300 Ton® $ 520001$  60000|8% 680.00 | |75 Ton RT $ 310000 % 920000
500 Ton* $ 800.00 | § 880.00 | 8 960.00 [ |80 Ton RT $ 40000018 12,000.00
90 Ton RT $ 490000| S 1450000

Notes: 100 Ton RT $ 5800.00|$ 16,800.00
1. Fuel surcharge included in rate 180 Ton RT § 8,00000| % 24,000.00
2. Bare rental rates are based on monthly = 176 hours
8. 4 Hour minimum port x port (1) man Hyd truck cranes Houry Bate  Qvariime Doublefime
4, 8 Hour minimum port x port (2) man Hyd truck cranes Cwt Trucking $ 12500| 8 165.00 | 208.00
5. Operated and Maintained Rough terrains are 8 hour min. 9 Axie Transport $ 195008 23500 ( § 27600
6. Local 3 rules apply 5AxeTranspot [$ 140.00( & 180.00 | 220.00
7. PermitS are not included in rates * Based on Cwt configuration *Added Cwi trucking applies based on required configuration
Cwt Loads maximum basic ift crane
90 Ton" 1 HTC8ES0 _Excess Crew Time

~|120 Ton* 2 ETM11605.1 "Reducedcwt.  |Operator $ 10500 § 145.00 | & 185.00
175 Ton* 3 LTM1160 5.1 Operator/Ofier $ 20500|% 285.00 | § 365.00
185 Ton* 3 LTM1160 5.1
210 Ton™ 4 GMK5210
235 Ton"™ 4 LTM 1200/1 *All eranes can be configured for required radius and weight
275 Ton* 4 GMK5275 requirenent.
300 Ton* 6 GMK6300
500 Ton® ‘9 LTM 1400 7.1

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locaticns will be quoted at the time
services are requested. '

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.
Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1

GS-VEN-2016-019

Page 19 of 23




EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

I, MARIO BERMUDEZ, Safety Manager
(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of:

MAXIM CRANE WORKS, L.P.

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project. g i)
(Signature o or agent)

Dated this __ 772 dayof_s27a28 20 /b

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-018 .

Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Revd 1/8/16 p
2591400.1 Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICABLE

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person‘signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans in
conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart [ and has conducted employee background investigations in
conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time o time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the Califomia Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20 .

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement befween GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 21 of 23



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that.

1) Itis an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

2 In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are
later made thereto.

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local
trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preciude its full and complete compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement o be Bound, in form identical to this documents, from any
Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform

Covered Work.

DATED: _ 3 ! & } ] Name of Employer W\A\dw‘l\ ( zanld W OYZKS) LP
(Authorized Officey & Ntle
im_@% Reh
(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-018

Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Rev'd 1/3/16

2591400.1 Page 22 of 23



EXHIBIT F

Acknowledgement of Agreement

This Acknowledgement confirms the intent of ,a ("Member”) to
participate in and utilize the Multi-Task Agreement to which this Exhibit is attached, including all other
Exhibits attached hereto, between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency”) and
(“Contractor ") effective , 20__ (*Agreement’). Member has reviewed the terms and
conditions of the Agreement in detail and agrees to abide by them. Itis understood and agreed that
payments for Services by Contractor provided to Member shall be paid by Agency and funded by Member
to Agency pursuant to a Support Services Program Agreement between Agency and Member. All invoices
for Services for Member shall be addressed to Agency.

Further, Member agrees and acknowledges that the terms, conditions, and applicable Exhibits set forth in
the Agreement will apply between Member and Contractor.

MEMBER
By:

Printed:

Title:

Date:

CONTRACTOR
By:

Printed:

Title:
Date:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement befween GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Revd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 23 of 23



A PUBLIE AGENT

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND MAXIM CRANE WORKS, L.P.

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by
and between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”’) and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.
(“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2020.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated
effective April 4, 2016, (the “Agreement”) for Contractor to provide crane related services as
requested by the Agency at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, is Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $500,000.00 to
a ‘NOT TO EXCEED amount of $1,500,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2, all changes to the Agreement must be in
writing and signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2—Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION
FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($1,500,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all
fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential
Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as
specifically set forth herein.

Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY MAXIM CRANE WORKS, L.P.

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager MARK SWANEY, President

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.
Template 6-8-18

Page 10of 2



Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-019
Northern California Power Agency and Maxim Crane Works, L.P.

Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 2



V4

ﬁg A PUBLIC AGENCY
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

J

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Nalco Company, LLC — Ten Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for
Specialty Chemicals and Services; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

February 20, 2020

S

FROM: Joel Ledesma

Division: Generation Services

Department: Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant Gene?a] Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

o o o 0o o X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 126:20



Nalco Company, LLC — 10 Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-17 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Nalco Company, LLC for specialty chemicals and
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years with options to extend for up to a
total of ten years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

BACKGROUND:

Specialty chemicals and related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. NCPA had a previous agreement in
place with Nalco Company, LLC, which is expiring. NCPA recently requested competitive bids for
a project at the CT facilities, and Nalco was one of the prospective bidders. NCPA has utilized
this vendor in the past, and has a good working relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to
enter into a multi-task enabling agreement with Nalco Company, LLC so established terms and
conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. Execution
of this enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and proven vendors for these
types of services. NCPA has additional agreements in place for similar services with CellMark
USA, Inc. (Geo only), Dow Chemical Company (Geo only), SUEZ WTS USA, Inc., and Univar
USA, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,500,000 over five years, with
options to extend the agreement for five additional years for a total of ten years, to be used out of
the NCPA approved annual operating budgets. Purchase orders referencing the terms and

conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible, bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based
on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 126:20



Nalco Company, LLC — 10 Year MTGSA
February 20, 2020
Page 3

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on February 10, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

W\\ \ N
RANDY S.'"HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Nalco Company, LLC

SR: 126:20



RESOLUTION 20-17

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH NALCO
COMPANY, LLC

(reference Staff Report #126:20)

WHEREAS, specialty chemicals and related services are periodically required at the facilities owned
and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA); and

WHEREAS, Nalco Company, LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Nalco Company,
LLC to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities in an amount not to exceed $2,500,000 over five
years with options to extend the agreement for five additional years for a total of ten years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Nalco Company, LLC, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years with options to extend for up to a total of ten years, for specialty
chemicals and services, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
NALCO COMPANY LLC

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Nalco Company LLC (federal tax id
# 82-4607045), a Delaware limited liability company with its office located at 1601 West Diehl
Rd., Naperville, lllinois 60563 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as

of

, 2020 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.
Nonetheless and upon written approval by both the Agency and Contractor, this
Agreement may be extended on a year by year basis for an additional five (5)
years for a total of no more than ten (10) years from the Effective Date.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor will be
provided to the Agency.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 1 of 36



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. The terms of any purchase order (other
than the stated quantity ordered, requested delivery date and deliver location),
release, acknowledgment or other document or communication between the
parties will not apply.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($2,500,000.00) for the
Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in
Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period,;

Work performed,;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 36



2.4  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Work. The additional terms and conditions applicable to Contractor-Owned Equipment
provided by Contractor to Agency on a rental or use basis are set forth in Exhibit E.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$4,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General Liability,
with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $3,000,000.00.
Such commercial general liability will cover sudden and accidental
pollution liability.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or liability,
including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by
the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a
minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured
retention or deductible of no more than $3,000,000.00. This insurance
shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 3 of 36



equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general liability
insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally left blank.

4.4 Intentionally Left Blank

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to liabilities assumed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction below the limits of this Agreement, cancellation, of the policies
referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits up to $5,000,000 maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. Not applicable.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Unless prohibited by law or contrary to the
indemnifications herein Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers'
Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in
favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees,
agents and subcontractors.

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 4 of 36



Section 5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES; LIMIT OF
LIABILITY.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any negligent acts or
omissions, willful misconduct or violation of applicable laws by Contractor, its
officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by the active, sole or
gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be
construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then the
exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous
materials, Contractor shall be deemed to be in exclusive possession and control
of such materials and shall be responsible for any damages or injury caused
thereby, including without limitation any spills, leaks, discharges or releases of
such materials, until Agency accepts delivery at its Site. For the purposes of this
Agreement, such acceptance shall occur after Contractor or its agents complete
transfer of such materials into appropriate containers, machinery, storage tanks
or other storage apparatus identified by NCPA. In the event a spill, leak,
discharge or release requires notification to a federal, state or local regulatory
agency, Contractor shall be responsible for all such notifications. Should
Contractor be required to remedy or remove such materials as a result of a leak,
spill, release or discharge of such materials into the environment at Agency's Site
or elsewhere, Contractor agrees to remediate, remove or cleanup Agency's Site
to a level sufficient to receive a “No Further Action Required” or “Closure Letter”
from the appropriate regulatory authority.

Limit of Liability. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Contractor’s
liability under this Agreement and any related agreement including without
limitation for any breach of contract, warranty, indemnity, liquidated damages,
negligence or tort claims or otherwise shall not exceed $2,500,000.00 during the
Term. This limitation of liability does not apply to third party claims for personal
injury, death or tangible property damage to the extent caused by Contractor's

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 36



Section 6.

negligence or willful misconduct and for the avoidance of doubt third party
includes Agency employees.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

6.2

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’'s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 36



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such Work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 36



7.5 Registration with DIR. To the extent applicable to Contractor's Work, during the
term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is registered with the
Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work consistent with
Labor Code section 1725.5.

7.6 Prevailing Wage Rates. To the extent applicable to Contractor's Work, in
accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general
prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in
which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California
Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In
accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director
of Industrial Relations has determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates
for the locality in which the Work is to be performed; the Agency has obtained the
general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general rate for holiday and
overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be performed for each craft,
classification or type of worker needed to perform the project; and copies of the
prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be made
available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in
performance of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such
payments and shall defend, indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any
and all claims made by the State of California, the Department of Industrial
Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any other third party with regard
thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency’s written request therefor. Contractor’s failure to
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775 to the extent it applies to
Contractor's Work, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency $200.00 for
each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such
work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the
Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of
the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et
seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to Section 1775 to the extent it
applies to Contractor’'s Work, the difference between such prevailing wage rates
and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 8 of 36



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

which each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to
each worker by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to

~ Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the direct costs to complete
the Work that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had
completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Except as may otherwise be allowed in Exhibit E, Contractor
hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the Agency upon agency’s request
at the termination of the Agreement. Except as may otherwise be allowed in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 36



9.2

9.3

9.4

Exhibit E, Agency and Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in
writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-parties to this Agreement any
data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this’
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement. Regardless of the forgoing and only to the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall not be required to disclose or make available
for auditing its cost information or any confidential information of any other
customer of Contractor.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 36



Section 10.

endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, Contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

101

10.2

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency and
other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons and property
thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a Project site,
Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools, equipment,
waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Equipment, tools, supplies left on the Project
site an unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 36



presumed to have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation
furnished by Agency shall be solely as an accommodation and Agency shall
have no liability therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other
motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other
property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All materials and
supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
for the performance of Work.

Nature of Work. Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
The water treatment program does not cover, and Contractor makes no
warranties with respect to, water system biohazards from waterborne pathogens,
including but not limited to Legionella bacteria.

Deficiencies in Work. Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor
shall be obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be
required to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to
perform any Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement.
If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following
completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used
or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material
and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to
Agency's satisfaction. Contractor’s liability under this warranty is limited to
replacement of nonconforming product, repair, or replacement of defective items,
or, a refund of or invoice credit for the product price. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein or otherwise, in no event shall either party be liable
for any special, consequential or indirect damages. Contractor shall not be liable
for any failure caused by Agency'’s failure to follow Contractor’s written

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material

10.3
Section 11. WARRANTY.
111
11.2
instructions.
11.3
used in the Work.
Section 12.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 36



include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. ltis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee,
who jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others,
may be subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 36



12.10

Section 13.

regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

Not applicable.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

131

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 36



13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Nalco Company LLC
1601 West Diehl Rd.
Naperville, lllinois 60563
Attn: General Counsel

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 15 of 36



the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the
benefit of the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third
parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northem California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 16 of 36



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD,
General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission
Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

NALCO COMPANY LLC

Date

MARK KINERK,
Area Vice President, WPS Heavy

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Naico Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-134

Page 17 of 36



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Nalco Company LLC (“Contractor”) shall provide specialty chemicals and services as requested
by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any of its facilities.

Geo Facility Specific Chemicals:

Water Treatment Chemicals: Biocide, Packaged in a 2000 Ib. Tote (265 gal.) #90005.61 and
other chemicals as needed. Incidental to the provision of chemicals, Contractor may also
provide complimentary analytical work including chemicals analysis of substances and water
cooling tower analysis.

CT Facilities Specific Chemicals/Services:

Inspections and Sampling

Contractor will be expected to inspect the Boiler and Water systems during each outage and
provide a written report of each inspection. Photographic documentation of the inspections by
video or still camera may be required. LEC may also require the use of a fiber optics
borescope.

Contractor service representative shall sample all water and steam systems and provide a
certified analysis each quarter or as required by LEC for special circumstances. The sample
streams listed in Appendix G shall be analyzed for complete anions and cations, pH, and
conductivity. Results shall be maintained in an Excel or similar data base. The database shall
be updated at least quarterly.

Corrosion and Deposition Monitoring

The proposed treatments must provide protection from corrosion and deposition, which can
adversely impact power plant efficiency and equipment life. The acceptable corrosion rates at
LEC are as follows:

Carbon Steel/Cast Iron (Tower Circulating Water) < 3.0 Mils per year (MPY) if
corrosion inhibitor is used

Stainless Steel (Tower Circulating Water) < 0.1 MPY

Titanium (Tower Circulating Water) < 0.1 MPY

Carbon Steel/Cast Iron (Closed Loop Cooling Water) <1.0 MPY

Stainless Steel (Closed Loop Cooling Water) <0.1 MPY

Titanium (Closed Loop Cooling Water) < 0.1 MPY

Copper and Copper Alloys (Closed Loop Cooling Water) <0.1 MPY

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 18 of 36



Two (2) corrosion coupon racks are installed, one on the cooling tower circulating water and one
on the closed loop cooling water system.

Additional corrosion coupon racks can be installed at other locations if recommended for
supplemental monitoring. Comparable metallurgical coupons in each system monitored will be
supplied and analyzed by the Contractor on a quarterly basis or more frequently as required by
LEC for special circumstances.

LEC may also require the installation of a deposition monitor such as a Monital or similar device
to evaluate system fouling from corrosion products, microbiological growth, and/or general water
chemistry anomalies. Excessive fouling on any system will require chemical treatment program
change. LEC may also require that no additional charges be billed for installation of an
upgraded treatment in order to meet previously described goals and to protect the system.

Safety Data Sheets

LEC must be provided with a Safety Data Sheet (SDS) for each product proposed. The SDS
will be kept on file at LEC. Chemical providers shall notify LEC of any changes, additions, or
deletions on the SDS prior to the shipment of any product following the change. Upon
acceptance and approval, the new SDS must precede product delivery by US Mail or
accompany the product at the time of delivery. All product actives must be identified by its
common chemical name, with the corresponding Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) number, in
addition to the vendor's identification on the respective SDS.

Shipment and Storage of Chemicals

Freight charges shall be included in the cost to supply the proposed chemicals. LEC requests
that treatment chemicals be supplied in reusable totes or drums where feasible. The base totes
can be refilled by bulk truck or portable shuttle totes.

If drums or barrels are proposed, Contractor shall provide for removal and/or disposal of the
empty container from the site. Any NCPA name and address stenciled on the container shall be
removed prior to the removal of any such container from this site. Failure to comply with this
provision may result in the discontinuation of any contract or agreement between LEC and the
Contractor.

All totes, drums, or pails must be clearly labeled with the Contractor ID and product name. The
labels must be able to withstand the environment for the time the container is on site and in use.
Contractor shall perform an annual audit of all labels and placards to ensure that text is legible
and current.

Service Plan

The costs for water treatment chemicals are important to a power plant’s overall costs. Of equal
importance to these costs is the quality of support from the Contractor. The plant considers

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 19 of 36



specialty chemicals and services as an investment. Expert oversight must be provided to
provide an acceptable return on the plant’s investment. Service must include a plan to provide
value-added expertise, insight, and support to ensure that the specified chemicals are used
optimally.

Full-day service visits to the site are required at least once per week. More frequent site visits
may be required in order to meet the service requirements detailed later in this section.
Contractor is responsible for determining site visit frequency based on service and reporting
requirements.

Service and Reporting Requirements

The general requirements of the Service Plan shall be documented in periodic Contractor
service visits and subsequent reports. A detailed description of the required services and their
frequency appears in Table 1-1 on the following pages. The required reports appear in Table 1-
2 later in this section.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 20 of 36



Table 1-1. Required Services and Frequencies

Risk management services focused on
worker and environmental safety.

Safety, Health, and Environmental
communications and Safety Data Sheets as
required to ensure safe application of the
chemicals provided

Product application specifications to ensure
safe application of the chemicals provided

Emergency response during chemical
transit, chemical spills, or other events
impacting worker and environmental safety.

System survey describing chemical

application points, water treatment

processes and uses, and water flow
diagrams

Meet annually with plant contact, review
chemicals used and associated personnel
and environmental exposure risks. Review

SDS.

Provide copies of SDS and Product Bulletins
for any chemical proposed or used on site.
Verify that all SDS and Product Bulletins are
the most recent versions. SDS and Product
Bulletins shall be updated at least annually.
Provide electronic copies of any other Safety,
Health, and Environmental communications.
Review and update such communications as
necessary.

For each product, provide electronic copies of
a written description of proper product
dosage, method to calculate or monitor

dosage, any environmental limits on product
application, and other information requested
by the plant contact to ensure safe application
of chemicals provided. Review and update
product application data at least annually.

Provide no less than two Contractor
emergency contacts and no less than one 24-
hour emergency response phone number to
plant contact. Review and update contact
information as necessary.

Provide a one-line diagram of the whole-plant
water system labeling all major equipment
and chemical injection points. The plant’s
current “chemical one-line” can be updated if
desired (requires Microsoft Visio).

Provide this information to the plant contact.
Review and update system survey at least
annually. Update the Chemistry Manual at

least annually.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-134

Page 21 of 36



Program administration manual including
general chemical information, general
process information, information on specific
chemicals used or proposed for use,
troubleshooting and test procedures,
chemical feed system information, and
information required to support operation,
maintenance, and installation of any
Contractor-provided equipment

Provide a written Chemical Program Overview
for each treated system including a Chemical
Program Description for the system and a
Chemical Product Description for each
chemical used.

Provide Feed System Data Table for each
chemical feed system including the Chemical
Name, Storage Tank Volume, Metering Pump

Capacity, Chemical Density, and Chemical

Injection Point Location.

Provide Chemical Limits and Troubleshooting
information for each system. Include a table
listing each system’s chemical parameters,
their control limits, and the action levels
associated with each control limit. Also
include a brief description of each system’s
chemical parameters, what causes the
parameter to change, and recommendations
for corrective action based on the different
action levels. For each system, provide a
General Troubleshooting Table listing each
chemical parameter, the common causes or
sources of high or low readings, the corrective
actions for high or low readings, and the
consequences of high or low readings.

A printed and electronic copy of the Chemical
Limits and Troubleshooting information shall
be provided to the plant contact. Information
shall be reviewed and updated at least
annually. Format shall be reviewed with the
plant contact at least annually and updated as
directed by the plant contact.

Provide written and electronic versions of all
Program Administration Manual data to the
plant contact. Review and update at least

annually.

NOTE: The plant already has this
documentation. Contractor shall be
responsible for either creating necessary
documents or updating existing plant
documents. Existing documents can be

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-134

Page 22 of 36



provided in the native file format (MS Word or

MS Excel).
Service plan describing the frequency of site The service plan is contained in this
visits, specific services to be performed document. Any additions, deletions, or
during each visit, and the frequency of changes must be approved by the plant
recurring service items. contact. Review this document with the plant

contact and obtain plant contact signature at
least quarterly (unless Low Service Level is
selected, in which case review is performed
annually). Both Contractor and the plant
contact shall maintain copies of the signed

document.
Wiritten service reports for each site visit Service reports for all site visits provided in a
describing services performed, problems weekly report.
found, action taken, recommendations for
plant action, and planned follow-up.
Provide chemistry data trending software Provide chemistry trending software.

Software must be capable of importing
existing plant database (Excel format) to
ensure that previous historical data is
retained, and also exporting to Excel or a .csv
file.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 23 of 36



Provide monitoring, control, corrective
actions, and detailed chemistry evaluation
for plant water systems.

Inspection of water and steam systems
during operation or during outages with a
written report detailing equipment status and
recommendations. In-service inspections of
evaporative cooling towers shall be
performed at least monthly. Such
inspections shall include a visual inspection
of cooling tower hardware.

Review logsheets and trends for all plant
water streams or systems (provided that the
data is available to Contractor). Provide an

analysis of each system describing chemistry
issues and concerns, recommendations for
corrective action, recommendations for
control improvements, and a discussion of
relationships between chemical control
parameters. This monitoring program shall
include normalized monitoring of demin
system reverse osmosis units. Contractor
shall perform the normalization calculations
and retain them in the same database used to
retain other plant chemistry data.

Perform a detailed review and analysis of
each system’s chemical treatment program.
Review the treatment program design,
purpose, and efficacy. Evaluate and propose
alternative chemistries, including cost
analysis.

Printed and electronic report shall be provided
to plant contact weekly. The report shall
include trends and an analysis of control
capability for each parameter (percent in

control, for example) with recommendations
for improvement for any parameter with less
than 80% of readings within the target range.

Review report format with plant contact at
least quarterly. Update or change as directed
by plant contact.

Meet with plant contact at least monthly to
determine the need for inspections in the
following month.

Provide a written report of inspection results
within four working weeks of the inspection.
Printed and electronic report shall be provided
to plant contact.

Review report format with plant contact at
least annually. Update or change as directed
by plant contact.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northemn California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-134

Page 24 of 36



Monitor and provide a written report of
chemical consumption versus budget
consumption for any Contractor-provided
chemical.

Water and deposit analyses performed at
Contractor off-site laboratories provided that
such water and deposit analyses are
required to verify the proper operation of
Contractor-provided goods and services.

Metallographic analyses performed at
vendor off-site laboratories provided that
such metallographic analyses are required

to verify the proper operation of Contractor-
provided goods and services. This service is
normally performed on failed equipment, so

is not required at a specific frequency.

Utilize spreadsheet to report actual chemical
consumption (pounds or gallons) and actual
chemical cost for each month for each
Contractor-provided product. The written
report shall compare chemical usage versus
consumption for each product. The written
report shall describe the reasons for deviation
from target usage and corrective actions
required (if any) to restore chemical usage to
targets. Printed and electronic report shall be
provided to plant contact at least monthly.

Business review performed at least annually
describing the total value of all goods and
services consumed, the estimated
expenditures for the coming year, projects or
project work completed with supporting data
for any cost savings achieved as a result of
this work, and technical and financial goals for
the coming year.

Review report format with plant contact at
least quarterly. Update or change as directed
by plant contact.

Obtain water samples from Contractor-treated
systems quarterly. Obtain deposit samples
from Contractor-treated systems, if required,

as they’re available during outages or upsets.

Contractor is responsible for providing sample

containers.

Provide written analysis and sample results
within four working weeks of sample date.

Obtain samples from Contractor-treated
systems, if required, as they’re available
during outages or upsets. Contractor is
responsible for providing packaging and
shipping recommendations.

Provide written analysis and sample results
within four working weeks of sample date.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-134

Page 25 of 36



Provide operator, supervisor, and manager Provide training annually. Laboratory
training on basic water chemistry, laboratory = procedures training shall consist of a single a
procedures, cooling systems, HRSG pre-scheduled laboratory procedures

systems, and pretreatment systems. Topics demonstration in which the Contractor
to be approved by plant management two representative shall meet with available plant
weeks prior to date of training. Train operators to perform wet chemistry and
personnel as directed by plant management. demonstrate the proper wet test procedure to
Schedule at least two different training the operators for each wet test performed.
sessions covering the same material to
accommodate shift schedules. Document persons trained, date, and time.

Training length shall be at the discretion of the
plant contact, but will normally be designed to
last approximately four hours. Provide
training records to plant contact in electronic
and printed format.

Report on condition and operation of Visually inspect each chemical feed system
chemical storage, feed, and control and each chemical feed control system at
equipment least annually. Provide recommendations for

feed and control system improvements.
Identify necessary repairs or safety issues.
Verify that SDS are stored at, on, or near
each chemical storage tank. Verify that tank
labels and placards are legible and in good
condition. Correct any deficiencies.

Summarize findings in a written report to the
plant contact.

Review report format with plant contact at
least annually. Update or change as directed
by plant contact.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-134

Page 26 of 36



Provide corrosion rate monitoring of Report shall include both general and pitting
corrosion rates (provided that corrosion

recirculating and closed loop cooling
systems. Corrosion coupon results shall be monitoring equipment is installed and
operable for the monitored system). Coupon

maintained in a Vendor-provided database.
Such database shall be updated and exposure time for recirculating shall be
provided to the plant at least quarterly. Both  approximately one year. Closed loop cooling
parties shall mutually agree upon corrosion system coupons shall be exposed for
coupon metallurgy. approximately 90 days. Corrator analysis
may be substituted for corrosion coupons if

approved by plant contact.

Printed and electronic report shall be provided
to plant contact at least quarterly.

Review report format with plant contact at
least annually. Update or change as directed
by plant contact.

Provide, recirculating and closed loop Provide sample sessile and planktonic
bacteria counts, bacteria metabolic residuals

cooling system biological control monitoring
and bacteria speciation analysis at least
quarterly. Reports shall include
recommendations for improvement, cost
analysis of biological treatment programs, and
evaluation of current program efficacy.

Printed and electronic report shall be provided
to plant contact at least monthly. The
speciation analysis shall be included in the
monthly report.

Review report format with plant contact at
least annually. Update or change as directed
by plant contact.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134
Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Page 27 of 36

Rev'd 7/9/2019



Table 1-2. Required Reports and Frequencies

Weekly reports include the following: The reports listed below will normally be included in
the body of one weekly service report. The monthly
service report will normally be divided into several
sections including:

Chemistry Monitoring and Control
Cycle Chemistry
Cooling Systems
Pretreatment Systems
BOP Water Systems
Inspections (if any)
Operational Review

Monthly reports include the following: The reports listed below will normally be included in
the body of one monthly service report.

Chemical Usage and Consumption
Cooling System In-Service Inspection

Quarterly reports inciude the following: The reports listed below will normally be included in
the body of one quarterly service report.

Corrosion Monitoring

Annual reports include the following: The reports listed below will normally be included in
the body of one monthly service report with the
exception of the Business Review which will be
distributed separately.

Business Review

Chemistry Evaluation

Chemical Safety Audit

Chemical Storage, Feed, and Control Equipment
Chemistry Manual Updates

Special reports include the following: Outage inspections of water and steam systems
Deposit samples
Specially requested water samples
Metallographic analysis
Training presentations

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 28 of 36



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated

amount of expenses is as follows:

Pricing for products not specified below will be quoted by Contractor at the time the product is
requested.

Geo Facilities Specific Pricing:
1. Nalco 90005 Algaecide (Biocide), Delivered in 265 gallon IBC Totes, Price = $6.00/Lb
2. Nalo H-130 Macro-fouling Biocide, Delivered in 265 gallon IBC Totes, Price = $4.50/Lb
Prices above include shipping/freight costs, but does not include Sales Tax.

CT Facilities Specific Costs:

1. Analytical Cost: $32,332/year

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 29 of 36



Sampe | Samples : v
Number | per Year Lotabon Cogda Cosi asch Annual Cose
i 4 [Di-Cyde Makeup Waier (Demin) STEAM _ § 208 _§ Ba2 |
Fl & D Conderaass Puisher INFLUENT (Iocal) SICAM 208 B2
F] [ 13- Condensaie PHERS Lomd Smuen SICAM & ) 7]
L 7 & P Feeaw aler BOP GTEAM & 08§ e
E q U7-HP reodwaler HRSG STEAM & 208 532 |
3 4 08 LP Drum Waler STEAM 3 208 § BaZ |
Fi [] 10-1P D W aier STEAM % g 32 |
] 4 12 HP Separaior Waler STEAM % 208 § BA2 |
] i T3-HP Wain Steam STEAM % 208 B |
19 4 151D Neain Stearm [shared w¥10) STEAM__ § 208 % B2 |
13 [ T LP Man Sieam (shaed Wi 12 STEBM % 208 % a2 |
14 [ 16 Hol Aeheal Steam STEAM  § 208 ¢ B |
15 q 11-1P Rotor AF Cooler Wabar STEAM & 208 e
16 4 00 LP Rator Alr Couler Waisr STEAM __ § e §
17 i 04-Condensale Polsher EFFLUENT (iocal) STEAM % 208 %
EE 4 17-LP Rolor Ar Ccoolr Seam STEAM % 208§
[ 20 [ 14 1P Rolor A Cooler Sieam ETEAW  § 208
2 3 FF Feadwalar BOP STEAM & 208 % B3z
2 4 15 Conderasia BoP STEAM 200_%
= [ 2-Aut Bolier Sieam STEAM 208 § ]
24 [ 15-Alx Bioller Dram W aser BLR 355 1,420 |
25 & i Waler RN RECHL  § 02 § 1.608
27 ] TATC Waler DNA (1] $ 116 % dEL
o T [ECTCWDMA j:L#) 3 16§ FL |
2 4 Evap Covier DME B 5 116 5 |
30 4 T Waler Sessiia HioSWE  $ 168 &2
a1 [ LEG GCW Sesthe BICSWE & 168 FH
a2 4 Ewap Conler Sesale BIOSWE & 68§ &2 |
] 4 Ciosed Loop. Wid S18el Goupon {Para 5.2) Comosion__$ 22§ B4 |
34 [ Closed Loop: Copper Coupah somosicn & 22 § ]
35 i Closed Loop: Tisnmum Corosion 22 ¢ 7]
3% i Closed Loop: SIRiNass Sieel CoJpon Comosion 22 % 2
a7 4 Circ Waler: Mid Siesl Coupon Cormosion_ § 2 § 23
38 1 G%ﬂwﬂn Coirosion _ $ 22 22
39 1 Circ Water: Tianum C Cofrosion 22 ¢ 2
R S . ————— | S T—1
41 ! ELA 200 SIGAN & 28§ ]
42 4 FiC E:100 Permeale STEAM 5 e % _eap |
[%] 4 P E200 Permeate SICAM _ § 208 % B |
44 4 RO £300 Permaate STEAM__ § e %
45 1 P EAOD Permeats SICAM 8 208 % B |
(13 [l Sericewaler MAKEUP % ZEE ¢ 1,162
a7 P Waler WAKEUF & e % 1362 |
3 3 LEC CCW RECIRC _ $ 402§ 1,608
Annual Sampling Pr m Cost (TOTAL) | § 32,332
| $/quarter | § 8,083

2. Service Plan Cost: $34,000/year.

3. Specialty Chemical Supply Cost: First year is based on rates in table below and is
subject to escalation per the Price Adjustment Formula below.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 30 of 36



Lodi Energy Center |

LbiVeor Y ear
Chemioal Pt o || n:i% Containes Sice oo (Frgy 1O550d 0 TBosed on ﬁ"%ﬂ
- - - - - = - Caxe) = Cosel T Ie
Polymesiflocoularm TGS 116333 20 A 200-paflon durior PORTA-FEED retif s255 2338 45364 Yendor
RO Arti=soalont PC-H1T  PC-1017.36 50 S0 §5~gal Mini PORTA-FEED rehil $4.01 N #1367 Vendor
B0 Low pH Cleanes PL-87 PU-81.33 5% bywol asneeded 200-gal refill dunior PORTA-FEED retifl $2.27 2.2 $4. 794  Verdos
HO High pH Cleaner PC-a7 PE-97.7% B4 bywol asneeded §5-gat drum .80 o0 $1.260 NiA
Biovide o1 PL-N38  SDppm asneeded S5l Mink refifl $5.33 s 333 Plant
Biovide (Long-teem) PC-58 PC-58.36 2Sppm  asneeded 55-gal Mini PORTA-FEED vofill $2.87 54 #1855 Plant
Rrvti-Foam TS PLRS TS5 PLUS.N as neocded S-galion pails, as needed $7.96 B2 1,051 Ria
Conosion nhibitor 3048y 3OT487.33 5.0 &0 200-gat Junéor PORTA-FEED $2.67 5208 $13.805 VYaondow
Mineral Divparsant Rk Hia b NA Msparaand 45 in SOT4ET 30,00 5 0 Vaendor
Miuodial Dispensans 355 7355156 5.0  asnoeeded 55-galdium, a5 aeaded, nol staged on site 2,27 13 20 NiA
Noon-Duidizing Bincide  H-550 H-550,81 W00  asnesded  Sohuz vne. ax needied. not siaged on sie 15.02 ] 0 L)
Comouion inkibiver  TRACO  YRACKHWO.IS 2900 2.500 ESgulbore drusn $5.12 e 532 A,
Mow-Dheidicing Bovile  H-G50 H-HS0, T 1006 Sgyal parids Fin wany shot o sddition #1.51 47 541 L
Cheppen Seavenge med b N 5.0 0.0 Segal pails lor ey doy ook lilling #8.97 m $1.260 WA
Phosphate (hor Draml  BY-2400 BY-2400.36 120.2 50 S5 gl Wiy velifl 1o TI0 gal Mini base vank $3.99 49 #1954 Vendor
Miciobixt DNepersort 73551 7355156 5.0 MR 55900 retwnuble drum 227 579 $.3M Hin
Blowide BTABRER BIT0.56 W.o WA S5-god retusnable drum $2.85 1,957 43,309 NiA
Sikios Inhibaor J0715r JI0TIHTS warlns vaies  S-gol deum, oz needed to CLNG TWR, not on sl §2.58 B 0 NiA
[sma” ]
L em New
Chemical s, L m n}ﬁ%‘ Contatnar Size st (Fimy Beeme o (Bosed on W
- o - | - - - . Casel . Casel | ~
RO Aner-sealan PC-11T  PC-1217.36 50 50 55~gu) Mind cofill to T10-gl Mind base tank 4.0 Plaryt
B0 Low g Chegner FC-87 FC-87.15 B5~guk resurnabie drom 22 Wi
P High pH Cloam PC-37 PC-a7.15 B~k rerurnshie dvom .80 Nif
Bloide -1 PL-1136 55-gat Mini relil to Ti0-gsl Mini base 1ank +5.33 Plant
Bigoide [Long-term) FC-56 PLY56.36 S8 g sl Mini relill to TH0-gal Mini base tank $2.87 Flomt
Corrosion hibsor TRACHE TRACIA.MT S=gal pails for easy shot pot sddition BN N
Caustio (255 B35 873538 15-gal MICRO rofill to 30-gal Minie base tank  $B.87 ‘Wendos
Himirie 382 352.38 BE-gat Mind rolill to 0-gal Mind base cank 3528 Yeondor
Orggen Seavenges  ELIMINDN  ELIMENOIN, 38 S5-gal Mind vefill 1o T5-gal Mint base wank .20 ‘Mandoy
Phosphare Do Drus)  BY-3400  BY-3400,36 F8~gub Mind relill 1o 180-giul Ming hase 1ank 4398 Wendeor

Price Adjustments:
In December 2020, and each December following, the product, analytical, and service prices will
be reviewed. Any adjustments will become effective the following January 1st.

The following price adjustment formula will be used for chemicals, with an allowed price
adjustment range no higher than 6% and no lower than 1%. Analytical and service prices will be
limited to increases of 1% to 6%.

% Price Adjustment = 50% Labor + 50% Chemical, where

Labor = NAICS Employment Cost Index (CIU2010000000000l)
Chemical = 55% PCU325 +

20% WPUO061 +

15% WPU067905 +

10% WPU061303

In addition to any periodic price adjustment provided for in this Agreement Nalco may increase
the prices for the Products or Services if, at any time during the term of this Agreement, an

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 31 of 36



Extraordinary Inflationary Disruption occurs. Extraordinary Inflationary Disruption is defined as
an increase in delivered costs beyond the control of Nalco of at least ten (10%) percent and
sustained over a three-month period. In case of such an Extraordinary Inflationary Disruption,
Nalco may increase the price of the Products up to the full amount of the percent increase in its
costs (raw materials, freight, labor or energy) by giving Customer at least thirty (30) days written
notice. The baseline for determining such increase shall be on an individual product basis. If
Nalco’s costs decline back to a baseline level, Nalco is allowed to maintain product prices at the
elevated level for the same period of time Nalco previously maintained pricing prior to the
hardship price increase. If Nalco’s cost declines but to a level above baseline, or increases
further, on a Quarterly basis, Nalco will monitor product prices to reduce and increase prices to
the same extent of the decline or increase in costs after an Extraordinary Inflationary Disruption
occurs to Nalco.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement befween GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 32 of 36



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

Nalco Company LLC

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD,. LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN
AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE
CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 33 of 36



EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

Nalco Company LLC

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD. LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20 __

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE

FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE

PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 34 of 36



EXHIBIT E

Contractor-Owned Equipment Terms

For equipment (including Porta-Feed units, 3D TRASAR, OMNI, Purate, and Pareto equipment
and other proprietary equipment of Contractor and any associated computer hardware or
software) furnished to Agency on a rental or use basis (the “Equipment”), the following terms
and conditions shall also apply.

1.

Equipment shall remain the sole personal property of Contractor even though Agency may
attach Equipment to realty. Contractor may cause such Equipment to be marked to indicate
its ownership, and Agency agrees to provide reasonable cooperation by executing any
financing statements Contractor files with respect to the Equipment. Agency shall take no
action which is inconsistent with Contractor’s title to the Equipment, and shall not move,
encumber or alter the Equipment without Contractor’s written authorization. Agency shall be
responsible for any personal property or use taxes associated with the Equipment.

Agency shall not use the Equipment with any materials or products other than those
recommended or approved by Contractor. The proper functioning of the Equipment is
conditioned upon Agency operating it in accordance with Contractor’'s recommendations.
Agency shall install and provide the utilities necessary for the Equipment, and will provide a
suitable location for the Equipment, including but not limited to shelter, tank pads, spill
protection, foundations, etc., as appropriate. Agency shall receive, unload, place and
remove Equipment at no cost to Contractor and should be responsible for procuring any
necessary permits or licenses for such actions. With respect to Porta-Feed units, Agency
agrees to provide access for a standard truck (min. 40 feet end-to-end, 14 feet high) to be
driven safely to an area (e.g. loading dock) in the vicinity of the base tank to offload refill
units.

Agency shall not alter the Equipment without Contractor’s written authorization. Agency
assumes all risk of loss or liability arising from or pertaining to its possession, operation or
use of the Equipment, except to the extent damage is caused by Contractor’s negligence or
willful misconduct.

Agency shall allow Contractor to subcontract portions of work to be performed under this
Agreement with respect to data-hosting, transmission of data through internet service
providers and related service providers.

Contractor shall have the right to inspect and service Equipment during normal business
hours.

Upon termination of this Agreement by either Contractor or Agency, Agency shall collect and
load Equipment on Contractor’s truck at Agency’s in the same condition as received if returned
prior to full term of this Agreement or five (5) years of use, ordinary wear and tear excepted. In
the event any equipment returned prior to five (5) years of use, and such Equipment is lost,
damaged or destroyed, Agency shall pay to Contractor the cost of replacement, or of repair at
Contractor’s standard charges then in effect. During the term of this Agreement, the
Equipment will remain the exclusive property of Contractor.

Agency shall promptly notify Contractor of any material change in Agency’s status, including,
but not limited to, change of address, desired Equipment location, close of business.
Contractor reserves the right to pay prevailing wage but use non-union labor for specialty
work including supervisory, testing and service of Equipment that does not fall under the
terms of the Lodi Energy Center Project Maintenance Labor Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 35 of 36



10. Agency agrees to inform Contractor of any special or unusual safety precautions that should
be taken because of conditions in Agency’s plant or process.

11. Notwithstanding anything in any agreement or otherwise to the contrary, all data generated
or collected by the Equipment that is transmitted to Contractor (or to a Contractor third-party
provider) is owned by Agency but Agency hereby grants to Contractor a non-exclusive,
royalty-free license to use that data for NCPA purposes only and cannot be used by Nalco
for other clients or uses.

12. Each party will retain responsibility and liability relating to security measures and authorized
or unauthorized access to its computer/IT systems that it owns or controls. This paragraph
does not relieve either party from responsibility or liability to the extent of its fraud or willful
misconduct.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-134

Northern California Power Agency and Nalco Company LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 36 of 36



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date February 7, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of the Services Agreement between Northern California Power Agency

and Nevada Irrigation District.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

=

¥

Division: Power Management

Department: Power Management

FROM: Tony Zimmer /;"/_(;r

Assistant Genéral Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

o O 0O 0O 0O

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi
City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 122:20




Approval of Services Agreement between NCPA and NID
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Commission approval of the Services Agreement between the Northern California Power
Agency (NCPA) and Nevada Irrigation District (NID) (the Service Agreement), pursuant to which
NCPA will supply scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services to
NID, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. Staff also recommends that the Commission authorize
NCPA'’s General Manager to execute the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of NCPA,
including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be approved by
NCPA'’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

NID issued a Request for Information on April 9, 2019, seeking proposals for scheduling and
dispatch services for NID’s Deer Creek Powerhouse. In response to NID’s Request for
Information, NCPA submitted a Statement of Qualifications and proposal to supply scheduling,
control center, and reliability standards compliance services for NID’s Deer Creek Powerhouse.
On September 3, 2019, NID formally selected NCPA'’s proposal. Pursuant to subsequent
discussions between NID and NCPA, NID also requested that NCPA supply scheduling and
dispatch services for NID’'s Combie South Powerhouse.

DISCUSSION:

Staff, in coordination with NID, has developed a Services Agreement under which NCPA will
supply scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services for NID’s Deer
Creek Powerhouse and Combie South Powerhouse. The key provisions contained in the
Services Agreement included a defined scope of services, terms for compensation, and terms to
limit NCPA’s liability.

A copy of the Services Agreement is attached to this staff report for your reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

In consideration for NCPA'’s provision of services, NID shall pay NCPA an amount equal to
approximately Thirty Four Thousand Dollars ($34,000.00) for Services rendered during the first
one (1) year period. For each subsequent one (1) year period during the term of the Agreement,
the amount charged to NID will be escalated at a rate of two percent (2%) per year.
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation provided herein was presented to the Facilities Committee on February 5,
2020, and was recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 122:20



Approval of Services Agreement between NCPA and NID
February 20, 2020
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

¢

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution 20-13
e NID Services Agreement

SR: 122:20



RESOLUTION 20-13

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF THE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
POWER AGENCY AND NEVADA IRRIGATION DISTRICT

(reference Staff Report #122:20)

WHEREAS, Nevada Irrigation District (NID) issued a Request for Information on April 9, 2019, seeking
proposals for scheduling and dispatch services for NID’s Deer Creek Powerhouse; and

WHEREAS, in response to NID’s Request for Information, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)
submitted a statement of qualifications and proposal to supply scheduling, control center, and reliability
standards compliance services for NID’s Deer Creek Powerhouse; and

WHEREAS, on September 3, 2019, NID formally selected NCPA'’s proposal; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to subsequent discussions between NID and NCPA, NID also requested that
NCPA supply scheduling and dispatch services for NID’'s Combie South Powerhouse; and

WHEREAS, NCPA staff, in coordination with NID, has developed a Services Agreement under which
NCPA will supply scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services for NID’s Deer
Creek Powerhouse and Combie South Powerhouse; and

WHEREAS, the key provisions contained in the Services Agreement included a defined scope of
services, terms for compensation, and terms to limit NCPA's liability; and

WHEREAS, in consideration for NCPA's provision of services, NID shall pay NCPA an amount equal to
approximately Thirty Four Thousand Dollars ($34,000.00) for Services rendered during the first one (1) year
period, and for each subsequent one (1) year period during the term of the Agreement, the amount charged to
NID will be escalated at a rate of two percent (2%) per year; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves the Services Agreement between the NCPA and NID, pursuant to which NCPA will
supply scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services to NID, including any non-
substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.
Furthermore, the Commission of Northern California Power Agency authorizes NCPA’s General Manager to
execute the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the
Services Agreement as may be approved by NCPA's General Counsel.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-13 -2-



SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND

NEVADA IRRIGATION DISTRICT



Table of Contents

SECtiON 1. RECITALS ..ooiiieiiiiecrrteersece ettt st s s e e s e s s s e ae e s e s an e s s n e s se st e s san s 1
Section 2. DEFINITIONS. ...t iiieeiiee ettt se e s s et e e s e s s r e e e sa e eas 2
Section 3.  PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT .......cetiiiiiiiiieiiiriie et e e e 5
Section 4.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE ..........cccocerrnnnne 5
Section 5. TERM AND TERMINATION .....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniieee et 7
Section 6. INDEMNITY ...oooiiiiiiciereinie ittt st e st s e e st e s ne s an e e e e snesan 8
Section 7.  COMPENSATION .....ooiiiiiiiriiiiiiiiciie ettt s s e s s a s sre s s an s s nn e se e 8
Section 8. BILLING AND PAYMENT ....ccumiiiiiiniiiiiiitiienin e ees e et 8
Section 9. COOPERATION AND FURTHER ASSURANCES.......c.coiiiiniiinienecninnisiensneseeeees 10
Section 10. ] o7 U I 1 OO PO PPPIL PPN 11
Section 11. CAISO SECURITY DEPOSIT AND CREDIT REQUIREMENTS ..o 13
Section 12. SECURITY ACCOUNT ....coccuttiiiiciiiini ittt st e 14
Section 13. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES .....cooviiiiiiiiiiiiinniie ettt 16
Section 14. STATUS OF NCPA.......ccocciiiiiiicctir et it s S 16
Section 15. MISCELLANEQUS........cooiiiiiiiiiiicictie ittt ree s s ssaen e s nses e s et 17
APPENDIX A (SCOPE OF SERVICES) ....c.ucoviiniiriintenieniienieniinsseiis st sn s 1
APPENDIX B (COMPENSATION SCHEDULE) .....ccceviiiimiiiieniesini e 1
APPENDIX C (SCHEDULING PROCEDURES)....c.covieiiuiiiintiniintiiiesnie st sie st is e s saesnnsseennes 1
APPENDIX D (OPERATING PROCEDURES) ....ccuiiiiiiiiiiiinnienininsn e 1
APPENDIX E (CUSTOMER RESOURCES)....ccucrueiuiruriiniinintnisnnienesentsensneseesne s sresas s sessessessesnsssensas 1
APPENDIX F (RELIABILITY STANDARDS COMPLIANCE SERVICES MATRIX) .....cccouiemriernenniininnenrenns 1
i

SERVICES AGREEMENT



This SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“NCPA”), and Nevada
Irrigation District, an irrigation district formed and existing under Division 11 of the California
Water Code (“NID”). NCPA and NID are together sometimes referred to herein individually as a

“Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.

This Agreement is made as of , 20__ (the “Effective Date”) in Roseville,

California.
Section 1. RECITALS
This Agreement is entered into based on the following facts, among others:

1.1 NCPA has heretofore been duly established as a joint powers agency pursuant to
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the Government Code of the State of California and, among
other things, is authorized to acquire, construct, finance, and operate buildings, works, facilities
and improvements for the generation and transmission of electric capacity and energy for

resale.

1.2 NID has heretofore been duly established as an irrigation district, pursuant to the
Irrigation District Law (California Water Code section 20500 et seq.), and owns and operates

certain generating facilities for the benefit of its customers.
1.3 NCPA is a certified Scheduling Coordinator in accordance with the CAISO Tariff.

1.4  NCPA has established facilities, staff and the capability for the provision of

Services to NID.
1.5 NID desires NCPA to provide Services to NID.

1.6 NCPA is willing to provide NID with Services pursuant to the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises set forth

herein, NCPA and NID agree as follows:

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT



Section 2. DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions. Whenever used in this Agreement (including the Recitals hereto),
the following terms shall have the following respective meanings, provided, capitalized terms
used in this Agreement (including the Recitals hereto) that are not defined in Section 2 of this
Agreement shall have the meaning indicated in Appendix A Master Definition Supplement of

the CAISO Tariff:

2.1.1 “Agreement” means this Services Agreement, including all Appendices,

attached hereto.

2.1.2 “Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or a Federal
Reserve Bank holiday. A Business Day shall open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m. local

time.

2.1.3 “Calendar Day” means all days, including Saturdays, Sundays or Federal

Reserve Bank holidays.

2.1.4 “California Independent System Operator Corporation” or “CAISO” means
the non-profit public benefit corporation responsible for the provision of fair and open
transmission access, and maintaining reliable and efficient operation of that portion of the
electric grid contained within its defined balancing authority area, pursuant to the California

Public Utilities Code, or its successor entity.
2.1.5 “CAISO Tariff” means the CAISO FERC Electric Tariff.

2.1.6 “Commission” means the NCPA Commission established by the Joint

Powers Agreement.

2.1.7 “Customer Resources” means all properties and assets, real and personal,
tangible and intangible, of NID which are described in Appendix E hereto, and which are,
used or pertain to the generation for resale, transmission, transformation, distribution or
sale of electric capacity and energy, or the utilization of such, including all additions,

extensions, expansions, improvements and betterments thereto and equipment thereof.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT



2.1.8 “Effective Date” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

2.1.9 “Event of Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1 of this

Agreement.

2.1.10 “FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or its

regulatory successor.
2.1.11 “General Manager” means the General Manager of NCPA.

2.1.12 “Good Utility Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts
engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the electric utility industry within the
United States of America during the relevant time period, which, in the exercise of
reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, could
have been expected to accomplish the desired result at the lowest reasonable cost
consistent with NERC or WECC approved business practices, reliability and safety. Good
Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the
exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally

accepted in the electric utility industry within the United States of America.

2.1.13 “Joint Powers Agreement” means the Amended and Restated Northern

California Power Agency Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated as of January 31, 2008.
2.1.14 “NCPA” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

2.1.15 “NERC” means the North American Electric Reliability Corporation, or its

successor.
2.1.16 “NID” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

2.1.17 “Party” or “Parties” has the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto;

provided that “Third Parties” are entities that are not party to this Agreement.

2.1.18 “Reliability Standards” means requirements approved by FERC under
Section 215 of the Federal Power Act to provide for reliable operation of the bulk power

system.

3
SERVICES AGREEMENT



2.1.19 “Scheduling Coordinator” means an entity certified by the CAISO for the
purposes of undertaking the functions of a Scheduling Coordinator specified in the CAISO
Tariff, including, but not limited to, submitting and settling bids, self-schedules, and trades

in the CAISO markets.

2.1.20 “Security Account” means an account established at NCPA pursuant to
this Agreement. The Security Account is established to: (1) make timely payments to the
CAISO under the CAISO Tariff, and protect NCPA from potential NID default by providir.ng
funds and time to cure, (2) provide working capital for NCPA’s provision of Services and to
bridge timing differences between the receipt of payments from NID and the date
payments are due to the CAISO, (3) satisfy CAISO security deposit requirements, if any, and
(4) provide security against NID default.

2.1.21 “Significant Operational Change” shall have the meaning as set forth in

Section 15.19 of this Agreement.

2.1.22 “Significant Regulatory Change” shall have the meaning as set forth in

Section 15.19 of this Agreement.
2.1.23 “Third Party” means an entity that is not a Party to this Agreement.

2.1.24 “Uncontrollable Forces” means storm, flood, lightning, earthquake,
tsunami, fire, explosion, failure of facilities not due to lack of proper care or maintenance,
civil disturbance, labor dispute, sabotage, war, national emergency, restraint by court or
public authority, any curtailment, order, regulation or restriction imposed by governmental,
military or lawfully established civilian authorities, or other causes beyond the control of
the affected Party which such Party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid by

exercise of Good Utility Practice, due diligence and foresight.

2.1.25 “WECC” means the Western Electricity Coordinating Council, or its

successor(s).

2.2 Rules of Interpretation. As used in this Agreement (including the Recitals

hereto), unless in any such case the context requires otherwise: The terms “herein,” “hereto,”

4
SERVICES AGREEMENT



“herewith” and “hereof” are references to this Agreement taken as a whole and not to any

n s

particular provision; the term “include,” “includes” or “including” shall mean “including, for

”» «u n

example and without limitation;” and references to a “Section,” “subsection,” “clause,”
“Appendix”, “Schedule”, or “Exhibit” shall mean a Section, subsection, clause, Appendix,
Schedule or Exhibit of this Agreement, as the case may be. All references to a given agreement,
instrument, tariff or other document, or law, regulation or ordinance shall be a reference to
that agreement, instrument, tariff or other document, or law, regulation or ordinance as such
now exists and as may be amended from time to time, or its successor. A reference to a
“person” includes any individual, partnership, firm, company, corporation, joint venture, trust,
association, organization or other entity, in each case whether or not having a separate legal
personality and includes its successors and permitted assigns. A reference to a “day” shall
mean a Calendar Day unless otherwise specified. The singular shall include the plural and the

masculine shall include the feminine, and vice versa.
Section 3. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions under which

NCPA will supply NID with Services.
Section 4. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE
41 NCPA Duties. The duties of NCPA under this Agreement are to:

4.1.1 Provide services to NID as fully described in Appendix A hereto for the

Customer Resources identified in Appendix E hereto (“Services”).

4.1.2 Provide to NID, on or prior to December 31 of each year this
Agreement remains in effect, a report of all Services NCPA has provided to NID during the
preceding year (“Annual Report”). The Annual Report shall include a description of each
Service provided by NCPA to NID during each calendar month of the preceding year,

including the information as further described in Section 1.1.7 of Appendix A.

4.1.3 Indemnify and defend NID in accordance with the terms of this

Agreement.

5
SERVICES AGREEMENT



4.1.4 Comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations concerning the
provision of Services, including without limitation all applicable laws, rules, and regulations

imposed or administered by FERC or CAISO.

4.1.5 Otherwise comply, in all respects, with the terms and conditions of

this Agreement.
4.2 NID Duties. The duties of NID under this Agreement are to:

4.2.1 Timely provide certain information to NCPA that is required for NCPA

to perform Services, as fully described in Appendix A hereto.

4.2.2 Make timely payments to NCPA for all CAISO charges and credits for

services invoiced by NCPA to NID in accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement.

4.2.3 Provide staff and other assistance as may be required from time to
time to the extent necessary for NCPA to fulfill its duties as described in Section 4.1 of this

Agreement.

4.2.4 Comply with all requirements of the CAISO Tariff, as applicable, in
respect to the operation and maintenance of its Customer Resources identified in Appendix

E.

4.2.5 Provide security or other deposits required by the CAISO, if any, to

NCPA in accordance with Section 11 of this Agreement.

4.2.6 Initially fund and maintain sufficient deposits in its Security Account,

if any, in accordance with Section 12 of this Agreement.

4.2.7 Make timely payment of all costs associated with NCPA’s provision of

Services, as set forth in this Agreement.

4.2.8 Defend and indemnify NCPA in regards to Services provided to NID by

NCPA, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

4.2.9 Otherwise comply, in all respects, with the terms and conditions of

this Agreement.

6
SERVICES AGREEMENT



4.3  Standard of Performance. NCPA will perform Services using the level of skill and

attention reasonably required to complete the Services in a competent and timely manner that

is consistent with the level of skill and attention employed by other professionals in the field.

4.4 Assignment of Personnel. NCPA shall assign only competent personnel to

perform Services pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5 Time. NCPA shall devote such time to the performance of Services pursuant to
this Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance provided

in Section 4.3, and to satisfy NCPA’s obligations hereunder.
Section 5. TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1 Term. Theinitial term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall continue uninterrupted through February 28, 2022 (the “Initial Term”). At the end of the
initial term of this Agreement, or any subsequent term of this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement shall automatically extend for an additional one (1) year period unless a Party
provides written Notice of Termination pursuant to Section 5.2, of its election not to

automatically extend the term of the agreement.

5.2  Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party at the end of
the Initial Term, or at the end of any subsequent one (1) year extension, by providing written
notice to the other Party at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the end of the current

term of the Agreement (“Notice of Termination”).

5.3 No Effect on Prior Liabilities. Termination of this Agreement will not terminate

any NID ongoing or un-discharged liabilities, credits or obligations of NID, including any
contingent liabilities, credits or obligations, resulting from this Agreement until they are
satisfied in full, or for which NID has provided a mechanism acceptable to NCPA, for the
satisfaction in full thereof. Issuance of any Notice of Termination will not terminate NCPA’s
obligation to continue to provide Services consistent with the Standard of Performance

articulated herein until such Termination is effective.

7
SERVICES AGREEMENT



Section 6. INDEMNITY

6.1 Limitation of Liability. Each Party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold

harmless the other Party, including their respective governing boards, officials, agents and
employees, from and against any and all claims, liability, or loss for injury or death to person,
destruction or damage to or loss of use or diminution in value of property, injury to the
environment, economic consultant fees, and for associated legal costs, fees, and expenses

including attorney and consultant fees, arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

6.2 Notice of Tender. Each Party will provide the other Party prompt notice of any

claim or liability that would trigger the obligation to indemnify and defend the other Party
under Section 6.1. Any such notice must be in writing and delivered consistent with the notice

provisions of this Agreement.
Section 7. COMPENSATION

7.1  Compensation for Services. NID shall pay NCPA the amounts set forth in

Appendix B for NCPA’s provisions of Services to NID in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement. Such amount shall be billed to NID in accordance with Section 8

of this Agreement.

7.2  CAISO Charges and Credits. All charges and credits invoiced by the CAISO to

NCPA associated with Services provided under this Agreement will be charged or credited to
NID, and shall be paid to NCPA by NID in addition to the compensation stated in Section 7.1.
Such CAISO charges and credits shall be billed to NID in accordance with Section 8 of this

Agreement.
Section 8. BILLING AND PAYMENT

8.1 Invoices. NCPA will issue a monthly invoice to NID for estimated and actual
CAISO charges and credits, costs associated with NCPA’s provision of Services, and all other
costs for services provided in accordance with this Agreement. Such invoices will be made

pursuant to the requirements and procedures provided for in this Agreement. The Parties shall

8
SERVICES AGREEMENT



mutually agree in writing prior to the commencement of Services under this Agreement as to

whether NCPA shall issue NID invoices in electronic format, physical format, or both.

8.2 Payment of Invoices. All non-emergency invoices delivered by NCPA to NID are

due and payable sixty (60) Calendar Days after the date thereof; provided, however, that any
amount due on a day other than a Business Day may be paid on the next following Business
Day. Upon and after notice to NID, NCPA may apply NID’s Security Account to the payment of
all or any portion of any past due invoice to NID, provided that application of such funds from
the Security Account shall not relieve NID from any late payment charges pursuant to Section
8.3. To the extent that NCPA applies funds from the Security Account to pay a past due invoice
amount, following receipt of payment of such invoice by NID, NCPA shall deposit the relevant
portion of the payment into the Security Account and credit such deposit to NID. Emergency

invoices delivered by NCPA shall be due and payable as indicated in Section 12.4.

8.3 Late Payments. Any amount due and not paid by NID in accordance with

Sections 8.2, Section 11 and Section 12 shall be considered late and bear interest computed on
a daily basis until paid at the lesser of (i) the per annum prime rate (or reference rate) of the
Bank of America NT&SA then in effect, or (ii) the per annum rate for the Local Agency
Investment Fund published and maintained by the California State Treasurer’s Office for the

quarter or quarters for which payment is late.

8.4  Billing Disputes. NID may dispute the accuracy of any invoice issued by NCPA

under this Agreement by submitting a written dispute notice to NCPA within thirty (30)
Calendar Days of the date of such invoice (“Dispute Notice”); nonetheless, NID shall pay the full
amount billed when due. If NID does not timely submit a Dispute Notice, the invoice shall be
deemed correct. NCPA shall review all Dispute Notices within five (5) days of receipt and reach
a determination of whether the invoice is correct or incorrect within 10 days of receipt of the
Dispute Notice. If an invoice is determined by NCPA to be incorrect, NCPA shall issue a
corrected invoice and refund any amounts that may be due to NID. If NCPA and NID fail to
agree on the accuracy of an invoice within thirty (30) Calendar Days after NID has disputed it,
the General Manager shall promptly submit the dispute to the Commission for resolution. If
the Commission and NID fail to agree on the accuracy of a disputed invoice within sixty (60)

9
SERVICES AGREEMENT



Calendar Days of its submission to the Commission, the dispute may then be resolved under the
dispute resolution procedures set forth in Section 13 of this Agreement. Provided, however,
that prior to resorting to alternative dispute resolution procedures, the full amount of the
disputed invoice must have been paid to an escrow service provider mutually agreed upon by
the parties. Such funds shall not accrue interest, and shall be released only upon a written
statement, signed by the Parties instructing such release; or upon the issuance of a final and
non — appealable order issued at the conclusion of the Dispute Resolution provisions of this

Agreement instructing release of the funds, or a portion thereof.

8.5 Billing/Settlement Data. NCPA shall make billing and settlement data available

to NID upon request. Upon the written agreement of the Parties, NCPA may make billing and
settlement support information available to NID using electronic media (e.g. electronic data
portal). Procedures and formats for the provision of such electronic data submission may be as
established by the NCPA Commission from time to time. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, NCPA may, in its reasonable discretion, require NID to execute a non-disclosure

agreement prior to providing access to the NCPA electronic data portal.

8.6 Examination of Books and Records. NID shall have the right to examine and

obtain copies of the books and records created and maintained by NCPA pursuant to this

Agreement at any reasonable, mutually agreed upon time.

All original reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs,
memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, records, files or other documents or material, in
electronic or any other form, that NCPA prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and
that relate to the Services provided hereunder, shall be stored and maintained by NCPA in
accordance with NCPA’s records retention policies and procedures, as such may be modified

from time to time.
Section 9. COOPERATION AND FURTHER ASSURANCES

Each of the Parties agree to provide such information, execute and deliver any
instruments and documents and to take such other actions as may be necessary or reasonably

requested by the other Party which are consistent with this Agreement and which do not

10
SERVICES AGREEMENT



involve the assumption of obligations other than those provided for in this Agreement, in order
to give full effect to this Agreement and to carry out the intent of this Agreement. The Parties
agree to cooperate and act in good faith in connection with obtaining any credit support

required in order to satisfy the requirements of this Agreement.
Section 10. DEFAULTS

10.1 Events of Default. An Event of Default under this Agreement shall exist upon the

occurrence of any one or more of the following by a Party (the “Defaulting Party”):

(i) the failure of NID to make any payment (other than an emergency addition to
the Security Account pursuant to Section 12.4) in full to NCPA when due, where such failure is
not cured within thirty (30) Calendar Days following receipt of a notice from NCPA demanding

cure; or

(ii) the failure of NID to make any payment of an emergency addition to the

Security Account when due pursuant to Section 12.4; or

(iii) the failure of a Party to perform any covenant or obligation of this
Agreement where such failure is not cured within thirty (30) Calendar Days following receipt of
a notice from the other Party demanding cure, provided that if cure is not reasonably possible
within 30 days, default shall be tolled for up to 90 days so long as the Defaulting Party is
exercising reasonable haste and diligence in pursuit of cure. Provided further, that the 90 day

tolling shall not apply to any failure to make payments specified by subsection 10.1 (i) or (ii); or

(iv) if any representation or warranty of a Party material to the Services provided
hereunder shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made and the Party
does not cure the facts underlying such incorrect representation or warranty so that the
representation or warranty becomes true and correct within thirty (30) Calendar Days of the

date of receipt of notice from a Party demanding cure; or

(v) a material breach of any other term of this Agreement that frustrates or

renders impossible the performance of the purposes of this Agreement.

11
SERVICES AGREEMENT



10.2 Uncontrollable Forces. Neither Party shall be considered to be in default in

respect of any obligation hereunder if prevented from fulfilling such obligation by reason of
Uncontrollable Forces. Provided, that in order to be relieved of an Event of Default due to

Uncontrollable Forces, a Party affected by an Uncontrollable Force shall:

(i) first provide oral notice to the General Manager, or in the case of NID, to the
representative selected by NID, using telephone communication within two (2) Business Days of
the onset of the Uncontrollable Force, and subsequently provide written notice to the Party’s
representative within ten (10) Business Days of the onset of the Uncontrollable Force,
describing its nature and extent, the obligations which the Party is unable to fulfill, the
anticipated duration of the Uncontrollable Force, and the actions which the Party will

undertake so as to remove such disability and be able to fulfill its obligations hereunder; and

(i) use due diligence to place itself in a position to fulfill its obligations hereunder
and if unable to fulfill any obligation by reason of an Uncontrollable Force such Party shall
exercise due diligence to remove such disability with reasonable dispatch. Provided, that

nothing in this subsection shall require a Party to settle or compromise a labor dispute.

10.3  Cure of an Event of Default. An Event of Default shall be deemed cured only if

such default shall be remedied or cured within the time periods specified in Section 10.1 above,

as may be applicable.

10.4 Remedies in the Event of Uncured Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of

Default which is not cured within the time limits specified in Section 10.1, without limiting other
rights or remedies available under this Agreement, at law or in equity, and without constituting
or resulting in a waiver, release or estoppel of any right, action or cause of action a non-
defaulting Party may have against the defaulting Party, a non-defaulting Party may take any or

all of the following actions:
(i) NCPA may suspend the provision of services under this Agreement to NID;

(ii) NCPA may demand that NID provide further assurances to guarantee the

correction of the default;

12
SERVICES AGREEMENT



(i) The non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement as to the defaulting

Party, on ten (10) Calendar Days prior written notice to the Defaulting Party;

(iv) NCPA may utilize the funds available in NID’s Security Account to cure and

default under Section 10.1(i) and thereafter demand replenishment of the Security Account.

10.5 Special Covenants Regarding Security Account. In the event that NID’s Security

Account is insufficient to cover all unpaid past due invoices issued by NCPA to NID for costs
incurred under this Agreement delivered to NID, then, without limiting NCPA’s other rights or
remedies available under this Agreement, at law or in equity, NID shall cooperate in good faith
with NCPA and shall cure the default as rapidly as possible, taking all such reasonable action as
is necessary to replenish its Security Account as provided herein, drawing on its cash-on-hand
and lines of credit, obtaining further assurances by way of credit support and letters of credit,
and taking all such other reasonable action as will cure the default with all due haste. Any such
expedited action by NID shall be without prejudice to any other remedies NID may have at law
or equity, and shall not be considered an admission of the existence of a default, or of any

other item or issue that gave rise to the need for expedited action.

10.6 Effect of Termination or Suspension.

10.6.1 Generally. The termination or suspension of this Agreement will not
terminate, waive, or otherwise discharge any ongoing or undischarged liabilities, credits or
obligations arising from this Agreement until such liabilities, credits or obligations are

satisfied in full.
Section 11. CAISO SECURITY DEPOSIT AND CREDIT REQUIREMENTS

Any credit requirements, including, but not limited to, security, collateral, unsecured
credit, or other deposits required by the CAISO, if any, shall be provided by NID prior to NCPA
providing Services under this Agreement, and shall be maintained as may be required
thereafter pursuant to the CAISO Tariff. Failure to maintain sufficient credit, security, collateral,
unsecured credit, or other deposits may impact NCPA's ability to perform certain Services
under this agreement. NCPA shall maintain a detailed accounting of NID’s credit, security,

collateral, unsecured credit or other deposits. Any changes in credit, security, unsecured credit

13
SERVICES AGREEMENT



or other deposits required by the CAISO Tariff may be provided by NCPA from NID’s Security
Account, and NCPA shall invoice NID within two (2) Business Days for such required amounts,

and will use the funds collected from NID to fund the Security Account.
Section 12.  SECURITY ACCOUNT

Any NID deposits into the Security Account pursuant to this Agreement shall be separate
from and in addition to any security accounts maintained pursuant to any other agreements
between NCPA and NID, NCPA and any Third Person, or any other such security account

required of NID.

12.1 Initial Amounts. Prior to NCPA providing Services, NID shall deposit into a

Security Account held by NCPA an amount equal to the highest three (3) months of estimated
CAISO invoices for the succeeding twelve (12) months; provided, however, that such deposit
may be satisfied in whole or in part either in cash or through a clean, irrevocable letter of credit
satisfactory to the General Manager. NCPA shall maintain a detailed accounting of NID’s
deposit in the Security Account. For the purpose of clarity, as of the Effective Date of this
Agreement the initial amount to be deposited by NID, as required pursuant to Section 12.1,

shall be deemed to be zero dollars ($0.00).

12.2 Subsequent Deposits. Periodically, and at least quarterly, NCPA shall review and

revise its estimate of all costs NID shall be obligated to pay under this Agreement. Following
such review, NCPA shall determine whether NID has a sufficient balance in the

Security Account. To the extent that NID’s balance in the Security Account is greater than one
hundred and ten percent (110%) of the amount required by Section 12.1, NCPA shall credit such
amount as soon as practicable to NID’s next All Resources Bill. To the extent that NID’s balance
in the Security Account is less than ninety percent (90%) of the amount required by Section
12.1, NCPA shall add such amount as soon as practicable to NID’s next All Resources Bill, or as
necessary, to a special invoice to NID. Credits or additions shall not be made if NID satisfies
these Security Account requirements in whole through the use of a letter of credit, provided
that the amount of the letter of credit shall be adjusted by NID as necessary in a like manner to

assure an amount equal to the highest three (3) months of CAISO invoices is available to NCPA.

14
SERVICES AGREEMENT



12.3 Use of Security Account Funds.

12.3.1 If NID fails to timely pay an invoice due and payable pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement, NCPA may use any and all funds deposited into the Security
Account (or utilize a letter of credit provided in lieu thereof) to pay any costs it incurs
hereunder. Should NID satisfy its Security Account requirements in whole or part through a

letter of credit, NCPA may draw on such letter of credit to satisfy obligations hereunder.

12.3.2 If funds deposited into the Security Account, or provided through a
letter of credit, are used by NCPA to pay any costs it incurs hereunder, NCPA, pursuant to
Section 8.5, will maintain a detailed accounting of NID’s shares of funds withdrawn from the

Security Account or letter of credit.

12.4 Emergency Additions. In the event that the funds are withdrawn pursuant to

Section 12.3 of this Agreement, or if the Security Account is insufficient to allow payment of a
CAISO invoice, NCPA shall notify NID and then prepare and send a special or emergency
assessment to NID. NID shall pay to NCPA such assessment when and if assessed by NCPA
within five (5) Business Days of the invoice date of the assessment or consent to and direct

NCPA to draw on any existing letter of credit NID has established for such purposes.

12.5 Accounting and Interest. NCPA shall maintain a detailed accounting of NID’s

deposits into and withdrawals from the Security Account. Monies on deposit in the Security
Account shall be invested by NCPA along with the other funds of NCPA in accordance with
policies set by the Commission from time to time in its sole discretion. Interest, if any, earned

on the Security Account shall be credited to NID’s Security Account.

12.6 Return of Funds. On the termination of this Agreement NID’s Security Account

funds shall be paid to NID within thirty (30) days after the effective date of such termination.
NCPA shall, with the input and coordination of NID, perform a detailed written accounting of
the then outstanding liabilities of NID, including any estimated contingent liabilities, and shall
provide the written report to NID. In the event a dispute arises concerning the amount of
security deposit funds withheld from NID upon termination of this Agreement, the dispute shall

be resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provisions herein. Upon receipt of a

15
SERVICES AGREEMENT



Dispute Notice, NCPA shall deposit all such funds into the account of a mutually acceptable
escrow service provider to hold in an escrow account. Such funds shall not accrue interest, and
shall be released only upon a written statement, signed by the Parties instructing such release;
or upon the issuance of a final and non — appealable order issued at the conclusion of the

Dispute Resolution provisions of this Agreement.
Section 13. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

13.1 Settlement of Disputes. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be

settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, NID and NCPA agree to resolve the dispute in

accordance with the following:

13.1.1 Each Party shall designate a senior management or executive level

representative to negotiate any dispute.

13.1.2 The representative shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to

resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.1.3 If the issue remains unresolved after sixty (60) days of good faith
negotiations, despite having used their best efforts to do so, either Party may pursue

whatever other remedies may be available to it.
Section 14. STATUS OF NCPA

At all times during the term of this Agreement, NCPA shall be an independent contractor
and shall not be an employee of NID. NID shall have the right to control NCPA only insofar as
the results of NCPA's Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement; however, otherwise NID
shall not have the right to control the means by which NCPA accomplishes Services rendered
pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other agency, state, local or federal policy,
rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, NCPA and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing Services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled
to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident
of employment by NID, including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public

Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of NID and entitlement to any

16
SERVICES AGREEMENT



contribution to be paid by NID for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for

PERS benefits.
Section 15. MISCELLANEOUS

15.1 Confidentiality. The Parties will keep confidential all confidential or trade secret

information made available to them in connection with this Agreement, to the extent possible,
consistent with applicable laws, including the California Public Records Act. Confidential or

trade secret information shall be marked or expressly identified as such.

If a Party (“Receiving Party”) receives a request from a Third Party for access to, or
inspection, disclosure or copying of, any of the other Party’s (the “Supplying Party”) confidential
data or information (“Disclosure Request”), then the Receiving Party shall provide notice and a
copy of the Disclosure Request to the Supplying Party within three (3) Business Days of receipt
of the Disclosure Request. Within three (3) Business Days of receipt of such notice, the

Supplying Party shall provide notice to the Receiving Party either:

(i) that the Supplying Party believes there are reasonable legal grounds for
denying or objecting to the Disclosure Request, and the Supplying Party requests the Receiving
Party to deny or object to the Disclosure Request with respect to identified confidential
information. In such case, the Receiving Party shall deny the Disclosure Request and the
Supplying Party shall defend the denial of the Disclosure Request at its sole cost, and it shall
indemnify the Receiving Party for all costs associated with denying or objecting to the
Disclosure Request. Such indemnification by the Supplying Party of the Receiving Party shall
include all of the Receiving Party’s costs reasonably incurred with respect to denial of or
objection to the Disclosure Request, including but not limited to costs, penalties, and the

Receiving Party’s attorney’s fees; or

(ii) the Supplying Party shall provide a written statement to the Receiving Party
advising that the Receiving Party may grant the Disclosure Request without any liability by the
Receiving Party to the Supplying Party.

15.2  Survival of Obligations. The defense and indemnity obligations of Section 4.1.3,

Section 4.2.8 and Section 6 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

17
SERVICES AGREEMENT



15.3 No Consequential Damages. FOR ANY BREACH OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS

AGREEMENT FOR WHICH AN EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES IS PROVIDED IN
THIS AGREEMENT, THE LIABILITY OF THE DEFAULTING PARTY SHALL BE LIMITED AS SET FORTH
IN SUCH PROVISION, AND ALL OTHER DAMAGES OR REMEDIES ARE HEREBY WAIVED. IF NO
REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGE IS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED, THE LIABILITY OF THE
DEFAULTING PARTY SHALL BE LIMITED TO ACTUAL DAMAGES ONLY AND ALL OTHER DAMAGES
AND REMEDIES ARE HEREBY WAIVED. IN NO EVENT SHALL A PARTY OR THEIR RESPECTIVE
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, REPRESENTATIVES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OR EMPLOYEES BE
LIABLE FOR ANY LOST PROFITS, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE OR
INCIDENTAL LOSSES OR DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOSS OF USE, LOST REVENUES, LOSS OF PROFIT
OR LOSS OF CONTRACTS EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES, AND EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES SUCH CLAIMS AND RELEASES EACH OTHER AND
EACH OF SUCH PERSONS FROM ANY SUCH LIABILITY.

The Parties acknowledge that California Civil Code section 1542 provides that: “A
general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.” The Parties waive the provisions of
section 1542, or other similar provisions of law, and intend that the waiver and release
provided by this Section of this Agreement shall be fully enforceable despite its reference to

future or unknown claims.

15.4 Waiver. No waiver of the performance by a Party of any obligation under this
Agreement with respect to any default or any other matter arising in connection with this
Agreement shall be effective unless given by the other Party. Any such waiver by the other
Party in any particular instance shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to any subsequent

performance, default or matter.

15.5 Amendments. Unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement, this Agreement
may be amended only by written instrument executed by the Parties with the same formality as

this Agreement.

18
SERVICES AGREEMENT



15.5.1 Amendments of Appendices. The Appendices that are attached to

and made part of this Agreement include detailed principles, descriptions and procedures
for NCPA’s provision of Services to NID. Upon mutual written consent of the Designated
Representative of each Party, the Appendices of this Agreement may be amended from
time to time, without the requirement of an approval as required pursuant to Section 15.5;
provided, however, Appendix A, Appendix B and Appendix E may be amended only by

written instrument executed by the Parties with the same formality as this Agreement.

15.6 Assignment of Agreement.

15.6.1 Binding Upon Successors. This Agreement, including the Appendices

attached hereto, shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective

successors and assignees of the Parties to this Agreement.

15.6.2 No Assignment. This Agreement, nor any interest herein, shall be

transferred or assigned by a Party hereto except with the consent in writing of the other

Party hereto, where such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

15.7 Severability. In the event that any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement or the application of any such term, covenant or condition, shall be held invalid as
to any person or circumstance by any court having jurisdiction, all other terms, covenants or
conditions of this Agreement and their application shall not be affected thereby, but shall
remain in force and effect unless the court holds that such provisions are not severable from all

other provisions of this Agreement.

15.8 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted, governed by, and

construed under the laws of the State of California.

15.9 Headings. All indices, titles, subject headings, section titles and similar items are
provided for the purpose of convenience and are not intended to be inclusive, definitive, or

affect the meaning of the contents of this Agreement or the scope thereof.

19
SERVICES AGREEMENT



15.10 Notices. Any notice, demand or request provided for in this Agreement, or
served, given or made shall become effective when delivered to the person specified below

(the “Designated Representative”):

NCPA:

Tony Zimmer

Assistant General Manager, Power Management
Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

NID:

Remleh Scherzinger
General Manager
Nevada Irrigation District
1036 West Main Street
Grass Valley, CA 95945

All notices shall be deemed delivered when personally delivered, two (2) Business Days
after deposit in the United States mail first class postage prepaid. A Party may change its
Designated Representative by providing notice to the other Party, and such change shall not

constitute an amendment to this Agreement.

15.11 Warranty of Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that it has been duly

authorized by all requisite approval and action to execute and deliver this Agreement and that
this Agreement is a binding, legal, and valid agreement enforceable in accordance with its

terms.

15.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
and each executed counterpart shall have the same force and effect as an original instrument
and as if all the signatories to all of the counterparts had signed the same instrument. Any
signature page of this Agreement may be detached from any counterpart of this Agreement
without impairing the legal effect of any signatures thereon, and may be attached to another
counterpart of this Agreement identical in form hereto but having attached to it one or more

signature pages.

20
SERVICES AGREEMENT



15.13 Venue. In the event that a Party brings any action under this Agreement, the
Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California

in the County of Placer or County of Nevada.

15.14 Attorneys’ Fees. If a Party to this Agreement brings any action, including an

action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, each

Party shall bear its own fees and costs, including attorneys’ fees, associated with the action.

15.15 Counsel Representation. Pursuant to the provisions of California Civil Code

Section 1717 (a), each of the Parties were represented by counsel in the negotiation and
execution of this Agreement and no one Party is the author of this Agreement or any of its

subparts.

15.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended

by the Parties, nor shall any provision of this Agreement be deemed or construed by the
Parties, by any third person or any Third Parties, to be for the benefit of any Third Party, nor
shall any Third Party have any right to enforce any provision of this Agreement or be entitled to

damages for any breach by the Parties of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

15.17 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the appendices

attached hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between NID and NCPA
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All appendixes attached hereto are

incorporated by reference herein.

15.18 Reliability Requirements. Unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, the

Parties acknowledge that NID and NCPA are both individually responsible for compliance with
the WECC and NERC Reliability Standards and criteria applicable to the functions for which each
Party are respectively registered with NERC. The references to WECC and NERC Reliability
Standards, if any, throughout this Agreement do not make any alteration or enlargement of the
requirements or standards applicable to each Party beyond their individual registrations with

NERC.

15.19 Significant Regulatory Change or Operational Change.

21
SERVICES AGREEMENT



15.19.1 A “Significant Regulatory Change” shall be deemed to occur if FERC, the
CPUC, the CAISO or any other court, public authority, governmental, or other lawfully
established civilian authorities having jurisdiction, issues an order or decision or adopts or
modifies a tariff or filed contract, or enacts a law that materially interferes with the ability

of any Party to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement.

15.19.2 A “Significant Operational Change” shall be deemed to occur due to (i)
material amendments and/or revisions to any tariffs, contracts or other applicable
documents referenced in this Agreement that directly affect a Party’s obligations under this
Agreement, (ii) an action taken by the Balancing Authority that may have a material
detrimental impact on the way a Party operates or must operate its Customer Resources, or
that directly affects a Party’s obligations under this Agreement, or (iii) a significant change
in NID’s supply and resource portfolio that may result in material increase in the scale and
scope of services contemplated at the Effective Date of this Agreement (e.g., NID’s

generation size increases by ten percent).

15.19.3 Notification of Significant Regulatory Change or Operational Change. At

any time during the term of this Agreement, if any Party anticipates the occurrence of a
Significant Regulatory Change or Significant Operational Change that may reasonably be
expected to materially interfere with the ability of any Party to perform any of its
obligations under this Agreement, or such Significant Regulatory Change or Significant
Operational Change occurs, such Party shall provide written notice to the other Party as
soon as practicable. The notice shall contain a description of the Significant Regulatory
Change or Significant Operational Change, including expected time schedules, and of the
effect of the significant change to the Parties. If the Party giving notice believes that it will
be necessary to amend this Agreement to address the anticipated change or change when it
has occurred, then the notice to the other Party may include a proposal that the Parties
meet to negotiate an appropriate amendment to this Agreement. The Parties shall
promptly enter into good faith negotiations and attempt to achieve a mutually agreeable
modification to this Agreement to address any such Significant Regulatory Change or

Significant Operational Change, striving to maintain the original intent of the Agreement.

22
SERVICES AGREEMENT



15.19.4 Amendment of Agreement. If the Parties agree that an amendment to

this Agreement is necessary to address a Significant Regulatory Change or Significant
Operational Change, the Parties will proceed to negotiate such amendment in good faith. If
the Parties have not reached agreement within 120 calendar days of the date of the first

meeting, either Party may terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 5.2.

23
SERVICES AGREEMENT



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NCPA and NID have, by the signature of its duly authorized

representative shown below, executed and delivered a counterpart of this Agreement.

Northern California Power Agency Nevada Irrigation District
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager REMLEH SCHERZINGER, General Manager
Attest: Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form: Approved as to Form:

General Counsel Counsel

24
SERVICES AGREEMENT



APPENDIX A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

All services provided by NCPA to NID pursuant to this Agreement are described in this

Appendix A (collectively referred to herein as “Services”).
Section 1. Scheduling Coordination Services

1.1 Description of Service. NCPA shall provide Scheduling Coordination Services to

NID in accordance with this Agreement, the CAISO Tariff, and other rules and requirements, as
applicable. Scheduling Coordination Services include the following duties, and are furthermore

described in Appendix C of this Agreement:

1.1.1 NCPA will assist NID with the process of transferring NID’s resources
from the Scheduling Coordinator portfolio in which they currently reside, to NCPA’s

Scheduling Coordinator portfolio.

1.1.2 Development and submission of schedules and Bids for the Customer
Resources, trades, ancillary services and/or other CAISO products in the CAISO energy and
ancillary services markets, or other markets, as applicable. All schedules and Bids will be
made and submitted to the CAISO in accordance with Appendix C and the CAISO Tariff, or
other balancing authority areas in accordance with the applicable rules and requirements.
NID’s owned and operated generation facilities for which NCPA supplies Scheduling

Coordination Services on behalf of are listed in Appendix E.

1.1.3 NCPA shall perform outage coordination and management for the
Customer Resources planned and unplanned outages in accordance with applicable rules
and requirements, including, but not limited to, the CAISO Tariff and associated operational

procedures.

1.1.4 Obtain and maintain settlement quality meter data in accordance
with the CAISO Tariff, the MSA CAISO ME or MSA SC, as applicable, to be used for multiple
purposes, including, but not limited to settlement validation.

1.1.5 Submit Resource Adequacy supply plans and compliance filings.

1

SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



1.1.6 Review, validate, and reconcile CAISO settlement charges and credits

for services, file timely disputes and pursuant dispute resolution.

1.1.7 Provide access to/develop and deliver operational reports, including,
but not limited to the Annual Report, describing CAISO market awards, settlement
outcomes, outage reports and/or other performance metrics; such reports shall be
described in the applicable scheduling and operating procedures set forth in Appendix C

and Appendix D.

1.1.8 Providing pre-scheduling, real-time scheduling and optimization

(including development of Bidding strategies) services for NID’s resources.

1.1.9 Coordination of daily and intra-daily operational communications

with NID’s operational counterparts.

1.1.10 Performing transactional and bilateral checkouts and settlements for
physical and financial energy, and energy related product transactions, and initiating and

processing related disputes.
Section 2. Control Center Services

2.1 Description of Service. NCPA shall provide control center services (“Control

Center Services”) for NID’s owned and operated generation facilities for which NCPA supplies
Scheduling Coordination Services. Such duties shall include the following, and are furthermore

described in Appendix D of this Agreement:
2.1.1 Monitoring and dispatching of NID generation facilities.
2.1.2 Management of unplanned outages and system emergencies.
2.1.3 Monitor real time telemetry, data flow and manage system data.

2.1.4 Call-out field and emergency service personnel in response to certain

operational conditions.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



2.1.5 Monitor alarms and operate NID generation facilities in accordance
with Operating Procedures and applicable requirements, including regulatory and/or

environmental requirements.

2.1.6 Operational coordination, communication and monitoring in
coordination with NID’s generation facility personnel and Third Parties. Activities
associated with Reliability Standards compliance are performed in accordance with Section

3 of this Appendix A.
Section 3. Reliability Standards Compliance Services.

3.1 Description of Service. NCPA shall act on behalf of, or in coordination with NID,

regarding compliance activities and requirements associated with certain Reliability Standards
(“Reliability Standards Compliance Services”) for NID’s owned and operated generation facilities
for which NCPA supplies Scheduling Coordination Services. Such duties shall include the

following, and are furthermore described in Appendix F of this Agreement:

3.1.1 NCPA shall maintain its functional registration with NERC and WECC,
to enable NCPA to act on behalf of, or in coordination with NID, for performing compliance
activities to manage and comply with certain WECC and NERC Reliability Standards and
criteria. The functions and requirements for which NCPA shall act on behalf of, or in

coordination with NID, are described and listed in Appendix F.

3.1.2 Any violation reporting, including any self-reported violations, shall be

made by NID.
Section 4. Information Requirements

4.1 Information Requirements. To enable NCPA to perform the duties associated

with Services provided to NID in accordance with this Agreement, NID shall timely provide the

following information, instructions, and communications to NCPA:

4.1.1 Meter Data. NID shall provide NCPA access to settlement quality

meter data from resources scheduled and Bid by NCPA for NID under this Agreement, and

3
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



to maintain such meters and metering equipment in accordance with the standards and

requirements as set forth in the CAISO Tariff.

4.1.2 Operational Data. NID shall provide NCPA access to certain real-time

operational systems and information (as mutually determined by NCPA and NID) including,
but is not limited to: (i) Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (“SCADA”) systems, (i)
Programmable Logic Controllers (“PLC”), (iii) Real-time telemetry and recording devices, and
(iv) information required to enable NCPA to provide Reliability Standards Compliance

Services.

4.1.3 Scheduling and Operating Procedures. NID, in coordination with

NCPA, shall prepare written scheduling procedures (“Scheduling Procedures”) and operating
procedures (“Operating Procedures”) related to NID generation resources that convey NID’s
guidelines for how NCPA is to perform certain Scheduling Coordination Services and Control
Center Services under this Agreement. Such Scheduling Procedures and Operating
Procedures shall be conveyed to NCPA sufficiently in advance of their application so as to

reasonably enable NCPA to perform such activities.

Section 5. The Parties acknowledge that prior to the date on which specific Services shall be
supplied by NCPA for a specific NID generating resource, the Parties may be required to
perform certain work and other activities to establish and enable the systems and processes
that are required to perform Services as of the date on which Services for a specific NID
generating resource is to commence. Such activities may include establishing common
business practices, developing business requirements, establishing connectivity of systems and
equipment, collection of operating parameters (e.g., SCADA points), coordinated training of
staff, and other activities that may be required to enable NCPA to provide, and NID to receive,
Services. During this transition period (the "Transition Period"), the Parties agree to cooperate
in good faith to establish and enable the systems and processes that are required to perform
Services. All activities to be performed by NCPA during the Transition Period are included as

part of the comprehensive Services provided to NID, pursuant to this Agreement, even though

4
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



such work and activities may be performed by NCPA prior to the date on which specific Services

shall be supplied by NCPA for a specific NID generating resource.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



APPENDIX B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

Pursuant to Section 7.1 of this Agreement, NID shall pay NCPA the amounts listed in this
Appendix B (the “Compensation Schedule”) in consideration for Services provided under this

Agreement.
Section 1. Compensation Schedule

1.1 In consideration for NCPA’s provision of all Services, NID shall pay NCPA an
amount equal to Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) per month for Services
rendered during the period of March 1, 2020 through April 30, 2020, and an amount equal to
Two Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty Dollars ($2,830.00) per month for Services rendered during
the period of May 1, 2020 through February 28, 2021. For the purpose of clarity, the first
complete one (1) year period shall begin on March 1, 2020, and shall continue through
February 28, 2021. If the provision of Services commences after March 1, 2020, the amount
due shall be prorated based on the number of days of Service provided, determined based on a
calculation of the applicable monthly amount due divided by 30 days. For each subsequent one
(1) year period of the term of this Agreement, NID shall pay NCPA an amount equal to: (i) the
sum of the annual amount charged to NID during the prior year escalated at a rate of 2.0% per
year. Such annual amount shall be billed to NID in twelve (12) equal monthly installments, in

accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement.

1.2 In addition to the amounts of compensation set forth in Section 1.1 of this
Appendix B, NID shall also pay NCPA an amount equal to the actual cost for any direct costs
NCPA incurs, if any, for developing, establishing and installing the telecommunications, or other
operational data communications connections, that are required for NCPA to provide Services
under this Agreement. The compensation contemplated in this Section 1.2 of Appendix B is
intended to be limited in scope, and is intended to apply only to any required installation of
physical equipment (e.g., communications lines) that may be required to enable NCPA to collect
data from, or to transmit data to, NID's generation facilities. For clarity, the compensation

contemplated in this Section 1.2 is not intended for recovery of general costs that NCPA may
1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX B



incur which are considered to be included in the scope of Services, including activities
contemplated during the Transition Period, and whereby such costs are compensated pursuant
to Section 1.1 of this Appendix B. Prior to incurring any actual costs for such connections, such

expenditures shall be discussed and mutually agreed to by the Parties.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX B



APPENDIX C
SCHEDULING PROCEDURES
The following Scheduling Procedures are separately attached to this Agreement as Appendix C:
1. NID-PM-401 (Scheduling and Bidding)

2. RESERVED

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX C



APPENDIX D

OPERATING PROCEDURES

The following Operating Procedures are separately attached to this Agreement as Appendix D:

1.

2.

NID-PM-101 (Voice and Data Communications Procedure)

NID-PM-102 (Outage Coordination and Operational Reliability Data Procedure)
NID-PM-107 (Event Reporting Operating Plan Procedure)

NID-PM-108 (Operating Instructions and Emergency Assistance Procedure)
NID-PM-302 (Voltage Control, AVR and PSS Operations Procedure)
NID-PM-304 (Project Operations and Controls Procedure)

NID-PM-404 (Loading Orders Procedure)

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX D



APPENDIX E
CUSTOMER RESOURCES

The following is a list of the Customer Resources for which NCPA provides Services pursuant to

this Agreement.

o Deer Creek Powerhouse
o Resource ID: DEERCR_6_UNIT 1
CAISO P-Node: POD_DEERCR_6_UNIT 1-APND
Resource Type: Hydroelectric
Resource Owner: Nevada Irrigation District
Resource Capacity: 5.7 MW
CEC-RPS-ID#: 60040A
Services Effective Date: March 1, 2020

0O O O O O O

e Combie South Powerhouse

Resource ID: HIGGNS_1_COMBIE
CAISO P-Node: HIGGINS_1_GN001
Resource Type: Hydroelectric

Resource Owner: Nevada Irrigation District

0 0O O o o

Resource Capacity: 1.5 MW
CEC-RPS-ID#: 60172A
Services Effective Date: May 1, 2020

0]

@)

Appendix E may be amended to add and/or remove NID resources pursuant to Section 15.5.1 of
this Agreement.

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX E



APPENDIX F
RELIABILITY STANDARDS COMPLIANCE SERVICES MATRIX

Pursuant to Section 3 of Appendix A, NCPA shall provide Reliability Standard Compliance
Services to NID for the Reliability Standards and criteria listed in the Reliability Standards
Compliance Services Matrix included in this Appendix F. NCPA and NID shall meet and confer at
least once every six (6) months to review the coordinated functional registration of tasks
assigned to each Party, as reflected in the Reliability Standards Compliance Services Matrix, to
determine if the Reliability Standards Compliance Services Matrix needs to be updated or

revised based on any changes to the respective Reliability Standards contained therein.

Reliability Standards Compliance Services Matrix

RESERVED FOR ATTACHMENT OF COMPLIANCE SERVICES MATRIX

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX F



A Jd
S
'y
“’ it A PUBLIC AGENCY

/éTH'ERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project; Applicable to the following

projects: NCPA Hydroelectric Facility

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

Department: Hydroelectric

FROM: Joel Ledesma Qﬁ

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager Competitive Pricing Process

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X O O 0O X O

City of Lodi

X

City of Shasta Lake

X

City of Lompoc City of Ukiah

City of Palo Alto Plumas-Sierra REC

City of Redding Port of Oakland
City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD

City of Santa Clara KX Other

If other, please specify

X X O

o o o

SR: 127:20




NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-18 authorizing the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project
and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing
policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed
amount of $3,000,000, and authorizing use of up to $3,000,000 in existing Hydroelectric Capital
Development Reserve collections to fund the project, and acknowledging that the Hydroelectric
Capital Development Reserve will need to be replenished in future budget years.

BACKGROUND:

Design and construction of the first circuit of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line was completed in
1988. The second circuit was added around 1991. Both circuits utilized first-generation EPDM
polymer insulators. When the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV was put into service, manufacturers did
not typically recommend corona rings on 230 kV lines, as this was a practice normally reserved
for extra high voltage (345 kV and above). Since then, operational experience, EPRI testing, and
advanced product research laboratory testing has indicated a need for corona rings at the line
end of 230 kV polymer insulators.

In September 2019, NCPA contracted with Power Engineers to prepare a Wildfire Risk Mitigation
Report and Recommendations. Part of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line crosses through
CalFire Tier Il Fire Hazard Severity Zone. In consideration of the age of the insulators, observed
failures, and changing design standards, Power Engineers recommended that the approximately
30 year old EPDM polymer-type insulators be replaced with new silicon polymer insulators with
corona rings, along with other hardware modifications such as changing out some suspension
clamps, inspecting the conductors for fatigue or damaged stands, upgrading shield wire
grounding installations, and adding anchor shackles at the suspension insulator Y-clevis end in
specific tangent towers.

In addition, Power Engineers recommended increasing the line-ground clearance in one span
and fire hardening the McKays 17 kV overhead line. The NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation
Project will implement the Power Engineer recommendations for the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV
line and McKays 17 kV line.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project is anticipated to not exceed
$3,000,000. Funds for this project were not included in the approved FY19-20 Hydroelectric
Project Budget. Staff recommends authorizing use of up to $3,000,000 in existing Hydroelectric
Capital Development Reserve collections for the Wildfire Mitigation Project. Additional Capital
Development Reserve collections will be proposed in future Hydro Project budgets to refund the
Capital Development Reserve account (as needed) for the upcoming McKays Sediment
Removal project.

SELECTION PROCESS:

NCPA is currently preparing to solicit competitive bids from multiple vendors to perform the work
required for this project. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA

SR: 127:20



NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project
February 20, 2020
Page 3

procurement policies and procedures. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and
availability of the services needed at the time the service is required

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

CEQA Guidelines section 15301 states that a project is categorically exempt from CEQA review
when the project “consists of the operation, repair, maintenance ... or minor alteration of existing
public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving
negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s
determination.” There is no reasonable possibility that maintaining the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV
line and McKays 17 kV line will result in a significant impact on the environment. A Notice of
Exemption for this type of work was approved by the NCPA Commission and filed with
Calaveras County on March 27, 2014.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

espectfully submitted,

General Manager

Attachments (1):
¢ Resolution

SR: 127:20



RESOLUTION 20-18

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE NCPA HYDROELECTRIC WILDFIRE MITIGATION PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #127:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) owns and operates the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV
line and operates the McKays 17 kV line; and

WHEREAS, the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line is approximately 30-years old and design standards have
changed; and

WHEREAS, the September 2019 Wildfire Risk Mitigation Report recommended replacing the 230 kV
insulators and other system hardening; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to authorize and fund the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project; and

WHEREAS, CEQA Guidelines section 15301 states that this project is categorically exempt from CEQA
review because the project “consists of the operation, repair, maintenance ... or minor alteration of existing public or
private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of
use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s determination.”; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption for this type of work was approved by the NCPA Commission and filed
with Calaveras County on March 27, 2014; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project and delegates authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA
Purchasing Policies and Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed amount of
$3,000,000, and authorizes the use of up to $3,000,000 in existing Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve
collections to fund the project, and acknowledges that the Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve will need to be
replenished in future budget years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on roll

call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: NCPA Geothermal Facility Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Department: Geothermal

FROM: Joel Ledesma %

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

(]

X X 0O X

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

X O 0O XK X

City of Roseville

X

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

L

X

City of Ukiah

X

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

X O O

Other

Turlock

SR: 128:20




NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-19 authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project
and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing
Policies and Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed
amount of $450,000.

BACKGROUND:

There have been three major wildfires over the last five years in areas surrounding the NCPA
Geothermal Facility. Fortunately, the facility has incurred minimal damage from these fires. An
assessment of NCPA facilities was performed by Power Engineers and recommendations were
provided based on best business practices. Therefore, the Wildfire Risk Mitigation Report and
Recommendations and lessons learned from the recent fires have resulted in Geothermal
Facility specific recommended mitigation measures for the project which consists of repairs and
surveys to the 230 KV transmission towers and 21 KV power distribution line, purchase of
equipment for power line inspection and vegetation management, and improved signage to
assist local firefighting crews.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project is anticipated not to
exceed $450,000. Funds for this project were not included in the FY20 budget. Staff
recommends using a portion of excess bond Reserve funds that was released when the final
maturity of the 2009 Geothermal bonds was paid on July 1, 2019. The Reserve fund release
was approximately $3.5 million which would have been included as part of the FY20 annual
settlements reconciliation. Therefore, no budget augmentation is required. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of any agreements executed for work related to this project
will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures,

SELECTION PROCESS:

NCPA is currently preparing to solicit bids from multiple vendors to perform the work required for
the project. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA procurement policies
and procedures. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services

needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The proposal is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant
to Title 14 CCR Section 15301, Section 15302, Section 15304, Section 15309, Section 15311,
and Section 15330 of the CEQA Guidelines Code, which exempts work being done at an
existing, publicly owned geothermal facility at the Geysers steam field to operate and maintain
electric power generators and associated facilities from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act. There is no reasonable possibility that the proposed work on the 230
KV transmission towers and 21 KV power distribution line will result in significant impact to the
environment. A Notice of Exemption for this type of work was approved by the NCPA
Commission and filed with the County of Sonoma on October 31, 2012.

SR: 128:20



NCPA Geothermal Facility Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project
February 20, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

Respectfully submitted,

-W,}—L} ‘A"/\

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 128:20



RESOLUTION 20-19

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE NCPA GEOTHERMAL WILDFIRE MITIGATION PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #128:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains on behalf of the project
owners a Geothermal Facility near Middletown, CA, consisting of two power plants and 78 steam production and
injection wells; and

WHEREAS, the occurrence of wildfires in the areas surrounding the NCPA Geothermal Facility has
substantially increased over the last several years; and

WHEREAS, the increased fire risk to the NCPA Geothermal Facility warrants additional wildfire mitigation
efforts to reduce the risk; and

WHEREAS, an assessment of NCPA facilities was performed by Power Engineers resulting in these
recommendations for additional wildfire mitigation efforts to reduce risk, consisting of repairs and surveys to the 230
KV transmission towers and 21 KV power distribution line, purchase of equipment for power line inspection and
vegetation management, and improved signage to assist local firefighting crews; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends using a portion of excess bond Reserve funds that were released when the
final maturity of the 2009 Geothermal bonds was paid on July 1, 2019. The Reserve fund release was approximately
$3.5 million, which would have been included as part of the FY 2020 annual setttements reconciliation; and

WHEREAS, this proposal is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant
to Title 14 CCR Section 15301, Section 13502, Section 15304, Section 15309, Section 15311, and Section 15330 of
the CEQA Guidelines Code, which exempts work being done at an existing, publicly owned geothermal facility at the
Geysers steam field to operate and maintain electric power generators and associated facilities from the provisions
of the California Environmental Quality Act; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Mitigation Project, and delegates authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA
purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed amount of
$450,000.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on
roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: February 10, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project Request for Additional

Funds; Applicable to the following projects: Lodi Energy Center

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

S

FROM: Joel Ledesma / METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [ City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc City of Ukiah X
San F'a""i;ca:iﬁ?’r:;:; City of Palo Alto [J  Plumas-Sierra REC KX
City of Biggs City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg X City of Santa Clara X Other X

If other, please specify City of Azusa, CDWR

Modesto Irrigation, PWRPA

SR: 129:20



Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project Request for Additional Funds
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-20 authorizing additional funds for the Lodi Energy Center
Transformer Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this project from $4,000,000
to $4,425,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids,
execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the updated project amount, authorize the
use of up to $425,000 from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund, and acknowledging that the
LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in future budget years.

BACKGROUND:

In 2013, NCPA staff first identified elevated gas levels in the Lodi Energy Center generator step-
up transformer. An internal inspection resulted in no findings or physical damage, and the
transformer was placed back into service. In 2018, NCPA staff identified another rise in gas
levels. An internal inspection was completed during which physical damage was found, and it
was determined that the generator step-up transformer was failing and would need to be
replaced.

The Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project was approved by the Lodi Energy
Center Project Participant Committee in the June 10, 2019 Committee Meeting and in the June
27, 2019 Commission Meeting (SR: 169:19; Reso: 19-50), with a budget of not to exceed
$4,000,000.

After completing competitive bidding, a contract was awarded to Siemens Energy for acquisition
of the transformer equipment portion of the project. Based on current estimated costs and actual
bid responses for the general construction portion of this project, the new forecasted total
budget is $4,425,000. Staff is recommending authorizing the use of up to $425,000 from the
LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund for the increased project cost.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project was considered and approved in the
FY19-20 budget for $4,000,000. The funds will come from three sources, as show in the table
below:

Budgeted
Budget, Transformer FY2020 $2,915,858
Budget, Reallocated Funds, Transmission Upgrade Project $1,084,142
LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund $425,000
Total Budgeted $4,425,000

Current Cost

Transformer Manufacturing (52,919,480)
Engineering (Civil, Electrical Interconnection/Protection) ($238,000)
Transformer Bus Duct Adapter ($64,995)
Engineering (Transformer Quality Assurance) ($95,500)

SR: 129:20



Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project Request for Additional Funds
February 20, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Amendment to Resolution 19-50 authorizing additional funds for the Lodi Energy
Center Transformer Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this project from
$4,000,000 to $4,425,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to
award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the updated project amount,
authorize the use of up to $425,000 from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund, and
acknowledging that the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in future
budget years.

BACKGROUND:

In 2013, NCPA staff first identified elevated gas levels in the Lodi Energy Center generator step-
up transformer. An internal inspection resulted in no findings or physical damage, and the
transformer was placed back into service. In 2018, NCPA staff identified another rise in gas
levels. An internal inspection was completed during which physical damage was found, and it
was determined that the generator step-up transformer was failing and would need to be
replaced.

The Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project was approved by the Lodi Energy
Center Project Participant Committee in the June 10, 2019 Committee Meeting and in the June
27, 2019 Commission Meeting (SR: 169:19; Reso: 19-50), with a budget of not to exceed
$4,000,000.

After completing competitive bidding, a contract was awarded to Siemens Energy for acquisition
of the transformer equipment portion of the project. Based on current estimated costs and actual
bid responses for the general construction portion of this project, the new forecasted total
budget is $4,425,000. Staff is recommending authorizing the use of up to $425,000 from the
LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund for the increased project cost.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project was considered and approved in the

FY19-20 budget for $4,000,000. The funds will come from three sources, as show in the table
below:

Budgeted
Budget, Transformer FY2020 $2,915,858
Budget, Reallocated Funds, Transmission Upgrade Project $1,084,142
LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund $425,000
Total Budgeted $4,425,000
Current Cost
Transformer Manufacturing (52,919,480)
Engineering (Civil, Electrical Interconnection/Protection) ($238,000)
Transformer Bus Duct Adapter (564,995)

SR: 129:20



Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project Request for Additional Funds
February 20, 2020

Page 3
Hazardous Material Management ($12,650)
Total Current Cost ($3,330,625)
Total Current Balance $669,375

Estimated Forecasted Costs

Installation, Bid Results ($850,000)
CBO Plan Review ($20,000)
Installation Contingency (26.4% of Installation Bid) (6224,374.75)
Total Estimated Forecasted Costs ($1,094,375)
Estimated Total Cost {Current + Forecast) ($4,425,000)

SELECTION PROCESS:

On October 31, 2019, NCPA released a Notice Inviting Bids for the installation portion of the
Transformer Replacement Project. NCPA received bids from Contra Costa Electric and
Siemens Energy. Contra Costa submitted the lowest responsive bid.

NCPA estimates a cost savings of about $400,000 by utilizing a separate bid process for the
procurement of the equipment and procurement for its installation.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

These activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA
Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by.the NCPA Commission on September 27,
2013, for this class of work and was filed in San Joaquin County.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on February 10, 2020, however, the Committee did not take action at the meeting.
The Committee has requested additional information, and this item will be considered at Special
LEC PPC meeting on February 19, 2020.

spectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
¢ Resolution

SR: 129:20



AMENDED RESOLUTION 19-50

AMEND RESOLUTION 19-50 OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE LODI ENERGY CENTER
TRANSFORMER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #169:19 and 129:20)

WHEREAS, it was determined after an internal inspection conducted in 2013, and again in 2018, that the
Lodi Energy Center (LEC) step-up transformer needs to be replaced; and

WHEREAS, the Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project was approved by the Lodi Energy
Center Project Participant Committee in the June 10, 2019 Committee Meeting and in the June 27, 2019
Commission Meeting (SR 169:19; Reso: 19-50), with a budget of not to exceed $4,000,000; and

WHEREAS, based on current estimated costs and actual bid responses for the general construction
portion of this project, the new forecasted budget to complete the project is $4,425,000; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks approval to increase the not to exceed amount of this project from
$4,000,000 to $4,425,000, and authorize the use of up to $425,000 from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund
for the increased project cost; and

WHEREAS, these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA Guidelines. A
Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, for this class of work
and was filed in San Joaquin County; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the request for additional funds for the Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project,
increasing the total not to exceed amount of this project from $4,000,000 to $4,425,000, and delegating
authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase
orders for the updated project amount, and authorizes the use of up to $425,000 from the LEC Maintenance
Reserve Fund, and acknowledges that the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in
future budget years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Agenda Item: 26
NCPA Jendatem

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 12, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020
SUBJECT: Approval Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Joel Ledesma METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department:. Combustion Turbines

This item is being discussed at the LEC PPC special meeting scheduled on
Wednesday, February 19, 2020.

Contingent upon action taken at the LEC PPC special meeting, the Staff
Report, Resolution and supporting material will be provided to the
Commission via email and will also be able via NCPA Connect and on
NCPA'’s website at www.ncpa.com.



NCP A Agenda ltem: 27

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

February 12, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 20, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of the Third Amendment to Employment Agreement between
NCPA and Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Roger Frith METHOD OF SELECTION:
Commission Chair N/A
Division: Executive Committee If other, please describe:

Department: General Manager

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS AND PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION - a) Labor negotiations pursuant to Government Code
section 54957.6: Agency representatives: NCPA Executive Committee
Members and Assistant General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks:
Unrepresented Public Employee: General Counsel; and b) Performance
evaluation pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Unrepresented
Public Employee: One Category: General Counsel

Contingent upon action taken during Closed Session Item 27, the Staff
Report, Resolution and Agreement will be provided to the Full Commission
in Open Session for final consideration.



	Draft_Minutes_01162020
	Draft_Minutes_Special_Commission_01272020
	Item_5_Feb_5_2020_Fac_Committee_Meeting_Minutes
	Item_10_Dec_31_2019_Financial_Report
	Item_11_Treasurer's_Report_Mo_Ended_DEC_31_2019
	Item_12_Jan_31_2020_Financial_Report
	Item_13_Treasurer's_Report_Mo_Ended_Jan_31_2020
	Item_14_Disposal_of_NCPA_Surplus_Property
	Item_15_Review_&_Approve_Amendments_to_NCPA_Investment_Policy
	Item_16_Debt_and_Interest_Rate_Management_Report_Dec_31_2019
	Item_17_Updates_to_the_Nexant_Cost_Allocation_Model_for_FY2021
	Item_18_Industrial_Door_Company_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_19_Farwest_Insulation_Contracting_First_Amendment_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_20_Maxim_Crane_Works_LP_First_Amendment_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_21_Nalco_Company_LLC_Ten_Year_MTGSA
	Item_22_Approval_of_Services_Agreement_Between_NCPA_and_Nevada_Irrigation_District
	Item_23_NCPA_Hydro_Wildfire_Mitigation_Project
	Item_24_NCPA_Geo_Wildfire_Risk_Mitigation_Project
	Item_25_LEC_Transformer_Replacement_Project_Request_for_Additional_Funds
	Item_26_Approval_LEC_Turbine_Restoration_Project
	Item_27_Approval_Third_Amendment_to Employment_Agreement_Between_NCPA _and_Jane_Luckhardt_General_Counsel

